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U.S. Policy Standards and Procedures for the Use of Force in Counterterrorism 
Operations Outside the United States and Areas of Active Hostilities 

 
Since his first day in office, President Obama has been clear that the United States will 
use all available tools of national power to protect the American people from the 
terrorist threat posed by al-Qa’ida and its associated forces.  The President has also 
made clear that, in carrying on this fight, we will uphold our laws and values and will 
share as much information as possible with the American people and the Congress, 
consistent with our national security needs and the proper functioning of the Executive 
Branch.  To these ends, the President has approved, and senior members of the 
Executive Branch have briefed to the Congress, written policy standards and 
procedures that formalize and strengthen the Administration’s rigorous process for 
reviewing and approving operations to capture or employ lethal force against terrorist 
targets outside the United States and outside areas of active hostilities.  Additionally, 
the President has decided to share, in this document, certain key elements of these 
standards and procedures with the American people so that they can make informed 
judgments and hold the Executive Branch accountable.   
 
This document provides information regarding counterterrorism policy standards and 
procedures that are either already in place or will be transitioned into place over time.  
As Administration officials have stated publicly on numerous occasions, we are 
continually working to refine, clarify, and strengthen our standards and processes for 
using force to keep the nation safe from the terrorist threat.  One constant is our 
commitment to conducting counterterrorism operations lawfully.  In addition, we 
consider the separate question of whether force should be used as a matter of policy.  
The most important policy consideration, particularly when the United States 
contemplates using lethal force, is whether our actions protect American lives.   
 
Preference for Capture  
The policy of the United States is not to use lethal force when it is feasible to capture a 
terrorist suspect, because capturing a terrorist offers the best opportunity to gather 
meaningful intelligence and to mitigate and disrupt terrorist plots.  Capture operations 
are conducted only against suspects who may lawfully be captured or otherwise taken 
into custody by the United States and only when the operation can be conducted in 
accordance with all applicable law and consistent with our obligations to other 
sovereign states.   

Standards for the Use of Lethal Force 
Any decision to use force abroad – even when our adversaries are terrorists dedicated 
to killing American citizens – is a significant one.  Lethal force will not be proposed or 
pursued as punishment or as a substitute for prosecuting a terrorist suspect in a civilian 
court or a military commission.  Lethal force will be used only to prevent or stop attacks 
against U.S. persons, and even then, only when capture is not feasible and no other 
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reasonable alternatives exist to address the threat effectively.  In particular, lethal force 
will be used outside areas of active hostilities only when the following preconditions 
are met:   
 
First, there must be a legal basis for using lethal force, whether it is against a senior 
operational leader of a terrorist organization or the forces that organization is using or 
intends to use to conduct terrorist attacks.   
 
Second, the United States will use lethal force only against a target that poses a 
continuing, imminent threat to U.S. persons.  It is simply not the case that all terrorists 
pose a continuing, imminent threat to U.S. persons; if a terrorist does not pose such a 
threat, the United States will not use lethal force.    
 
Third, the following criteria must be met before lethal action may be taken: 
  
1) Near certainty that the terrorist target is present;  

 
2) Near certainty that non-combatants1 will not be injured or killed;  
 
3) An assessment that capture is not feasible at the time of the operation;  

 
4) An assessment that the relevant governmental authorities in the country where 

action is contemplated cannot or will not effectively address the threat to U.S. 
persons; and  
 

5) An assessment that no other reasonable alternatives exist to effectively address 
the threat to U.S. persons.   

 
Finally, whenever the United States uses force in foreign territories, international legal 
principles, including respect for sovereignty and the law of armed conflict, impose 
important constraints on the ability of the United States to act unilaterally – and on the 
way in which the United States can use force. The United States respects national 
sovereignty and international law.  
 
U.S. Government Coordination and Review 
Decisions to capture or otherwise use force against individual terrorists outside the 
United States and areas of active hostilities are made at the most senior levels of the U.S. 
Government, informed by departments and agencies with relevant expertise and 

                                                           
1 Non-combatants are individuals who may not be made the object of attack under applicable international law.  The 
term “non-combatant” does not include an individual who is part of a belligerent party to an armed conflict, an 
individual who is taking a direct part in hostilities, or an individual who is targetable in the exercise of national self-
defense.  Males of military age may be non-combatants; it is not the case that all military-aged males in the vicinity 
of a target are deemed to be combatants. 
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institutional roles.  Senior national security officials – including the deputies and heads 
of key departments and agencies – will consider proposals to make sure that our policy 
standards are met, and attorneys – including the senior lawyers of key departments and 
agencies – will review and determine the legality of proposals.   
 
These decisions will be informed by a broad analysis of an intended target’s current and 
past role in plots threatening U.S. persons; relevant intelligence information the 
individual could provide; and the potential impact of the operation on ongoing 
terrorism plotting, on the capabilities of terrorist organizations, on U.S. foreign 
relations, and on U.S. intelligence collection.  Such analysis will inform consideration of 
whether the individual meets both the legal and policy standards for the operation. 
 
Other Key Elements 
U.S. Persons.  If the United States considers an operation against a terrorist identified as 
a U.S. person, the Department of Justice will conduct an additional legal analysis to 
ensure that such action may be conducted against the individual consistent with the 
Constitution and laws of the United States. 
 
Reservation of Authority.  These new standards and procedures do not limit the 
President’s authority to take action in extraordinary circumstances when doing so is 
both lawful and necessary to protect the United States or its allies.   
 
Congressional Notification.  Since entering office, the President has made certain that 
the appropriate Members of Congress have been kept fully informed about our 
counterterrorism operations.  Consistent with this strong and continuing commitment 
to congressional oversight, appropriate Members of the Congress will be regularly 
provided with updates identifying any individuals against whom lethal force has been 
approved.  In addition, the appropriate committees of Congress will be notified 
whenever a counterterrorism operation covered by these standards and procedures has 
been conducted.   
 

### 
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ASIA PACIFIC

Kerry, in Pakistan, Expresses Optimism
on Ending Drone Strikes Soon
By MICHAEL R. GORDON AUG. 1, 2013

ISLAMABAD, Pakistan — Secretary of State John Kerry said Thursday that the
United States had made significant headway in its drone campaign and that he
hoped the strikes in Pakistan could end shortly.

“I believe that we’re on a good track,” Mr. Kerry said in an interview on
Pakistani television. “I think the program will end as we have eliminated most
of the threat and continue to eliminate it.”

Asked if the United States had a “timeline” for ending the drone strikes in
Pakistan, Mr. Kerry said: “Well, I do. And I think the president has a very real
timeline, and we hope it’s going to be very, very soon.” But he did not specify
what the timeline was, and a State Department statement issued later said,
“Today, the secretary referenced the changes that we expect to take place in
that program over the course of time, but there is no exact timeline to
provide.”

Mr. Kerry was in Pakistan to strengthen ties, and was meeting with the
nation’s new prime minister, Nawaz Sharif, and other members of the
Pakistani leadership.

His remarks followed President Obama’s speech on drone policy in May,
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in which he asserted that the reduction in American troop levels in

Afghanistan and progress in the fight against Al Qaeda had reduced the need
for drone strikes. But Mr. Obama did not go as far as Mr. Kerry in talking of
ending the strikes. Mr. Kerry’s comments, and the State Department’s
qualifying statement, illustrated the difficulty the Obama administration is
having in trying to balance its desire to strengthen ties with Pakistan with its
determination to strike militant groups who mount attacks into Afghanistan
from safe havens in Pakistan.

As part of a push to improve ties, Mr. Kerry met Thursday with Mr. Sharif,
who delayed a trip to Mecca for the meeting; Sartaj Aziz, the prime minister’s
foreign affairs adviser; and Ashfaq Parvez Kayani, Pakistan’s powerful army
chief, among others.

As Mr. Kerry tried to focus on developing a broad relationship, however,
the issue of drones kept intruding in his agenda and public appearances.

The United States’ drone strikes are hugely unpopular in Pakistan. With
Mr. Kerry standing by his side, Mr. Aziz said they should end.

“Drone attacks are counterproductive to our relationship,” Mr. Aziz told a
joint news conference. “We are asking for stopping.”

In an effort to avoid inflaming public sentiment here, the Obama
administration has cut back on the number of drone strikes in Pakistan.

According to the New America Foundation, a nonpartisan public policy
institute, there have been 16 drone strikes in Pakistan this year, compared
with 48 in 2012, 73 in 2011 and 122 in 2010.

Mr. Kerry said the United States was working with Pakistan on the issue,
leaving open the possibility that the strikes might end only after the Pakistani
government cracks down on the militant havens or takes steps to encourage a
peace settlement between the Taliban and the Afghan government.

Case 1:15-cv-01954-CM   Document 34-34   Filed 08/28/15   Page 4 of 6

A-730
Case 17-157, Document 31, 04/21/2017, 2017127, Page13 of 239



8/26/2015 Kerry, in Pakis an, Expresses Optimism on Ending Drone Strikes Soon ­ The New York Times

http://www nytimes.com/2013/08/02/world/asia/kerry­in­pakistan­visit­sees­longer­us­role­in­afghanistan.html?_r=1 3/4

However, Pakistani officials said nothing on Thursday suggesting that
such tough action might be imminent.

Asked what action the Pakistani government might take against militant
havens in Waziristan, Mr. Aziz said that Pakistan’s forces were “overstretched
right now” and that the government needed to try talk with local leaders first.

“Obviously, dialogue has to go along with military action, so we will
explore that option first,” Mr. Aziz said. “And if that doesn’t work, then we’ll
see under what conditions and by what time frame we’ll do the alternative
actions.”

On another pressing issue, Mr. Kerry told a news conference on Thursday
that he expected the United States and Afghanistan to complete a security
agreement that would allow American forces to stay in Afghanistan after 2014.

“I am personally confident that we will have an agreement,” Mr. Kerry
said during a visit here.

Several prominent lawmakers in the United States have criticized the
White House for failing to say how many troops it plans to keep in Afghanistan
after 2014 and even stating that the White House has been considering pulling
out all forces from there — the “zero option.” That approach, they have argued,
has backfired by heightening insecurity in Afghanistan.

Mr. Kerry declined to say what issues remained to be settled in the talks
over the Bilateral Security Agreement, the accord that is being worked out by
the United States and Afghanistan.

Nor did he indicate when Mr. Obama would decide how many troops
should remain in Afghanistan. But Mr. Kerry said he expected that American
forces would remain, along with troops from allied countries, to train
Afghanistan’s forces and carry out commando raids against terrorist groups as
it takes over security of the country from coalition troops.
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“The United States is drawing down, not withdrawing,” Mr. Kerry said.

There was no comment from Afghan officials on Mr. Kerry’s statements.
But one irritant was removed when Afghanistan, faced with the possible loss of
hundreds of millions of dollars in American aid, backed off a threat to impose
fines on the NATO­led coalition over missing paperwork for cargo shipments,
Afghan and coalition officials said Thursday.

Afghan officials had contended that the coalition, which is allowed to
import supplies duty free, had never filed paperwork to claim the exemption
on most of the material it had brought to Afghanistan. They estimated that
70,000 containers had been imported over the past decade and said each was
subject to a $1,000 fine now that the coalition was taking its material out. The
fine could have totaled $70 million.

The compromise announced on Thursday would see the Afghan
government waive the fines in exchange for a coalition pledge to abide by the
rules in the future, according to Finance Minister Omar Zakhilwal.

Matthew Rosenberg and Azam Ahmed contributed reporting from Kabul,
Afghanistan.

A version of this article appears in print on August 2, 2013, on page A6 of the New York edition
with the headline: Kerry, in Pakistan, Expresses Optimism on Ending Drone Strikes Soon.

© 2015 The New York Times Company
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February 11, 2014, 4:19 PM ET

BySiobhan Gorman

Director of National Intelligence James Clapper testifies before the Senate Intelligence Committee on Capitol Hill
in Washington, Jan. 29, 2014. (AP Photo/Pablo Martinez Monsivais)

Associated Press

The worst kept secret in Washington national security circles is no more. Director of National
Intelligence James Clapper publicly acknowledged for the first time at a Senate hearing
Tuesday that the Central Intelligence Agency has a drone program.

The CIA’s drone program, which operates in Pakistan and Yemen, has been the subject of
news reports for years. But U.S. officials have continued to steer clear of publicly
acknowledging the program, glossing over CIA’s role, because it has remained officially
covert. That covert status allows the CIA to operate in countries where local governments
don’t support the strikes.

The U.S. military also operates a drone program, which is not covert.

In this exchange with Sen. Bill Nelson (D., Fla.) at a Senate Armed Services Committee

CIA’s Drones, Barely Secret, Receive Rare
Public Nod
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hearing on global threats to the U.S., Mr. Clapper indirectly confirmed the existence of the
CIA’s program by saying Sen. Nelson’s statement was accurate.

Sen. Nelson: It is — you tell me if this is correct — the administration’s policy that they are
exploring shifting the use of drones, unmanned aerial vehicle strikes, from the CIA to the
DOD. Is that an accurate statement?

Mr. Clapper: Yes, sir, it is. And again, that would also be best left to a closed session.

Sen. Nelson: OK. Well, I just want to state at the outset that my opinion is that that is a
mistake. And I think that what I consider to be a mistake, I will ask with this question: One of
the avowed reasons, so stated, is that by it being the DOD, it would not be covert, it would be
overt, and therefore, when the enemy says that we killed so many innocent civilians, which is
usually not accurate by any stretch of the imagination, that we would be able to publicly state
that. Is that one of the justification for the policy?

Mr. Clapper: That — yes, sir — it’s awkward discussing this in public — that is, but I wouldn’t
characterize that as the primary reason.

Asked whether Mr. Clapper intended to publicly acknowledge the program, Mr. Clapper’s
spokesman Shawn Turner said, “He clearly said the topic should be discussed in closed
session.”

In May, President Barack Obama gave a lengthy speech outlining the legal framework and
tightened standards for U.S. drone operations. But he did not specify any agency’s role in the
program in his remarks.

A classified policy guidance issued along with the speech outlined the administration’s
intention to gradually move the CIA’s drone operations over to the Pentagon.

The CIA has yet to hand over the keys to its Yemen program and is aiming to end the
Pakistan program before handing it over to the Pentagon.

Follow @wsjwashington on Twitter
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yoho.house.gov
http //yoho house gov/med a center/press releases/yoho wants ncreased transparency and overs ght over us drone pol cy

Yoho Wants Increased Transparency and Oversight over U.S.
Drone Policy

 

Washington, DC - Today Congressman Ted Yoho (R-FL-03) ntroduced H.R. 5091 – the Drone Reform Act (DRA) ,
a b part san b  that w  conso date a  author ty to use armed drones w th n the Department of Defense (DOD). Th s
eg s at on sh fts a  author ty to DOD, wh ch w  ead to greater transparency n the budget and appropr at ons process
by mov ng away from the heav y secret ve nte gence budget. Th s w  revea  to the Amer can peop e where funds
and program resources are be ng spent.

Congressman Yoho gave the fo ow ng statement after ntroduc ng h s b :

“The CIA’s main mission is intelligence collection and analysis. It should not be in the business of military strikes. This
legislation will bring our armed drone fleet under the jurisdiction of the DOD, where it should be. If our national
security requires drone strikes abroad, then one agency should be held accountable to the American people.

“Even our top military officials have been pressing for permission to publicly defend U.S. drone strikes against
criticism at home and abroad and against the spread of misinformation from terrorist groups. This bill will allow our
military personnel to testify before Congress and release details of all strikes. The DRA will make it clear that no other
federal agency or department, or any personnel, shall have authority to operate or fire an armed drone except for
DOD.”

 

Original Cosponsors: Reps. Justin Amash (R-MI), Thomas Massie (R-KY), Rush Holt (D-NJ), Paul Broun (R-
GA), John Conyers (D-MI), Barbara Lee (D-CA), Mick Mulvaney (R-SC), and Raul Labrador (R-ID)

 

###
Congressman Ted Yoho serves on the Fore gn Affa rs and Agr cu ture Comm ttees. He represents North F or da s 3rd

Congress ona  D str ct

1
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I 

113TH CONGRESS 
2D SESSION H. R. 5091 

To consolidate within the Department of Defense all executive authority 

regarding the use of armed unmanned aerial vehicles, and for other purposes. 

IN THE HOUSE OF REPRESENTATIVES 

JULY 11, 2014 

Mr. YOHO (for himself, Mr. AMASH, Mr. MASSIE, Mr. HOLT, Mr. BROUN of 

Georgia, Mr. CONYERS, Ms. LEE of California, Mr. MULVANEY, and Mr. 

LABRADOR) introduced the following bill; which was referred to the Com-

mittee on Armed Services, and in addition to the Select Committee on 

Intelligence (Permanent Select), for a period to be subsequently deter-

mined by the Speaker, in each case for consideration of such provisions 

as fall within the jurisdiction of the committee concerned 

A BILL 
To consolidate within the Department of Defense all execu-

tive authority regarding the use of armed unmanned 

aerial vehicles, and for other purposes. 

Be it enacted by the Senate and House of Representa-1

tives of the United States of America in Congress assembled, 2

SECTION 1. SHORT TITLE. 3

This Act may be cited as the ‘‘Drone Reform Act’’. 4
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2 

•HR 5091 IH

SEC. 2. DEPARTMENT OF DEFENSE EXECUTIVE AUTHORITY 1

OVER USE OF ARMED UNMANNED AERIAL VE-2

HICLES. 3

(a) DOD EXECUTIVE AUTHORITY.— 4

(1) PROHIBITION.—No operation involving the 5

use of an armed unmanned aerial vehicle shall be 6

carried out under the authority of a department or 7

agency of the Federal Government other than the 8

Department of Defense. 9

(2) USE BY MILITARY PERSONNEL.—Only uni-10

formed members of the United States Armed Forces 11

may— 12

(A) operate, or order the operation of, an 13

armed unmanned aerial vehicle; or 14

(B) operate or fire, or order the operation 15

or firing of, any weapon or other munition car-16

ried on an armed unmanned aerial vehicle. 17

(3) APPLICABLE LAW.—The operation and use 18

of an armed unmanned aerial vehicle shall be subject 19

to the requirements of title 10 of the United States 20

Code. 21

(b) RULES OF CONSTRUCTION.—Nothing in this sec-22

tion shall be construed— 23

(1) to limit or expand any authority of any 24

component of the Federal Government to provide ad-25

vice, including intelligence, to the Department of De-26
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fense in support of actions described in paragraph 1

(1) and (2) of subsection (a); or 2

(2) to create any authority, or expand any ex-3

isting authority, for the Federal Government to kill 4

any person. 5

(c) UNMANNED AERIAL VEHICLE.—The term ‘‘un-6

manned aerial vehicle’’ means an aircraft that is operated 7

without the possibility of direct human intervention from 8

within or on the aircraft. The term includes aircraft re-9

ferred to as a drone, UAV, unmanned aircraft (UA), un-10

manned aerial system (UAS), remotely piloted aircraft 11

(RPA), remotely piloted vehicle (RPV), remotely operated 12

aircraft (ROA), and unmanned aerial vehicle system 13

(UAVS). 14

(d) EFFECTIVE DATE.—This section shall take effect 15

60 days after the date of the enactment of this Act. 16

Æ 
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8/23/15, 12:27 PM

Page 1 of 1http://www.defense.gov/DesktopModules/ArticleCS/Print.aspx?PortalId=1&ModuleId=662&Article=605172

IMMEDIATE RELEASE

Statement from Pentagon Press
Secretary Rear Admiral John Kirby on
Ahmed Godane
Press Operations

Release No: NR-465-14 
September 5, 2014

"We have confirmed that Ahmed Godane, the co-founder of al-Shabaab, has been
killed. The U.S. military undertook operations against Godane on Sept. 1, which led to
his death. Removing Godane from the battlefield is a major symbolic and operational
loss to al-Shabaab. The United States works in coordination with its friends, allies and
partners to counter the regional and global threats posed by violent extremist
organizations."
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Letter from the President -- Six 
Month Consolidated War Powers 
Resolution Report

Dear Mr. Speaker: (Dear Mr. President:)

I am providing this supplemental consolidated report, prepared by my 
Administration and consistent with the War Powers Resolution (Public Law 93-
148), as part of my efforts to keep the Congress informed about deployments 
of U.S. Armed Forces equipped for combat.

MILITARY OPERATIONS IN SUPPORT OF U.S. COUNTERTERRORISM
OBJECTIVES

In furtherance of U.S. counterterrorism efforts, the United States continues to 
work with partners around the globe, with a particular focus on the U.S. Central 
Command's and U.S. Africa Command's areas of responsibility. In this context, 
the United States has deployed U.S. combat-equipped forces to enhance the 
counterterrorism capabilities and support the counterterrorism operations of 
our friends and allies, including special operations and other forces for 
sensitive operations in various locations around the world. Specific information 
about counterterrorism deployments to select countries is provided below, and 
a classified annex to this report provides further information.

Military Operations Against al-Qa'ida, the Taliban, and Associated Forces and 
in Support of Related
U.S. Counterterrorism Objectives

Since October 7, 2001, the United States has conducted combat operations in 
Afghanistan against al-Qa'ida, the Taliban, and associated forces. In support 
of these and other overseas operations, the United States has deployed 
combat-equipped forces to a number of locations in the U.S. Central, Pacific, 
European, Southern, and Africa Command areas of operation. Such 
operations and deployments have been reported previously, consistent with 
Public Law 107-40 and the War Powers Resolution, and operations and 
deployments remain ongoing. These operations, which the United States has 
carried out with the assistance of numerous international partners, have been 
successful in seriously degrading al-Qa'ida's capabilities and brought an end to 

TW TTER
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the Taliban's rule in Afghanistan. If necessary, in response to this terrorist 
threat, I will direct additional measures to protect U.S. citizens and interests. It 
is not possible to know at this time the precise scope or the duration of the 
deployments of U.S. Armed Forces necessary to counter this terrorist threat to 
the United States.

Afghanistan. United States Armed Forces have transitioned the lead for 
security to Afghan security forces while striking significant blows against al-
Qa'ida's leadership and preventing Afghanistan from being used to launch 
attacks against our homeland. On May 27, 2014, I announced my decision to 
end the U.S. combat mission in Afghanistan at the end of 2014, and to 
maintain a limited number of U.S. forces in Afghanistan beyond the end of 
2014. These forces in Afghanistan will be for the purposes of training, advising, 
and assisting Afghan forces and supporting counterterrorism operations 
against the remnants of al-Qa'ida.

The U.N. Security Council most recently extended its authorization of the 
International Security Assistance Force (ISAF) in Afghanistan until December 
31, 2014, in U.N. Security Council Resolution 2120 (October 10, 2013). The 
mission of
ISAF, under North Atlantic Treaty Organization (NATO) command and in 
partnership with the Government of the Islamic Republic of Afghanistan, is to 
reduce the capability and will of the insurgency, support the growth in capacity 
and capability of the Afghan National Security Forces (ANSF), and facilitate 
improvements in governance and socio-economic development in order to 
provide a secure environment for sustainable stability. For the last few years, 
the ISAF campaign has focused on preparing the ANSF for full security 
transition in 2014.

Since June 2013, the ANSF have been in the lead for security nationwide and 
have been conducting the overwhelming majority of operations. ISAF is now in 
support of the ANSF, and the only unilateral operations that ISAF conducts are 
in support of its own security, sustainment, and redeployment. During the 
remainder of its campaign, ISAF will continue to focus on developing the 
sustainability of the ANSF at the corps and ministerial levels. The security 
transition process -- as agreed to at the 2010 NATO Summit in Lisbon and 
reaffirmed at the 2012 NATO Summit in Chicago -- remains on track, and the 
ANSF are expected to assume full responsibility for security across the whole 
of Afghanistan by the end of 2014.
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Following the completion of the ISAF mission at the end of 2014, the mission 
to help train, advise, and assist the ANSF and Afghan ministries and 
institutions will continue through the follow-on NATO-led Resolute Support 
Mission.

Today, there are approximately 15,000 U.S. forces in Afghanistan. The U.S. 
Armed Forces are on track to draw down to a Force Management Level of 
9,800 by early 2015. (The actual number of U.S. military personnel in 
Afghanistan may exceed this Force Management Level due to, for example, 
overlap during rotations of units and the continued presence of forces with the 
single mission of supporting the retrograde of U.S. equipment, both of which 
are excluded from counting against the Force Management Level.) By the end 
of 2016, U.S. forces would draw down to a small presence at our embassy in 
Kabul, focusing primarily on security assistance activities. The United States 
would continue to work with our Afghan partners to pursue the remnants of al-
Qa'ida and more broadly to work with our partners in the region to continue to 
detect and disrupt extremist threats.

As I noted in my report of June 12, 2014, on March 25, 2013, the United States 
signed a Memorandum of Understanding (MOU) with the Government of 
Afghanistan under which the United States transferred all Afghan nationals 
detained by U.S. forces in Afghanistan to the custody and control of the 
Afghan government.
Pursuant to the MOU, any new Afghan detainees are to be transferred to 
Afghan custody and control within 96 hours after capture. United States forces 
in Afghanistan continue to detain a small number of third-country nationals 
under the 2001 Authorization for the Use of Military Force (Public Law 107-40), 
as informed by the law of war.

Iraq and Syria. In order to provide support and security to U.S. personnel and 
the U.S. Embassy in Baghdad and as part of a comprehensive strategy to 
degrade and ultimately defeat the Islamic State of Iraq and the Levant (ISIL), I 
authorized, earlier this year, the deployment of U.S. Armed Forces to Iraq. 
These deployments of U.S. forces, which I reported to the Congress in a series 
of reports in recent months, are conducting coordination with Iraqi forces and 
providing training, communications support, intelligence support, and other 
support to select elements of the Iraqi security forces, including Kurdish 
Peshmerga forces. Additionally, these forces are conducting a systematic 
campaign of airstrikes and other necessary actions against ISIL forces in Iraq 
and Syria and airstrikes against elements of al-Qa'ida known as the Khorasan 
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Group in Syria. The Force Management Level for U.S. Armed Forces in Iraq 
currently is 3,100 personnel.

These actions are being undertaken in coordination with and at the request of 
the Government of Iraq and in conjunction with coalition partners.

Somalia. In Somalia, a small contingent of U.S. military personnel, including 
some special operations forces, has worked to counter the terrorist threat 
posed by al-Qa'ida and associated elements of al-Shabaab. On September 1, 
2014, U.S. forces conducted an airstrike in Somalia that killed the emir of the 
terrorist group al-Shabaab, Ahmed Abdi al-Muhammad, also known as Ahmed 
Godane.

Yemen. The U.S. military has also been working closely with the Government 
of Yemen to operationally dismantle and ultimately eliminate the terrorist threat 
posed by al-Qa'ida in the Arabian Peninsula (AQAP), the most active and 
dangerous affiliate of al-Qa'ida today. Our joint efforts have resulted in direct 
action against a limited number of AQAP operatives and senior leaders in that 
country who posed a terrorist threat to the
United States and our interests.

Cuba. Combat-equipped forces, deployed since January 2002 to the Naval 
Base, Guantanamo Bay, Cuba, continue to conduct humane and secure 
detention operations for the 142 detainees at Guantanamo Bay under the 
authority provided by the 2001 Authorization for the Use of Military Force 
(Public Law 107-40), as informed by the law of war.

Military Operations in Niger in Support of U.S. Counterterrorism Objectives

As indicated in my report of December 13, 2013, U.S. military personnel in 
Niger continue to provide support for intelligence collection and to facilitate 
intelligence sharing with French forces conducting operations in the Sahel and 
with other partners in the region. The total number of U.S. military personnel 
deployed to Niger is approximately 200.

Military Operations in Chad in Support of Efforts to Locate Schoolgirls 
Kidnapped in Nigeria

The deployment of U.S. military personnel to Chad to support U.S. intelligence, 
surveillance, and reconnaissance operations has concluded. A small number 
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of U.S. military personnel remain deployed to Chad for security cooperation 
activities.

MILITARY OPERATIONS RELATED TO THE LORD'S RESISTANCE ARMY
In October and November 2011, U.S. military personnel with appropriate 
combat equipment initially deployed to Uganda to serve as advisors to regional 
forces of the African Union Regional Task Force (AU-RTF) that are working to 
apprehend or remove Joseph Kony and other senior Lord's Resistance Army 
(LRA) leaders from the battlefield, and to protect local populations. United 
States forces deployed to central Africa also operate and maintain U.S. aircraft 
providing air mobility support to foreign partner forces. The aircraft and 
personnel providing the enhanced air mobility support will deploy to the LRA-
affected areas of central Africa episodically, as they are available, consistent 
with other Department of Defense requirements. During these deployments, 
the number of U.S. military personnel deployed to the central Africa region, 
including advisors deployed for this mission and personnel providing logistical 
and support functions to this and other missions, will fluctuate at a level up to 
approximately 300.

United States forces are working with select partner nation forces of the AU-
RTF to enhance cooperation, information-sharing and synchronization, 
operational planning, and overall effectiveness. These forces, however, will not 
engage LRA forces except in self-defense. It is in the U.S. national security 
interest to help our regional partners in Africa to develop their capability to 
address threats to regional peace and security, including the threat posed by 
the LRA. The United States is pursuing a comprehensive strategy to help the 
governments and people of this region in their efforts to end the threat posed 
by the LRA and to address the impact of the
LRA's atrocities.

Additional information about military operations related to the Lord's 
Resistance Army is provided in the classified annex.

MILITARY OPERATIONS IN EGYPT

Approximately 700 military personnel are assigned to the U.S. contingent of 
the Multinational Force and Observers, which have been present in Egypt 
since 1981.

MILITARY OPERATIONS IN JORDAN
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As initially detailed in my report of June 21, 2013, at the request of the 
Government of Jordan, U.S. Armed Forces elements, including Patriot missile 
systems, fighter aircraft, and related support, command, control, and 
communications personnel and systems, are deployed to Jordan to support the 
security of Jordan and promote regional stability. The total number of U.S. 
forces in Jordan is approximately 1,700 U.S. military personnel. These forces 
will remain in Jordan, in full coordination with the Government of Jordan, until 
the security situation becomes such that they are no longer needed.

U.S./NATO OPERATIONS IN KOSOVO

The U.N. Security Council authorized Member States to establish a NATO-led 
Kosovo Force (KFOR) in Resolution 1244 on June 10, 1999. The original 
mission of KFOR was to monitor, verify, and, when necessary, enforce 
compliance with the Military Technical Agreement between NATO and the 
then-Federal Republic of Yugoslavia (now Serbia), while maintaining a safe 
and secure environment. Today, KFOR deters renewed hostilities in 
cooperation with local authorities, bilateral partners, and international 
institutions. The principal military tasks of KFOR forces are to help maintain a 
safe and secure environment and to ensure freedom of movement throughout 
Kosovo. The U.S.
contribution to KFOR is approximately 700 U.S. military personnel out of the 
total strength of approximately
4,600 personnel.

REGIONAL SECURITY OPERATIONS

As stated in my report of June 12, 2014, U.S. Armed Forces remain in Yemen 
to support the security of U.S. personnel. These forces will remain deployed, in 
full coordination with the respective host governments, until the security 
situation no longer requires them.

As I noted in my report of July 27, 2014, during the period July 25-26, embassy 
personnel and the U.S. forces supporting their security were relocated outside 
Libya. To support the safe departure of the embassy staff from Libya over land 
through Tunisia, U.S. military aircraft and additional military personnel entered 
Libya and Tunisia; those forces also departed Libya.

As I noted in my report of September 11, 2014, U.S. Armed Forces deployed 
to the Central African Republic to support the resumption of the activities of the 
U.S. Embassy in Bangui. The force is expected to remain in the Central 
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African Republic until it is replaced by an augmented U.S. Security Guard 
Detachment and additional Department of State civilian security personnel as 
the security situation allows.

I have directed the participation of U.S. Armed Forces in all of these operations 
pursuant to my constitutional and statutory authority as Commander in Chief 
(including the authority to carry out Public Law 107-40 and other statutes), and 
as Chief Executive, as well as my constitutional and statutory authority to 
conduct the foreign relations of the United States. Officials of my 
Administration and I communicate regularly with the leadership and other 
Members of Congress with regard to these deployments, and we will continue 
to do so.

Sincerely,

BARACK OBAMA

       

HOME BRIEFING ROOM ISSUES THE ADMINISTRATION PARTICIPATE 1600 PENN

En Español Access bility Copyright Information Privacy Policy USA.gov

Page 8 of 8Letter from the President -- Six Month Consolidated War Powers Resolution Report | whi...

8/5/2015https://www.whitehouse.gov/the-press-office/2014/12/11/letter-president-six-month-consoli...

Case 1:15-cv-01954-CM   Document 34-40   Filed 08/28/15   Page 10 of 10

A-766
Case 17-157, Document 31, 04/21/2017, 2017127, Page49 of 239



 

 

 

 

Exhibit 41 
 

January 2015 Burgess Bill 

Case 1:15-cv-01954-CM   Document 34-41   Filed 08/28/15   Page 1 of 4

A-767
Case 17-157, Document 31, 04/21/2017, 2017127, Page50 of 239



Case 1:15-cv-01954-CM   Document 34-41   Filed 08/28/15   Page 2 of 4

A-768
Case 17-157, Document 31, 04/21/2017, 2017127, Page51 of 239



I 

114TH CONGRESS 
1ST SESSION H. R. 466 

To prohibit the Central Intelligence Agency from using an unmanned aerial 
vehicle to carry out a weapons strike or other deliberately lethal action 
and to transfer the authority to conduct such strikes or lethal action 
to the Department of Defense. 

IN THE HOUSE OF REPRESENTATIVES 

JANUARY 22, 2015 
Mr. BURGESS (for himself and Mr. AMASH) introduced the following bill; 

which was referred to the Select Committee on Intelligence (Permanent 
Select), and in addition to the Committee on Armed Services, for a period 
to be subsequently determined by the Speaker, in each case for consider-
ation of such provisions as fall within the jurisdiction of the committee 
concerned 

A BILL 
To prohibit the Central Intelligence Agency from using an 

unmanned aerial vehicle to carry out a weapons strike 
or other deliberately lethal action and to transfer the 
authority to conduct such strikes or lethal action to 
the Department of Defense. 

Be it enacted by the Senate and House of Representa-1

tives of the United States of America in Congress assembled, 2
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2 

•HR 466 IH

SECTION 1. PROHIBITION ON CENTRAL INTELLIGENCE 1

AGENCY OPERATION OF UNMANNED AERIAL 2

VEHICLE STRIKES AND TRANSFER OF AU-3

THORITY TO THE DEPARTMENT OF DEFENSE. 4

(a) PROHIBITION.—Notwithstanding any other provi-5

sion of law, no officer or employee of, or contractor or 6

detailee to, the Central Intelligence Agency shall use an 7

unmanned aerial vehicle to carry out a weapons strike or 8

other lethal action. 9

(b) TRANSFER TO DEPARTMENT OF DEFENSE.— 10

Notwithstanding any other provision of law, the President 11

shall transfer to the Department of Defense all authority 12

to use an unmanned aerial vehicle to carry out a weapons 13

strike or other lethal action. 14

Æ 
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Department of Defense Press Briefing by Rear Adm. Kirby in the Pentagon Briefing Room

Presenter: Pentagon Press Secretary Navy Rear Adm. John Kirby
February 03, 2015

REAR ADMIRAL JOHN KIRBY: Good afternoon, everybody.

Thanks for waiting.

I want to read a statement on behalf of the secretary and then I've got one other short announcement to make and we'll get to your questions.

On behalf of the men and women of the United States Department of Defense, Secretary Hagel extends his deepest condolences to the family of Royal Jordanian Air Force Pilot First 
Lieutenant Moaz al-Kassasbeh, who was brutally murdered after being taken captive by ISIL terrorists.

This horrific, savage killing is yet another example of ISIL's contempt for life itself. The United States and its military stands steadfast alongside our Jordanian friends and partners.

Jordan remains a pillar of our global coalition to degrade and ultimately destroy ISIL, and this act of despicable barbarity only strengthens our shared resolve.

We send our thoughts and prayers to Lieutenant al-Kassasbeh's comrades, loved ones, and all Jordanians as we join them in mourning this tragic loss.

Now, I do want to make you aware that on Saturday, this past Saturday, the 31st of January, a little bit after 9 a.m. Eastern Time, U.S. Special Operations forces conducted a strike 
south of Mogadishu, using unmanned aircraft and several Hellfire missiles. This operation was a direct strike against the al-Shabaab network, and the terrorist group's chief of external 
operations and planning for intelligence and security. His name was Yusuf Dheeq.

We are still assessing the results of the operation and will provide additional information when and if appropriate. At this time however, we don't assess there to be any civilian or 
bystander casualties as a result of the strike.

This operation was, as others have been, an example of the commitment made by the United States government, our allies and partners, to the people and to the government of 
Somalia. And it goes to show, again, how long our reach can be when it comes to counterterrorism.

Q: Admiral, was the U.S. aware that the Jordanian pilot had been killed one month ago, on January 3rd? And also a question on the Somalia announcement there. This was the – did 
you say that the intelligence and --

(CROSSTALK)

REAR ADM. KIRBY: The intelligence chiefs – intelligence and security chief and director of external planning. So directly involved in the planning and collection of information to plan 
and conduct strikes outside Somalia.

Q: Can you give any assessment of the impact of that as killing him as well as the previous senior al-Shabaab about three weeks ago?

REAR ADM. KIRBY: Well, if, again, I'm not in a position now to confirm the results of the strike. But if successful, if he no longer breathes, then this is a significant – another significant 
blow to al-Shabaab and their ability to conduct, plan, prepare for and – and strike against targets inside and outside Somalia. So we would deem this to be – if successful – a very 
significant blow against their capabilities.

On your first question, Bob, I haven't seen anything that indicated that we had before today any direct knowledge of the murder happening on the 3rd of January. I've seen these reports 
today, but I'm not aware that we had any indications prior to today that it happened so long ago.

Q: Admiral, as a result of the killing of the Jordanian pilot, President Obama said today that the U.S. was going to double-down on the efforts to defeat and degrade ISIS – ISIL. What 
does that mean?

I mean, are there plans by the U.S. military to double the efforts in their fight against ISIL?

REAR ADM. KIRBY: Well, you know we don't talk about future operations, Jim, but I think it, as I said in my opening statement, reflecting the secretary's views, that it's just another 
example of how barbarous this group is and how serious the threat we need to continue to take -- to take them – and we will.

And you also know that there has been a long, concerted effort here over the last seven months to degrade and destroy their capabilities. Nothing is going to slow down about that. 
We're going to continue to put as much pressure on them as possible with our partners in Iraq and in Syria.

Q: I guess my question is, was that just a sort of a reaction to what happened? Or are there actual plans in the works to double-down the U.S. military efforts against ISIL?

REAR ADM. KIRBY: We don't talk about future plans and operations. What I can tell you is that we're going to remain committed to this, as we have been, and we're not – there's not 
going to be any loss of focus. In fact, an event like this only sharpens that focus and makes it that more – you know, makes it that more important for us to succeed.

(CROSSTALK)

Q: Admiral Kirby, Lt. Gen. Vincent Stewart was on Capitol Hill for his confirmation hearing, or on – at a hearing today and said that of the – given the percentage of recidivism among 
released Gitmo detainees, that one of the five – Taliban five who were released for Sergeant Bowe Bergdahl would be expected to return to the fight and that DIA would not be able to 
do anything to trace them once the one year is up in terms of Qatar watching them for one year.

That seems to stand in contrast to what you said in terms of the ability to mitigate the risk that these released prisoners pose after the one year mark in May ends in Qatar, if they decide 
to leave for Afghanistan, return to the fight. How do you reconcile that?
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REAR ADM. KIRBY: Well, I didn't see the general's comments, but let's just take that at face value. What I – I still stand by what I said up here before. And so let's look at this factually 
right now, because it's very difficult to predict the future. All five remain in Qatar. All five are being monitored. There are security assurances that we have from the government of Qatar. 
And the secretary's comfortable that those assurances are being met and followed.

It was the fact that they existed at all and there was a monitoring program in place allowed us to know about this individual's reengagement. And as you know, I can't get into the details 
of what that – the character of that reengagement. But we knew about it and were able to have a dialogue with the government in Qatar because it worked.

And so again, I would repeat what I said last week, that we're comfortable that going forward, through these measures, we're going to be able to more closely monitor them. And that we 
will continue to work with partners, not just in Qatar, but in the region, to try to mitigate the threat that any returned detainee could potentially pose, not just to American interests, but to 
the interests of our partners in the region.

Q: But do you think that can continue after May? I mean, you have --

REAR ADM. KIRBY: The other thing I'd say – the other thing I'd say is, because I think where you're going is "well, what happens if they go back to Afghanistan?"

I think Secretary Hagel said this very, very well, and very eloquently, in the House Armed Services Committee testimony, when we discussed the Bergdahl transfer, when he said they 
return to the battlefield at their own peril.

And they will, because when they return to the battlefield, if they choose to do that, we obviously have the ability to protect our troops, and we will. And the Afghan National Security 
Forces are far more competent today than they were even a year ago, and they are certainly capable, and increasing in their capability of defending their citizens.

Q: He also said DIA was not consulted before the decision to swap the prisoners was made. Why wasn't DIA consulted?

REAR ADM. KIRBY: I'd have to get back to you on that, Jen. I didn't see that particular comment. I can't -- I can't validate it. I mean, I'm sure that the general was speaking honestly and 
truthfully. I'd just -- you're going to have to let me get back to you on that.

Joe?

Q: Admiral Kirby --

REAR ADM. KIRBY: I'll come to you in a second.

Q: After the killing of the Jordanian pilot, how do you think the Pentagon, the United States, and the coalitions will respond to that killing and to the killing of other hostages?

REAR ADM. KIRBY: We haven't made it a -- and I can only speak for the United States military – we haven't made it a point to respond directly to these killings, even when these -- 
when American citizens were killed.

What we have done and will continue to do is degrade and destroy their capabilities and continue to put them on the defensive, in which they still remain today.

So there's -- I wouldn't -- at least from an American military perspective, I wouldn't look at this as a -- you're not going to -- it's not tit for tat. We're at war with ISIL in the same way that 
we're at war with Al-Qaida. We're at war with allies and partners: indigenous partners in Iraq, and hopefully growing Syrian moderate opposition in Syria. Nothing's going to change 
about that, Joe.

Nobody's letting off the gas. We're going to continue to put pressure on ISIL regardless of these barbaric acts. What these acts do, however, I mean, they bring into stark relief just how 
despicable these people are, and how little that – the contempt that they have for life and how little they care.

Now, I don't need to remind you that this pilot was himself a Muslim. So, it does bring into stark relief the seriousness of the threat.

But you know, the – these brutal murders, I can't – there's no way I could, but no possibly figure out how to justify it in your brain, because it's so twisted. But it certainly isn't – these 
aren't the acts of a winner.

And they're not winning.

Jamie.

Q: You mentioned in the strike in Somalia that it demonstrated the long reach of U.S. counter-terrorism efforts. Is that in any way a veiled or maybe not so veiled warning to ISIL?

REAR ADM. KIRBY: There's no veil put upon the warning to ISIL. We have been nothing but clear and transparent about the degree to which we take this threat seriously and that 
we're going to work to eradicate it.

Q: Do you think that the – you've mentioned the brutality, the barbaric nature of this act. Do you think that could backfire against them in terms of creating more homegrown capability to 
go against them?

REAR ADM. KIRBY: Backfire in terms of hurting their recruiting efforts?

I think it – it's hard to say.

I do think an act like this, as all their murderous acts have been, but they're not – they're certainly not, as I said, the behavior of a winner. And they're certainly not in our view going to 
further advance any success by them.

Page 2 of 7Defense.gov Transcript: Department of Defense Press Briefing by Rear Adm. Kirby in th...

7/23/2015http://www.defense.gov/utility/printitem.aspx?print=http://www.defense.gov/Transcripts/T...

Case 1:15-cv-01954-CM   Document 34-42   Filed 08/28/15   Page 4 of 9

A-774
Case 17-157, Document 31, 04/21/2017, 2017127, Page57 of 239



I do think that this will be a setback, eventually.

Now, will it possibly attract some young, disenfranchised young men to the cause? It very well might.

And I think that they believe that there is propaganda value. Obviously, they think there's propaganda value into not only doing this, but videotaping it and then posting it online.

But in the end, it just shows the utter corruption, the debasement of who they are as an organization. And yes, it will – I think that at least regionally – it will backfire on them.

Yeah?

Q: So admiral, since the capture of Lieutenant Kassasbeh, did -- did you have any information about his whereabouts or make any effort to -- to try and release him?

And the second question, do you have any concerns that the killing of Kassasbeh will have any negative implications on the popular support for the war on DAESH, and more 
specifically --

REAR ADM. KIRBY: Popular support here in the United States?

Q: No, abroad, basically in the region, in Jordan. And do you still have the commitment of the Jordanian government to be part of the coalition against ISIL?

REAR ADM. KIRBY: Well, I won't speak for the Jordanian government.

Q: Did you receive any new commitment?

REAR ADM. KIRBY: Since this video? None that I'm aware of. But I would let the Jordanian government speak for itself and for the Jordanian people. That's not my place.

I'm not aware that we had any information at all in terms of specificity about where he was being held. We had been working closely with Jordanian officials since he was captured, you 
know, to do what we could, to try to help locate him. But I'm not aware that any -- that there was any success in that regard. So, there would've been no ability to try to mount an overt 
rescue opportunity.

Q: And on the popular support in the region?

The public opinion support.

REAR ADM. KIRBY: What this will do to popular support? Well, you're already seeing video out of Amman about the reaction there by the Jordanian people to this. I think this goes to 
Jamie's question. I do think that this has the potential to backfire on them. I absolutely do believe that, in the region.

But again, I think it's important, everybody, just to take a couple of steps back and look at who these guys are, what they're about, and the seriousness of the threat.

And we've been saying this for a long, long time. And we've also said it's going to take a while to get at the ideology, which is the real center of gravity here. You're not going to do that 
through bombs and airstrikes. That doesn't mean the bombs and airstrikes aren't going to keep happening. They are.

Nothing is going to change. Nothing is going to change as a result of today and this video about the resolve that we, the United States military have, or the coalition has more broadly.

Q: Since you mentioned, if I may have a follow-up, since you mentioned the videos from Amman, we actually on Al Jazeera have different other videos as well. We had videos from the 
region where Kassasbeh is, was born, and people saying "well, why are we in this situation? This is not our war in the first place. This is a U.S. war." How do you respond to that?

REAR ADM. KIRBY: I didn't see those videos.

So let me just more broadly respond to the idea that this is the U.S.'s war. It's not. And I think a coalition of 60 nations proves that it's not. We're not the only ones involved in this in 
trying to get rid of this group.

That said, I can – you know, we also believe in this country, in you know, a diversity of opinion, and certainly can allow for the fact that others may have a different view about what this 
murder means or should mean going forward.

All I can do, again, is speak for the United States military. That's my job. And what I'm telling you is the United States military is going to stay committed to this.

Phil?

Q: Admiral, I know you don't like to get into body counts or nose counts in this fight against ISIL, so I won't ask about specific numbers, unless you're interested in talking about them, 
but there are reports and discussion over the past couple of days that ISIL is getting more foreign fighters as part of its recruiting effort than the U.S. and the coalition are killing there.

Is that accurate? And can you give us any sense of what the difference is between their ability to add to their pool of combatants and the Americans' and others' ability to take those 
guys off the battlefield?

REAR ADM. KIRBY: You're right, I'm not going to get into body counts with you Phil, or throw out numbers, because, as I've said before, I don't think that's a helpful metric.

That's okay. But what I can tell you is we do continue to attrite their forces. In other words, they are still suffering battlefield losses every – almost every day, as airstrikes continue, and 
as ground operations continue, particularly up in the north.
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And it's true that they continue to recruit back to Jamie's question, and I think one of the things that we believe they believe they're getting out of these very public, grisly murders is 
more recruits. So, we know that they have the ability to continue to generate young men that are attracted to this group and this ideology, and that's going to be a long-term problem.

I can't sit here and tell you – and I saw the press reports, and I made a few phone calls before I came out here, as you might think I would. I can't tell you with any specificity that those 
numbers in the press reports are accurate.

I can't refute them either.

We do know that they are capable of bringing more people to the fight. And we have been saying that from the get-go as well, Phil. You know that. Which is why, again, we are going to 
stay committed to this for the long-term, and it is going to be a long-term fight.

So, I don't know what the balance sheet is, and I suspect, quite honestly, that that balance sheet changes every day, because this isn't the -- they're not an army where you raise your 
right hand, you take an oath, you get a ID card, and off you go to boot camp. These are common street fighters. And they come and they go.

And sometimes they stay for a while, and sometimes they stay for a day and they leave. And so I know ISIL has – they have a fluctuating manpower pool.

What we have seen, and a better judgment of the strength of this group is their behavior. So, we've seen them change the way they operate on the ground. They're hiding more. We've 
seen them not travel around in convoys – not as much as they used to.

So they're not as – they're not as agile as they once were. We know that they've lost literally hundreds and hundreds of vehicles that they can't replace.

It's not like they've got a supply chain out there, you know, and a defense contractor building trucks for them. So they've got to steal whatever they want to get, and the number -- you 
know – there's a finite number. So, we know that we've hit them there.

We also know that they aren't – the main source of revenue for them used to be oil. Now we assess that it's no longer the main source of revenue. Now, I can't give you the dollar figure 
now, I know that, we know – because I know that was the next question coming – but we know that oil revenue is no longer the lead source of their income in dollars.

So, they are changing. And I know, and we have talked about the fact, that they are largely in a defensive posture. They aren't taking new ground. Let's talk about Kirkuk. Yeah, over the 
weekend, they mounted an offense Kirkuk. They were out of there before the second day was up, they were pushed out. And they're not on Kobani anymore.

So, they are losing ground. They are more defensive. They are more worried now about their lines of communications and supply routes. This is a different group than it was seven 
months ago. I'm not saying they're not still dangerous. I'm not saying they're not still barbaric, but they're different. Their character, their conduct, their behavior is different. And that's a 
sign of progress.

Q: Other members of the coalition here, especially Turkey, need to do more to stop the flow of foreign fighters to ISIL?

REAR ADM. KIRBY: Well, we've talked about Turkey and their contributions. We're grateful for those contributions, particularly on the train and equip side.

Every member of this coalition, and there are more than 60 countries, is contributing in ways that they and their people deem most appropriate. There are some countries that are only 
contributing financially, not militarily at all, others that are doing both, others that are, you know, much more focused on kinetic military support.

Every country brings something to this. It's a coalition of the willing. And that means we have to be willing to let these nations contribute in ways that they deem most appropriate.

What is their – what is their lead source of income?

REAR ADM. KIRBY: They get a lot of donations. They also have a significant black market program going on. But what I can tell you is that we now know that oil is no longer the lead 
source of revenue. I don't have their tip sheet with me.

Q: Can I follow up please?

REAR ADM. KIRBY: Yeah.

Q: How long has it not been the lead source of revenue? Do you know?

REAR ADM. KIRBY: I don't know.

Q: Okay. And one other question. You talked about the coalition, what they're willing to do, and how the U.S. has to be accommodating to that. Has Jordan continued to fly its F-16s 
over Syria since December 23rd when Lieutenant Kassasbeh was taken, and -- or had they at any point suspended it? And have they given any indication that they will or not be willing 
to --

REAR ADM. KIRBY: Those are great questions for Jordan, Nancy.

I don't know what the -- I don't know what their air tasking order is for Jordan. I would direct you to the Joint Task Force or to CENTCOM for what countries are flying. They keep track of 
that. I just don't have that handy with me. But really, this is for Jordan to speak to.

Q: Admiral Kirby?

REAR ADM. KIRBY: Yeah.

Q: You laid out a number of positive indicators, but let me ask you something. On the Iraq side of the equation, the new DIA director today testified that the Iraqi forces weren't capable 
of defending themselves without U.S. help.
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And in Syria, again, U.S. airstrikes by all accounts allowed the turning of the corner in Kobani, so U.S. airstrikes right now in both cases appear to be the only thing really holding ISIS 
off.

When do you – for the U.S. military, how long do you just continue to grind away at airstrikes, or does there come a point when there is something else you can do or should do, will 
recommend to the president to change the basic relative strength on the ground?

Because right now, it appears on both sides of the border. It is only airstrikes that are holding ISIS off. And there's no indication that fundamentally, the balance of their power has 
changed.

REAR ADM. KIRBY: Well, I think I would just dispute that on both counts there, Barb. One, airstrikes have been an important component. We know that.

And that's why we're continuing to conduct them. But they're not the only component. Look at Sinjar Mountain and the airstrikes helped get those guys out from -- away from that 
mountain, but it is Kurdish ground forces, Peshmerga, that are actually helping secure the population that remains on Mount Sinjar and has remained there.

Q: So your own DIA director today says the Iraqi forces, not the Peshmerga, the Iraqi forces cannot defend themselves without outside help, even after all these months of airstrikes, 
they can't do it, even though you've been training them.

REAR ADM. KIRBY: I did not see those – I did not see those comments.

Q: And on the Syrian side, Kobani, yes, but again, at what point is – for you, if ISIS is such a threat, if they are so terrible, which obviously everyone agrees to, at what point is there – 
are airstrikes, I come to the other side of the equation, no longer enough? At what point do you have to recommend something else?

REAR ADM. KIRBY: Airstrikes have never been enough. We've been saying that from the very beginning.

Q: (off mic)

REAR ADM. KIRBY: Barb, we've been saying it from the very beginning. Airstrikes are never going to be enough. We're not going to win this fight by the barrel of a gun or by dropping a 
bomb. We know that.

Now, just let me -- please let me finish. You asked about a lot, and let me just have a chance to respond.

We've always said that airstrikes are never going to be enough.

We've said that military power is not going to be enough. But let's put the political stuff aside for a second. One of the other things that we've been working so hard to do is to help 
develop and improve Iraqi capability. And I know we're not talking Pesh, so let's talk about the Iraqi Security Forces.

Now, we've got four training sites stood up now – three of them to help train nine brigades of Iraqi troops. Not all Iraqi units are as competent as others, so we're focusing on those that 
our assessment teams believe needed the support. All three of those sites are up and running right now, and they're helping to crank out students. I can give you the stats here, we can 
give it to you after it's over. You can find out exactly how many are at every sight. We know that they need some improvement, and so we're working on that.

We've always long said that ultimately, you need a competent force on the ground. That force needs to be indigenous. It needs to be Iraqi. And we are confident, now that we're up and 
running with these training sites, that we're going to help them get there.

Q: What percentage of Iraqi forces right now do you think are capable of fighting, taking, and holding ground?

REAR ADM. KIRBY: They are already fighting, taking, and holding ground. I don't have a percentage for you today, Barb.

But there are units in the Iraqi army that are already doing that, in Anbar province and certainly in and around the capital city.

Remember, it wasn't too long ago we were – you know, that there was this breathless state of reporting that Baghdad was going to fall. It never did. Baghdad has stayed defended, ably 
defended by Iraqi Security Forces. And they have taken ground back in Anbar.

Q: Can you give us a statistic by coalition and U.S. standards, what percentage of Iraqi forces you believe are capable of fighting, taking, and holding territory?

REAR ADM. KIRBY: I will pose the question and try to get you something back.

Q: Admiral.

REAR ADM. KIRBY: Yes?

Q: BBC News here. Just on a different subject, there's been a couple of former ambassadors to Kiev today and a whole series of senior, former senior members of the administration, 
various administrations, calling for a change in tactics and a change in the way the U.S. supports the government in Ukraine.

Can you tell us what active consideration you're giving to hardware – supplying hardware to the government there, and lethal assistance? And is the – is the position of the U.S. 
government shifting?

REAR ADM. KIRBY: There's been – well, the focus of our assistance provided to Ukraine and the Ukrainian security forces right now remains on the non-lethal side. But we've said for 
months now that we continue to review and to consider all requests by the Ukrainian government for assistance, lethal and non-lethal.

That remains true today.
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There has been today, this week, last week, three weeks ago, longer than that, discussions about the potential provision for lethal assistance to Ukraine. It remains on the table. We 
continue to talk about that. But right now, the material that we are sending is of a non-lethal nature.

Q: Are you actively considering lethal assistance?

REAR ADM. KIRBY: I don't know that the word consider needs the adverb of active. Consider means consider. We're considering it.

Yes?

Q: I’d like to follow up on Somalia. This is the third drone strike since September, I think. Are there fresh indications that al-Shabaab is targeting Americans or American interests? Or 
are these individuals of al-Shabaab being attacked just by virtue of their position in al Shabaab?

REAR ADM. KIRBY: Both are true, Craig. I mean, they're legitimate targets because they are – because they represent a terrorist network allied with Al-Qaida and pose a threat not just 
to the interests of the people in Somalia and in the region, but to American interests.

Q: And a year ago, the department said that it had established a new coordination cell in Mogadishu, a small number of people. Has that grown in size or operation? And has that 
helped with intelligence information that's enabled these attacks?

REAR ADM. KIRBY: What I can tell you is the cell is still there and still performing a vital function, but we don't talk about the size of the footprint there.

(CROSSTALK)

Q: And just to clarify something about the Somalia strike. Was that a UAV strike or were there boots on the ground involved?

REAR ADM. KIRBY: There were no U.S. boots on the ground.

Q: And was this done in coordination with the Somali government? Or was this a unilateral U.S. strike?

REAR ADM. KIRBY: Well, Jon, I mean, let's not parse. I mean, all the operations that we conduct there are in consultation and coordination with the – YPG* [editor’s note: *Somali 
government]. But, I mean, it's not – this was, as I said in my – I believe I said in the opening, this was done with hellfire missiles fired from UAVs.

Q: The DIA – the new DIA director mentioned the spreading of ISIS affiliates to I believe it was Egypt and Libya. And I wanted to know what the military is doing to stop that, or if it's a 
concern that that ideology is spreading?

REAR ADM. KIRBY: Well, what we're doing to stop ISIL is what we're doing in Iraq and Syria, which is the real central focus of this group. That's – they're sustaining themselves and 
resourcing themselves out of Syria, a safe haven there, and they're operating and maneuvering or trying to operate, not really maneuvering so much, in Iraq. But that's where the focus 
of the effort is.

Yes, of course, it's a concern. I mean, it's not a surprise to us and we've been talking about this for a while, that this is a group that has a fairly evangelical strain about it. They want to 
metastasize. They want to grow. They want to increase their influence. And so we're aware that they are looking for opportunities to do that elsewhere in the region.

Yeah, but we're watching it as closely as we can. We're in consultation with partner nations in the region and we're monitoring it.

Yeah, in the back there.

Q: Admiral Kirby, it was reported that the DoD gave lightweight counter-radar systems to Ukraine. I think they reported it in November. I was wondering if you had an update on how that 
performed -- how it is performing? And if there are any new deliveries of that radar system?

REAR ADM. KIRBY: You're right. There were some counter-battery – counter-mortar battery radar systems delivered. I think I said that right, didn't I, Steve? No?

(CROSSTALK)

REAR ADM. KIRBY: Counter-mortar radar system, yeah. It's a – I'm a naval officer still – that were delivered earlier. I can't speak to exactly their – what their battlefield use was. I 
mean, let us come back to you on that. I don't want to characterize it from here and try to wing it, but it is a defensive system, obviously. And we'll just have to get – we'll just have to get 
back to you.

On future deliveries, as I said, we're considering all manner of potential assistance going forward. I'm not – I don't have anything to announce or anything specific to say today about 
what might be coming.

I'll just take a couple more. Yes?

Q: Admiral, ISIL has another U.S. hostage, a woman. And barring the event of a covert action and considering that you have called them a terrorist organization in this press briefing, 
should we consider any U.S. hostage with them as lost if they're in ISIL hands?

Do you follow me?

REAR ADM. KIRBY: I think I do. Let me – let me –

(CROSSTALK)
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Q: -- consider any U.S. hostage in ISIL hands as lost?

REAR ADM. KIRBY: No. We never stop monitoring the situation of our hostages that are held by terrorist organizations. And I think you've seen in not too distant history here where 
we've made some pretty gallant attempts to try to rescue. But I'm not going to stand up here and talk about plans or efforts of any specificity. All that would do would potentially put any 
other hostage's life at further risk.

No, we don't – no, we don't consider – no, we wouldn't. We wouldn't. And we never stop trying to know more, to learn more, and to do something if it's possible to do something. But I 
wouldn't at all get into specifics in that case.

Q: (inaudible) – military action, we're not going to negotiate with them, in other words.

REAR ADM. KIRBY: Nothing has changed about the United States' policy of not negotiating with terrorist organizations.

Yeah, one more.

Q: (inaudible) – it is reported that North Korea conduct military exercise aimed to hit U.S. aircraft carrier. How do you response – (inaudible)?

REAR ADM. KIRBY: Didn't see that report.

Q: (inaudible) – North Korea – (inaudible) – joint military exercise with Russia next month. How – (inaudible)?

REAR ADM. KIRBY: Well, again, I didn't see these reports. Countries exercise their militaries all the time. They train – I mean, we do it virtually every day all around the world. What 
matters is the intent and again the message to North Korea is the same as it always has been. What they need to do is focus less on destabilizing the peninsula and the region, and 
more on feeding their own people.

Thanks, everybody. 
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On March 12 at approximately 7 30 a.m. Eastern Time, working from actionable intelligence, U.S. forces
using unmanned aircraft struck a vehicle carrying Adan Garar, a member of al­Shabaab's intelligence and
security wing, in the vicinity of Diinsoor, Somalia. The attack was a success and resulted in the death of
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attack in Nairobi, Kenya. His death has dealt another significant blow to the al Shabaab terrorist
organization in Somalia.
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United States Senator Dianne Feinstein

Apr 23 2015

Feinstein Statement on Death of U.S., Italian Hostages

Washington—Senate Intelligence Committee Vice Chairman Dianne 
Feinstein (D-Calif.) released the following statement on the deaths of two 
hostages held by al Qaeda:

“I’m deeply saddened by the announcement that a U.S. 
counterterrorism operation in January killed two hostages held by al 
Qaeda, including Warren Weinstein and Giovanni Lo Porto. Both 
Warren and Giovanni led selfless lives, helping men, women and 
children around the world. They serve as role models for us all, and my 
thoughts and prayers are with their families.

“The role of the Senate Intelligence Committee is to conduct extensive 
oversight of counterterrorism operations, and these efforts will 
continue. The committee has already been reviewing the specific 
January operation that led to these deaths, and I now intend to review 
that operation in greater detail. We should also again review all 
procedures and safeguards to make sure every measure is taken to 
prevent the deaths of innocent civilians.

“I agree with the president that, to the greatest extent possible, more 
information on U.S. counterterrorism operations should be made 
public. I believe this should include an annual report on the number of 
deaths—both combatant and civilian—from U.S. strikes. We must be 
certain our counterterrorism strategy is aimed at defeating terrorist 
organizations and that counterterrorism operations, which I believe to 
be highly successful at removing individual terrorist targets, are 
furthering that goal.”

###

Permalink: 
http://www feinstein.senate.gov/public/index.cfm/2015/4/feinstein-
statement-on-death-of-u-s-italian-hostages
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Press Briefing by Press Secretary 
Josh Earnest, 4/23/2015

James S. Brady Press Briefing Room

*Please see below for a correction, marked with an asterisk.

1:03 P.M. EDT

MR. EARNEST:  Before I go to your questions, let me just begin by saying that 
I anticipate that many of you will have legitimate questions about the death of 
Dr. Weinstein and the counterterrorism operation that was carried out by the 
United States government that resulted in his death.

The President, as you heard in his opening remarks, has taken full 
responsibility as the Commander-in-Chief for the operation and for its 
unintended but yet very tragic consequences.  The President has directed all 
of us to share as much information as possible with you and with the American 
people about what occurred. 

In pursuit of that effort, I spent a decent portion over the last 24 hours talking 
with our national security team, talking with the attorneys on our national 
security team to try to collect as much information as possible and to give you 
as much detail as possible so I could answer your questions on this matter.

However, as you would expect, in order to protect our ability to carry out 
counterterrorism operations, there are some details, including some very basic 
details, that I will not be in a position to discuss.  So, for example, I’m not going 
to be in a position to talk with precision about where this operation occurred, 
and I’m not going to be able to talk in much detail at all about how this 
operation was carried out.

But that all said, we’re not planning a background briefing here at the White 
House.  I’m here at the President’s instruction to answer as many questions in 
as much detail as I can, on the record and in public.  And as the President 
mentioned, our country and our government’s willingness to face up to 
mistakes and redouble our efforts to review protocols and procedures to 

EMAIL
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prevent them from happening again is one of the things that makes our country 
so unique and contributes significantly to our strength.

So in that spirit, Josh, let’s get started with some questions.

Q    Thanks, Josh.  Let’s start just with some of the facts of what happened, to 
the extent that you can discuss them.  How many other people were killed in 
these two strikes, either local civilians or militants?

MR. EARNEST:  Josh, I won’t be able to provide specific numbers on this.  I 
can tell you that in the specific strike that resulted in the death of Dr. Weinstein 
and Mr. Lo Porto, there was one other al Qaeda leader who was among those 
that was killed.  That is the -- Ahmed Faruq, the American citizen al Qaeda 
leader.  This was a strike against an al Qaeda compound, and the result was 
the death of at least one al Qaeda leader.

I can tell you that the assessment that we have right now does not raise 
questions about additional civilian loss of life. Again, the reason for that is that 
the standard that was in place and, to the best of our knowledge, was closely 
followed by our counterterrorism professionals was to adhere to this near-
certainty standard.  And that near-certainty standard applied to two things. 

The first is near certainty that this was an al Qaeda compound that was used 
by al Qaeda leaders; that turned out to be true.  That assessment did turn out 
to be correct.  The other near-certainty assessment was that no civilians would 
be harmed if this operation were carried out.  Unfortunately, that was not 
correct, and the operation led to this tragic, unintended consequence.

Q    And there’s very little at this point that we know about the Gadahn 
operation.  Who was the target of that operation?  And were others killed in 
that strike?

MR. EARNEST:  Josh, I can tell you that Mr. Gadahn was not specifically 
targeted.  But in a fashion that was similar to the operation that we were 
discussing that resulted in the death of Dr. Weinstein and Mr. Lo Porto, the 
operation was against an al Qaeda compound.  So again, this is a scenario 
where U.S. officials had determined with near certainty that an operation could 
be carried out against an al Qaeda compound that was frequented, or at least 
where at least one al Qaeda leader was located.  And that operation did result 
in the death of Mr. Gadahn.
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Q    So are you saying basically that there were not specific individuals that 
were being targeted in that strike, but more the U.S. knew this was a place al 
Qaeda guys went and so the U.S. struck there under the presumption that 
they’d be likely to take out some al Qaeda operatives by striking that location?

MR. EARNEST:  Yes.  Again, based on the intelligence assessment, they 
could conclude with near certainty that this was an al Qaeda compound that 
was frequented by al Qaeda leaders, or at least an al Qaeda leader.

There’s one other element of the near-certainty standard that applied to the 
first operation, the one that resulted in the death of Ahmed Faruq, and that is 
that there were hundreds of hours of surveillance against that particular al 
Qaeda compound.  And this surveillance included near-continuous 
surveillance in the days leading up to the operation, and that is what led to the 
near-certain assessment that it was an al Qaeda compound frequented by an 
al Qaeda leader, and did not include -- or that civilians would not be included 
in an operation against the compound.  Obviously, the latter assessment was 
incorrect.

Q    We know these strikes took place in January, but you said in your 
statement this morning that the U.S. recently confirmed what had happened 
and that these individuals had died.  Can you tell us when exactly was that?  
Are we talking days, weeks, months ago?  And how long did you wait after 
coming to those conclusions before informing the families of these hostages?

MR. EARNEST:  Josh, this is a good question.  Let me try to explain how this 
process works.  When a counterterrorism operation is carried out, it is followed 
by a battle damage assessment where our intelligence professionals evaluate 
the region or the area where the operation was carried out to determine the 
results of the operation and whether or not, if any, civilian casualties occurred.

And in the process of carrying out that battle damage assessment, that draws 
on multiple sources of intel.  There was some indication that Dr. Weinstein had 
been killed.  This was not in the early stages linked directly to the U.S. 
government operation.  So as intelligence was collected that indicated, or at 
least raised questions about whether or not Dr. Weinstein was still alive, the 
intelligence community that has been devoting significant resources to trying to 
find and rescue him began to explore more completely whether, in fact, Dr. 
Weinstein was dead and to try to learn the circumstances of his death.
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And only in the last several days did the intelligence community reach an 
assessment with a high degree of confidence that Dr. Weinstein had been 
killed in a U.S. government counterterrorism operation.  The President was 
briefed by his national security team very soon after that high-confidence 
assessment was completed.  Upon receiving that assessment, the President 
directed his team, as I made reference to, to declassify as much information as 
possible about this specific operation for two reasons.  One is to provide 
details to the families.  And two is to be candid with the American public and 
with the world about what had happened.  And the President mentioned in his 
statement how he believes the United States derives important strength from 
having the confidence and courage to face up to mistakes when they are 
made, even when they are as serious as this and, I guess he would say, 
particularly when they’re as serious as this. 

Let me say one other thing about our communication with the Weinstein family, 
and that is that there was an open line of communication with the Weinstein 
family.  The Weinstein family was very aware, as they indicated in their 
statement today, that the U.S. government was working diligently to try to find 
Dr. Weinstein. 

And when there was intelligence indicating the possible death of Dr. Weinstein, 
that information was also shared with the family.  But again, it was only after 
the high-confidence assessment was completed in the last several days was 
the family informed that the intelligence community does assess that Dr. 
Weinstein was killed in a U.S. government counterterrorism operation.

Q    And I know many of us have been reflecting, as I'm sure you have, on the 
2013 speech that the President gave at National Defense University laying out 
his counterterrorism strategy.  And in that speech, the President was pretty 
firm about laying out this standard of near certainty that no civilians would be 
killed or injured in a strike. 

Today, from this podium, we heard quite a different type of rhetoric.  We heard 
the President talking about the fog of war and the cruel truth that deadly 
mistakes can often happen when you’re fighting terrorists.  I'm wondering, has 
the President lived up to the principles that he set out for himself when he gave 
that speech?
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MR. EARNEST:  The President has absolutely lived up to the principles that 
were laid out in that speech.  Prior to giving that speech, there was not a lot of 
clear guidance.  There were not clear -- or at least the protocols were not as 
clear as they are today about how these kinds of counterterrorism operations 
should be carried out. 

And because of the diligent work of the President and his national security 
team and our national security professionals, there is much greater clarity 
about how our counterterrorism officials can both use our significant 
capabilities to protect the American people while also living up to the very high 
standards and values that the President expects.  And so that is what the goal 
of those protocols and those reforms that the President laid out in the speech. 

What’s also clear and what I would also readily admit to you is that in the 
aftermath of a situation like this, it raises legitimate questions about whether 
additional changes need to be made to those protocols. 

Again, to put it more bluntly, we have national security professionals who 
diligently follow those protocols based on what we all -- based on everything 
that we know so far.  They follow those protocols, and yet it still resulted in this 
unintended but very tragic consequence.  And that’s why the President has 
directed his team to conduct a review of this particular operation to see if there 
are lessons learned, reforms that we can implement to this process. 

What I can also let you know is that there is an ongoing inspector general 
review of this matter so that we’ll have an opportunity for someone to take an 
independent look at this particular operation and also offer up 
recommendations for changes that could be made that could do more to 
prevent these kinds of, again, tragic, unintended consequences from occurring 
in the future.

Q    And lastly on this issue of revealing what happened --  there’s been a 
flurry of statements this morning from members of Congress, not only joining 
the President in offering condolences but promising rigorous oversight from 
some of the relevant congressional committees.  Does the White House feel 
that Congress has a role to play in figuring out what went wrong here and how 
to possibly prevent it from happening again?

MR. EARNEST:  Well, Josh, I can tell you that the President believes that 
Congress does have a very important oversight role over these kinds of 
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programs.  That’s why in the President’s National Defense University speech 
that he delivered a couple of years ago he made clear that when these kinds of 
counterterrorism operations are carried out, that the relevant members of 
Congress are briefed about each operation.  And that is an indication of the 
seriousness with which the administration pursues cooperating with legitimate 
congressional oversight. 

And I can tell you that as these intelligence assessments about the death of 
Dr. Weinstein and the ultimate high-confidence assessment that he’d been 
killed in a U.S. government operation was shared with the President, that 
information was also shared with relevant members of Congress.

Jeff.

Q    Josh, will the U.S. government provide compensation to the families of the 
two hostages who were killed?

MR. EARNEST:  Yes.

Q    Can you give any details about that or how much?

MR. EARNEST:  I’m not aware of what the details of that compensation is, but 
I can tell you that compensation will be provided.

Q    To both families?

MR. EARNEST:  To both families -- to both Dr. Weinstein and the family of Mr. 
Lo Porto.

Q    How will this incident affect specifically the U.S. policy, government policy 
on usage of drones?

MR. EARNEST:  Well, Jeff, there are certain aspects of this specific operation 
that I’m not going to be able to discuss, including how this specific operation 
was carried out.  But I can say a couple things as a general matter. 

The first is the President -- and I had an opportunity to talk about this with him 
today -- believes that his top priority is keeping the American people safe.  And 
in this particular incident, it is particularly painful and tragic that in the course 
of carrying out an operation that was aimed at trying to protect the American 
public, that an American citizen -- an innocent American citizen lost his life.
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And it highlights the challenge that our counterterrorism professionals confront 
every day in terms of balancing the need to use our significant capabilities to 
protect the American people with the need to carry out these operations 
consistent with the values that we hold dear in this country.

Q    Can you address the issue of drones, though, in any way?  I take it you 
don't want to confirm that that's what used in this particular strike.

MR. EARNEST:  I’m not in the position to talk specifically about how the 
operation was carried out.

Q    Can you talk, though, about a future review of drone strategy more 
generally?

MR. EARNEST:  What I can say is that these counterterrorism operations that 
are critical to the national security of the United States and critical to the safety 
of the American people continue.  At the same time, there is an ongoing review 
both by our national security infrastructure and by an inspector general to 
review what occurred in this particular operation and to make 
recommendations about some reforms to the protocols and policies that are in 
place that would make it less likely that an unintended consequence like this 
would crop up again.

And that's not -- these kinds of reviews are not unusual; that our national 
security professionals after every operation try to review what had occurred -- 
even when it’s successful, particularly when it’s successful -- to derive lessons 
learned and to look for other ways, or changes that could be put in place to 
strengthen our protocols both in terms of their capabilities, but also in ensuring 
that they're living up to the values that are so important to our country.

Q    Mrs. Weinstein said today that she hoped her husband’s death would 
prompt the U.S. government to “take its responsibility seriously and establish a 
coordinated and consistent approach to supporting hostages and their 
families.”  Do you hear that criticism?  Can or should the United States 
government be doing more to support hostages and their families?

MR. EARNEST:  Well, Jeff, I probably should have said this earlier, but it’s -- 
the President had the opportunity to do that this morning, but let me use this 
opportunity to convey our condolences to the Weinstein family for the death of 
Dr. Weinstein.  And the Weinstein family right now is enduring something that's 
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unthinkable to contemplate the loss of their loved one in this particular 
manner.  And our thoughts and prayers of everybody here at the White House 
is with the Weinstein family.

And so an expression -- given those circumstances, an expression along the 
lines of what you just read from her statement is, of course, understandable.  
And what she also noted in her statement is her appreciation for U.S. 
counterterrorism and national security professionals that had gone to great 
lengths to try to rescue her husband and to do their best to keep the family 
informed.

But we have heard from other families who have been in this terrible situation 
about the need for improved communication with the federal government when 
they're in the midst of these circumstances.  And the President has ordered a 
review of the way in which the government and our national security apparatus 
communicates with families that are in this terrible position.

And so the President is familiar with that frustration that is understandable and 
is articulated in her statement.  And the goal of the ongoing review is to try to 
address those frustrations.  I don’t have any announcements to make in terms 
of the timing for that review, but I would anticipate that that review will be done 
relatively soon.

Mike.

Q    Thanks, Josh.  Two things.  Following up on what Jeff asked, can you say 
that the use of counterterrorism operations, like the one that was used in this 
incident, have been reduced because of the review that’s ongoing?  In other 
words, are things happening less often?  Are those strikes happening less 
often because this review is underway?  Has something been -- has a spigot 
been turned off?

MR. EARNEST:  Let me try to answer your question this way, which is that the 
United States retains significant capabilities to protect the American people.  
And the expectation that the President has -- and this is mentioned in the 
National Defense University speech -- is that when these operations are 
carried out, that they follow very specific protocols and procedures that 
balance the need to protect the American people with the need to adhere to 
very high standards in terms of preventing civilian casualties. 
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Consistent with those protocols, our counterterrorism operations continue.  
And if there are reforms that are derived from the review that can strengthen 
those protocols or make those protocols more likely to result in successful 
counterterrorism operations, then the administration will act quickly to 
implement those reforms.

Q    And then second, I appreciate your trying to give us a timeline of when you 
learned what you guys learned.  But there’s almost no times in the timeline.  
So let’s just real quickly, what day did this happen -- did the strikes happen? 

MR. EARNEST:  I'm not able to --

Q    You said where or how; that’s a when.

MR. EARNEST:  Okay.  Well, the when is in that same category.  
Unfortunately, there was not an exhaustive list of things I'm not able to 
disclose.

What we have indicated is that both of these strikes that were mentioned in my 
written statement this morning occurred in January.  But precisely when --

Q    And you won’t say when in January?  Early, late? 

MR. EARNEST:  I'm not able to say precisely when.

Q    Can you say then -- can you give us some sense of when you -- when the 
government first learned or first suspected that Mr. Weinstein was perhaps 
dead?  Not yet known that it was at the hands of the U.S., but is that February, 
early February, late February?  I mean, give us a sense of the time of when 
that happened. 

MR. EARNEST:  I would say that in the weeks after the strike, there were -- or 
in the weeks after the operation, there started to be some intelligence that 
indicated the possible death of Dr. Weinstein.  And it was in the course of 
following up on those intelligence leads and developing intelligence from a 
wide variety of sources that the intelligence community was able to assess 
with high confidence that Dr. Weinstein had been killed in a --

Q    So that initial assessment would have been in February, right, if it was 
weeks?   Because we know the strikes -- the operations happened in January.  
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So in February, sometime, you guys had that initial assessment that they might 
be dead?

MR. EARNEST:  Well, I don’t think that the intelligence community actually 
reached an assessment in February.  I think --

Q    They started hearing things.

MR. EARNEST:  They started --

Q    And at that point, in February, they also communicated to the family, hey, 
we think he might be dead?

MR. EARNEST:  I don’t have a specific timeframe for that.  But what I can tell 
you is that as the intelligence community began to develop information that 
pointed to the death of Dr. Weinstein, that information was briefed to the 
President and that information was shared with the Weinstein family.

Q    And you don’t have the information because you don’t have it, or because 
you’ve -- I mean, what would the security risks be of telling us a little bit with 
more precision when some of these things happened? 

MR. EARNEST:  Well, as it relates to -- it’s hard for me --

Q    And I guess I get the strike itself.  But kind of being more precise about 
this seems to be in the interest of what the President just promised the 
American public about transparency.

MR. EARNEST:  Well, there’s no doubt that we are having a rather detailed 
conversation about a previously classified operation.  And that is consistent 
with the spirit of what the President talked about in his statement this morning.

I do think that for me to talk about specific timeframes when we learned a 
piece of information through intelligence, could compromise sources and 
methods.  And that’s something that we obviously are very mindful of when 
talking about these kinds of matters. 

Peter.

Q    Josh, was the President the one yesterday who first communicated to the 
Weinstein family that Warren Weinstein was dead?
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MR. EARNEST:  No, he was not the first person to convey that information to 
them.  There are members of the national security apparatus that had been in 
regular touch with the Weinstein family to keep them apprised of the ongoing 
effort to try to rescue him. 

Q    And so was yesterday the first time that they were told of confirmation that 
he was dead though? 

MR. EARNEST:  Yes, this was the first time that they were informed of the 
high-confidence assessment by the intelligence community that Dr. Weinstein 
had been killed in the context of a U.S. government counterterrorism 
operation. 

Q    Did the President sign off on either of these strikes specifically, or keeping 
with the policy because there was a presumption that there were no Americans 
there, that it was a part of policy that these strikes could continue without his 
official signing off on these specific operations?

MR. EARNEST:  The President did not specifically sign off on these two 
operations.  There are policies and protocols in place for our counterterrorism 
professionals to make decisions about carrying out these kinds of operations 
based on a wide variety of things, including an assessment of near certainty 
that the target is an al Qaeda target and that civilians would not be harmed if 
the operation were carried out.

And that is a decision that is -- that is a policy that the President and his team 
have put in place that was, as far we know, followed by our counterterrorism 
professionals.  But let me just conclude the answer by saying that the 
President was very direct up here today when he indicated that he -- while he 
did not sign off on the specific operation, he does take full responsibility as the 
Commander-in-Chief for the unintended tragic consequences that resulted 
from the operation. 

Q    Adam Gadahn, although he wasn’t the specific target of that second of 
these two strikes, is he a target that the U.S. was trying to find?  And would 
they, knowing that he was there, have pursued that strike against Adam 
Gadahn?

MR. EARNEST:  Well, the thing that you know about Mr. Gadahn, Peter, is that 
he had been indicted for treason in 2006.  That is an indication that he is 
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somebody who presented a danger to the United States and our interests, and 
he is somebody that the United States was very interested in finding.

Q    Would the President have said, go forward -- or would the President have 
wanted to go forward with said strike if he knew Adam Gadahn was there? 

MR. EARNEST:  Well, it’s hard for me to entertain a hypothetical like that.  Let 
me --

Q    Were you pursuing strikes to find Adam Gadahn?

MR. EARNEST:  Let me just say that he was not classified as a HTC HVT* but 
he was obviously somebody who was wanted by the U.S. government 
because he had been indicted for treason.  There is a procedure and a policy 
-- again, one that the President put in place -- for carrying out counterterrorism 
operations against American citizens where necessary. 

But in this case, Mr. Gadahn was not targeted.  What was targeted was the al 
Qaeda compound that he frequented.  And that strike did succeed in taking 
some al Qaeda leaders off the battlefield.

Q    The ACLU put out a statement a short time ago where it says, among 
other things, “These new disclosures raise troubling questions about the 
reliability of the intelligence that the government is relying on to justify drone 
strikes.  In each of the operations acknowledged today, the U.S. quite literally 
didn’t know who it was killing.  These and other recent strikes in which civilians 
were killed make clear that there was a significant gap between the relatively 
stringent standards the government says it’s using and the standards that are 
actually being used.”  What’s the White House’s response to that?

MR. EARNEST:  Well, I strenuously disagree.  There is no evidence at this 
point to indicate that our counterterrorism professionals deviated from the 
established protocols.  But it also is important for us to step back here and 
recognize the situation that we’re confronting. 

We’re talking about the Afghanistan-Pakistan region.  This is a region of the 
world that is exceedingly remote.  The President talked about this in his NDU 
speech back in May of 2013 that al Qaeda figures hide out in these areas 
because they are remote.  They hide out in these areas because they know 
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that local forces in some cases don’t have the will -- in some cases, don’t have 
the capacity -- to go after them. 

And when you’re talking about a circumstance like that -- and the other thing 
that they know because it’s so remote, that the possibility of putting U.S. boots 
on the ground to go after them is just not feasible.  And what that means is 
when we’re talking about an environment like this, absolute certainty is just not 
possible.  What we can do instead, though, is we can leverage significant 
intelligence assets to, for example, in this case, actually conduct extensive 
surveillance of a particular compound. 

And as I mentioned, hundreds of hours of surveillance was conducted against 
this particular compound.   We know that near-continuous surveillance of this 
compound was conducted in the days leading up to the operation.  And based 
on that surveillance and other forms of intelligence, the intelligence community 
did assess with near certainty that this was an al Qaeda compound that was 
frequented by al Qaeda leaders.  That assessment turned out to be correct. 

They also had a near certainty assessment, again, based on that surveillance, 
that there were no civilians present and that no civilians would be at risk if the 
operation were carried out.

Now, what we also know is that al Qaeda considers these kinds of hostages to 
be extraordinarily valuable.  And they go to tremendous lengths to try to 
conceal the location of these hostages.  And that is why, unfortunately, that 
near-certain assessment was wrong.  And that is why the President has 
directed a review to determine if there are any changes that we can make to 
determine -- or to make it less likely that these kinds of unintended 
consequences would occur again.

Q    If al Qaeda had been willing to make a trade, would the U.S. have been 
willing to make a similar trade that they made for Bowe Bergdahl, for the life of 
Warren Weinstein?  And was one ever offered?

MR. EARNEST:  Peter, the U.S. government went to great lengths to try to 
rescue Dr. Weinstein.  There were significant resources dedicated to trying to 
determine his whereabouts. 

Q    Did we offer a trade?
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MR. EARNEST:  We have been very clear about the policy of the United 
States.  As painful as it is, it is a policy that prevents the United States from 
negotiating with terrorists, and that policy was in place in the course of our 
efforts to try to secure the rescue of Dr. Weinstein.  And again, this is a policy 
that, particularly to the Weinstein family, is a very difficult one.  And frankly, I 
think it’s a pretty difficult policy even for just the average human being. 

But the analysis is a reasonable one, which is that to engage in the practice of 
negotiating with terrorist groups to try to secure the release of innocent 
Americans would only put at risk more innocent Americans.

Jon.

Q    Josh, you won’t even tell us that this was a drone strike or these were 
drone strikes?

MR. EARNEST:  Jon, I’m not able -- despite the extensive information I am 
able to provide about a previously classified operation, I’m not able to discuss 
precisely how this operation was carried out.

Q    So you tell us that Adam Gadahn and Ahmed Faruq were not the targets.  
Does the President regret the fact that they were killed in these strikes?

MR. EARNEST:  No.  Those two individuals that you mentioned were leaders 
in al Qaeda.  They had prominent positions.  We know that Mr. Faruq, for 
example, was a leader of AQIS -- al Qaeda in the Indian Subcontinent -- and 
that he was playing a prominent role in leading that network’s operations and 
planning in that region of the world.  We know that Mr. Gadahn has styled 
himself as a prominent spokesperson for al Qaeda.  And it is for that and other 
reasons that he was indicted by the U.S. government for treason.

Q    So the administration’s policy on the justified killing of American citizens in 
these counterterrorism strikes, according to the Attorney General, is that they 
represented an “imminent threat of violent attack against the United States” 
and that capture was not feasible.  Are you saying that Adam Gadahn and 
Ahmed Faruq represented an imminent threat of violent attack against the 
United States?  Because that, under your policy, is the definition of a justified 
killing of an American.
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MR. EARNEST:  And what I’m saying is that these two al Qaeda leaders were 
frequenting an al Qaeda compound that had been identified by the United 
States.  And the United States carried out a counterterrorism operation against 
those compounds with the intent of taking al Qaeda fighters and al Qaeda 
leaders off the battlefield.  We do that because we know that the al Qaeda 
organization is actively planning and plotting against American citizens.  We 
have -- as is encapsulated in the authorization to use military force, the United 
States is at war with al Qaeda and its affiliates because of the way in which 
these affiliates are plotting and actively planning against the United States and 
our citizens.

Q    Okay, but what I asked is:  Gadahn and Faruq, did they represent an 
imminent threat of violent attack against the United States?  Which is the 
words of the Attorney General as to what would qualify as a justified killing of 
an American.

MR. EARNEST:  Well, what I can share with you from here is that these two 
individuals were not targeted in this specific counterterrorism operation, but we 
know that they were hit in this counterterrorism operation and they were killed 
in this counterterrorism operation because they were leaders of al Qaeda, and 
we know that al Qaeda is an organization that is actively plotting and planning 
against the United States.

Q    But is it legal under the guidelines that this administration has put in place, 
is it legal to kill American citizens who do not represent an imminent threat of 
violent attack against the United States?

MR. EARNEST:  What is permissible under international law and in the 
protocol that the President has established is for the United States to carry out 
strikes -- to carry out operations against al Qaeda compounds that we can 
assess with near certainty are al Qaeda compounds that are frequented by al 
Qaeda leaders.  And that is the operation that took place, and that operation 
did result in the death of al Qaeda fighters and al Qaeda leaders who were in 
this al Qaeda compound.

Q    But would it have been illegal for you to intentionally target those two 
men?

MR. EARNEST:  Well, there is a separate procedure and protocol for 
specifically targeting American citizens.  And this is the protocol that was 
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followed in the targeted operation against Anwar al-Awlaki in Yemen.  So there 
is a separate procedure and protocol for doing exactly that.

Q    So if it was not Adam Gadahn who was being targeted in one strike and it 
was not Ahmed Faruq being targeted in the other strike, who was being 
targeted?

MR. EARNEST:  What was targeted was what the intelligence community 
assessed with near certainty was an al Qaeda compound that we assessed 
with near certainty was being frequented by al Qaeda members, al Qaeda 
fighters, and, in this case, al Qaeda leaders.

Q    So there was no who?  There was no specific al Qaeda leader or leaders 
that were being targeted?  It was a compound?

MR. EARNEST:  What was being targeted was this specific al Qaeda 
compound.

Q    In both cases?

MR. EARNEST:  In both cases.

Q    In both cases.  And no names attached to that?  There were no -- we 
didn't have a list of --

MR. EARNEST:  That's correct.  What we were targeting specifically was this 
al Qaeda compound that was based on this near-certain assessment that this 
was a compound that was maintained by al Qaeda and frequented by al 
Qaeda leaders.

Q    Okay, there’s another story I wanted to get you on quickly -- revelations 
regarding donates to the Clinton Foundation and actions taken by the United 
States government.  I want to take the second part first.  In hindsight, given 
what has happened with Russia over the last year or two, was it a mistake to 
allow a Russian company to essentially corner the market on uranium in the 
United States?  Was it a mistake to allow that transaction to go forward, allow 
them to control basically one-fifth of the uranium supply in the United States?

MR. EARNEST:  Jon, I’m not familiar with that specific transaction.  I know 
there’s been some reporting on this today, but I can take your question and 
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see if we can get back to you on the specific transaction that you're talking 
about.

Q    And the memorandum of understanding that governed Hillary Clinton’s 
financial dealings, the financial dealings of the foundation and her husband’s 
speaking fees -- first of all, can you make that memorandum public?  Because 
I don't think we’ve ever seen it.

MR. EARNEST:  This is a memorandum of understanding that resides at the 
State Department, so you can ask them about their policy for disclosing it or 
not.

Q    Okay, we’ve asked for that.  I’m wondering if you can -- I mean, this is -- I 
mean, in the interest of transparency this was supposed to be all about 
transparency.  Can we see that memorandum?

MR. EARNEST:  I think the goal of the memorandum was to ensure that even 
the appearance of a conflict of interest was avoided by ensuring that there was 
greater transparency and greater knowledge about the contributions that were 
being accepted by the Clinton Foundation for the charitable work that they do.  
That was the goal of the memorandum.

Q    I mean, essentially, then-Secretary of State Hillary Clinton promised that 
she would make public the donations to the Clinton Foundation and also 
speaking fees for President Clinton.  Isn’t it clear now that Secretary Clinton 
did not abide by her own memorandum of understanding with the President?

MR. EARNEST:  I’m not sure that that's clear, but you should go ask Secretary 
Clinton’s team about that.

Q    Well, I’m asking you, because we now read that Uranium One, a foreign 
company, donated over $2 million to the Clinton Foundation while she was 
Secretary of State.  That would seem to be a pretty clear violation of a 
memorandum of understanding as it’s been explained to us by you.

MR. EARNEST:  Well, again, for the details of this transaction I’d refer to either 
the State Department or Secretary Clinton’s team.  Obviously, that's not 
something that was reviewed at this level.

Q    And we also know that, previously, that a $500,000 donation from the 
Algerian government went to the Clinton Foundation while Hillary Clinton was 

Page 18 of 38Press Briefing by Press Secretary Josh Earnest, 4/23/2015 | whitehouse.gov

8/24/2015https://www.whitehouse.gov/the-press-office/2015/04/23/press-briefing-press-secretary-jos...

Case 1:15-cv-01954-CM   Document 34-45   Filed 08/28/15   Page 20 of 40

A-805
Case 17-157, Document 31, 04/21/2017, 2017127, Page88 of 239



Secretary of State.  Again, isn’t this a clear violation of a memorandum of 
understanding that said that, first of all, there was going to be an end to foreign 
donations, and these donations would -- and donations to the foundation would 
be made public?

MR. EARNEST:  Again, I’d refer to you Secretary Clinton’s team about that.

Q    Well, can you check in on this, as well?  This is an understanding with the 
President, right?  This was --

MR. EARNEST:  Yes, but you're asking about their compliance with this 
particular matter and whether it lived up to the standards that Secretary Clinton 
had set for herself.  And so I’d refer you to Secretary Clinton’s team to render 
some judgment on that.

Q    One thing Secretary Clinton’s team has referred us back to the White 
House on whether or not any agency objected to that Uranium One deal, 
again, that allowed the Russians take steps towards cornering the uranium 
market, which seems pretty significant.  If any -- referred us to you if there’s 
been any objections.  So will you please find out for us if there were any 
objections made by any agency of the United States government for the 
Russians making such a bold move towards cornering a significant section of 
the uranium market?

MR. EARNEST:  I will take a look and see if there’s information that we can 
provide on that specific matter.  I know the other thing that has also been 
pointed out here is that this was a decision that other countries had the 
opportunity to weigh in on, as well.  And that seems like a relevant fact in 
terms of the completion of this specific transaction.

Q    I’m asking about our country, but I appreciate it.

MR. EARNEST:  Understandable.  And if there’s information that we can 
provide, I will.  I’ll try to do that.

Jim.

Q    Before we get back to the operations and the news of today, I just wanted 
to follow up on Jon’s question about the Clinton Foundation.  Do you feel and 
does the President feel that the Clinton Foundation -- that Hillary Clinton 
provided sufficient information about the foundation’s activities while she was 
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Secretary of State?  Are you fully satisfied with the disclosure from the 
foundation and her disclosures?

MR. EARNEST:  I haven’t been presented with any evidence to indicate that 
somehow there has been insufficient information provided to the 
administration.

Q    And getting back to the operation, I wanted to ask about Gadahn one 
more time.  You mentioned he was a prominent spokesman for al Qaeda, but 
had he moved into an operational role in any way?

MR. EARNEST:  I don't have any additional assessment about his activities to 
share with you other than to note that he was an al Qaeda leader who 
frequented this particular al Qaeda compound.  He is somebody who did serve 
as the public face of al Qaeda in some of their communications.  He is 
somebody that was wanted by the U.S. government both for treason and for 
providing material support to terrorists.  And there was an assessment of near 
certainty that an operation against this compound would succeed in taking out 
members of the al Qaeda leadership.  And in this case, that assessment was 
correct.

Q    And I know there are -- as we’ve talked about here, there are some details 
that you can't provide, and so I may be going through some red lights here.  
But what was it about the surveillance of these compounds that gave the 
counterterrorism officials confidence or high levels of confidence that these 
were al Qaeda compounds that were about to be struck?

MR. EARNEST:  There’s not additional information that I can share about the 
intelligence that led to the near-certainty determination that was reached.

Q    Okay.  And can you say whether or not these were ground forces that 
carried out these operations?

MR. EARNEST:  I’m not able to discuss exactly how the operation was carried 
out.

Q    You can't say whether they were ground or air?  And getting back to the 
use of drones, does the President have any second thoughts now about their 
usefulness in carrying out these kinds of operations? 
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MR. EARNEST:  Well, first of all, the thing that we do know about these kinds 
of counterterrorism operations is that they have made al Qaeda less capable 
of receiving recruits.  They have succeeded in diminishing al Qaeda’s 
command and control capability.  And we know that as a result of some of 
these operations, al Qaeda leaders have changed their behavior and are now 
intensely focused on their own personal security.  And we know that when al 
Qaeda leaders are focused intently on their own personal security, that means 
they have less time and energy and attention to devote to plotting against the 
United States.  So that is an important thing.

Q    So drone strikes work?

MR. EARNEST:  Well, what the President indicated -- and the President went 
through a lot of this in his National Defense University speech.  Our preference 
when dealing with suspected terrorists is to capture, detain, debrief and 
prosecute them.  And we -- the Obama administration has a very strong track 
record of doing exactly that in locations all around the world, frankly. 

Bu the fact is, as I mentioned earlier, in some areas of the world, particularly in 
remote locations where extremists are hiding out, local authorities have limited 
capacity and, in some cases, limited will to go after these extremists.  So the 
limited capacity of local forces and the remote nature of these environments is 
precisely why these extremists are hiding there. And what the President made 
clear -- again, and he made this clear more eloquently in his National Defense 
University speech than I will from here -- but what he made clear is we can’t 
use Special Operation troops to go after every terrorist in the world; that we 
can’t conduct an Osama bin Laden-style raid against every terrorist. 

There are a variety of reasons for that.  One, it would be an unacceptably high 
risk to our men and women in uniform.  Two, it would actually be a higher risk 
to civilian populations than some of the other capabilities that we often use; 
that the deployment of a large number of U.S. forces on the ground could lead 
to a fire fight with local civilians that we don’t actually have argument with.  It 
could leave some local populations with the impression that the United States 
is seeking to occupy territory in their neighborhood.  That, of course, is not 
true, but I think that is a reasonable conclusion if you’re living in a remote 
region of the world, and you turn around and you see several dozen or even 
several hundred U.S. American military personnel.
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So the truth is that narrowly tailored counterterrorism actions are actually the 
least likely to result in civilian or innocent loss of life.  However, what is 
abundantly and tragically clear this morning is that even narrowly tailored 
actions do not completely eliminate the risk of innocent loss of life.  However, 
the President is determined to push his team -- and this is a conviction that’s 
shared by other senior members of the President’s national security team -- to 
review and, where necessary, reform the protocols that are in place to allow us 
to continue to carry out the counterterrorism operations that are critical to our 
national security, while also ensuring that those actions live up to the high 
standards and values that our country cherishes.

Q    One last thing.  I know there’s a lot of other questions in the room.  But it 
had to have been known by counterterrorism officials that al Qaeda leaders in 
compounds that they might have high certainty is an al Qaeda compound 
would likely be holding Americans hostage, or have the potential for holding 
Americans hostage.  Is that a part of the risk that is taken when this kind of 
operation is conducted?

MR. EARNEST:  Well, there are obviously a variety of risks that are associated 
with these kinds of operations.  And what is clear is that our national security 
professionals go to great lengths to try to reach this near-certainty 
assessment.  They rely on multiple sources of intelligence.  In this case, one of 
those sources was hundreds of hours of surveillance of a specific compound, 
including near-continuous surveillance of that compound in the days leading 
up to the mission.

We know that as our national security and counterterrorism professionals are 
trying to reach this near-certainty determination, that they will seek out credible 
but contradictory sources -- or credible but contradictory intelligence; that 
they’re looking for intelligence that would wave them off reaching this 
designation, or reaching this assessment.  And then, these kinds of 
assessments are also subjected to a thorough Red Team process, where 
essentially you have intelligence professionals who are not part of developing 
this intelligence who will review the intelligence that’s been collected to try to 
poke holes in it, to make sure that it actually represents the complete picture.

Q    So in all these hundreds of hours of surveillance, it just wasn’t ever seen 
that these hostages were present, is what you’re saying?
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MR. EARNEST:  Well, I can’t talk in detail about what was seen in the -- what 
was gathered in the course of conducting this surveillance.  But I think it would 
be reasonable for you to assume that if they had detected a civilian in the 
compound, that they would not have been able to reach this near-certainty 
assessment.  But they did, but unfortunately that assessment was incorrect.

April.

Q    Josh, I want to find out, when did the President talk to the Italian Prime 
Minister?  Did he talk to him about this last week when both of them were 
meeting in the Oval Office?

MR. EARNEST:  He did not.  The President had a conversation with Prime 
Minister Renzi just yesterday.

Q    So what was the conversation?  If you could tell us what was in that 
conversation.

MR. EARNEST:  The conversation was relatively short and very direct, and the 
President delivered a message to Prime Minister Renzi that’s consistent with 
the message that he delivered here.  And the President spoke in his statement 
this morning about how the values that motivated Mr. Lo Porto to travel a great 
distance from his home country and from his family, and try to meet the needs 
of the local population in Pakistan to help people find their way out of poverty 
is consistent with the kinds of values that certainly are embodied by the life of 
Dr. Weinstein and are the kinds of values that we cherish in this country.  And I 
think that’s a testament to the bonds and values that the United States and 
Italy have in common and were on full display in the lives of Dr. Weinstein and 
Mr. Lo Porto.

Q    Was there any kind of concern from the Prime Minister that he was here 
and with the magnitude of the situation, that it would have been discussed 
during their conversation in the Oval Office last Friday?

MR. EARNEST:  No, that was not communicated to the President.

Q    And also on another subject.  Today, Loretta Lynch will get that vote that 
you’ve been -- that the White House has been looking for.  Any comments 
about the anticipation of a vote?
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MR. EARNEST:  Well, that vote, as I’ve mentioned before, is long overdue.  
And we are hopeful that Senate Republicans will finally do the right thing and 
allow the nomination of this very well-regarded career prosecutor to come up 
for a vote.  And we’re confident that if they follow through on their promise to 
give her a vote, that after a long delay she will finally be confirmed with 
bipartisan support as the next Attorney General of the United States.  That will 
be a good thing.

Q    Do you expect an approval today?  Do you expect an approving vote 
today?

MR. EARNEST:  That’s the indication that I’ve received from our staff that 
works closely with the United States Senate, and I hope that information is 
correct.  And again, if she receives that vote today, that is a long overdue step 
in completing her confirmation process.

Major.

Q    Josh, did the U.S. government at any time have a sense of where Dr. 
Weinstein was?

MR. EARNEST:  Major, I can tell you that our intelligence professionals and 
our counterterrorism professionals expended significant resources to try to 
locate Dr. Weinstein and rescue him.  And this was work that went on -- has 
been underway since he was first taken hostage back in 2011.  So this is a 
long-running effort that the President was regularly briefed on the status of the 
effort to find him.  But that’s about all I can say about --

Q    Was there ever an operation to try to rescue him?

MR. EARNEST:  Not that I'm aware of. 

Q    In this assessment, was it ever raised by the Red Team or others that he 
might be in this compound?

MR. EARNEST:  Well, I'm not able to talk about what specifically -- how this 
assessment was reached.  But given the very high standard that is put in 
place, this near-certainty standard, I think it is reasonable for you to conclude 
that the intelligence professionals who evaluated this particular situation -- 
both in terms of drawing on the available intelligence, including the hundreds 
of hours of surveillance -- that they had no idea that he was there.
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Q    How sobering is it that hundreds of hours of surveillance proved to be so 
fatally flawed?

MR. EARNEST:  Well, the first is, is that it is an indication of the lengths to 
which al Qaeda goes to conceal the location of hostages that they take.  And 
this is, again, an indication of just how highly valued these hostages are by al 
Qaeda.  It’s an indication of how difficult the work is to try to find these 
hostages so that they can be rescued.  And that’s the first thing. 

But obviously what occurred is very tragic.  And you all had the opportunity to 
see the President up close and personal when he delivered his statement 
here, and I think it was clear from watching him deliver his remarks how 
personally he takes this.  He’s the Commander-in-Chief, and his top priority is 
to protect the American people.  And it is particularly painful that an operation 
that was carried out consistent with his policies to try to protect the American 
people, unfortunately and tragically resulted in the death of an American 
citizen -- an innocent American citizen.

Q    In that National Defense University speech, the President went to great 
lengths to talk about the difficult cost-benefit analysis and the risks involved in 
how they weigh upon him. 

MR. EARNEST:  And I had an opportunity to talk to him about this today.  
There is probably -- this is as good an illustration as any of the difficulty in 
weighing those competing priorities.

Q    Since you had that conversation, allow me to ask you: Knowing what he 
knows now, does the President believe this series of operations was worth it?

MR. EARNEST:  Well, again, the standard that the President has set for these 
kinds of counterterrorism operations is near certainty that civilians would not 
be harmed.

Q    But I ask that because you’ve made it clear to us you were not targeting 
anyone.  This was a compound.  That’s not in pursuit of any particularly 
identified, vetted, or thoroughly established operational leader of al Qaeda.  It 
was a compound.  And there was nobody in particular, as we understand it, 
based on what you’ve told us, the United States government was seeking to 
attack or eliminate.  And I'm just wondering, that standard of not seeking 
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anyone and having a specific target resulting in the deaths of these two 
innocent hostages, does the President consider it worth it?

MR. EARNEST:  Well, I think it’s important, because in this instance we’ve 
gone to great lengths to declassify as much information as we can, for us to 
scrutinize these two situations. 

As it relates to the operation against the compound that resulted in the death 
of Adam Gadahn, you had the intelligence community reach a near-certain 
assessment that this was an al Qaeda compound and it could be carried out 
without harming any innocent civilians.  Those assessments were correct, and 
that operation did succeed in taking an al Qaeda leader off the battlefield. 

The other operation that resulted in the death of Ahmed Faruq, the al Qaeda 
leader who was frequenting that compound, also resulted in the death of Dr. 
Weinstein and Mr. Lo Porto.  The near-certain assessment that it was an al 
Qaeda compound and that it was frequented by an al Qaeda leader was 
correct.  What was not correct is that an innocent civilian would not be harmed 
in that strike. 

Q    Weighing all those things, was it worth it?

MR. EARNEST:  And so I think the point is simply this -- that when it comes to 
that particular operation, the protocols that are in place, had our intelligence 
professionals known that there were -- or even suspected that there were 
innocent civilians in and around that compound, then the operation would not 
have been carried out because it would not have been consistent with the 
protocols that the President and his team have established.

And again, that is what makes this all the more tragic, is that the protocol that 
was in place has a very high standard for only moving forward; that the 
operation -- the protocol is in place to ensure that the operation will only be 
carried out if we can be confident with near certainty that an innocent civilian 
will not be killed or harmed as the operation is carried out. 

And in this case, despite hours, hundreds of hours of surveillance and other 
sources of intelligence, including near-continuous surveillance of the 
compound in the days leading up to the operation, the presence of these 
civilians was not detected.
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Q    In that speech, the President also established the way by which if an 
American is being targeted, Congress and the Justice Department are brought 
into the conversation.  As I gather it -- I think this is an assumption, but I just 
want you to confirm it -- because no one was targeted, that process was not 
carried out? 

MR. EARNEST:  There is a very process if the intelligence community 
determines that it’s necessary to target a counterterrorism operation against a 
specific American citizen.  That protocol -- that policy was not pursued in this 
instance because there was no specific American citizen who was targeted.

What was targeted was a compound that our intelligence officials assessed 
with a high degree of confidence, with near certainty that was frequented by al 
Qaeda.  And again, in both of these instances, that assessment, that near-
certainty assessment was correct. 

Q    What are we to conclude from the potency -- or about the potency of al 
Qaeda in this particular region that a compound in of itself was a legitimate 
target?  That compounds without anyone identified within them, operationally, 
are so threatening to the United States that they must be carried out?  That 
suggests to me a level of anxiety about the potency of al Qaeda still in that 
region. 

MR. EARNEST:  I think what you should conclude is that it demonstrates a 
level of determination and resolve to continue to apply pressure against the 
remnants of core al Qaeda that still are living in the Afghanistan-Pakistan 
region.  And we know that these kinds of counterterrorism operations have 
made al Qaeda less capable of receiving recruits, have made them less 
capable of exercising some command and control.  And we know that it has 
made these al Qaeda leaders intensely focused on their own personal security 
in a way that detracts from their ability to plan and plot against the United 
States.

And the President and his team are determined to keep up that pressure 
because we know that pressure is critical to the safety and security of the 
American people.  At the same time, they’re also determined in ensuring that 
these kinds of operations live up to the high standards that the President has 
said for not injuring or killing innocent people.
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Q    Just to follow up on Jonathan’s question about the Clinton revelations -- 
you seem very nonchalant about them.  And I'm just curious if you believe the 
President is comfortable with everything he has learned in the last couple of 
days, and that to his satisfaction -- I'm not talking about the Secretary of 
State’s compliance; this was an agreement with the President of the United 
States.  To his satisfaction, do you believe this administration, the President of 
the United States is comfortable and satisfied with what’s happened, what’s 
been revealed, and what the Secretary of State did in accordance to her 
agreement with him? 

MR. EARNEST:  At this point, there has not been any evidence presented that 
would prompt the President or anybody at the White House to be unsettled by 
Secretary Clinton’s conduct as Secretary of State.  In fact, everyone here at 
the White House, including the President, continues to be very proud of her 
service to this country as Secretary of State of the United States. 

Jared.

Q    I want to follow up on a couple of Jon’s questions, specifically regarding 
Faruq and Gadahn.  Would they have been eligible targets under the criteria 
that Jon mentioned?

MR. EARNEST:  Well, Jared, the things that I can tell you is that neither Mr. 
Gadahn nor Mr. Faruq --

Q    I know they weren’t targeted.  I'm asking whether they would have been 
eligible targets.

MR. EARNEST:  Not only were they not targeted, they were also not classified 
as high-value targets.  But they were and had been identified as al Qaeda 
leaders.  In the case of Mr. Gadahn, he’d even been indicted for treason and 
for providing material support to a terrorist organization.  So that is an 
indication of how serious we considered the threat from them to be.  We know 
that Mr. Faruq was a leader in al Qaeda in the Indian Subcontinent; that he 
was a senior official as the al Qaeda network was plotting and planning in that 
region of the world. 

So these are individuals who had a leading role in al Qaeda and the al Qaeda 
network.  And that is why the near-certainty assessment that a strike against 
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these al Qaeda compounds would result in the death of an al Qaeda leader 
resulted -- or turned out to be true. 

Q    But I want to ask you about that indictment because you said earlier that 
the President has no regret for the death of Faruq or Gadahn.  They weren’t 
taken prisoner, they weren’t targeted directly.  Essentially, a death penalty had 
already been carried out for a sentence, a trial for treason that will never now 
happen.  Does the lawyer in the White House regret that; that this justice 
process wasn’t able to be fully carried out? 

MR. EARNEST:  Well, Jared, these are very complicated issues, and these are 
issues that are considered in very painstaking detail in the speech that the 
President delivered to the National Defense University back in May of 2013.  
So I certainly commend a quick look at that speech when you get an 
opportunity.

But let me just say as a general matter that our preference, as the President 
said in that speech, is always to capture, detain, debrief, and prosecute 
terrorists.  And we have a very strong track record of doing that successfully in 
a way that’s consistent with our values and in a way that is consistent with the 
national security interests of the United States. 

But the fact remains that there are some regions of the world where local 
authorities have limited will -- in some cases, it’s just limited capacity -- to be 
able to go after these individuals.  In fact, we know that that’s precisely why 
the terrorists or the extremists are hiding out there.  And in many of these 
cases, it’s just not feasible to deploy American boots on the ground to go get 
them.  We can’t order up a Special Operations raid every time we suspect that 
a terrorist might be somewhere.  In fact, to do so would subject our military 
servicemembers to an unacceptably high risk.  It would pose an even higher 
risk to local civilian populations than some of the more narrowly tailored 
counterterrorism operations that we carry out that don’t involve putting boots 
on the ground. 

So this is -- in fact, we know that these kinds of narrowly tailored actions are 
actually the least likely to result in the innocent loss of life.  And that’s part of 
what makes them such an effective tool.

Q    I guess what I'm asking about is the cavalier tone here.  Because when 
you say there’s no regret, but you say we prefer one option versus the other, 
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but no regret that they’re gone, that they’re dead, wouldn’t it have been better 
if they had been brought to trial?  And isn’t the lack of precision here 
contributing to that deficit?

MR. EARNEST:  Well, again, I think I disagree with your characterization as 
the attitude that’s on display today as cavalier.  I think this is -- we’re 
demonstrating a pretty seriousness of purpose here. 

And what I would say is that -- I’ve said a couple of times now that our 
preference is to capture, detain, debrief, and prosecute suspected terrorists.  
We’ve done that in a large number of occasions in a way that has enhanced 
the national security of the American people. 

So yes, I would stipulate that our preference would be, for somebody like Mr. 
Gadahn, to walk into a law enforcement agency and turn himself in, and have 
an opportunity for us to detain that individual, to debrief him; we have a 
process for debriefing individuals in that kind of scenario.  And we would 
subject him to American justice.  That would be our preference.

But when we’re talking about these kinds of scenarios, it is just not feasible 
and not wise for us to deploy American boots on the ground to detain every 
suspected terrorist that we come across.

Q    One last one.  Just a quick factual one.  Were any other nations involved 
or informed as part of either of these attacks? 

MR. EARNEST:  I can’t speak to the involvement of any other countries.  I can 
tell you that notifications, obviously as I mentioned, were made to the nation of 
Italy, specifically the Prime Minister, because of the death of the Italian 
hostage.  I can tell you that the nations of both Pakistan and Afghanistan have 
received notifications about this matter because the operation was carried out 
in the Afghanistan-Pakistan region.

Q    Were they informed before or after the attack was carried out?

MR. EARNEST:  The information that was conveyed to them is the same 
information that was conveyed to all of you today.  So this was obviously a 
recent notification.

Viqueira.
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Q    Thanks, Josh.  I want to get this question in because tomorrow marks an 
anniversary, an inauspicious day.  It was 100 years ago, the Armenian -- the 
killing of 1.5 million Armenians in the waning days in the Ottoman Empire.  Is 
the death of 1.5 -- the killing of 1.5 million people, is that a genocide?

MR. EARNEST:  Mike, it has been the policy of the United States to freely 
acknowledge the massacre of more than 1.5 million Armenians that took place 
100 years ago tomorrow.  And it’s a somber day and it’s a somber 
remembrance.  And in fact, there is a delegation -- an American delegation 
being headed by the Treasury Secretary, Jack Lew, to go and participate in the 
ceremonies that will mark this tragic event. 

The United States mourns the loss of those who were lost in that tragic series 
of events.  And we continue to reiterate our belief that the candid and frank 
acknowledgement of those kinds of tragic incidents serves to make it less 
likely that those kinds of events will happen in the future.  And we believe that 
all parties have a vested interest in acknowledging the truth about that 
massacre.

Q    Josh, you mentioned --  you used the phrase “candid and frank,”  so I’d 
like to quote back to you with when Senator Obama said when he was 
campaigning in 2008: “America deserves a leader who speaks truthfully about 
the Armenian Genocide and responds forcefully to all genocides.  I intend to 
be that President.”  He used the genocide word then; he won’t use it now.  
Armenian groups say he’s betrayed them.  Has he betrayed them?

MR. EARNEST:  Mike, the President has spoken forcefully about the value and 
importance of acknowledging that particular tragic incident in history.  And the 
President has spoken to that repeatedly.  And as we have traditionally done in 
the past, we’ll acknowledge the anniversary tomorrow in a statement from the 
President.

JC.

Q    Josh, how intent is this administration with its allies on capturing and 
neutralizing the head of ISIL, Mr. al-Baghdadi?

MR. EARNEST:  Well, JC, we use a wide variety of elements at our disposal, 
including our ongoing support for Iraqi security forces to apply significant 
pressure to ISIL and ISIL leaders.  And the President has engaged in a 
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strategy in working closely with the coalition of 60 nations to degrade and 
ultimately destroy ISIL.  And part of that strategy involves applying pressure 
and, where necessary and available, taking ISIL leaders off the battlefield.  
And that’s a strategy that we’ll continue to pursue.  We’ve enjoyed some 
success in that so far, and we’re going to continue to pursue it.

Q    And he is the Supreme Leader of ISIL, as you know.  It’s needless to say 
--   

MR. EARNEST:  I’m sorry?

Q    And he is the ultimate, the Supreme Leader of ISIL. 

MR. EARNEST:  Well, I think that’s how he’s described himself. 

Q    Fair enough.

MR. EARNEST:  Okay. 

Q    Loretta Lynch has been confirmed, Josh. 

MR. EARNEST:  We’ll have a statement on that shortly.

Q    What do you think about it?  56 to 43, she’s confirmed.

MR. EARNEST:  That’s obviously good news and we’ll have a more robust 
statement from the President on that shortly.

Kevin.

Q    Josh, thanks.  I just want to do a little housekeeping on timing.  How long 
between when the President was briefed on what happened and today, what’s 
the gap there?

MR. EARNEST:  Just about -- several days is the way that I would describe it.  
And that time period was -- has been used over the last several days to work 
to declassify as much information as possible about these two specific 
operations.   

Q    In 2012, the New York Times in an article about the administration made 
the suggestion that there is a briefing, sometimes including about 100 
members of the administration and security, by video-teleconference whereby 
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the administration engages in sort of, for lack of a better description -- “Bob, 
pick who’s next in the line, who’s the next target.”  And I’m curious if Gadahn in 
particular was one of these so-called next-in-line targets that the administration 
was looking for.

MR. EARNEST:  Well, Kevin, what I’ll say is that neither Mr. Gadahn nor Mr. 
Faruq was considered to be a high-value target.  We obviously were mindful of 
the risk posed by those two al Qaeda leaders, but they were not considered to 
be high-value targets.  And I think I remember the story that you’re referring 
to.  It was after that story ran that the President gave the speech at National 
Defense University, where he laid out in pretty specific fashion the kind of 
protocol and policy that should be followed when considering counterterrorism 
operations like this.

And imposing that kind of order and imposing those kinds of reforms to the 
system that would contain the way that those decisions are made was an 
important national security achievement.  It’s important that our policies and 
protocols are able to adapt to our ever-changing and improving capabilities.  
And the President’s speech that he gave at National Defense University is 
indicative of his commitment to ensuring that we have an adaptive set of 
protocols that allows us to maximize our ability to keep the American people 
safe while also adhering to the kinds of values that we hold dear in this 
country.

Q    A quick follow-up on something Jon was asking you about with regard to 
the former Secretary of State Hillary Clinton.  You said that you’ve seen 
nothing, or the administration or the President has seen nothing that would 
shake your confidence in her or in the job that she did while she was the 
Secretary of State.  And I’m curious if you feel like the donations to the Clinton 
Foundation while she was Secretary of State -- some of them from foreign 
governments, some not previously disclosed -- does none of that trouble the 
administration?

MR. EARNEST:  It doesn’t, Kevin, because the President and the 
administration continues to have strong confidence in the decision-making of 
Secretary Clinton, and that she was somebody who served this country and 
this President extraordinarily well as the Secretary of State.

Mark.
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Q    Josh, are you able to say or give any detail about the size of the 
compensation package you mentioned earlier?

MR. EARNEST:  I don’t have those details. 

Q    Will you at some point?

MR. EARNEST:  I’ll see if we can get some more details about that precisely.  I 
can just -- what I can confirm is that both Dr. Weinstein’s family and Mr. Lo 
Porto’s family will be compensated.

Q    When would an amount be arrived at?

MR. EARNEST:  I’m not sure exactly how that process works, but let me know 
look into that.

Lalit.

Q    Thank you, Josh.  Do you still believe that Af-Pak border region continues 
to be the safe haven for al Qaeda leaders?

MR. EARNEST:  Can you say it one more time?

Q    Do you still believe that Af-Pak border region continues to be the safe 
haven for al Qaeda leaders?

MR. EARNEST:  There continues to be concern that there are al Qaeda 
leaders that are hiding out in the Afghanistan-Pakistan region.  And because of 
our counterterrorism efforts -- we’ve talked before about how core al Qaeda 
has been decimated, and these counterterrorism operations have had an 
impact on al Qaeda’s ability to receive recruits.  It’s had an impact on their 
command and control capability.  It’s even had an impact on the freedom of 
movement of some al Qaeda leaders because they’re so intensely focused on 
their own security now.

So that pressure that’s been applied to those al Qaeda leaders in that region of 
the world has had important national security benefits for the United States.  
It’s also had important national security benefits for both Afghanistan and 
Pakistan, I’d point out.

But we’re mindful of the continuing threat.  This is obviously a region of the 
world that’s rather remote.  We know that local forces have limited capability to 
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operate in some areas of the Afghanistan-Pakistan region.  And it’s why we 
continue to use some of our capabilities in that region to protect the American 
people.

Q    From the information that you have shared with us, since this morning it 
looks like this compound was inside Pakistan, not in Afghanistan.  Is that a true 
assessment?

MR. EARNEST:  I’m not in a position to be more specific about the location 
where this operation took place, beyond saying that it took place in the 
Afghanistan-Pakistan region.

Q    And no prior information was shared with the governments of Afghanistan 
and Pakistan before the raid?

MR. EARNEST:  I’m not able to speak to the specific communications between 
the U.S. government and the governments of Pakistan and Afghanistan in 
advance of the operation.  But I can tell you that in recent days, after the high-
confidence assessment was completed by the intelligence community that Dr. 
Weinstein and Mr. Lo Porto were killed in a U.S. government counterterrorism 
action, that this information was conveyed to both the Pakistani government 
and the Afghan government.

Q    And why are you saying that the local authorities have limited will in 
handling these -- against these al Qaeda leaders?  In the past, you have 
praised by the government of Afghanistan and Pakistan in the counterterrorism 
operations.

MR. EARNEST:  Well, the United States values the kind of security 
cooperation that we obviously get from the Afghanistan central government.  
There’s obviously an important security relationship between the United States 
and Pakistan.  After all -- and I alluded to this in response to your earlier 
question -- that many of the extremists that are hiding out in this region have 
either planned or even carried out attacks in which the vast majority of the 
victims were actually Muslim citizens of Pakistan.  And it’s an indication that 
these kinds of extremist terrorist elements that are operating in the region of 
these two countries aren’t just a threat to the American people, they’re also a 
threat to the Afghan people and to the Pakistani people.  That’s why the United 
States government has succeed in building strong security relationships with 
both those countries to try to mitigate that threat.
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Toluse.

MR. EARNEST:  You mentioned the Osama bin Laden raid earlier, and I 
wanted to sort of draw a comparison.  In that raid there was human 
intelligence, this courier that provided information to back up whatever 
surveillance that the U.S. had.  In this case, we’ve only heard about the 
hundreds of hours of surveillance, presumably by satellite.  Can you say if 
there was also human in-country surveillance and intelligence that helped to 
back that up?

MR. EARNEST:  Well, what I can say, Toluse, is that the hundreds of hours of 
surveillance against this specific compound was a very important part of the 
source of intelligence that we had against this particular compound.  It was not 
the only source of intelligence, however.  And this goes to the near-certainly 
determination that’s required before an operation can be carried out; that our 
analysts consider a multiple -- consider multiple sources of intelligence before 
reaching that near-certain determination.

And again, the hundreds of hours of surveillance, including near-continuous 
surveillance in the days leading up to the mission, would obviously be a very 
important and rich source of intelligence, but it’s not the only source of 
intelligence that contributed to the targeting of this specific compound.

Q    And there were some intelligence officials that have said that in the wake 
of the Edward Snowden revelations a lot of terrorists have gone offline and 
underground, and that the U.S. is relying too much on technological 
intelligence and not doing enough of human intelligence in the country.  How 
do you sort of respond to that kind of argument?

MR. EARNEST:  Well, I’d say two things about this.  We’re obviously talking 
about a very remote area of the world where even the capability that’s given by 
human intelligence is limited.  But I think what I would -- more importantly, I 
think what I would point out to you is that the fact that these al Qaeda leaders 
have gone underground is a testament to the impact that this counterterrorism 
pressure has had on their ability to operate. 

If you have al Qaeda leaders that are shutting themselves off from the outside 
world, that are not taking advantage of communications devices and are 
seeking to go underground, that’s going to make it a lot harder for them to 
exercise command and control.  It’s going to make it a lot harder for them to be 
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involved in broader organizational efforts of the network.  It’s going to be a lot 
harder for them to plan and direct attacks against the United States.  And 
that’s an indication of an important consequence of the pressure that the 
United States and our allies are applying against extremists.

Q    One quick question on the Time Warner-Comcast deal.  The FCC, the 
staff has come out against it.  I was wondering if the President is going to get 
involved in this decision and if he has an opinion on it.

MR. EARNEST:  This is a deal that is being evaluated by independent 
regulators, and so I wouldn’t weigh in on it from here.

Ms. Weinberg, I’ll give you the last one.

Q    Thanks, Josh.  I want to ask about the case of Kayla Mueller who was 
killed back in February.  At the time, ISIS had claimed her death was because 
of a Jordanian airstrike.  But at the time, at least for the DOD, they had said it 
was propaganda.  So I’m wondering in light of this reassessment, why is the 
United States so confident in ruling that contingency out?

MR. EARNEST:  For two reasons.  The first is that we do not have a high-
confidence assessment about what led to Ms. Mueller’s tragic death.  We were 
able, through a variety of intelligence sources, able to reach a high-confidence 
assessment about the tragic death of Dr. Weinstein.  The second thing is, what 
we have said about Ms. Mueller’s death is that ISIL has claimed that she was 
killed in a Jordanian airstrike.  And what we do know and what we have made 
public is that there is no evidence that were Jordanian aircraft in the region at 
the time of the strike that resulted in her death.

So what I would just simply observe is that we are continuing to try to develop 
sources to get greater insight into what led to her death, but we are intensely 
skeptical of claims that her death was caused by a Jordanian airstrike because 
we know there were not Jordanian aircraft in that region at the time of that 
strike.

Q    And that is sufficient to rule out that entirely, 100 percent?

MR. EARNEST:  Well, again, we don’t know anything 100 percent in that 
situation.  That’s why we’re trying to gather more information about what led to 
her death.  But we are, I think understandably, intensely dubious of claims that 
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a Jordanian airstrike led to her death when the fact is that there were no 
Jordanian aircraft in that area when she died.

Q    But the specific of the Jordanian airstrike aside, has the contingency been 
ruled out that it could have been collateral damage from some ISIS anti-
coalition offensive, be it something like a drone strike or something like that?

MR. EARNEST:  Well, as we’ve said at the time, this situation, this 
circumstance is still being reviewed by our intelligence sources to try to get 
greater insight into what exactly occurred.

Thanks, everybody. 

Q    Josh, will Lynch be sworn in today?

MR. EARNEST:  I don’t believe there’s a plan to do that today, but we’ll keep 
you updated.

END
2:23 P.M. EDT
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Key Republicans defend use of drones

Greg Nash 
By Martin Matishak - 04/23/15 01:29 PM EDT
Several lawmakers defended the U.S.'s use of drones, saying the killing of two hostages doesn't reflect a problem with the program.

The lawmakers argued the administration and Congress should examine how these strikes ended up killing unintended targets but said it 
should not lead the U.S. to pull back on the use of drones. 

President Obama acknowledged Thursday that a drone strike in January killed Warren Weinstein, an American held by al Qaeda since 
2011, and Italian national Giovanni Lo Porto, a hostage since 2012.

The attack also killed Ahmed Farouq, an American who was an al Qaeda leader, according to the White House. A separate strike the 
same month killed Adam Gadahn, an American who served as a prominent spokesman for the terror group.

The incident that killed the hostages “does not bring into question the use of drones; you bring into question the proper use of drones. But 
no one — no one — believes you can’t use drones anymore. That’d be crazy,” Senate Armed Services Committee Chairman John McCain 
(R-Ariz.) told reporters.

However, there should “absolutely” be an examination of the strike, he said.

“Whenever something like this happens, you have to have a review of the operations and what went into the decisions and all that. There 
has to be a review of it,” McCain said.

Senate Intelligence Committee Chairman Richard Burr (R-N.C.) said the panel provides “extensive oversight” of drone efforts.

“We always go back and look at any counterterrorism action that we take, and we will do it in great detail on this one,” he said, noting the 
committee had already taken a second look at the January operation.

Burr added there are “consequences to war. When you look at our experience with collateral damage, it’s minimal.”

Sen. Tim Kaine (D-Va.), a member of the Senate Armed Services and Foreign Relations panels, said America’s drone policy has not been 
overly aggressive.

"Drones can be a technology that can be very effective, and they tend to reduce — they don’t eliminate — reduce the possibility of 
unacceptable risks to others," Kaine said.

He described drones as a “good technology” but took issue with the breadth of the 2001 authorization for the use of military force that 
allowed the operation against al Qaeda forces to occur.

“When you have an AUMF that doesn’t have [geographic] limitation, temporal limitation, then that’s what creates the controversy,” Kaine 
told reporters. “I don’t think it’s the drones themselves.”

Sen. Lindsey Graham (R-S.C.) said he has "no problem at all with anything that happened, other than my deepest sympathies for those 
who were held by al Qaeda that became collateral damage.”

“We’re at war. Whether you drop a bomb from an airplane and you hit a collateral damage, it’s not different than if you use a drone,” he 
added.
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But when al Qaeda “does what they do, they put innocent people at risk, so you can’t stop the war. You can’t stop the drone program 
because of this,” said Graham, a possible 2016 presidential contender.

“They can look and see what went wrong, but I am not for stopping this program. The drone program has been a good tactical weapon in 
the war on terror, and I am all for keeping it,” he said.

Updated at 5:14 p.m.

Richard Burr, John McCain, Lindsey Graham, Tim Kaine
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JIM ACOSTA, CNN ANCHOR: A deadly mistake in America's drone war, Hillary Clinton's big cash headache,
and a Legend's call for justice.

This is STATE OF THE UNION.

Senator John McCain on the blowback from U.S. drone strikes. Ohio Governor John Kasich on whether he is
running for president. Will Hillary Clinton's big money derail her campaign? And musician John Legend on why
black lives matter.

Good morning from Washington. I'm Jim Acosta.

President Obama is promising a review of his administration's drone program after two Western hostages,
including an American, were killed in a counterterrorism operation. Their deaths have renewed criticism of the
U.S. drone strategy.

And now joining me is Senate Armed Services Committee Chairman John McCain.

Senator McCain, thanks very much for joining us. Thanks for getting up so early this morning.

SEN. JOHN MCCAIN (R), ARIZONA: Thank you, Jim.

ACOSTA: You have had a couple days to mull this over, the drone strikes that resulted in the deaths of those
two hostages. Were their deaths preventable, in your view?

MCCAIN: I think it was probably preventable, in that there was an obvious breakdown in intelligence. They didn't
know that they were there, and our ­­ as you know, all of our prayers and thoughts are with their families.

So, it was obviously preventable, but the question then is, do we continue these drone strikes, and how
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important are they? Those raises all ­­ that raises all of those questions, and it's clearly a subject for review by
both Intelligence and Armed Services committees and the entire Congress.

ACOSTA: And I noticed this week, after the president's admission about these drone strikes and the terrible
tragedy that occurred, that both he and the White House did not use the word drone, and they did not say that
the CIA program existed.

But we do know that to be a fact, isn't that right, Senator, that these drone strikes are run by the CIA?

MCCAIN: Yes.

And there is kind of an internal struggle going on within the administration and within the Congress as to which ­­
whether it should be an armed services operation, this whole issue of drone strikes, or should it be done by the
CIA? Obviously, as chairman of the Armed Services Committee, I have some bias, but it seems to me that as
much as we could give responsibility and authority over to the Department of Defense, because that's really not
the job of the intelligence agency.

But back to your question, I think then that raises the debate. Do we need to continue drone strikes? And if so,
how? Obviously, better intelligence. But we are now facing a new form of warfare, these nonstate terrorists
organizations that are spread all over hell's half­acre. And, really, the only way you can get at them that we know
of now that is viable is through the drone operations.

They have taken out leadership. And we can argue ­­ in fact, I would argue strenuously we ­­ there are places
where we could have done a lot more, but this is sort of an aspect of the frozen conflict, where we are not going
to send boots on the ground to go get those people, and that is certainly understandable.

(CROSSTALK)

ACOSTA: And that's something that ­­ that's something that White House Press Secretary Josh Earnest said
earlier this week, that they can't conduct an Osama bin Laden every time they want to take out terrorists on the
battlefield.

But I want to pick on something you just said a few moments ago, which is ­­ and I know you said this a couple
of years ago ­­ that you would like to see the drone program moved out from the CIA and over to the Pentagon.
Why has that not happened?

MCCAIN: Turf battles.

ACOSTA: The CIA doesn't want to give it up?

MCCAIN: Failure to ­­ in all candor, obviously.

And the president said a couple years ago he wanted them moved. There is some question about the
capabilities and the equipment that the CIA ­­ that the DOD, as compared with CIA.

What this will do, Jim, is we will renew this discussion with the administration, within Congress as to who
actually should be running the drone operation.

(CROSSTALK)

ACOSTA: In your view, the CIA should not run this ­­ yes.
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But it's ­­ in your view, the CIA should not run this program? I don't mean to interrupt, but want to get that point
in.

MCCAIN: I do not think so. That's why they are ­­ that's why they are called the intelligence agency and why we
call the armed forces the ­­ obviously, the people that are supposed to be carrying out military operations.

[09:05:06]

And I can understand, when it was a very small operation, why it would be done by the intelligence agencies,
such as U­2s and other reconnaissance aircraft, for many years. Now it has reached the point where it's an
integral part of the conflict and a very essential one, so I think it should be conducted and oversight and
administered by the Department of Defense.

ACOSTA: I want to turn to Iran.

As you know, earlier this week, there was the potential for this military confrontation between the U.S. and Iran
when it was feared that the Iranians were sending arms through their naval ships over to Yemen to support the
Houthi rebels there who are sort of fighting this proxy war on the part of the Iranians.

And the U.S. sent an aircraft carrier to ­­ the White House would not say that they were essentially whether there
to block those weapons from being delivered. But do you think a ­­ some sort of military action would have been
advisable if push came to shove, if it was necessary to block the shipments?

MCCAIN: Absolutely.

There is no doubt that the Houthis are sponsored, trained, and equipped, they're a proxy of the Iranians, who
are again on the move in another country. You look where Yemen sits geographically, and it could be a threat to
one of the world's most important waterways.

And I applaud the Saudis' efforts, their operations. And for us to continuously argue that they stop their
campaign, I think, is ludicrous, part of this delusion that there is going to be a new U.S./Iranian alliance after the
nuclear deal is consummated.

And so I applaud what the Saudis are doing. And it's going to be tough. And it going to be tough and hard, but
they did the right thing. And why in the world the president wouldn't just say that? The president said, because
we are going to preserve freedom of navigation? Come on. Let's be straight with the American people. It was all
about resupply of the Houthis.

ACOSTA: Do you think he was afraid of spoiling this deal? Do you think he was afraid of spoiling this nuclear
deal?

MCCAIN: Every ­­ so much ­­ so much of their actions are related to this ­­ this nirvana, this mirage out there
that, with the nuclear deal, we are going to have some kind of new relationship throughout the Middle East.

That scared the hell out of our Sunni Arab allies. And, frankly, it scares the hell out of me, because they are on
the move in the ­­ all of these countries, Lebanon, Syria, Iraq, and Yemen. And they are on the move in other
places as well. They are carrying out very aggressive operations.

ACOSTA: And, Senator, you know that the president, a couple of weeks ago, slammed you, when he essentially
accused of you trusting the ayatollah more than Secretary of State John Kerry when you said that the
administration and the ayatollah were on separate pages when it comes to this nuclear deal.
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Do you think that diplomacy has any chance of success? And don't you think diplomacy should be given a
chance here?

MCCAIN: I think diplomacy should be given a chance. And what I was saying is ­­ was ­­ they are the facts.

The facts are that the ayatollah depicts the state of negotiations as far as inspections are concerned, as far as
lifting of sanctions are concerned and other aspects of this deal that are diametrically opposed to what John
Kerry and the State Department is telling us. I mean, that's just a fundamental fact.

I think George Shultz and Henry Kissinger were correct in the op­ ed they had in "The Wall Street Journal,"
where they said these negotiations begin in order to rid of Iran of ever having a nuclear capability to delaying
Iran from having another nuclear ­­ a nuclear ability.

And I can assure you, Jim, that if this deal goes through the way it appears it is, you will see a nuclear­armed
Middle East. And that's incredible dangerous.

ACOSTA: Let me turn to 2016, because I know there was this dust­ up between you and Senator Rand Paul.

And Senator Rand Paul referred to you as a lapdog. And you said he was the worst possible candidate of the 20
or so that are running on the most important issue, which is national security. That comeback from you, wouldn't
that make a great Hillary Clinton campaign ad if Rand Paul is the nominee of your party?

MCCAIN: Well, my first obligation is to the security of the country, and Rand Paul is behind leading from behind.
The ­­ the...

(CROSSTALK)

ACOSTA: Would you serve as his running mate if he were to ­­ if he were to ask you to be on his ticket, would
you ­­ would you serve on his ticket?

MCCAIN: You know, the vice president has two duties. One is to enquire daily as to the health of the president,
and the other is to break a tie vote in the United States Senate. (LAUGHTER)

MCCAIN: I am not interested.

ACOSTA: So, you wouldn't ­­ you wouldn't serve as vice president on anybody's ticket?

What about Lindsey Graham? You are essentially his surrogate now in this upcoming campaign.

MCCAIN: Well, I just ­­ I just feel, Jim, that I can be far more effective as chairman of the Senate Armed Services
Committee.

There are challenges ­­ well, again, Henry Kissinger and George Shultz and Madeleine Albright and all those
people we respect have stated unequivocally we are in greater crises than we have ever been since the end of
World War II. I agree with them.

[09:10:11]

ACOSTA: But, getting back to Lindsey Graham, you ­­ you are going to be, I suppose, his chief surrogate in this
upcoming campaign.

If he were to ask you to be his vice presidential running mate, I assume you would say yes to that. Isn't that
right?
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MCCAIN: Well, that's ­­ I don't think Lindsey would be ­­ he is really a smart guy. So, I don't think he would ever
consider such a thing.

(LAUGHTER)

ACOSTA: Do you wish...

MCCAIN: And we are very close, and there is no doubt about that, but he understands national security as no
other candidate does.

ACOSTA: And do you wish you had picked him as your running mate back in 2008?

MCCAIN: Oh, no, no, I certainly don't.

But I have watched him grow. I have watched him handle his responsibilities on the Armed Services Committee
and the Budget Committee, and I have seen him. And it's one of the great life stories that we have ever had,
frankly.

ACOSTA: OK.

And let me ask you about the president's remarks last night. I am sure you probably noticed or you have heard
since ­­ since last night the president took a little swipe at you when talking about the security lapses at the
White House and fence­jumpers and so forth.

He suggested ­­ he made a suggestion as to how to beef up security at 1600 Pennsylvania Avenue. Let's throw
to that tape. (BEGIN VIDEO CLIP)

BARACK OBAMA, PRESIDENT OF THE UNITED STATES: I am happy to report that the Secret Service, thanks
to excellent reporting by White House correspondents, they are really focusing on some of the issues that have
come up. And they have finally figured out a foolproof way to keep people off my lawn.

(LAUGHTER)

(CHEERING AND APPLAUSE)

(END VIDEO CLIP)

ACOSTA: Senator, I don't know if you can see it there in Arizona, but there was a picture of you basically saying
"Get off my lawn" over at the White House.

What was your response to that? What did you make of that?

MCCAIN: Well, I am reporting for duty on Monday morning...

(LAUGHTER)

MCCAIN: ... in my usual laid­back, casual style, my diplomatic style.

I am telling you, I will get that Secret Service squared away. I am ready for the job.

(LAUGHTER)

ACOSTA: All right, very good.
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Senator John McCain, thanks for joining us this morning, and being a good sport there at the end. It's always
great talking to you, sir.

MCCAIN: Thank you.

ACOSTA: Thank you, Senator.

And up next: Ohio's Republican governor on whether he is ready to jump into the race for president, and, later,
singer John Legend on mixing art with activism.

(BEGIN VIDEO CLIP)

ACOSTA: What means more to you, winning an Academy Award, winning all these Grammys, or your political
activism?

JOHN LEGEND, MUSICIAN: You know what? I'm fortunate that they're not separate.

(END VIDEO CLIP)

(COMMERCIAL BREAK)

[09:16:34]

ACOSTA: Ohio Governor John Kasich has not officially entered the 2016 presidential race, but he is acting a lot
like a candidate. Governor Kasich was the keynote speaker this week at the nonpartisan New America
Foundation annual conference.

And CNN's Gloria Borger, my colleague, spoke with him after his address.

(BEGIN VIDEOTAPE)

GLORIA BORGER, CNN SENIOR POLITICAL ANALYST: I'm going to start with the question everybody wants
answered, which is, are you running for president?

GOV. JOHN KASICH (R), OHIO: I don't know yet. I have taken another big step for me, which is to create a
political organization to begin to accumulate more resources, so I can travel more robustly and begin to think
about infrastructure.

And then, once that is done, if I can be successful in raising sort of that seed money, then I think the next step to
see if people like what I have to say. And then I think it's going to be to find out around the country whether I can
raise enough money to compete, at least in the early states. And if that works, I am likely to go forward.

BORGER: So, at this point, what would stop you from running?

KASICH: Lack of resources or a consideration that I wouldn't win, because I don't want to do this just for ­­ just
to go and do it. I have got a big job in Ohio.

Being governor, I have got 11.5 million people and a lot of responsibility. So, this is not like, well, let me try, and if
it doesn't work, I will try again, or I will ­­ you know, if it doesn't work, I will be vice president or something. I am
not interested in any of that.

So, either I feel like I can win, or there is no reason to do it.
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BORGER: The last time we spoke, you said that somebody who is extreme in their politics would not be able to
win in the state of Ohio.

What did you mean by that?

KASICH: Dividers. People that come in and want to divide are not going to do very well.

And that's because Americans are tired of all the division. They want to see solutions.

BORGER: Do you think Hillary Clinton can win in Ohio? KASICH: Sure. Sure, she could. I mean, of course she
could. I

think anybody there on those lists are capable. It's just a matter of how they project themselves.

But she will be a very formidable candidate. She's having a lot of problems now, going to have to answer a lot of
questions. But anybody that underestimates Hillary Clinton, I think, makes a mistake. They underestimated her
husband.

BORGER: How do you respond to Americans believe that Republicans are too close to Wall Street, that Wall
Street is too greedy?

KASICH: Well, I have said all along that I think there is too much greed on Wall Street.

And the reason I say it is because I saw it. And the fact is, there is nothing wrong with making money. There's a
lot of good, but you can't just be totally dedicated to making money, without sort of doing some good in the
process. I think that we have paid for the problem of greed on Wall Street. And, you know...

(CROSSTALK)

BORGER: There's a little Elizabeth Warren in you, I think.

KASICH: Nobody. John Kasich is ­­ maybe there is a little bit of me in her.

BORGER: Let me ask you about the Iran sanctions deal.

KASICH: Yes.

BORGER: If you were on Congress, would you vote to allow that to occur?

KASICH: Well, knowing what I know now, no.

Reagan used to say trust and verify. In regard to Iran, it should be verify, verify, verify, without the trust, because
I don't trust them.

BORGER: And you don't think the administration has done that or tried to do that?

KASICH: I think they have fallen in love with this deal.

I think it's ­­ a lot of it is about a legacy. Look, I am not here to condemn and demonize the president, but I'm
telling you that I do not like this agreement, what I have read so far.

BORGER: And let me just ask you about the president this week.

You saw that drones apparently killed two Westerners by mistake. He came out and admitted this was an error.
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[09:20:09] Should we expect deadly mistakes like this as part of our ­­ a

drone program?

KASICH: Well, I don't believe the drone program ought to be run out of the CIA.

The CIA is an intelligence­gathering operation. The operation, the drone program, should be operated
exclusively out of the Pentagon. You know, the Air Force has the capability of doing extensive targeting. You
don't have those capabilities in the CIA. And I have talked to former CIA people who have told me this.

BORGER: And let me just ask you this final question.

What do you say to Republicans who look at this field and they say, the Republican Party has grown a lot more
conservative than John Kasich, who is ­­ supports Common Core, doesn't take a pathway to citizenship off the
table on immigration reform?

KASICH: I think it's a misread of the party.

I think the party, the members of the Republican Party, the members of the Democrat Party share a lot of the
same concerns and same anxiety and want to see solutions.

At the end of the day, what I have found where I travel, I don't change my message. If I am at the Detroit
Economic Club or down in South Carolina or in New Hampshire, I am told by people that my message is
resonating. In the great state of Ohio, 64 percent of the vote, 86 out of 88 counties, one a county that Barack
Obama won by 40 points.

I must be doing something right. But we will see. If they ­­ if they don't like me or if they think I am not this or
that, my conscience will be clear. I'm going to do the best I can. And, by the way, I am not changing my
positions. I am not changing my talk. I'm going to be who I am.

(END VIDEOTAPE)

ACOSTA: OK, a straight­shooter there in John Kasich.

An interesting footnote: Next summer's Republican National Convention is in Ohio.

And up next: Is Hillary Clinton's presidential campaign already in trouble?

And, later, singer John Legend on using his art for change?

(BEGIN VIDEO CLIP)

ACOSTA: This is personal for you?

LEGEND: Well, it's personal for me because I have had family members that have gotten caught up in the
system. I have family friends that I grew up with that have been caught up in the system, people that grew up in
my same neighborhood. I could have been one of them.

(END VIDEOTAPE)

(COMMERCIAL BREAK)

[09:26:35]
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ACOSTA: Hillary Clinton's campaign is just three weeks old, but she is already facing a controversy over foreign
donations to the Clinton Foundation.

Joining me now around the table is Republican strategist Kristen Soltis Anderson, "Wall Street Journal" White
House correspondent Carol Lee, Democratic strategist Stephanie Cutter, and CNN senior Washington
correspondent Jeff Zeleny.

And I am calling this the hangover edition of the White House Correspondents Dinner. This is the political side of
that. We're going to get to the dinner later.

But I will put you on the spot first, Stephanie, since you have spent a long time defending Democratic candidates
over the years. There is this new book out, of course, "Clinton Cash," by Peter Schweizer, who is getting all
kinds of publicity, thanks to us and everybody else talking about this book.

But the book raises a lot of good questions about the money coming into the Clinton Foundation and whether or
not, as that was happening while Hillary Clinton was at the State Department, some of these foreign donors
were ­­ were actually able to pay for access.

What is your take on this? How damaging is this for Hillary Clinton? Should she be worried?

STEPHANIE CUTTER, FORMER OBAMA DEPUTY CAMPAIGN MANAGER: Well, I think, number one, the
book is actually not out.

ACOSTA: Yes.

CUTTER: And even before it hits the stands, it's...

ACOSTA: It feels like it's out.

CUTTER: It certainly feels like it's out because of the media coverage of it and some of the special deals that it
has gotten with media.

However, every allegation or piece of innuendo that it has been out there, it has been struck down. Even the
author says that there is no evidence here of wrongdoing. And I think that's an important thing for everybody to
remember.

He suggests that she was able to get the Colombia free trade deal through because of a donation to her
husband's foundation. That's absolutely ridiculous. I worked on the Colombia free deal ­­ trade free deal for ­­ for
years. And if one person could put their finger on the scale, believe me, I would have found that. It just was not
possible.

ACOSTA: You did not see it happening?

CUTTER: It didn't happen. It's not that I just didn't see it. It's just no ­­ not ­­ the system is not set up as a way for
it to happen.

ACOSTA: And, Kristen, did you expect this kind of political gift to come to the Republicans so early in the
campaign?

KRISTEN SOLTIS ANDERSON, REPUBLICAN STRATEGIST: It's just been a constant drip, drip, drip. And I
think we have got a long way to go until November 2016. And I think Republicans seem to be getting a new
week every week.
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It doesn't take a lot to persuade voters that politicians are sort of peddling their influence to the highest bidder.
What is unusual about this is that highest bidder in this case is foreign corporations and foreign governments.

Usually, Russia and uranium not involved in these sorts of stories, which sort of takes it to the next level. And
voters also ­­ also aren't dumb. Bill Clinton's speaking fees tripling when, all of a sudden, Hillary Clinton
becomes secretary of state, again, this is not a hard case that Republicans needs to make that the Clintons are
in this for themselves and not for the American people and for the good of the country.

ACOSTA: And we should point out, the Hillary Clinton campaign has pointed out that Peter Schweizer is a
conservative. He's written books essentially supporting conservative causes in the past.

And I want to play a piece of tape from Hillary Clinton earlier this week and then go to you, Jeff, when Hillary
Clinton seemed to be saying, when it comes to the Republicans, it's all about me.

Here is what she had to say.

(BEGIN VIDEO CLIP)

HILLARY RODHAM CLINTON (D), PRESIDENTIAL CANDIDATE: We will be subject to all kinds of distraction
and attack.

And I'm ready for that. It's, I think, worth noting that the Republicans seem to be talking only about me. I don't
know what they would talk about if I were not in the race.

(END VIDEO CLIP)

ACOSTA: It's all about me at this point, Jeff. Is that ­­ is that Hillary Clinton's line of defense now?

JEFF ZELENY, CNN SENIOR WASHINGTON CORRESPONDENT: I mean, she is right about that. I was with
her in New Hampshire when she said that. That's the only time she has addressed this. And she did it very
briefly.

But, look, I think this raises legitimate questions that voters will have to answer about, if she was elected
president, then what would happen? What role would Bill Clinton have then? So, I think that, you know, the
Clinton campaign realizes that this is just the very beginning of this. They do have to answer some of these
questions. And you're totally right, and there is no huge smoking gun in the book that we know of right now...

UNIDENTIFIED FEMALE: Huge (ph) smoking gun.

ZELENY: ...but it does raise questions of speaking fees, of why that one $2.35 million donation was disclosed
when she was becoming secretary of state in January of '09. She signed a document saying she would disclose
all contributions to the foundation that apparently did not happen here. So, there are still more questions about
this. But the bigger picture is this, (INAUDIBLE) worry about, is this going to affect the trust and credibility of
her? Voters are not paying attention to this issue right now but the bigger question is, you know, are people
going to say, you know, more scandal and more this?

ACOSTA: So, that's what I was going to say.

(CROSSTALK)

ZELENY: South Carolina ­­
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ACOSTA: I want to turn to Carol on this, because there may not be a smoking gunning but there is ­ when it
comes to the Clintons' smoking gun fatigue and it has been going on for decades now. And I'm just curious,
Carol, how big of a problem is this going to be for the White House, because when we asked Josh Earnest
about this...

CAROL LEE, WALL STREET JOURNAL WHITE HOUSE CORRESPONDENT: Right.

ACOSTA: ...he said we have not been presented with evidence of any problem here?

LEE: Everybody is talking about there's no smoking gun, we (INAUDIBLE) presented with evidence, we followed
the letter of the law, that's always the response. It's a perception problem that she had and that is, you know, this
feeds the larger narrative that the Clintons are secretive; they don't play by the same rules. If they do they just
are just within the lines. And that's what this (INAUDIBLE) the thing is. It's judging (ph) up (ph) and it's going to
continue for the next 17, 18, 19 months ­

(CROSSTALK)

ACOSTA: Stephanie, isn't that true? Isn't there a Clinton fatigue factor here?

STEPHANIE CUTTER, DEMOCRATIC STRATEGIST: There's a slightly different take on it. There is going to be
a fatigue factor and it's going to be a fatigue factor for stories like this and how the media covers it. Because it
seems like ­­

ACOSTA: We shouldn't cover this?

CUTTER: ...the Clinton campaign is trying to answer the questions and be forthright and transparent. However,
they don't seem to be that worried about that ­ worried about it. And I think that's probably ­­ and I'm not out
there campaigning with them but there is probably a very different conversation happening in Iowa, in New
Hampshire and everywhere else she is traveling than what we are watching on national ­­ in the national media.

ACOSTA: Yes.

CUTTER: Her point about, you know, Republicans are talking about me, I think the larger point there is, yes,
they are talking about Hillary Clinton. Hillary Clinton is talking about real people, and that is what elections are
about. And if Republicans lose sight of that, they are guaranteed to fail.

ACOSTA: You know, going back to the late 1990s, I mean, one asset that the Clintons had on their side was
Republican overreach. Bill Clinton's approval ratings went up after the impeachment.

Do you think Republicans might over play their hand once again and set the table for Hillary Clinton by
overreaching this (INAUDIBLE)?

KRISTEN SOLTIS ANDERSON, REPUBLICAN STRATEGIST: I don't think that it's going to have to take a lot of
effort on the part of Republicans to get Americans believing that Hillary Clinton is not particularly trustworthy. It's
already showing up in lots of polls.

(INAUDIBLE) Democrat at this point I might feel a little nervous if there is no plan B if, as Jeff mentioned, you
know, the layers get peeled off one by one. There is no smoking gun at the moment but it just seems that this
constant drip, drip, drip of stories where the Clintons have not done the right thing or have barely have done the
right thing is not going to be a helpful narrative for them over the next 18 months.

ACOSTA: (INAUDIBLE) ­
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ZELENY: Stephanie is right (ph) there (ph). You did not hear Jeb Bush out there talking about that this week. I
mean, we heard Mitt Romney saying, it sounds like bribery but no one who's actually running for president said
that. And there is a danger, I think, of Republican overreach. But this is only one small part of it. And we have
the Benghazi emails coming up. This is going to be a soundtrack of this campaign, like it or not. The voters may
not be paying attention to it but it is ­ it is going to happen.

ACOSTA: And ­

CUTTER: The Republicans are out of focus on what this election is about. I do think there is almost a guarantee
that there will be Republican overreach in this election. ACOSTA: All right. All right.

Speaking of overreaching, last night Washington, once again probably could have been accused of
overreaching with The White House Correspondents Dinner. We're going to talk about that coming up. The four
of you will stick around. When we get to that we'll be talking about President Obama's turn as comedian in chief,
something he's used to doing and we will talk about that and some highlights in a few moments.

(COMMERCIAL BREAK)

(BEGIN VIDEO CLIP)

[09:38:24] RONALD REAGAN, FORMER PRESIDENT OF THE UNITED STATES: I am aware of my age. When
I go in for a physical now, they no longer ask me how old I am, they just carbon date me.

BILL CLINTON, FORMER PRESIDENT OF THE UNITED STATES: I have actually shown up here for eight
straight years. Looking back, that was probably a mistake.

GEORGE H.W. BUSH, FORMER PRESIDENT OF THE UNITED STATES: Members of the White House
correspondents' association, distinguished guests, ladies and gentlemen, here I am.

BARACK OBAMA, PRESIDENT OF THE UNITED STATES: Now to the mid­ term elections, my advisers asked
me, Mr. President, do you have a bucket list? And I said, well, I have something that rhymes with bucket list.

(END VIDEO CLIP)

ACOSTA: And it's a good thing he pulled that off and there wasn't any miscue there in terms of pronouncing,
bucket list, which I was afraid to say this morning. Welcome back.

Highlights from an annual ritual here in Washington, The White House Correspondents Dinner, is an event
where Hollywood celebrities and politicians mingle and the president of the United States gets to have the last
laugh. And last night President Obama appeared at the dinner for the seventh year in a row and got some big­
time zingers in there.

Our round table is back and I just want to show some pictures of my evening. I got to see a few celebrities. Well,
there's Huma Abedin, Hillary Clinton's assistant. Jane Fonda was sitting at our table last night, that was
something else. And I got to meet Julie Bowen from "Modern Family", you know, I was checking ­ and there's
Jane Fonda as well. And I was checking, you know, my Twitter feed last night and ­ posting these pictures just
immediately provoked this backlash.

There's a lot of people out there who think, this stinks. That these celebrities and these politicians, and these
people in the media should not be doing this. What do you think, Carol? [09:40:00] LEE: Well, I'm on the board
of the White House
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Correspondents Association. I will be president next year, and I disagree. I think that that's what gets a lot of the
focus, obviously, that's what people are interested in.

But we do a lot of things that have nothing to do with celebrities or all the parties and the glitz that followed ­
surround the dinner. You know, also last night, we honored people who won awards for doing great journalism,
covering the White House.

We have scholarship recipients, the next generation of reporters who are ­

ACOSTA: And we featured the "Washington Post" reporter who is behind bars in Iran right now.

LEE: That's right. And we acknowledged everybody in the room who is covering the beat, who is dedicated to
this. And we talked about transparency and access, which is what we do day in and day out.

So, once a year the spotlight is on us and our dinner, and unfortunately no one wants to take a picture with ­­
sorry, Jeff, but Jeff and me ­­ I mean, I do, you know, and they want to take a picture with Jane Fonda and that's
what gets on Twitter.

ACOSTA: And Jeff, you have been doing a number of these. Is this obscene, do you think? You know, "The New
York Times" doesn't go to this.

ZELENY: They don't anymore, right.

And I was at the "New York Times" when that decision but ­ look, I think, it ­­ there is a lot of talk about how
obscene this is. It's one night.

I thought last night's was actually more in check than previous years, not as many celebrities. There's no Ozzy
Osbourne kind of, you know, standing up on a chair and having his ways. I always think the most interesting
thing is how the president reacts.

We get a great window into what the president is thinking, his frustrations, his humor in this kind of speech. So,
that's the value that I've seen. And we saw President Bush in '06, I mean, that was a very funny evening. So, I
think that's the value in this, seeing his humanity.

ACOSTA: Yes. I sort of feel like more effort goes into writing the president's jokes at this dinner than maybe
some of his policy speeches. I mean, that was a well­crafted work of art last night.

Let's show a clip from that because he had a little anger translation going on and it was probably the highlight of
the evening. Let's toss to that.

(BEGIN VIDEO CLIP) OBAMA: Protecting our democracy is more than ever. For example,

the Supreme Court ruled that the donor who gave Ted Cruz $6 million was just exercising free speech.

LUTHER: Yes, it's the kind of speech like this, I just wasted $6 million.

OBAMA: And it's not just Republicans. Hillary will have to raise huge sums of money, too.

LUTHER: Oh, yes, she's going to get that money. She's going to get all the money. Khaleesi is coming to
Westeros.

(END VIDEO CLIP)
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ACOSTA: Great stuff.

Stephanie, the jokes work because, you know, it's funny and it's true.

CUTTER: You know, I think it's the one night where the president can poke fun of himself, poke fun some of ­­
other fellow electives but and also poke fun of the media, you know, and in that regard it's a good time.

ACOSTA: And I talked to a White House official last night who said, you know, the president does relish this
opportunity to...

CUTTER: He does.

ACOSTA: ...dish (ph) it back at the press.

CUTTER: He does.

ACOSTA: So, he gets to save up of all that frustration over the course of the year.

What do you think about this? What did you make of some of the jokes last night? There was a lot of jokes at the
expense of Ted Cruz, Rand Paul and others.

ANDERSON: I think the Republicans running for president are all big boys and girls. I think they can take it. Yes,
I mean, I think the dinner to the extent that it becomes this weird spectacle with tons of celebrities. It's kind of an
odd note for Washington to hit.

But in general I think this is the story that most Americans are probably not talking about this morning.

ACOSTA: They don't really care about us, right, as much as we would like to talk about ourselves?

And let's go (ph) to another clip from the president talking about ­ this clip actually sort of shocked me, because I
thought, you know, some of these jokes can kind of go close to the edge. This one was right there or maybe
went over it. Let's play that clip.

(BEGIN VIDEO CLIP)

OBAMA: A few weeks ago Dick Cheney says he thinks I am the worst president of his lifetime, which is
interesting, because I think Dick Cheney is the worst president of my lifetime.

(END VIDEO CLIP)

ACOSTA: That was a zinger and then there was another one for Hillary Clinton, where the president said she
has been living out of a van or something like that in Iowa. I mean, I guess, the subjects of these jokes have to
take it in good form, I suppose.

LEE: Yes. And most of them seem to, except there was one year when Donald Trump did not seem to take the
jokes very well.

ACOSTA: Yes. Donald Trump was sitting very close to me last night and he seemed to be enjoying himself a lot
more than the last time around during that whole birth certificate controversy. And you know, this is one of those
opportunities, Jeff, where, you know, if we can't laugh at ourselves, who can we laugh at, right? We (ph) have
(ph) to (ph) do (ph) it (ph).

ZELENY: Right.
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ACOSTA: It's a healthy form of catharsis.

(CROSSTALK)

ZELENY: Sure. And the worst thing that is probably not being mentioned in this situation.

I mean, Martin O'Malley, who is probably running against ­­ or for president on the Democratic side. He was
mentioned a few times. Even he was the butt of jokes, but at least he was mentioned. I think the ­ and the
biggest thing is ­

(CROSSTALK)

ACOSTA: Some of the best advertisings he has had.

ZELENY: Yes. I mean, there were not a lot of Jeb Bush jokes in there. A lot of Democrats are concerned about
his candidacy. So, you know, I think, that by Monday morning all of us will be back to work and this is a memory
for one more year.

[09:45:04] ACOSTA: All right. Very ­­ and a good one as well.

Carol Lee, Jeff Zeleny, Stephanie Cutter, Kristen Solis Anderson, thank you very much. We appreciate it.

And my conversation with John Legend, on everything from his Oscar winning song, "Glory," to the cause he
plans to take up with President Obama. Some surprising words for the president coming up in just a moment.

(COMMERCIAL BREAK)

ACOSTA: He has won nine Grammys and took home the Oscar this year for best original song since his debut
album "Get Lifted" was released in 2004. John Legend has continued to create hit after hit, but for the talented
singer, song writer, producer and philanthropist social activism is just as important to him as art.

(BEGIN VIDEOTAPE)

ACOSTA: Thanks for being on State of the Union.

JOHN LEGEND, MUSICIAN AND ACTIVIST: Thanks for having me.

ACOSTA: Just in the last week or so what's flared up in Baltimore has heightened the awareness once again of
this issue of police brutality.

LEGEND: Yes.

ACOSTA: In Baltimore, allege police brutality. Do you think there's an epidemic of police brutality happen in this
country right now?

LEGEND: Well, I think for too long the criminal justice system implemented by the police but not solely run by
the police has treated black people as though our lives are not as valuable, as though we are enemies in our
communities rather than community members, and we need our police to look at us as community members
they care about and want to keep safe and healthy and treat us with the same fairness they would treat any
other person.

[09:50:00]
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Far too often that hasn't been the case. And that's why you see so many people walking around with signs, the
black lives matter. And the reason we have to be specific and say, black lives matter, is because so many forces
in American life are telling us that our lives don't matter, that our lives are expendable. That when we're killed,
when we're unarmed, that we can't get justice for that. When we are the perpetrators of crime, even though it's
the same crime as someone else we get longer sentences or we get treated worse by the criminal justice
system.

ACOSTA: And a do you think that we're just seeing a greater number of these types of cases right now or is it
because ­

(CROSSTALK)

LEGEND: I honestly think it's just because ­ I think there's more awareness. I think there's more technology that
allows us to have transparency, but I think this has been happening ­­

ACOSTA: Cell phone cameras?

LEGEND: Yes, cell phone cameras.

And I think in some ways it's a good thing, but in other ways it's almost like it's numbing the extent to which
we're seeing it because we're seeing something new almost every other day.

ACOSTA: The case in South Caro ina ­­

LEGEND: Yes, South Carolina. We're seeing in Baltimore. We're seeing all over the country.

It's almost to the point where it seems so commonplace that I don't want us to get too used to it. We still need to
be outraged about these things.

ACOSTA: I'm just curious. We have not heard from President Obama on this situation in Baltimore and on the
situation in South Carolina. For the last couple of weeks he hasn't comment on ­ he has a lot on his plate
obviously.

LEGEND: Sure.

ACOSTA: He's working on a lot of different issues. You have been a big supporter of his over the years.

LEGEND: Yes.

ACOSTA: Do you think he's said enough on this?

LEGEND: I think there's more to be said, but I also think it's not as important that he comments on every case.
It's important that we reform the system on the federal level, the state and local level as well. And it's not just
about these killings, which are very important and a huge concern in the community, but it's also about what I
have been talking about for a bit in the past couple weeks is mass incarceration and the overall way that the
criminal justice system treats particularly black and brown communities, poor communities.

We are the most incarcerated nation in the world, and we have gotten there through a set of policies that have
been in existence over the last 40 years. We have to have more than just press conferences. We need to have
real changes in policies.

ACOSTA: And John, I remember when you launched this campaign you went to a prison...
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LEGEND: Yes.

ACOSTA: ...to perform if I'm not mistaken. What was that like?

LEGEND: Yes, I went to a prison in Austin. I went to a prison in Sacramento. I went to the old Folsom prison
where Johnny Cash performed. And I also visited other facilities in California. And today actually here in D.C. we
went to go visit an alternative program for youth who get caught up in the juvenile justice system. And ­­

ACOSTA: Have you ­ have you found some solutions to this issue of mass incarceration?

LEGEND: Well, I think ­ actually what we saw today was a great thing because it was saying that we don't need
prison as the solution for every problem.

So when our young people get in trouble, a lot of times it's nonviolent. A lot of times it's minor fights and things
like that. A lot of times they have been sent to the prison system, to the juvenile justice system and locked up
when there are other ways to deal with them, and other ways that are more community based and more focused
on restoring them so that they can come back and live a good life and pursue their dreams.

These are kids that are 15, 16 years old. For us to give up on them and throw their lives away at that age is just
a travesty. And so we've seen that.

We've seen people who have gone through all kinds of trauma who are living in a cycle of broken lives where,
you know, they've had issues with their own parents, issues in their own communities. They've seen people get
killed. They have seen family members get locked up. And so they're already broken. They're already people
who have gone through so much, and then when they get in trouble, they end up back in that same system and
so we need to find ways that are better ­­

ACOSTA: You have to figure out how to get to these at­risk kids before they become incarcerated.

LEGEND: Exactly.

So, I spent so much time focusing on schools and I still do. We focus on helping make sure that teachers that
are doing a great job, are getting their solutions funded and getting their work seen around the country so that
we improve our schools, improve the instruction quality that we have for the kids. Make sure that the resources
that they need are there. May sure that if they have emotional traumas that they've gone through that we offer
support for them.

But it's also important that ­­ for the kids that slip through the cracks who all these interventions haven't gotten to
yet that we find solutions that aren't always about locking them up. We have made a decision as a country over
the last 40 years that we're going to deal with most problems like poverty, drug dependency, mental health
issues by putting people in prison. And ­

(CROSSTALK)

ACOSTA: Can I challenge you on that for a second? Let me challenge you on that because if you look at the
crime statistics across the country, crime is at a generation low levels.

LEGEND: Yes, and incarceration hasn't gone down...

ACOSTA: Yes.

LEGEND: ...to reflect that the crime has gone down. And ­
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(CROSSTALK)

ACOSTA: But isn't incarceration ­

(CROSSTALK)

LEGEND: They recently did a study because intuitively you might say, well, the reason why the crime went down
is because we locked all the bad people up. A recent study said that's statistically just not the case. There's a
small percentage of it that impacted the crime rate early on but over the last 10 or 15 years incarceration hasn't
improved the crime rate.

ACOSTA: I'm going to get in a lot of trouble if I don't ask you about your work because you have a lot of fans not
only at CNN but around the country, around the world.

You won an academy award for the song "Glory"...

LEGEND: Yes.

ACOSTA: ...which you co­wrote with Common.

LEGEND: Yes.

ACOSTA: And you said more black men are under correctional control than they were under slavery in 1850.

LEGEND: Mm­hmm.

ACOSTA: This is personal for you.

LEGEND: Well, it's personal for me because I have had family members that have gotten caught up in the
system. I have had family friends that I grew up with that have been caught up in the system. People that grew
up in my same neighborhood, I could have been one of them.

And so I do take this personally, but I have seen it destroy way too many families. I've seen it destroy way too
many communities. And as I go through our schools and through our communities and see the results of these ­­
this situation where you see so many kids growing up without a father, for instance, so many kids that have
some kind of parent in prison or under probation or parole, can't get a job, can't vote for various reasons, you
just have to think that there's a better way to do this than what we're doing right now.

ACOSTA: And what means more to you, winning an Academy Award, winning all these Grammys, or your
political activism?

LEGEND: You know what, I'm fortunate that they're not separate.

You know, my music has given me be an opportunity and particularly winning the Oscar for "Glory," for a film
"Selma" which is all about fighting for justice and equal rights for all. "One day when the glory comes it will be
ours, it will be ours

oh, glory."

It gave me an opportunity to speak out on behalf of people who may be voiceless otherwise, who people may
not listen to otherwise. And I'm trying to back that ­ back that up with actual action.

ACOSTA: You sound like somebody who might want to run for political office one day. We are in Washington...
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LEGEND: I have no interest.

ACOSTA: ...I have to ask the question.

LEGEND: I have no interest.

ACOSTA: Reporters like me will always say that's not a no.

LEGEND: No.

(CROSSTALK)

ACOSTA: It's like saying, I'm not running right now.

LEGEND: No, I don't want to ever run for political office. I feel like my political activism can exist outside of me
running for a political office.

ACOSTA: Finally, President Obama, how would you grade his presidency right now?

LEGEND: I think there has been a lot of successes. I think health care reform is one that I'm particularly proud
of. I think the fact that ­­

ACOSTA: You worked hard to get him elected.

LEGEND: Yes. Absolutely.

Health care being affordable and accessible to so many more Americans now is going to go down in history. I
think is a huge accomplishment. I think the stimulus package, I thought it could have been a little bigger, but I
think what it did accomplish was bringing the unemployment rate down to where it is now.

ACOSTA: What if he doesn't get a handle on this policing issue?

LEGEND: I think there's more to do, and I'm going to push the president to get more involved in criminal justice
reform. I'm going to suggest some ideas that we think could help improve the situation.

But a lot of it has to do with state and local governments as well. That's why we went to the state house in
Texas. That's why we were in Sacramento with Gavin Newsom because a lot of these laws are enacted on a
state level and so we need take by state change as well. It's important that the president is behind us, but it's
also important that we get legislators and governors across the country to do it as well.

ACOSTA: If you change your mind about running for office, give CNN the scoop, will you?

LEGEND: I will. I will.

ACOSTA: John Legend ­

LEGEND: Don't hold your breath. Don't hold your breath.

ACOSTA: We might just a little bit.

But John Legend, thank you very much for your time.

LEGEND: Thank you.
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ACOSTA: It's great talking with you.

LEGEND: Thank you.

(END VIDEOTAPE)

[09:58:55] ACOSTA: John legend recently launched the Free America campaign which will focus on ending
mass incarceration and reforming the criminal justice system.

We'll be right back.

(COMMERCIAL BREAK)

ACOSTA: Thanks for watching STATE OF THE UNION. I'm Jim Acosta in Washington.

"FAREED ZAKARIA GPS" starts right now.
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National Security

Debate is renewed on control of lethal drones
operations
By Karen DeYoung  May 5

The revelation last month that a CIA drone strike in Pakistan had killed an American hostage has reawakened a

long-running debate on whether the intelligence agency should be in the drone business at all, or if such lethal

strikes are best left to the military.

Sen. John McCain (R-Ariz.), chairman of Senate Armed Services Committee, said last week that he would use this

year’s defense authorization bill to promote such a shift. The Senate Intelligence Committee’s chairman and ranking

Democrat indicated that they would oppose him.

The public disagreement has exposed a legislative turf battle that began nearly two years ago, when President

Obama said he favored military control. He still does, according to the White House.

But with the military-intelligence divide on Capitol Hill reflecting similar differences between the Defense

Department and the CIA, the president has not taken action either way.

Obama “has explained his belief that we must be more transparent about both the basis of our counter terrorism

actions, including lethal operations, and the manner in which they are carried out,” said National Security Council

spokesman Edward C. Price.

“He has indicated that he will increasingly turn to our military to take the lead and provide information to the public

about our efforts,” Price said. “We continue to work diligently toward this goal.”

The deaths of al-Qaeda hos tages Warren Weinstein and Giovanni Lo Porto, an Italian aid worker, in the CIA drone

strike have “rekindled the debate and maybe given it some new momentum,” said Rep. Adam B. Schiff (Calif.), the

senior Democrat on the House Intelligence Committee. Schiff has bucked the predominant view, at least on the

Senate intelligence panel, and said he favors military control.

Schiff disagrees with Sen. Dianne Feinstein (Calif.), the senior Democrat on the Senate Intelligence Committee, who

said last week that “we have much more oversight over the intelligence program than we have over the military

program, and that’s just a fact.”
1
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Feinstein and others have argued that the CIA is better at lethal strikes and, despite Weinstein’s accidental death, is

responsible for less collateral drone damage than the military.

“I haven’t seen any evidence that the DOD is not perfectly competent to do this,” Schiff said in response. “I think

people are going more on their gut sense than any empirical data.”

The administration has said that turning the program over to the military would allow it to be more transparent

than it can be about CIA drone strikes, which are considered covert actions that can be disclosed only with

presidential permission.

But the deaths of Weinstein and Lo Porto marked the first time the administration has acknowledged civilian deaths

in a strike by either the CIA or the military outside of war operations in Afghanistan. Witnesses, human rights

organizations and even partner governments have reported numerous instances of such unintended consequences

from CIA drone strikes in Pakistan since 2008 and strikes conducted by the CIA and the military’s Joint Special

Operations Command in Yemen.

Although figures vary among independent tallies, the Bureau of Investigative Journalism has documented 415

strikes in Pakistan and Yemen since the Sept. 11, 2001, terrorist attacks, the vast majority of them under the Obama

administration. The organization estimates that from 423 to 962 of those killed have been civilians. The

administration has said those casualty figures are greatly inflated, while offering no accounting of its own.

Regardless of what Congress decides, Schiff said, “there is nothing to prevent the administration from being more

transparent any time they decide they want to be” by providing “an annual accounting of how many people have

been killed — civilians and combatants — and how they are defining each. There is no reason why this should

require legislation,” although both he and Feinstein have proposed bills ordering Obama to provide the figures.

But “to argue that this is solely about who is better at collateral-damage issues is to miss the wide array of added

strategic, political, legal and ethical issues at play,” said Peter W. Singer, a senior fellow at the New America

Foundation who specializes in modern warfare. “There are fundamental differences when a campaign is being

designed, authorized and operated under military command and control versus . . . civilian intelligence agencies.”

Questions include “how are you putting this within an overall strategy,” Singer said. “The lawyers involved . . . the

arguments they make for or against, the laws they turn to for guidance . . . the reporting of it. Then, the feedback

loop of both how it goes well and what happens when it goes bad.”

There is a clear history of accountability for strikes gone awry in the Afghan war, including courts-martial and

payments made to bereaved citizens on the ground, he said. But none of that occurs when the military is involved in

drone attacks under the auspices of clandestine counter terrorism operations. 2
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When Obama first announced new lethal targeting guidelines and a push toward military control in a 2013 speech,

administration officials said that one of their principal goals was to establish a “playbook” that would lock down the

rules for future administrations.

But by not fully implementing his own changes, Obama has left the issue open for the next president. It is early in

the 2016 campaign “and no one’s talking about it,” Singer said. All declared and likely candidates have been

generally supportive of the drone program.

The administration is also using armed drones as part of its air campaign in Iraq and Syria against the Islamic State,

whose global footprint is expanding across the Middle East and into Africa and Southeast Asia. “Now we get to the

real nitty-gritty,” Singer said. “Who will control” an expansion against the Islamic State.

Another goal of the administration playbook was to set rules — and an example — that could be imposed on other

countries. Nations now flying armed drones include Britain, Israel, Nigeria, Iran, Pakistan and China, while a

number of others are developing them.

Karen DeYoung is associate editor and senior national security correspondent for the Washington Post.
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By ERIC SCHMITT

U.S. Airstrike in Libya Targets Planner of 2013 Algeria Attack

Continue reading the main story Share This Page

WASHINGTON — The United States carried out an airstrike in Libya early Sunday against the mastermind of
the 2013 terrorist seizure of an Algerian gas plant that left 38 foreign hostages dead, American and Libyan
officials said on Sunday.

The Libyan government issued a statement Sunday night saying that the airstrikes killed the terrorist leader,
Mokhtar Belmokhtar, and “a number” of Libyan terrorists in the eastern part of the country.

American officials confirmed that Mr. Belmokhtar was the target of the strike, carried out by multiple American F­
15E fighter jets. But they expressed caution about his fate, saying forensic proof was needed to declare with
certainty that Mr. Belmokhtar had been killed. Given the likely extent of the damage — multiple bombs were
dropped on the target, officials said — that determination could take some time unless terrorist websites issue
an official statement of mourning.

The Libyan statement said: “The Libyan government announces that American planes undertook action that
resulted in the death of the wanted terrorist Mokhtar Belmokhtar and a number of Libyans belonging to one of
the terrorist groups in Eastern Libya, after consultation with the Libyan interim government to take action on
terrorist leadership present on Libyan soil.”

Photo

An undated image of Mokhtar Belmokhtar, an Algerian militant
leader reported to have been killed in an American airstrike. Credit
via Agence France­Presse — Getty Images

If confirmed, the death of Mr. Belmokhtar would be a major
counterterrorism victory for the United States against one of the world’s
most wanted militants.

“I can confirm that the target of last night’s counterterrorism strike in
Libya was Mokhtar Belmokhtar,” said Col. Steven H. Warren, a Defense
Department spokesman. He said Mr. Belmokhtar “has a long history of
leading terrorist activities” and “maintains his personal allegiance to Al
Qaeda.”

The United States government, he said, was “continuing to assess the
results of the operation and will provide more details as appropriate.”

Mr. Belmokhtar is an Algerian militant with a long history in the Sahel region, which falls on the southern flank of
the Sahara stretching from Senegal to Chad. Although his direct operational ties to Al Qaeda may have
lessened, his stature as a terrorist leader has grown.

Called the Prince by his entourage, he was considered the last major surviving figure among the jihadists in
North Africa. All the others have been killed in French raids. He is certainly the most feared among them
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because of his operational and planning skills.

Born in Algeria, he fought in the Algerian civil war of the 1990s. He joined a militant group based in Algeria and
took up smuggling and kidnapping for ransom; one terrorist raid included the abduction of a Canadian diplomat
in late 2008.

Mr. Belmokhtar’s success in maneuvering largely unhindered for years in the deserts of northern Mali and
southern Algeria and Libya was a result of his masterful integration into the local populations. He married a
woman from Timbuktu, Mali; spoke the local dialects; and shared some of his rich takings from more than a
decade of kidnapping Westerners.

The Canadian diplomat, Robert Fowler, a former United Nations special envoy, was released after four months.
He said in a 2013 interview, “I was always impressed by the quiet authority he exhibited.” Mr. Fowler met with
Mr. Belmokhtar several times during his captivity in the desert.

Among his militant names is Laaouar, or the One­Eyed, because it is said he may have lost an eye while fighting
the Soviets in Afghanistan, where he learned combat skills. A major cigarette trafficker, he is also known as
Marlboro Man.

Mr. Belmokhtar became a leading figure in Al Qaeda in the Islamic Maghreb, or A.Q.I.M., the Qaeda affiliate in
North Africa. He was the most experienced of four leaders of Al Qaeda in the Islamic Maghreb until he broke
with the group to lead Al Mulathameen Battalion, which was officially designated as a foreign terrorist
organization by the State Department in 2013.

Photo

An Algerian soldier near the gas plant where a terrorist attack in January 2013 resulted in the
deaths of 38 foreign hostages, including three Americans. Mokhtar Belmokhtar led the attack.
Credit Louafi Larbi/Reuters
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In January 2013, Mr. Belmokhtar led the attack on a gas plant in Algeria that resulted in the death of 38 civilians,
including three Americans. Four months later, his group joined with a West African terrorist faction — the
Movement for Oneness and Jihad in West Africa — to carry out attacks in Niger that killed at least 20 people,
the State Department said.

In August 2013, Mr. Belmokhtar’s faction and the West African extremists announced that they were joining to
form yet another group, Al Murabitoun. But the merger fell apart, and the other militants split from Mr.
Belmokhtar’s group. This year they announced they had joined the Islamic State.

Mr. Belmokhtar has remained loyal to Al Qaeda. His last public statement was a rebuke of his colleagues who
had gone to the Islamic State, who he said had “violated the foundation” of their organization.

Western diplomats say that intelligence agencies have been tracking Mr. Belmokhtar in and out of Libya at least
since a late 2012 spotting in Tripoli. But the targeting by American air power came up in just the past 48 to 72
hours, a senior American official said. Officials confirmed that American surveillance drones had been part of the
effort to track the terrorist leader.

“It was a strike on an extremist leadership target whom we believed posed a threat against American and
Western interests,” said one official, who spoke on the condition of anonymity to discuss confidential intelligence
reports.

The attack marked the first time the American military has carried out any kind of airstrike in Libya since the
NATO operation there in 2011 that helped oust Col. Muammar el­Qaddafi.

American commandos, though, have carried out other operations in Libya since the NATO air war.

In October 2013, American forces captured a Libyan militant who had been indicted in 2000 for his role in the
1998 bombings of the United States embassies in Kenya and Tanzania. The militant, born Nazih Abdul­Hamed
al­Ruqai and known by his nom de guerre, Abu Anas al­Libi, had a $5 million bounty on his head.

In June 2014, American commandos operating under the cover of night seized the man suspected of leading the
deadly 2012 attack on the United States Mission in Benghazi, Libya, ending a manhunt that had dragged on for
nearly two years and inflamed domestic and international politics. About two­dozen Delta Force commandos and
two or three F.B.I. agents descended on the outskirts of Benghazi in predawn raid to grab the suspect, Ahmed
Abu Khattala. No shots were fired, and the suspect was removed from Libya to a United States Navy warship in
the Mediterranean, on which he was transported to Washington for prosecution.

The airstrike against Mr. Belmokhtar came as the group’s chief ideological rival, the Islamic State, also known as
ISIL or ISIS, has expanded its presence inside Libya, alarming Western officials because of the country’s
proximity to Europe, across the Mediterranean.

Four years after the removal of the Qaddafi regime, the near­collapse of the Libyan government has left no
central authority to check the group’s advance or even to partner with Western military efforts against it.

Two armed factions, each with its own paper government, are fighting for control, and each has focused more
on internal quarrels than on defeating the Islamic State.
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Statement by NSC Spokesperson Ned Price on the Death of Al­
Qa’ida in the Arabian Peninsula Leader Nasir al­Wahishi

the WHITE HOUSEPresident Barack Obama

Search form

You are here

The White House

Office of the Press Secretary

For Immediate Release

June 16, 2015

The Intelligence Community has concluded that Nasir al­Wahishi, the leader of al­Qa’ida in the Arabian
Peninsula (AQAP) and deputy to al­Qa’ida leader Ayman al­Zawahiri, has been killed in Yemen. Wahishi’s death
strikes a major blow to AQAP, al­Qa’ida’s most dangerous affiliate, and to al­Qa’ida more broadly. Wahishi had
led AQAP since its founding in 2009 and oversaw the group’s plotting against the United States, U.S. interests
in the Arabian Peninsula, and those of our allies in the region. Wahishi was responsible for the deaths of
innocent Yemenis and Westerners, including Americans, but—through the concerted efforts of our
counterterrorism professionals—we were able to thwart many of his attack plans.

The President has been clear that terrorists who threaten the United States will not find safe haven in any
corner of the globe. While AQAP, al­Qa’ida, and their affiliates will remain persistent in their efforts to threaten
the United States, our partners, and our interests, Wahishi’s death removes from the battlefield an experienced
terrorist leader and brings us closer to degrading and ultimately defeating these groups.
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AMERICAN CIVIL LIBERTIES UNION and 
THE AMERICAN CIVIL LIBERTIES UNION 
FOUNDATION, 
 

Plaintiffs, 
 

v. 
 
U.S. DEPARTMENT OF JUSTICE, including its 
components the OFFICE OF LEGAL COUNSEL 
and OFFICE OF INFORMATION POLICY, 
DEPARTMENT OF DEFENSE, 
DEPARTMENT OF STATE, and CENTRAL 
INTELLIGENCE AGENCY,  
 

Defendants. 
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NOTICE OF CROSS-MOTION FOR PARTIAL SUMMARY JUDGMENT 
 

PLEASE TAKE NOTICE THAT, upon the Declarations of John E. Bies, Douglas R. 

Hibbard, Andrew L. Lewis, John F. Hackett, Martha M. Lutz, John Bradford Wiegmann, and 

Jennifer L. Hudson, and the accompanying memorandum of law, as well as the classified 

declarations and index filed for the Court’s ex parte and in camera review, defendants the 

Department of Justice, including its components the Office of Legal Counsel and the Office of 

Information Policy, the Department of Defense, the Department of State, and the Central 

Intelligence Agency, by their attorneys, Preet Bharara, United States Attorney for the Southern 

District of New York, and Benjamin C. Mizer, Principal Deputy Assistant Attorney General, will 

move this Court before the Honorable Colleen McMahon, United States District Judge, at the 

United States Courthouse, 500 Pearl Street, New York, New York 10007, for an order granting 
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partial summary judgment in favor of defendants with respect to items (1) and (2) of plaintiffs’ 

request under the Freedom of Information Act. 

 

Dated: New York, New York 
October 2, 2015 

 
 

BENJAMIN C. MIZER PREET BHARARA 
Principal Deputy Assistant  United States Attorney for the 
Attorney General Southern District of New York 

 
 

By:    /s/ Elizabeth J. Shapiro         By: /s/ Sarah S. Normand          
ELIZABETH J. SHAPIRO   SARAH S. NORMAND 
AMY POWELL Assistant United States Attorney 
STEPHEN ELLIOTT    86 Chambers Street, Third Floor 
U.S. Department of Justice New York, New York 10007  
Federal Programs Branch Telephone:  (212) 637-2709 
 Facsimile:  (212) 637-2730 
      Sarah.Normand@usdoj.gov 
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UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT 
SOUTHERN DISTRICT OF NEW YORK 

 
 
AMERICAN CIVIL LIBERTIES UNION and 

AMERICAN CIVIL LIBERTIES UNION 
FOUNDATION, 

 
Plaintiffs, 

 
v. 

 
DEPARTMENT OF JUSTICE, including its 

components the OFFICE OF LEGAL COUNSEL 
and the OFFICE OF INFORMATION POLICY, 
DEPARTMENT OF DEFENSE, DEPARTMENT 
OF STATE, and CENTRAL INTELLIGENCE 
AGENCY, 

 
Defendants. 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

No. 15 Civ. 1954 (CM) 
 

ECF CASE 

 
SECOND DECLARATION OF MATTHEW SPURLOCK 

 I, Matthew Spurlock, pursuant to 28 U.S.C. § 1746, hereby declare and state under 

penalty of perjury that the foregoing is true and correct to the best of my knowledge, 

information, and belief: 

 I am an attorney at the American Civil Liberties Union Foundation and co-counsel for 

Plaintiffs in this litigation. Attached hereto are true and correct copies of the following: 

Exhibit # Short Title Full Citation 

Exhibit 51 Report on Associated Forces DOD, Report on Associated Forces (July 
2014) 

Exhibit 52 Report on Process 
DOD, Report on Process for Determining 
Targets of Lethal or Capture Operations 
(Mar. 6, 2014) 

Case 1:15-cv-01954-CM   Document 53   Filed 12/01/15   Page 1 of 2

A-867
Case 17-157, Document 31, 04/21/2017, 2017127, Page150 of 239



 

2 

Exhibit # Short Title Full Citation 

Exhibit 53 January 2014 Rizzo Book John Rizzo, Company Man: Thirty Years of 
Controversy and Crisis in the CIA (2014)* 

Exhibit 54 November 2015 Panetta Statement Chris Whipple, ‘The Attacks Will Be 
Spectacular’, Politico, Nov. 12, 2015 

 
 
Date: December 1, 2015  

 
Respectfully submitted,  
 
/s/ Matthew Spurlock  
Matthew Spurlock  
American Civil Liberties Union Foundation 
125 Broad Street—18th Floor 
New York, New York 10004 
T: 212.549.2500 
F: 212.549.2654 
mspurlock@aclu.org 

   
  
 

                                                 
* Exh. 53 is additional material—the copyright page—from the source of Spurlock Decl. Exh. 35 
(January 2014 Rizzo Book), ECF No. 34-35. 
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“B in Laden Determined to Strike in U.S.” The CIA’s famous Presidential Daily Brief,
presented to George W. Bush on August 6, 2001, has always been Exhibit A in the
case that his administration shrugged off warnings of an Al Qaeda attack. But months

earlier, starting in the spring of 2001, the CIA repeatedly and urgently began to warn the White
House that an attack was coming.

By May of 2001, says Cofer Black, then chief of the CIA’s counterterrorism center, “it was very

THE FRIDAY COVER

‘The Attacks Will Be Spectacular’
An exclusive look at how the Bush administration ignored this warning from the CIA
months before 9/11, along with others that were far more detailed than previously
revealed.
By CHRIS WHIPPLE | November 12, 2015

Getty
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evident that we were going to be struck, we were gonna be struck hard and lots of Americans were
going to die.” “There were real plots being manifested,” Cofer’s former boss, George Tenet, told me
in his first interview in eight years. “The world felt like it was on the edge of eruption. In this time
period of June and July, the threat continues to rise. Terrorists were disappearing [as if in hiding,
in preparation for an attack]. Camps were closing. Threat reportings on the rise.” The crisis came
to a head on July 10. The critical meeting that took place that day was first reported by Bob
Woodward in 2006. Tenet also wrote about it in general terms in his 2007 memoir At the Center of
the Storm.

But neither he nor Black has spoken about it publicly in such detail until now—or been so emphatic
about how specific and pressing their warnings really were. Over the past eight months, in more
than a hundred hours of interviews, my partners Jules and Gedeon Naudet and I talked with Tenet
and the 11 other living former CIA directors for The Spymasters, a documentary set to air this
month on Showtime.

The drama of failed warnings began when Tenet and Black pitched a plan, in the spring of 2001,
called “the Blue Sky paper” to Bush’s new national security team. It called for a covert CIA and
military campaign to end the Al Qaeda threat—“getting into the Afghan sanctuary, launching a
paramilitary operation, creating a bridge with Uzbekistan.” “And the word back,” says Tenet, “‘was
‘we’re not quite ready to consider this. We don’t want the clock to start ticking.’” (Translation: they
did not want a paper trail to show that they’d been warned.) Black, a charismatic ex-operative who
had helped the French arrest the terrorist known as Carlos the Jackal, says the Bush team just
didn’t get the new threat: “I think they were mentally stuck back eight years [before]. They were
used to terrorists being Euro-lefties—they drink champagne by night, blow things up during the
day, how bad can this be? And it was a very difficult sell to communicate the urgency to this.”

That morning of July 10, the head of the agency’s Al Qaeda unit, Richard Blee, burst into Black’s
office. “And he says, ‘Chief, this is it. Roof's fallen in,’” recounts Black. “The information that we
had compiled was absolutely compelling. It was multiple-sourced. And it was sort of the last
straw.” Black and his deputy rushed to the director’s office to brief Tenet. All agreed an urgent
meeting at the White House was needed. Tenet picked up the white phone to Bush’s National
Security Adviser Condoleezza Rice. “I said, ‘Condi, I have to come see you,’” Tenet remembers. “It
was one of the rare times in my seven years as director where I said, ‘I have to come see you. We're
comin' right now. We have to get there.’”

Tenet vividly recalls the White House meeting with Rice and her team. (George W. Bush was on a
trip to Boston.) “Rich [Blee] started by saying, ‘There will be significant terrorist attacks against the
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United States in the coming weeks or months. The attacks will be spectacular. They may be
multiple. Al Qaeda's intention is the destruction of the United States.’" [Condi said:] ‘What do you
think we need to do?’ Black responded by slamming his fist on the table, and saying, ‘We need to go
on a wartime footing now!’”

“What happened?” I ask Cofer Black. “Yeah. What did happen?” he replies. “To me it remains
incomprehensible still. I mean, how is it that you could warn senior people so many times and
nothing actually happened? It’s kind of like The Twilight Zone.” Remarkably, in her memoir, Condi
Rice writes of the July 10 warnings: “My recollection of the meeting is not very crisp because we
were discussing the threat every day.” Having raised threat levels for U.S. personnel overseas, she
adds: “I thought we were doing what needed to be done.” (When I asked whether she had any
further response to the comments that Tenet, Black and others made to me, her chief of staff said
she stands by the account in her memoir.) Inexplicably, although Tenet brought up this meeting in
his closed-door testimony before the 9/11 Commission, it was never mentioned in the committee’s
final report.

And there was one more chilling warning to come. At the end of July, Tenet and his deputies
gathered in the director’s conference room at CIA headquarters. “We were just thinking about all of
this and trying to figure out how this attack might occur,” he recalls. “And I'll never forget this until
the day I die. Rich Blee looked at everybody and said, ‘They're coming here.’ And the silence that
followed was deafening. You could feel the oxygen come out of the room. ‘They're coming here.’”

Tenet, who is perhaps the agency’s most embattled director ever, can barely contain himself when
talking about the unheeded warnings he says he gave the White House. Twirling an unlit cigar and
fidgeting in his chair at our studio in downtown Washington, D.C., he says with resignation: “I can
only tell you what we did and what we said.” And when asked about his own responsibility for the
attacks on 9/11, he is visibly distraught. “There was never a moment in all this time when you
blamed yourself?” I ask him. He shifts uncomfortably in his chair. “Well, look, there … I still look at
the ceiling at night about a lot of things. And I'll keep them to myself forever. But we're all human
beings."

***

Only 12 men are alive today who have made the life-and-death decisions that come with
running the CIA.

Once a year, the present and former CIA directors—ranging from George H.W. Bush, 91, to the
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current boss, John Brennan, 60—meet in a conference room at CIA headquarters in Langley,
Virginia. The ostensible reason: to receive a confidential briefing on the state of the world. (Robert
Gates, who hates setting foot inside the Beltway, is a perennial no-show.) “They mostly tell us stuff
we already know, and we pretend we’re learning something,” says Tenet, the longest-serving
director (lasting seven years, under Presidents Clinton and Bush II). But the real point of their
annual pilgrimage is to renew bonds forged in the trenches of the war on terror—and to debate the
agency’s purpose in the world.

And I'll never forget this until the day I die. Rich Blee looked at

everybody and said, ‘They're coming here.’”

On the burning questions of the day, the directors are profoundly torn: over the CIA’s mission, its
brutal interrogation methods after 9/11, and the shifting “rules of engagement” in the battle against
Al Qaeda and the Islamic State. What is fair game in the fight against terrorism: Torture?
Indefinite detention? Setting up “black sites” in foreign countries for interrogation? Should the CIA
be in the business of killing people with remotely piloted drones? Was the agency really to blame
for 9/11? Or did the White House ignore its repeated warnings?

On these and other questions, the directors were surprisingly candid in the interviews they did with
me—even straying into classified territory. (They often disagree about what is actually classified;
it’s complicated, as Hillary Clinton is learning.) A controversial case in point: drone strikes. “He
can’t talk publicly about that,” protests Gen. David Petraeus when I tell him that one of his
counterparts has opened up to me about “signature strikes.” (These are lethal attacks on
unidentified targets—a kind of profiling by drone—that several directors find deeply troubling.)
Gen. Petraeus might have had good reason to be reticent; only a week before he had accepted a
plea bargain to avoid prison time—for sharing classified information with his mistress, Paula
Broadwell.

Here are some of the other secrets we learned from the surprisingly outspoken men who have run
the world’s most powerful intelligence agency.

Even CIA chiefs can’t agree about “torture”

“In the period right after 9/11, we did some things wrong,” said Barack Obama. “We tortured some
folks. We did things that were contrary to our values.” Jose Rodriguez, who oversaw the CIA’s so-

“
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called enhanced interrogation program (EIT), has a two-word reply: “That’s bullshit.” Tenet
concurs. “People are throwing the word ‘torture’ around—as if we're torturers,” he complains.
“Well, I'm not ever gonna accept the use of the word ‘torture’ for what happened here.” From sleep
deprivation to waterboarding, Tenet and his lieutenant Rodriguez insist the techniques were all
approved—by everybody.

“The attorney general of the United States told us that these techniques are legal under U.S. law,”
says Tenet, “and do not in any way compromise our adherence to international torture statutes.”
Contrary to the claim by the SSCI (Senate Select Committee on Intelligence) Majority Report,
Tenet insists: “We briefed members of Congress fully on what we were doing at all times. There
was never a hint of disapproval.” And Tenet says that George W. Bush was so hands-on, “he read
the memo, looked at the techniques, and decided he was gonna take two techniques off the table
himself.” Tenet says he does not recall which EITs the president rejected (Rodriguez believes one of
them was “mock executions.”)

Tenet and his post-9/11 successors—Porter Goss, Michael Hayden and acting director Michael
Morell (sometimes called the “wartime directors”)—say the techniques were a necessary evil,
justified by the context of the times. It was an article of faith at the CIA that the United States was
about to be struck again in a “second wave” attack. And that “high-value detainees,” beginning with
Al Qaeda leader Abu Zubaydah, knew more than they were telling. “Every day,” says Rodriguez,
“the president was asking George Tenet, ‘What is Abu Zubaydah saying about the second wave of
attacks and about all these other plots?’ Well, he was not saying anything. We had to do something
different.” Tenet says they had persuasive intelligence that indicated Osama bin Laden had met
with Pakistani nuclear scientists—and was seeking the blueprint for a bomb. There was a credible
report, he adds, that a nuke had already been planted in New York City. “People say, ‘didn’t you
think about the moral and ethical consequences of your decision?’” says Tenet. “Yeah, we did. We
thought that stopping the further loss of American life and protecting a just society was equally
important.”

Did the techniques produce intelligence that disrupted plots or saved lives? The SSCI study looked
at 20 cases and said no useful evidence was obtained. Tenet insists, “They are wrong in all 20 of the
cases. The report is dead wrong on every account, period, end of paragraph.” But Tenet’s fellow spy
chiefs are sharply—even passionately—divided about such procedures. “Our Constitution does
prohibit ‘cruel and unusual’ treatment and if it’s cruel, we shouldn’t be doing it,” says William
Webster, 91, regarded by his fellow spymasters as a voice of reason (and the only DCI who also
served as FBI director). “You cross a line at some point in your effort to get the information when
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you go that route. There have to be limitations and monitoring and they must be observed. Our
country stands for something and it loses something when we don’t.” Stansfield Turner, now 91—
who as Jimmy Carter’s director authorized the ill-fated attempt to rescue American hostages in
Tehran—agrees: “I just don’t think a country like ours should be culpable of conducting torture. I
just think it’s beneath our dignity.”

The directors who oppose torture are not just bleeding hearts. “Nobody was responsible for more
detainees than I was,” says Gen. Petraeus, who was commander of the multinational forces in Iraq.
“We visit violence on our enemies, but we should not mistreat them, even though they have done
unspeakable things to our soldiers and to civilians. That does not justify us doing it to them. You
will pay a price for what you do, and it will be vastly greater than whatever it is you got out of
taking this action.” And Director Brennan sees no circumstance in which the CIA would torture
again: “If a president tomorrow asked me to waterboard a terrorist, I would say, ‘Mr. President,
sorry—I do not believe that is in our best interest as a country.’” Hayden is even more emphatic. “If
some future president is going to decide to waterboard,” he says, “he’d better bring his own bucket
—because he’s going to have to do it himself.”
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Department of Justice, the Department of Defense, the Department of State, and the Central 
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in support of the government’s cross-motion for partial summary judgment, and in opposition to 

plaintiffs’ motion for summary judgment, in this case. 

2.  Attached hereto as Exhibit A is a true and accurate copy of an excerpt of the 

appellate brief filed by the government in New York Times Co. v. Department of Justice, Nos. 

14-4432(L), 14-4764(Con) (2d Cir.), which is cited on page 14 of plaintiffs’ consolidated 

memorandum of law in opposition to the government’s motion for summary judgment and in 

further support of plaintiffs’ motion for partial summary judgment (“ACLU Opposition Brief”).  

See ECF No. 52. 

3.  Attached hereto as Exhibit B is a true and accurate copy of a transcript of 

the interview of Secretary of State John Kerry with Miriam Chaudhry of Pakistan TV, dated 

August 1, 2013.  This transcript is available on the State Department’s website, at 

http://m.state.gov/md212627.htm (last visited Dec. 22, 2015).  See ACLU Opposition Brief at 30 

(discussing “August 2013 Kerry Statement”). 

4. Attached hereto as Exhibit C is a true and accurate copy of a transcript of 

the first 6:45 minutes of the documentary entitled “The Spymasters: CIA in the Crosshairs.”  See 

ACLU Opposition Brief at 31 (discussing “November 2015 Panetta Statement”). 

I declare under penalty of perjury that the foregoing is true and correct. 

Dated:   New York, New York    
December 22, 2015 
 
 

     /s/ Sarah S. Normand          
SARAH S. NORMAND 
Assistant United States Attorney 
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Interview With Mariam Chaudhry of Pakistan TV
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MAIN MENU » SHOW PATH

INTERVIEW WITH MARIAM CHAUDHRY OF PAKISTAN TV

Interview
John Kerry 
Secretary of State
Islamabad, Pakistan
August 1, 2013

QUESTION: Mr. Secretary, a pleasure and honor to have you in Pakistan.

SECRETARY KERRY: Thank you. Glad to be here.

QUESTION: Let me start by asking you: How have your interactions been today in Pakistan. Were they
fruitful?

SECRETARY KERRY: Very positive, very constructive conversations. Very grateful for a very generous
welcome.

QUESTION: Well, like I said, it’s always a pleasure to host somebody like you and Pakistanis see a friendly
face in you, and we’re hoping that a lot of mutual misunderstandings would be resolved by your presence here.

Mr. Secretary, let’s start with the end-game in Afghanistan. I think that’s posing the largest questions in South
Asia. A lot of people are asking, while the Taliban have been engaged, or an effort has been made to engage
them in a conversation, things seem to not work out in a repetitive cycle. Could you first share an update vis-a-
vis what’s exactly happening and what’s the game plan vis-a-vis the U.S. withdrawal in 2014?

SECRETARY KERRY: Well, first of all, it’s not a withdrawal. We are drawing down the number of troops, but
we’re not withdrawing. And the President of the United States, at the appropriate time, will make a decision
about how many troops he plans to leave in order to continue to do counterterrorism and training, advising, and
equipping the Afghan military.

So the Afghan military is now already taken the lead on security operations in Afghanistan. We’re already in a
support role, and that’s the way it should be. The Afghans need to be taking on the responsibility of security for
their country. But there’s a very strong, serious effort that’s been made to try to build up their army, give it the
capacity to defend their country.

Our belief is that with the election next year, Afghans will have the ability to choose their future, find new
leadership, and hopefully, together with Pakistan and our help and the help of many other countries,
Afghanistan can share a democratic future.

QUESTION: What is the progress vis-a-vis the talks with the Taliban? And why is there a general sentiment
prevailing that talks with the Taliban always fizzle out and there’s been no success even with the recent
overtures towards them?
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SECRETARY KERRY: Well, you’ll have to ask the Taliban. We’re ready to negotiate.

QUESTION: Surely there must be an assessment from the U.S. side whether there’s actually going to be --

SECRETARY KERRY: Well, the assessment is that the Taliban broke their word in Doha. They had accepted
a certain set of requirements and they went back on their word. Our plans do not hinge on having the Taliban
talks. Is it better to have the talks? Yes, of course. Because it’s always better to have a political settlement that
people agree on. But we’re proceeding whether the talks take place or not to continue to help the Afghans be
able to defend themselves against any threat.

QUESTION: Well, Pakistanis are always glad to play the role of the facilitator, but in this scenario Pakistanis
are wondering what exactly does the U.S. demand from the Pakistani side? Or what exact deliverables are you
hoping that Pakistan will be able to offer up as a facilitator in this situation?

SECRETARY KERRY: Well, let me be clear: A friend does not demand of a friend. And we want a good
relationship with Pakistan, so we’re not demanding. What we’re doing is we’re talking together about the
mutual interests that we have.

Pakistan is facing its own insurgency. Pakistan has Tehrik-e Taliban, it has Haqqani Network, al-Qaida, other
threats on the ground, Lashkar-e Tayyiba, there are others. And so Pakistan as an interest in making sure that
its own security is strong. We want to work with Pakistan as closely as we can, respecting its interests,
respecting the country, and find a way to cooperate to deal with the mutual threats we face. They are threats
that come from the western part of the country mostly and people crossing over into Afghanistan and engaging
in violent activities. We think we can find a good means of cooperation, and we look forward to working with
Pakistan on many other issues.

I want to make it very clear: President Obama does not want the relationship of the United States and Pakistan
defined by counterterrorism, by Afghanistan, by al-Qaida, et cetera. We want a relationship with the people of
Afghanistan[1], which is why today I went to an energy plant to talk about how we can help provide more
energy. We’ve already helped provide an additional 1,200 megawatts of power for 16 million Pakistanis. There
are many other things we would like people in Pakistan to know that we’re doing.

QUESTION: We will definitely ask you a question about that. But just to speak a little bit more on this terrorism
issue, Pakistan has been facing a grievous scenario vis-a-vis internal security. There has been a lot of tension
between the United States and Pakistan, especially vis-a-vis the subject of drones. People in Pakistan feel that
not only has it been causing human casualty in Pakistan, but also it has been kind of a blatant disregard of the
territorial sovereignty of Pakistan. Can we expect a cessation in these drone strikes, which are causing and
mobilizing a lot of sentiment against the Pakistani Government and the United States?

SECRETARY KERRY: Well, President Obama is very, very sensitive and very concerned about any kind of
reaction to any kind of counterterrorism activities, whatever they may be. And the President has spoken very
directly, very transparently, and very accountably to our – to all of our efforts. We want to work with the
Government of Pakistan, not against it.

This is a program in many parts of the world where the President has really narrowed, whatever it might be
doing, to live up to the highest standards with respect to any kind of counterterrorism activities. And I believe
that we’re on a good track. I think the program will end as we have eliminated most of the threat and continue
to eliminate it.

QUESTION: And there is no timeline that you envisage for ending this strike?

SECRETARY KERRY: Well, I do. And I think the President has a very real timeline and we hope it’s going to
be very, very soon.
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QUESTION: And you don’t care to share that at the moment?

SECRETARY KERRY: I think it depends really on a number of factors, and we’re working with your
government with respect to that.

QUESTION: All right. There’s been a great public demand in Pakistan, which people feel would improve
relations between the United States and Pakistan, and that has been the release of Dr. Aafia Siddiqui. People
feel that if some kind of pardon is envisaged or maybe a prisoner swap or something along those lines is
thought out of, it would help regain goodwill and a good sentiment in Pakistani people vis-a-vis U.S. Can we
hope for such a scenario?

SECRETARY KERRY: Well, we could hope. You can always hope. Hope springs eternal, right? But I don’t
know that there’s anything specific at this moment that is doable because of the nature of the offenses and the
legal process. But I’m going to investigate it when I get back to the United States, but I don’t want to make any
promises that I can’t keep.

QUESTION: But you’re going to try?

SECRETARY KERRY: Well, I’m going to look into what – there were very serious charges. She fired a gun, I
mean, shot at American personnel, and is currently under an 87-year sentence in a Texas prison, and I’d have
to see what the circumstances are. I’m not – that’s not normally my department, so I’ll take a look at it.

QUESTION: Secretary, you’ve been credited with a lot of success in the Middle East, and some people are
wondering whether you’d be possibly able to play a role in breaking the ice vis-a-vis the detente that Pakistan
and India have over Kashmir. And do you think that you could possibly play a role in the future, given that that
has also been a source for jihadist propaganda in this region?

SECRETARY KERRY: Kashmir has been too long a source of conflict, obviously. I know that president – that
Prime Minister Sharif was very focused on this when he was prime minister previously. We talked about it
today. I would certainly hope that over time that tension could be worked out. I know there have been three
wars with India, mostly around Kashmir. It would be wonderful if something were able to be done. But I think we
need to sort of approach it carefully and slowly, and I want to talk to a lot of different people before I make any
commitments at this point in time.

QUESTION: One last --

PARTICIPANT: Thank you very much. It was really great question. I’m so glad I don’t have to answer them.

QUESTION: Okay. Can I just take one last comment, because there was a lot of disturbance in the room?

PARTICIPANT: No, I’m sorry --

SECRETARY KERRY: Make good on that. One last comment, come on.

QUESTION: Okay. Secretary Kerry, basically people are attaching a lot of hopes with your visit vis-a-vis a
reset between the relationship of the U.S. and Pakistan in hopes that it could be more comprehensive. Is there
a new game plan that you’ve envisaged vis-a-vis making this a broader based relationship, something that is
not purely overshadowed by the conflict in Afghanistan?

SECRETARY KERRY: Absolutely, for certain. And I think today we began that. I think the Prime Minister was
very focused on trying to broaden this. I’m focused on it. President Obama is very committed to having this not
be a transactional relationship but a strategic, larger relationship. I know he looks forward to visiting with the
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Prime Minister in the United States sometime in September or October, and we really look forward to seeing
him here.

QUESTION: Mr. Secretary, best of luck in your endeavors here.

SECRETARY KERRY: Thank you. Thank you so much.

[1] Should be ”the people of Pakistan”
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1 
 

The Spymasters: CIA in the Crosshairs 
 

  
LEON PANETTA:  That memory of going to Arlington to bury one of my officers from the CIA, 
Elizabeth Hanson, is one that will be with me for a long time.  They put their lives on the line to 
serve this country, and that's what Elizabeth Hanson did. 
 
I knew that the CIA officers were there because I ordered them to be there.  I had to bear some 
of the responsibility for having taken this risk. 
 
NEWS BROADCASTER:  Initial reports indicate the bomber was being recruited by the CIA as a 
source. 
 
NEWS BROADCASTER:  This was the worst single loss of life for the CIA since 1983 when a truck 
bomber blew up the American Embassy. 
 
LEON PANETTA:  This person obviously turned out to be a double agent and had blown himself 
up as well as our officers.  It's hard to find the words when suddenly you're told that seven of 
your officers have been killed and others seriously wounded.  What went through my mind was 
the families out there who within a few hours were going to be informed that someone who 
they loved had been killed. 
 
We spent a lot of time trying to figure out who were the ones who pushed that button.  We 
have a lot of sources that we rely on, spies, and so we immediately asked the question:  Who 
the hell was involved in this tragic suicide bombing?  We were able to get pretty good 
intelligence. 
 
And so we knew who the individual was.  This was a bad guy, and he was clearly a leader, been 
involved not only in going after our officers, but in killing members of our own forces in 
Afghanistan.  And it was on the day of Elizabeth Hanson's funeral that I got a call from our 
Operations Center.  They thought they had pretty good information about where this individual 
was. 
 
Unfortunately, this individual had family and wife and children around him, and so one of the 
tough questions was, you know, what should we do?  If there were women and children in the 
shot, we normally would not take the shot. 
 
I remember calling the White House, and they were aware how tough a decision this is and 
basically said, "Look, you're going to have to make a judgment here," so I knew at that point 
that it was a decision that I was going to have to make.  I mean, I'm the one who's going to have 
to say Hail Marys here. 
 
I was raised a Catholic.  I believe in my faith, and I rely a great deal on my faith, you know, 
throughout my life.  I've always carried a rosary and always said a hell of a lot of Hail Marys in 
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tough situations, and suddenly, you know, I found that I was making decisions on life and death 
as Director.  And those decisions are never easy, and frankly, they shouldn't be easy. 
 
I felt it was really important in that job to do what I could to protect this country.  So I passed 
on the word.  I said, "If you can isolate the individual and take the shot without impacting on 
women or children, then do it, but if you have no alternative and it looks like he might get 
away, then take the shot." 
 
And it did involve collateral damage, but we got him.  These are tough decisions, and you're 
damn right, they are tough decisions.  But, you know, this is a war.  This is a war.  9/11, these 
people didn't hesitate a moment to kill 3,000 people and take down the Trade Centers and hit 
the Pentagon.  These are individuals that would not hesitate to attack us again. 
 
In the end, what you do I think has to be based on what your guts tell you is right, and that's 
really what it's all about.  You have to be true to yourself as to what you think is right and hope 
that ultimately God agrees with you. 
 

• • • 
 

CERTIFICATE OF TRANSCRIPTIONIST 
 
 
  I, Jennie Malloy, do hereby certify that the above-referenced excerpt of a video 
recording was furnished to me by Stephen M.  Elliott, Trial Attorney, U.S. Department of Justice, 
and thereafter reduced to typewriting by me or under my direction; that I am not related to any 
of the parties in this matter; and that this transcript is a true and accurate record of said video 
recording to the best of my ability. 
 
  I hereby certify a pledge of confidence, and I will not discuss or release the 
content or any information contained herein. 
 
 
Jennie Malloy 
Malloy Transcription Service 
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        April 13, 2016 
 
BY ECF 
          
Hon. Colleen McMahon 
United States District Judge 
Daniel P. Moynihan United States Courthouse 
500 Pearl Street, Room 1640 
New York, New York 10067 
 
Re: ACLU v. DOJ, No. 15 Civ. 1954 (CM) 
 
Dear Judge McMahon:  
 
We write respectfully on behalf of the American Civil Liberties Union and 
American Civil Liberties Union Foundation to bring to the Court’s attention 
remarks made by President Obama at the University of Chicago Law School on 
April 8, 2016. A transcript of the president’s remarks and the question-and-
answer session that followed is attached. 
 
Following his official remarks, in response to a question about the legality of the 
targeted-killing program, President Obama discussed the Central Intelligence 
Agency’s operational role in the program. See, e.g., Tr. at 26 (“[T]his drone 
program initially came through the intelligence side under classified programs, as 
opposed to the military.”); id. at 25 (explaining that “decision-making” in the 
early years of the drone program “was embedded in decisions that are made all 
the time about . . . an intelligence team trying to take out a terrorist”); id. at 28 (“I 
think the way that [the drone program] got built up through our intelligence and 
what’s called our Title 50 programs meant that it . . . wasn’t subject to the same 
amount of democratic debate as when we are conducting what are called Title 10 
Department of Defense conventional operations.”); see generally id.at 24–28. 
 
President Obama’s acknowledgment that the CIA conducts drone strikes is the 
latest in a series of official acknowledgments concerning the intelligence agency’s 
operational role in targeted killings. See Mem. in Supp. of Pls.’ Mot. for Summ. J. 
at 15 (S.D.N.Y. Aug. 28, 2015), ECF No. 33; Waiver Table at 20–25, 26–27, 28–
29, 32–33 (S.D.N.Y. Aug 28, 2015), ECF No. 33-1. 
 

Respectfully submitted,  
 
/s/ Jameel Jaffer______ 
Jameel Jaffer  
American Civil Liberties Union Foundation 
125 Broad Street, 18th Floor 
New York, New York 10004 

 

JAMEEL JAFFER 

DEPUTY LEGAL DIRECTOR 
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T: 212.549.2500 
F: 212.549.2654 

     jjaffer@aclu.org 
 
     Counsel for Plaintiffs 
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Ųňįvěřșįțỳ ǿf Čħįčǻģǿ Ŀǻẅ Șčħǿǿŀ 
Čħįčǻģǿ, İŀŀįňǿįș

2:43 P.M. ČĐȚ

PŘǾFĚȘȘǾŘ ȘȚŘǺŲȘȘ:  Ẅěŀŀ, Mř. Přěșįđěňț, įț'ș ǻ țřěměňđǿųș ħǿňǿř fǿř țħě
Ųňįvěřșįțỳ ǻňđ țħě ŀǻẅ șčħǿǿŀ.  Ẅěŀčǿmě bǻčķ.

ȚĦĚ PŘĚȘİĐĚŇȚ:  İț įș ģǿǿđ țǿ bě bǻčķ.  (Ǻppŀǻųșě.)  İț įș ģǿǿđ țǿ bě bǻčķ. 
Ǻș șǿmě ǿf ỳǿų mǻỳ ķňǿẅ, İ ǻčțųǻŀŀỳ șpěňț 10 ỳěǻřș țěǻčħįňģ čŀǻșșěș ǻňđ
șěmįňǻřș ħěřě, ǻňđ įț ẅǻș řěǻŀŀỳ fųň. (Ŀǻųģħțěř.)  Ǻňđ İ mįșșěđ įț.  Ǻňđ İ
țħǿųģħț, ẅěŀŀ, ẅħỳ đǿň'ț İ čǿmě bǻčķ ǻňđ șǻỳ ħį țǿ ěvěřỳbǿđỳ.

Șǿ țħěřě ǻřě ǻ čǿųpŀě ǿf pěǿpŀě İ ẅǻňț țǿ ǻčķňǿẅŀěđģě běčǻųșě țħěỳ
ħěŀpěđ țǿ fǻčįŀįțǻțě țħįș.  Fįřșț ǿf ǻŀŀ, İ ẅǻňț țǿ țħǻňķ Đěǻň Mįŀěș fǿř čŀǿșįňģ
đǿẅň țħě șčħǿǿŀ, İ ģųěșș, fǿř ǻ đǻỳ. (Ǻppŀǻųșě.)  Țħǻňķ ỳǿų.  Șpěčįǻŀ
ǻčķňǿẅŀěđģěměňțș fǿř Ģěǿff Șțǿňě ǻňđ Đǿųģ Bǻįřđ, ẅħǿ ẅěřě ģřěǻț
fřįěňđș ẅħěň İ ẅǻș țěǻčħįňģ ħěřě ǻňđ ẅěřě pǻřțŀỳ řěșpǿňșįbŀě fǿř ħǻvįňģ
mě ǻčțųǻŀŀỳ țǻķě ǿň șǿmě řěșpǿňșįbįŀįțỳ șțřǻįģħț ǿųț ǿf ŀǻẅ șčħǿǿŀ țǿ mǿŀđ
țħě mįňđș ǿf șțųđěňțș ẅħǿ ẅěřě jųșț bǻřěŀỳ ỳǿųňģěř țħǻň mě.  İ ķňǿẅ țħǻț
běčǻųșě șǿmě ǿf țħěm İ șǻẅ ǻňđ țħěỳ ǻŀŀ ħǻvě ģřǻỳ ħǻįř ňǿẅ -- (ŀǻųģħțěř)
-- ẅħįčħ įș ǻ ŀįțțŀě țřǿųbŀįňģ.

Ẅě'vě ģǿț ǻ țěřřįfįč čǿňģřěșșįǿňǻŀ đěŀěģǻțįǿň ẅħǿ’ș ħěřě, ǻňđ İ jųșț ẅǻňț țǿ
ǻčķňǿẅŀěđģě țħěm.  Fįřșț ǿf ǻŀŀ, ỳǿųř ǿųțșțǻňđįňģ șěňįǿř Șěňǻțǿř fǿř țħě
ģřěǻț șțǻțě ǿf İŀŀįňǿįș, Đįčķ Đųřbįň įș ħěřě.  (Ǻppŀǻųșě.)  Ǻňđ ẅě'vě ģǿț
Čǿňģřěșșmǻň Bǿbbỳ Řųșħ.  (Ǻppŀǻųșě.)  Čǿňģřěșșmǻň Đǻňňỳ Đǻvįș. 
(Ǻppŀǻųșě.)  Čǿňģřěșșmǻň Bįŀŀ Fǿșțěř.  (Ǻppŀǻųșě.)  Ǻňđ Čǿňģřěșșmǻň
Mįķě Qųįģŀěỳ.  (Ǻppŀǻųșě.)  Ẅě ǻŀșǿ ħǻvě Ŀįșǻ Mǻđįģǻň, țħě Ǻțțǿřňěỳ
Ģěňěřǻŀ ǿf İŀŀįňǿįș.  (Ǻppŀǻųșě.)  Ǻňđ mỳ fǿřměř șěǻțmǻțě įň Șpřįňģfįěŀđ
ẅħěň ẅě ẅěřě bǿțħ įň țħě Șțǻțě Șěňǻțě țǿģěțħěř, ǻňđ įș đǿįňģ ǻ țěřřįfįč
jǿb. 

Ǻňđ İ ẅǻňț țǿ țħǻňķ Đǻvįđ, ẅħǿ İ ẅǻș jǿķįňģ běfǿřě ẅě čǻmě ǿųț, įș ǿňě ǿf
țħě čǿųňțřỳ’ș fǿřěmǿșț čǿňșțįțųțįǿňǻŀ ěxpěřțș -- ǻňđ ǻ ňįčě ģųỳ. 
(Ǻppŀǻųșě.)  Ǻňđ ỳǿų ģųỳș ǻřě ŀųčķỳ țǿ ħǻvě ħįm. İň fǻčț, ẅħěň İ ẅǻș
țěǻčħįňģ ħěřě İ țħįňķ İ șțǿŀě ħįș Čǿň Ŀǻẅ čŀǻșș fǿř ǻ ẅħįŀě, ǻňđ ħě
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ģřǻčįǿųșŀỳ ģǻvě įț ųp běčǻųșě đěșpįțě țħě přįvįŀěģě ǿf ģřǻđįňģ 60 ǿř 70
bŀųěbǿǿķș -- (ŀǻųģħțěř) -- ħě ǻppǻřěňțŀỳ țħǿųģħț įț ẅǻș įmpǿřțǻňț fǿř mě
țǿ ħǻvě țħǻț přįvįŀěģě ǻș ẅěŀŀ. 

Țħě ŀǻșț țħįňģ İ'ŀŀ șǻỳ bỳ ẅǻỳ ǿf įňțřǿđųčțįǿň -- İ ħǻđ ǻ čħǻňčě țǿ țǻŀķ țǿ
șǿmě ỳǿųňģ pěǿpŀě ǿvěř įň țħě ǿvěřfŀǿẅ řǿǿm, mǿșțŀỳ șțųđěňțș, ǻňđ İ jųșț
șǻįđ țǿ țħěm țħǻț ħǻvįňģ ňǿẅ běěň įň pǿŀįțįčș fǿř qųįțě șǿmě țįmě, șěěįňģ
ẅħǻț ŀǻẅỳěřș ǻřě čǻpǻbŀě ǿf đǿįňģ ěvěřỳ șįňģŀě đǻỳ, ẅǿřķįňģ ǿň ǻ ẅħǿŀě
řǻňģě ǿf įșșųěș țħǻț ǻřě ǿf ħųģě įmpǿřțǻňčě țǿ ǿųř đěmǿčřǻčỳ ǻňđ țǿ ǿųř
șǿčįěțỳ, İ ħǿpě țħǻț ǻŀŀ țħě șțųđěňțș ħěřě ǻřě ěxčįțěđ ǻbǿųț țħě įňčřěđįbŀě
čħǻňģěș ǻňđ ģǿǿđ țħǻț ỳǿų ǻřě ģǿįňģ țǿ bě ǻbŀě țǿ đǿ ẅħěň ỳǿų ģěț ǿųț ǿf
ħěřě. 

İ ķňǿẅ țħǻț șǿměțįměș țħě ňěẅș fěěđș čỳňįčįșm ǻňđ đěmǿčřǻčỳ ǻț țħįș
mǿměňț șěěmș pǻřțįčųŀǻřŀỳ fřųșțřǻțįňģ.  Bųț ěǻčħ ǻňđ ěvěřỳ đǻỳ, İ șěě
ŀǻẅỳěřș ňǿț țħǻț mųčħ ǿŀđěř țħǻň ỳǿų ẅħǿ ǻřě ħěŀpįňģ ỳǿųňģ pěǿpŀě ģěț
ǻň ěđųčǻțįǿň, ǻřě mǻķįňģ șųřě țħǻț čǿňșųměřș ǻřě přǿțěčțěđ, ǻřě ħěŀpįňģ
țǿ ķěěp Ǻměřįčǻ șǻfě, ǻřě ěňșųřįňģ țħǻț ǿųř ħěǻŀțħ čǻřě șỳșțěm ẅǿřķș fǿř
ěvěřỳbǿđỳ, ǻřě ħěŀpįňģ țǿ přěșěřvě țħě pŀǻňěț ǻňđ fįģħț ǻģǻįňșț čŀįmǻțě
čħǻňģě. İț įș řěmǻřķǻbŀě ẅħǻț ỳǿų čǻň đǿ ẅįțħ ỳǿųř țǻŀěňțș.  Ǻňđ įț đǿěșň’ț
ǻŀẅǻỳș ģěț ǻ ŀǿț ǿf pųbŀįčįțỳ, bųț ỳǿų čǻň mǻķě ǻ řěǻŀŀỳ měǻňįňģfųŀ
đįffěřěňčě.

Șǿ ǿňě ǿf țħě řěǻșǿňș İ ẅǻňțěđ țǿ čǿmě bǻčķ įș țǿ řěčřųįț ỳǿų.  (Ŀǻųģħțěř.) 
Țǿ șțǻỳ ěňģǻģěđ, ģěț įňvǿŀvěđ, mǻķě ǻ đįffěřěňčě.  İț đǿěșň’ț měǻň ỳǿų
ħǻvě țǿ řųň fǿř ǿffįčě.  İț đǿěșň'ț měǻň ỳǿų ħǻvě țǿ řųň fǿř ǿffįčě.  İț
đǿěșň'ț měǻň ỳǿų ěvěň ħǻvě țǿ ẅǿřķ fǿř ģǿvěřňměňț.  Țħěřě ǻřě ǻ ŀǿț ǿf
ẅǻỳș ǿf șěřvįňģ.  Bųț İ đǿ ħǿpě țħǻț ǿňě ǿf țħě țħįňģș țħǻț ỳǿų ẅįŀŀ țǻķě
ǻẅǻỳ fřǿm ǿųř đįșčųșșįǿň țǿđǻỳ ǻňđ ỳǿųř ěxțřǻǿřđįňǻřỳ ěđųčǻțįǿň ħěřě ǻț
țħě Ųňįvěřșįțỳ ǿf Čħįčǻģǿ įș țħě įňčřěđįbŀě ħįģħ țħǻț ỳǿų čǻň ģěț fřǿm
șěřvįňģ țħįș čǿųňțřỳ.

Șǿ ẅįțħ țħǻț, ẅħǻț đǿ ỳǿų ẅǻňț țǿ țǻŀķ ǻbǿųț, Đǻvįđ?  (Ŀǻųģħțěř.)

PŘǾFĚȘȘǾŘ ȘȚŘǺŲȘȘ:  Ẅěŀŀ, ŀěț mě șțǻřț bǻčķ ẅħěň ỳǿų ẅěřě ħěřě ǻș ǻ
țěǻčħěř.  İ ķňǿẅ ỳǿų țǻųģħț čǿňșțįțųțįǿňǻŀ ŀǻẅ, șǿ ỳǿų ẅěřě țħįňķįňģ ǻbǿųț
țħě Șųpřěmě Čǿųřț ǻňđ țħįňķįňģ ǻbǿųț țħě jųșțįčěș ǻňđ ẅħǻț ẅǿųŀđ mǻķě
șǿměǿňě -- ǿř ẅħǻț mǻķě șǿměǿňě ǻ ģřěǻț jųșțįčě ǿř ǻ șųččěșșfųŀ jųșțįčě. 
Bųț ỳǿų'řě įň ǻ đįffěřěňț șpǿț ňǿẅ.  (Ŀǻųģħțěř.)  Ħǻș ỳǿųř țħįňķįňģ
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čħǻňģěđ?

ȚĦĚ PŘĚȘİĐĚŇȚ:  Șųřpřįșįňģŀỳ, ňǿț ǻș mųčħ ǻș ỳǿų ẅǿųŀđ ħǻvě ěxpěčțěđ. 
Ǿbvįǿųșŀỳ, ẅě'řě ħǻvįňģ ǻ șųbșțǻňțįǻŀ ǻřģųměňț įň Ẅǻșħįňģțǿň řįģħț ňǿẅ
ǻbǿųț ňǿț jųșț ǻ pǻřțįčųŀǻř jųđģě, bųț ǻŀșǿ ǻbǿųț țħě přǿčěșș ǿf ǻppǿįňțįňģ
jųđģěș țǿ țħě fěđěřǻŀ čǿųřțș ǻňđ ǻppǿįňțįňģ ňǿmįňěěș țǿ țħě Șųpřěmě
Čǿųřț.

Ǻňđ țǿ ģěț țħįș ǿųț ǿf țħě ẅǻỳ, Měřřįčķ Ģǻřŀǻňđ įș ǻň ěxțřǻǿřđįňǻřỳ jųřįșț
ẅħǿ įș įňđįșpųțǻbŀỳ qųǻŀįfįěđ țǿ șěřvě ǿň țħě ħįģħěșț čǿųřț įň țħě ŀǻňđ. 
Ǻňđ ňǿbǿđỳ řěǻŀŀỳ ǻřģųěș ǿțħěřẅįșě.  İ jųșț ẅǻňț țǿ bě čŀěǻř ħěřě.  İf țħě
qųěșțįǿň įș qųǻŀįfįčǻțįǿňș ǻňđ ěxčěŀŀěňčě, įț įș ųňįfǿřmŀỳ vįěẅěđ bỳ ňǿț jųșț
Đěmǿčřǻțș bųț ǻŀșǿ Řěpųbŀįčǻňș, țħǿșě ẅħǿ ħǻvě șěřvěđ -- ŀǻẅỳěřș,
jųđģěș, ŀěģǻŀ șčħǿŀǻřș, měmběřș ǿf țħě čųřřěňț Șųpřěmě Čǿųřț -- țħǻț ħě įș
ǻș ģǿǿđ ǿf ǻ jųđģě ǻș ẅě ħǻvě įň țħįș čǿųňțřỳ řįģħț ňǿẅ.  Țħǻț ħě’ș fǻįř, ħě’ș
șmǻřț, ħě’ș ǿbjěčțįvě.  Ħě’ș ǻ čǿňșěňșųș bųįŀđěř.  Ħě șħǿẅș jųđįčįǻŀ
řěșțřǻįňț.  Ħě’ș ǻppřěčįǻțįvě ǿf țħě ųňįqųě řǿŀě ǿf țħě Čǿųřț, bųț ǻŀșǿ
řěșpěčțfųŀ ǿf țħě řǿŀě ǿf țħě ǿțħěř břǻňčħěș ǿf ģǿvěřňměňț.

Șǿ ňǿ ǿňě ħǻș pŀǻųșįbŀỳ mǻđě ǻň ǻřģųměňț țħǻț țħįș įș ňǿț țħě ķįňđ ǿf
pěřșǿň ẅě’đ ẅǻňț ǿň țħě Șųpřěmě Čǿųřț.  Țħě qųěșțįǿň țħěň běčǿměș,
ẅħỳ įș įț șǿ ħǻřđ fǿř țħě ģųỳ jųșț țǿ ģěț ǻ ħěǻřįňģ ǻňđ ǻ vǿțě?

Ǻňđ țħįș șpěǻķș țǿ ẅħǻț’ș ħǻppěňěđ, ģěňěřǻŀŀỳ, ẅħěň įț čǿměș țǿ țħě
přǿčěșș ǿf ǻppǿįňțįňģ fěđěřǻŀ jųđģěș.  İț ųșěđ țǿ bě țħǻț pěǿpŀě řěǻđ țħě
Čǿňșțįțųțįǿň ǻňđ Ǻřțįčŀě İİ pǿẅěřș fǻįřŀỳ șțřǻįģħțfǿřẅǻřđŀỳ.  İț șǻỳș țħě
Přěșįđěňț șħǻŀŀ mǻķě țħěșě ňǿmįňǻțįǿňș ẅįțħ țħě ǻđvįčě ǻňđ čǿňșěňț ǿf
țħě Șěňǻțě.  Ǻňđ ųňŀěșș țħěřě ẅǻș șǿmě șǿřț ǿf řěǻŀ přǿbŀěm ẅįțħ țħǻț
jųđģě’ș čħǻřǻčțěř ǿř qųǻŀįfįčǻțįǿňș, įț ẅǻș fǻįřŀỳ řǿųțįňě ǻț ěvěřỳ ŀěvěŀ --
bǿțħ ǻț țħě đįșțřįčț čǿųřț ŀěvěŀ, țħě ǻppěŀŀǻțě čǿųřț ŀěvěŀ, ǻňđ țħě Șųpřěmě
Čǿųřț -- țħǻț țħě pěřșǿň ẅǿųŀđ bě čǿňfįřměđ įň șħǿřț ǿřđěř.  Țħěřě ẅǿųŀđ
bě ǻ ħěǻřįňģ.  Pěǿpŀě ẅǿųŀđ ǻșķ țħě pǿțěňțįǻŀ jųđģě ǻ qųěșțįǿň ǿř țẅǿ ǿř
fįvě ǿř 10.  Țħěřě ẅǿųŀđ bě qųěșțįǿňňǻįřěș.  Ǻňđ ǿňčě țħěỳ ħǻđ
șǻțįșfǻčțǿřįŀỳ pěřfǿřměđ țħǻț přǿčěșș, țħěň țħě Șěňǻțě ẅǿųŀđ vǿțě.

Ǻňđ įț ẅǻș přěșųměđ -- įț ẅǻș ųňđěřșțǿǿđ țħǻț jųșț ǻș țħě Přěșįđěňț ħǻđ ǻ
čǿňșțįțųțįǿňǻŀ đųțỳ țǿ mǻķě țħě ǻppǿįňțměňț țħǻț țħě Șěňǻțě ħǻđ ǻ
čǿňșțįțųțįǿňǻŀ đųțỳ țǿ ǻț ŀěǻșț mǻķě ǻ đěțěřmįňǻțįǿň ǻș țǿ ẅħěțħěř țħįș
pěřșǿň șħǿųŀđ bě ǿň țħě běňčħ.
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Ẅħǻț ħǻș běěň ųňįqųě įň țħįș přǿčěșș ħǻș běěň țħě ģřǿẅįňģ ǻțțįțųđě
įňșįđě ǿf țħě Șěňǻțě țħǻț ěvěřỳ ňǿmįňǻțįǿň, ňǿ mǻțțěř ħǿẅ ẅěŀŀ-qųǻŀįfįěđ ǻ
jųđģě, įș ǻ șųbjěčț ǿf čǿňțěňțįǿň.  İň șǿmě čǻșěș, įț’ș șįmpŀỳ běčǻųșě ǿňě
pǻřțỳ ǿř țħě ǿțħěř ẅǻňțș țǿ ģųm ųp țħě ẅǿřķș ǻňđ șǿ țħěỳ ẅįŀŀ đřǻģ ǿųț
čǿňfįřmǻțįǿň ŀǿňģěř ǻňđ ŀǿňģěř.  Ěvěň įf, ųŀțįmǻțěŀỳ, țħě jųđģě ģěțș
čǿňfįřměđ bỳ vǿįčě vǿțě, bỳ ųňǻňįmǿųș čǿňșěňț įň țħě Șěňǻțě, țħěỳ’ŀŀ đřǻģ
įț ǿųț fǿř țẅǿ ǿř țħřěě mǿňțħș, běčǻųșě įf ỳǿų'řě bǿģģěđ đǿẅň ẅįțħ jųđģěș,
țħěň įț měǻňș ǿțħěř bųșįňěșș čǻň'ț bě đǿňě.  Șǿ șǿměțįměș įț’ș jųșț
șțřǻțěģįč.

İň ǿțħěř čǻșěș, țħě vįěẅ ħǻș běěň țħǻț đěșpįțě ǻŀŀ țħě țǻŀķ ǻbǿųț pěǿpŀě
ẅǻňțįňģ ǿbjěčțįvě jųđģěș ẅħǿ ǻřě jųșț čǻŀŀįňģ bǻŀŀș ǻňđ șțřįķěș ǻňđ đǿň'ț
břįňģ ǻňỳ vįěẅș țǿ běǻř, țħǻț țħěřě ǻřě ŀįțmųș țěșțș țħǻț ǻřě ǻppŀįěđ țħǻț
přěvěňț ǻ jųđģě fřǿm ģěțțįňģ ǻ fǻįř vǿțě, ěvěň țħǿųģħ țħěỳ'řě qųǻŀįfįěđ,
běčǻųșě țħěỳ đǿň'ț měěț țħě pǻřțįčųŀǻř vįěẅș ǿf țħě pǻřțỳ țħǻț'ș ǿbjěčțįňģ.

Ǻňđ țħįș přǿbŀěm ģǿț bǻđ ěňǿųģħ įň přěvįǿųș ǻđmįňįșțřǻțįǿňș, bųț čǻmě țǿ
ǻ ħěǻđ ųňđěř mỳ ǻđmįňįșțřǻțįǿň, įň ẅħįčħ ẅě ħǻđ ǻ șįțųǻțįǿň ẅħěřě ẅě
ẅěřě șțǻřțįňģ țǿ șěě șįx mǿňțħș pǻșș ǿř ňįňě mǿňțħș pǻșș běfǿřě ǻ jųđģě
čǿųŀđ ģěț ǻ ħěǻřįňģ.  Țħįș ẅǻș ẅħěň Đěmǿčřǻțș ẅěřě įň čħǻřģě ǿf țħě
Șěňǻțě, bųț běčǻųșě ǿf țħě pǻřțįčųŀǻř řųŀěș ǿf țħě fįŀįbųșțěř țħǻț přěvįǿųșŀỳ
ħǻđ běěň ųșěđ fǿř jųșț ǻ fěẅ țħįňģș bųț ňǿẅ ẅěřě řǿųțįňěŀỳ đěpŀǿỳěđ ǿň
ěvěřỳțħįňģ, ẅě jųșț čǿųŀđň’ț ģěț jųđģěș țħřǿųģħ.  Ǻňđ ỳǿų șțǻřțěđ șěěįňģ ǻ
čřįșįș įň vǻčǻňčįěș ǻčřǿșș đįșțřįčțș ǻňđ čįřčųįțș ěvěřỳẅħěřě.

Fįňǻŀŀỳ, țħě Đěmǿčřǻțș șǻįđ, ẅě'řě ěňđįňģ țħě ǻbįŀįțỳ fǿř Șěňǻțě měmběřș
țǿ fįŀįbųșțěř ẅħěň įț čǿměș țǿ đįșțřįčț čǿųřț ǻňđ ǻppěŀŀǻțě čǿųřț jųșțįčěș,
bųț ẅě'řě ģǿįňģ țǿ přěșěřvě įț fǿř țħě Șųpřěmě Čǿųřț.

Ẅě ňǿẅ ħǻvě ǻ șįțųǻțįǿň, ǻfțěř Jųđģě Șčǻŀįǻ’ș pǻșșįňģ, įň ẅħįčħ įț’ș ňǿț jųșț
țħǻț țħě Řěpųbŀįčǻň mǻjǿřįțỳ įň țħě Șěňǻțě įňțěňđ țǿ vǿțě ǻģǻįňșț ǻ ħįģħŀỳ
qųǻŀįfįěđ jųđģě, ẅě ňǿẅ ħǻvě ǻ șįțųǻțįǿň ẅħěřě țħěỳ'řě șǻỳįňģ, ẅě șįmpŀỳ
ẅįŀŀ ňǿț čǿňșįđěř țħě ňǿmįňǻțįǿň įțșěŀf.  Ẅě'řě jųșț ģǿįňģ țǿ șħųț đǿẅň țħě
přǿčěșș.  Ǻňđ ǻș ǻ čǿňșěqųěňčě, ẅě ħǻvě ǻ 4-4 țįě įň țħě Șųpřěmě Čǿųřț
ǻňđ pǿțěňțįǻŀŀỳ ǻț ŀěǻșț țẅǿ Șųpřěmě Čǿųřț țěřmș įň ẅħįčħ țħįș vǻčǻňčỳ
ẅįŀŀ řěmǻįň.

Țħǻț įș ųňpřěčěđěňțěđ.  Ňǿț ǿňŀỳ ǻřě țħěỳ ňǿț ẅįŀŀįňģ țǿ ħǿŀđ ǻ vǿțě ǻț țħįș
pǿįňț, țħěỳ ħǻvě řěfųșěđ țǿ ħǿŀđ ħěǻřįňģș ǿň Jųđģě Ģǻřŀǻňđ.  Ǻňđ įň șǿmě
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čǻșěș, Mįțčħ MčČǿňňěŀŀ ǻňđ ǿțħěřș ħǻvě șǻįđ, ẅě ẅįŀŀ ňǿț ěvěň șħǿẅ țħě
čǿųřțěșỳ ǿf měěțįňģ ẅįțħ țħě jųđģě țǿ fįňđ ǿųț ẅħǻț ħě țħįňķș.  Ǻňđ İ țħįňķ
ẅħǻț’ș įmpǿřțǻňț fǿř ǻŀŀ ǿf ỳǿų țǿ ųňđěřșțǻňđ -- běčǻųșě ỳǿų'řě ģǿįňģ țǿ
bě ňǿț jųșț ŀǻẅỳěřș ǻppěǻřįňģ įň čǿųřț, pǿțěňțįǻŀŀỳ, bųț čųșțǿđįǻňș ǿf ǿųř
ŀěģǻŀ șỳșțěm ǻňđ ǿųř đěmǿčřǻčỳ -- įș įf ỳǿų șțǻřț ģěțțįňģ įňțǿ ǻ șįțųǻțįǿň įň
ẅħįčħ țħě přǿčěșș ǿf ǻppǿįňțįňģ jųđģěș įș șǿ břǿķěň, șǿ pǻřțįșǻň țħǻț ǻň
ěmįňěňțŀỳ qųǻŀįfįěđ jųřįșț čǻňňǿț ěvěň ģěț ǻ ħěǻřįňģ, țħěň ẅě ǻřě ģǿįňģ țǿ
șěě țħě ķįňđș ǿf șħǻřp, pǻřțįșǻň pǿŀǻřįżǻțįǿň țħǻț ħǻș čǿmě țǿ čħǻřǻčțěřįżě
ǿųř ěŀěčțǿřǻŀ pǿŀįțįčș șěěpįňģ ěňțįřěŀỳ įňțǿ țħě jųđįčįǻŀ șỳșțěm.  Ǻňđ țħě
čǿųřțș ẅįŀŀ bě jųșț ǻň ěxțěňșįǿň ǿf ǿųř ŀěģįșŀǻțųřěș ǻňđ ǿųř ěŀěčțįǿňș ǻňđ
ǿųř pǿŀįțįčș.

Ǻňđ țħǻț ěřǿđěș țħě įňșțįțųțįǿňǻŀ įňțěģřįțỳ ǿf țħě jųđįčįǻŀ břǻňčħ.  Ǻț țħǻț
pǿįňț, pěǿpŀě ŀǿșě čǿňfįđěňčě įň țħě ǻbįŀįțỳ ǿf țħě čǿųřțș țǿ fǻįřŀỳ
ǻđjųđįčǻțě čǻșěș ǻňđ čǿňțřǿvěřșįěș.  Ǻňđ ǿųř đěmǿčřǻčỳ čǻň'ț ǻffǿřđ țħǻț. 
Ǿųř șỳșțěm įș đěșįģňěđ țǿ mǻķě șųřě țħǻț țħįș břǻňčħ ẅǿřķș.  Ǻňđ įț
řěqųįřěș ǻ břǿǻđ čǿňșěňșųș, ěvěň įf ẅě đǿň'ț ǻģřěě ǿň ǻňỳ pǻřțįčųŀǻř
řųŀįňģ, țħǻț țħě čǿųřț’ș řųŀįňģș įțșěŀf ǻřě ŀěģįțįmǻțě ǻňđ čǿňșįșțěňț ẅįțħ ǿųř
đěmǿčřǻțįč đěșįģň.  Ǻňđ țħǻț'ș ẅħỳ țħįș įș șǿ įmpǿřțǻňț.  İț’ș ňǿț jųșț ǻ
mǻțțěř ǿf ẅħǿ įș ǿččųpỳįňģ țħǻț ňįňțħ șěǻț įň țħě Șųpřěmě Čǿųřț. İț ħǻș țǿ
đǿ ẅįțħ ħǿẅ ẅě, ǻș ǻ đěmǿčřǻčỳ, ǿpěřǻțě, ǻňđ țħě pǻřțįčųŀǻř ǻųțħǿřįțỳ
țħǻț ǻ čǿųřț ħǻș țǿ břįňģ įň ǿřđěř fǿř ǿųř đěmǿčřǻčỳ țǿ ẅǿřķ.

Țħǻț ẅǻș ǻ řěǻŀŀỳ ŀǿňģ ǻňșẅěř.  Ǿțħěřș ẅįŀŀ ňǿț bě ǻș ŀǿňģ.  (Ŀǻųģħțěř.)

PŘǾFĚȘȘǾŘ ȘȚŘǺŲȘȘ:  Ẅěŀŀ, ŀěț mě ǻșķ ỳǿų ǻbǿųț țħǻț, Mř. Přěșįđěňț. 
Ħǿẅ đįđ ẅě ģěț țǿ țħįș pǿįňț?  Ỳǿų ħěǻř șǿměțįměș țħǻț țħě přǿbŀěm įș țħě
Șųpřěmě Čǿųřț ħǻș įňjěčțěđ įțșěŀf įňțǿ pǿŀįțįčǻŀ įșșųěș, ǻňđ șǿ, ǿf čǿųřșě, įț
ģěțș ěňměșħěđ įň pǿŀįțįčș.  Bųț țħě Șųpřěmě Čǿųřț ħǻș běěň čǿňțřǿvěřșįǻŀ
ǻŀmǿșț fřǿm țħě běģįňňįňģ -- fřǿm țħě Jěffěřșǿňįǻňș’ ǻțțǻčķ ǿň țħě
Mǻřșħǻŀŀ Čǿųřț, ǻŀŀ țħě ẅǻỳ țħřǿųģħ țħě “İmpěǻčħ Ěǻřŀ Ẅǻřřěň” bįŀŀbǿǻřđș
įň pǻřțș ǿf țħě čǿųňțřỳ įň țħě ‘50ș ǻňđ ‘60ș.  Ǻňđ ẅě ħǻvěň’ț ħǻđ țħįș
běfǿřě.  Șǿ įș țħěřě -- đǿ ỳǿų ħǻvě ǻň ěxpŀǻňǻțįǿň fǿř ẅħǻț įț įș țħǻț
břǿųģħț ųș țǿ țħįș pǿșįțįǿň?

ȚĦĚ PŘĚȘİĐĚŇȚ:  İ țħįňķ țħěřě ǻřě ǻ vǻřįěțỳ ǿf ěxpŀǻňǻțįǿňș. Fįřșț ǿf ǻŀŀ, įț’ș
įmpǿřțǻňț țǿ ųňđěřșčǿřě ẅħǻț ỳǿų jųșț șǻįđ.  Ǻňđ ǻŀŀ ǿf ỳǿų ŀǻẅ șțųđěňțș,
ěvěň įf ỳǿų'řě ňǿț čřįțįčǻŀ, ŀěģǻŀ țħěǿřįșțș, ǿř ẅħǻț ħǻvě ỳǿų, İ țħįňķ jųșț
fřǿm řěǻđįňģ čǻșěș, ỳǿų ẅįŀŀ ǻčķňǿẅŀěđģě țħǻț țħěřě’ș pǿŀįțįčș įň ŀěģǻŀ
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řųŀįňģș.  Ẅħěň ẅě mǻķě đěčįșįǿňș ǻbǿųț řįģħț, ẅřǿňģ, ẅħǻț ǻřě țħě řųŀěș
ģǿvěřňįňģ ǿųř șǿčįěțỳ, ěț čěțěřǻ, țħǻț țħǻț'ș ǻň ěxțěňșįǿň ǿf ǿųř břǿǻđěř
pǿŀįțįčǻŀ ǻňđ đěmǿčřǻțįč čǿňvěřșǻțįǿň.  Ňǿbǿđỳ įș đěňỳįňģ țħǻț.

Ǻňđ ỳǿų'řě řįģħț.  Țħěřě ħǻvě běěň čǿňțřǿvěřșįěș įň țħě pǻșț ǻbǿųț ħǿẅ ẅě
șħǿųŀđ đěčįđě țħě bǻŀǻňčě běțẅěěň ŀįběřțỳ ǻňđ șěčųřįțỳ, ǻbǿųț ħǿẅ đǿ ẅě
țřěǻț mįňǿřįțỳ ģřǿųpș țǿ ǻșșųřě țħǻț țħěỳ ǻřě přǿțěčțěđ fřǿm mǻjǿřįțỳ
řųŀě.  Ħǿẅ đǿ ẅě mǻķě șųřě țħǻț țħě pǿŀįțįčǻŀ přǿčěșș įțșěŀf ħǻș įňțěģřįțỳ
ǻňđ țħǻț ǿųř vǿțěș čǿųňț?  Țħǿșě ǻřě ǻŀŀ įșșųě ẅħěřě pǻșșįǿňș ǻřě řěǻŀ ǻňđ
pěǿpŀě ħǻvě ǿpįňįǿňș.  Ǻňđ țħěřě’ș ňǿțħįňģ ẅřǿňģ ẅįțħ țħǻț.

Bųț İ țħįňķ ẅħǻț čħǻňģěđ ẅǻș ẅħěň țħě Čǿňģřěșș įțșěŀf, ǻňđ țħě Șěňǻțě įň
pǻřțįčųŀǻř, běģǻň țǿ čħǻňģě.  İ țħįňķ įň șǿmě ẅǻỳș țħě jųđįčįǻŀ přǿčěșș įș ǻ
čǻșųǻŀțỳ ǿf șǿmě břǿǻđěř țřěňđș įň ǿųř đěmǿčřǻčỳ.  Fįřșț ǿf ǻŀŀ, ǿųř pǿŀįțįčș
ħǻvě běčǿmě mųčħ mǿřě pǿŀǻřįżěđ.  Țħěřě’ș běěň șǿměțħįňģ čǻŀŀěđ țħě
“ģřěǻț șǿřțįňģ” běčǻųșě ǿf ģěřřỳmǻňđěřįňģ, běčǻųșě ǿf ħǿẅ ǿųř měđįǻ
ẅǿřķș ẅħěřě fǿŀķș ěįțħěř ẅǻțčħ Fǿx Ňěẅș ǿř țħěỳ řěǻđ Țħě Ňěẅ Ỳǿřķ
Țįměș, bųț řǻřěŀỳ đǿ bǿțħ.  Pǿșįțįǿňș ģěț ħǻřđěňěđ ǻňđ řěįňfǿřčěđ. 
Pǻřțįșǻňș čǻřřỳ mǿřě ẅěįģħț ẅįțħįň ěǻčħ pǻřțỳ.  Țħě ňǿțįǿň ǿf ǻ ŀįběřǻŀ
Řěpųbŀįčǻň ǿř ǻ čǿňșěřvǻțįvě Đěmǿčřǻț -- țħǿșě țħįňģș břǿķě đǿẅň.  Ǻňđ
șǿ pǿŀįțįčș įțșěŀf ģǿț mǿřě pǿŀǻřįżěđ.

Țħǻț, țħěň, fěđ įňțǿ ǻ čųŀțųřě įň Čǿňģřěșș įň ẅħįčħ bǻșįč čǿmįțỳ ǻňđ ħǻbįțș
ǿf čǿųřțěșỳ ǻňđ přǿčěșș ǻňđ įňșțįțųțįǿňǻŀ řěșpěčț fǿř pěǿpŀě țħǻț ỳǿų čǻň
ǻģřěě ẅįțħ, țħǿșě țħįňģș běģǻň țǿ břěǻķ đǿẅň.  Țħě fįŀįbųșțěř, ǻș İ șǻįđ,
șțǻřțěđ běčǿmįňģ jųșț șțǻňđǻřđ přǻčțįčě.  Țħěřě’ș ňǿțħįňģ įň țħě
Čǿňșțįțųțįǿň țħǻț șǻỳș ěvěřỳ įțěm țħǻț čǿměș běfǿřě țħě Șěňǻțě įș
șųppǿșěđ țǿ ģěț ǻ șųpěř mǻjǿřįțỳ.  İț ųșěđ țǿ bě țħǻț țħě fįŀįbųșțěř -- įț
đǿěșň’ț ħǻvě ǻ věřỳ đįșțįňģųįșħěđ ħįșțǿřỳ -- ẅǻș ųșěđ přįňčįpǻŀŀỳ fǿř
bŀǿčķįňģ čįvįŀ řįģħțș ǻňđ ǻňțį-ŀỳňčħįňģ ǻňđ vǿțįňģ řįģħțș ŀěģįșŀǻțįǿň.  Țħǻț
ẅǻș bǻđ ěňǿųģħ.  İț țħěň șųđđěňŀỳ běčǻmě țħě ňǿřm fǿř ěvěřỳțħįňģ ǻș
mįňǿřįțỳ pǻřțįěș șțǻřțěđ țǿ đěčįđě țħǻț țħěỳ ẅǻňțěđ țǿ bŀǿčķ ẅħǻț țħě
mǻjǿřįțỳ ǿf șěňǻțǿřș ẅěřě įň fǻvǿř ǿf.  Ǻňđ șǿ ǻŀŀ ǿf țħįș İ țħįňķ čǿňțřįbųțěđ
țǿ ǻ břěǻķđǿẅň ǿf țħě přǿčěșș.

Ňǿẅ, įň fǻįřňěșș, Đěmǿčřǻțș ǻřě ňǿț bŀǻměŀěșș ǿň țħįș.  İf ỳǿų țǻŀķ țǿ
Řěpųbŀįčǻňș, țħěỳ’ŀŀ ǻŀșǿ ǿfțěň pǿįňț țǿ țħě Bǿřķ ňǿmįňǻțįǿň ǻș ẅħěřě țħįș
ǻŀŀ șțǻřțěđ.  Ǻňđ țħěřě ħǻvě běěň țįměș ẅħěřě Đěmǿčřǻțș ųșěđ țħě
fįŀįbųșțěř țǿ bŀǿčķ ẅħǻț Řěpųbŀįčǻň Přěșįđěňțș ǿř čǿňșěřvǻțįvě ŀěģǻŀ
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țħěǿřįșțș vįěẅěđ ǻș ěmįňěňțŀỳ qųǻŀįfįěđ jųřįșțș.  İ ẅįŀŀ șǻỳ țħǻț țħěřě ħǻș
ňǿț běěň ǻ čįřčųmșțǻňčě įň ẅħįčħ ǻ Řěpųbŀįčǻň Přěșįđěňț’ș ǻppǿįňțěě đįđ
ňǿț ģěț ǻ ħěǻřįňģ, đįđ ňǿț ģěț ǻ vǿțě, ǻňđ ǻș ǻ ģěňěřǻŀ přǿpǿșįțįǿň, țħěỳ
ħǻvě běěň čǿňfįřměđ ěvěň ẅħěřě țħěřě ħǻvě běěň șțřǿňģ ǿbjěčțįǿňș. 

Șǿ ẅħǻț ỳǿų ħǻvě ħěřě įș, İ țħįňķ, ǻ čįřčųmșțǻňčě įň ẅħįčħ țħǿșě įň țħě
Șěňǻțě ħǻvě đěčįđěđ țħǻț pŀǻčǻțįňģ ǿųř bǻșě įș mǿřě įmpǿřțǻňț țħǻň
ųpħǿŀđįňģ țħěįř čǿňșțįțųțįǿňǻŀ ǻňđ įňșțįțųțįǿňǻŀ řǿŀěș įň ǿųř đěmǿčřǻčỳ įň ǻ
ẅǻỳ țħǻț įș đǻňģěřǿųș.  Ǻňđ țħěřě ǻřě ǿțħěř ěxǻmpŀěș ǿf įț, bųț țħįș jųđįčįǻŀ
ňǿmįňǻțįǿň přǿčěșș İ țħįňķ ħǻș běčǿmě ǻň ěxțřěmě ěxǻmpŀě.

PŘǾFĚȘȘǾŘ ȘȚŘǺŲȘȘ:  Ŀěț mě țǻķě ỳǿų bǻčķ ǻ șțěp țǿ ħǿẅ -- țǿ ỳǿųř
țħįňķįňģ ǻbǿųț ẅħěň ỳǿų'řě mǻķįňģ ǻň ǻppǿįňțměňț.  Ǻňđ İ'm ģǿįňģ țǿ țřỳ
țǿ pųț įț įň ǻň ħįșțǿřįčǻŀ čǿňțěxț ǻ ŀįțțŀě bįț.  Ỳǿų ħǻvě Přěșįđěňțș ẅħǿ řěǻŀŀỳ
șěț ǿųț țǿ řěșħǻpě țħě Čǿųřț.  Ǻňđ Fřǻňķŀįň Řǿǿșěvěŀț mǻỳ bě țħě čŀěǻřěșț
ěxǻmpŀě.  Ħě ẅǻș đěțěřmįňěđ țǿ fįňđ jųșțįčěș ẅħǿ ẅǿųŀđ ųpħǿŀđ Ňěẅ Đěǻŀ
ŀěģįșŀǻțįǿň.  Řįčħǻřđ Ňįxǿň ẅǻňțěđ jųșțįčěș ẅħǿ ẅǿųŀđ ŀįmįț țħě řįģħțș ǿf
pěǿpŀě ǻččųșěđ ǿf čřįměș, ǻňđ țħǻț'ș șǿřț ǿf ǿňě mǿđěŀ.

Ǻňđ țħěň ỳǿų ħǻvě Přěșįđěňțș ẅħǿ đįđ ňǿț ħǻvě ǻňỳ pǻřțįčųŀǻř ǻģěňđǻ. 
Ǻňđ İ țħįňķ Přěșįđěňț Ěįșěňħǿẅěř įș ǻň ěxǻmpŀě.  Ħě ǻppǿįňțěđ țħřěě ǿf
țħě ģřěǻț jųșțįčěș ǿf țħě 20țħ čěňțųřỳ -- Čħįěf Jųșțįčě Ẅǻřřěň, Jųșțįčě
Ħǻřŀǻň, Jųșțįčě Břěňňǻň.  Bųț ħįș ǻppǿįňțěěș čǻmě fřǿm đįffěřěňț
bǻčķģřǿųňđș, ňǿ įđěňțįfįǻbŀě țěňđěňčỳ įň țħě ẅǻỳ țħěỳ țħǿųģħț ǻbǿųț țħě
Čǿňșțįțųțįǿň. 

Șǿ đǿ ỳǿų șěě ỳǿųřșěŀf ǻș ǿňě ǿf țħǿșě mǿđěŀș, ǿř șǿměțħįňģ đįffěřěňț
fřǿm bǿțħ?

ȚĦĚ PŘĚȘİĐĚŇȚ:  Țħěřě’ș ňǿ đǿųbț țħǻț įň mǻķįňģ mỳ ǻppǿįňțměňțș, țħě
vǻŀųěș ǿf țħě jųșțįčě mǻțțěř țǿ mě.  Ǻňđ ẅħǻț İ měǻň bỳ țħǻț įș ňǿț ħǿẅ
țħěỳ’đ řųŀě ǿň ǻ pǻřțįčųŀǻř įșșųě.  İň fǻčț, ẅě'řě věřỳ čǻřěfųŀ ẅħěň İ
įňțěřvįěẅ čǻňđįđǻțěș ňǿț țǿ ǻșķ țħěm ǻbǿųț ǻ pǻřțįčųŀǻř čǻșě ǿř
čǿňțřǿvěřșỳ țħǻț mįģħț mǻķě įț șěěm ǻș įf İ ẅǻňț ǻ pǻřțįčųŀǻř ǿųțčǿmě. 
Bųț ẅħǻț İ'vě běěň čǿňșįșțěňțŀỳ ŀǿǿķįňģ fǿř -- ǻňđ țħįș įș ẅħǻț İ șǻẅ įň
Jųșțįčě Șǿțǿmǻỳǿř, ẅħǻț İ șǻẅ įň Jųșțįčě Ķǻģǻň -- įș pěǿpŀě ẅħǿ, ňųmběř
ǿňě, ħǻvě įňțěŀŀěčțųǻŀ įňțěģřįțỳ.  Ǻňđ ẅħǻț țħǻț měǻňș įș, įș țħǻț țħěỳ ŀǿǿķ
ǻț țħě fǻčțș ǻňđ țħě ŀǻẅ, ǻňđ ěvěň įf įț'ș ųňčǿmfǿřțǻbŀě țǿ țħěm, țħěỳ đǿň'ț
ŀįķě țħě ǿųțčǿmě, țħěỳ fǿŀŀǿẅ țħě ŀǻẅ, ǻňđ țħěỳ řěčǿģňįżě țħǻț țħǻț'ș țħěįř
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jǿb.

Ňųmběř țẅǿ, țħǻț țħěỳ břįňģ ǻ ħųmǻňįțỳ țǿ țħě jǿb.  Ǻňđ ẅħǻț İ měǻň bỳ
țħǻț įș țħǻț, pǻřțįčųŀǻřŀỳ ǿň țħě Șųpřěmě Čǿųřț, ňįňě ǿųț ǿf 10 čǻșěș -- ẅěŀŀ,
čěřțǻįňŀỳ įň țħě fěđěřǻŀ čǿųřțș -- ňįňě ǿųț ǿf 10 čǻșěș ẅě čǻň přǿbǻbŀỳ
ǻřřįvě ǻț ǻň ǿųțčǿmě jųșț bỳ ǻppŀỳįňģ bǻșįč țěňěțș țǿ čǿňșțįțųțįǿňǻŀ
įňțěřpřěțǻțįǿň.  Țħěřě’ș ňǿț ģǿįňģ țǿ bě ǻ ŀǿț ǿf čǿňțřǿvěřșỳ.  Țħě čǻșěș țħǻț
řěǻŀŀỳ mǻțțěř ǻřě țħě ǿňěș ẅħěřě țħěřě’ș ǻmbįģųįțỳ, ẅħěřě țħěřě’ș ǻ ŀǻčķ ǿf
čŀǻřįțỳ, ẅħěřě įț řěqųįřěș čǿňșțįțųțįǿňǻŀ přįňčįpŀěș běįňģ ǻppŀįěđ įň ǻ ẅǻỳ
țħǻț įș țřųě țǿ přěčěđěňț, įș țřųě țǿ bǻșįč ŀěģǻŀ țěňěțș, bųț ǻŀșǿ țħǻț
ųňđěřșțǻňđș țħě ųňįqųě řǿŀě ǿf țħě Čǿųřț įň mǻķįňģ șųřě țħǻț pěǿpŀě ẅħǿ
ǻřě ŀǿčķěđ ǿųț ǿf țħě pǿŀįțįčǻŀ přǿčěșș, fǿř ěxǻmpŀě, ǻřě ňǿț pěřmǻňěňțŀỳ
ŀǿčķěđ ǿųț, țħǻț țħěỳ ħǻvě șǿmě řěčǿųřșě; țħǻț ẅě ħǻvě jųșțįčěș ẅħǿ
ųňđěřșțǻňđ ħǿẅ țħě ẅǿřŀđ ẅǿřķș șǿ țħǻț țħěỳ ǻřě ňǿț ěňțįřěŀỳ bŀįňđ țǿ țħě
ħįșțǿřỳ ǿf řǻčįǻŀ đįșčřįmįňǻțįǿň ǿř ģěňđěř đįșčřįmįňǻțįǿň, ǿř ħǿẅ mǿňěỳ
ǿpěřǻțěș įň ǿųř ẅǿřŀđ. 

Ňǿț běčǻųșě țħǻț ňěčěșșǻřįŀỳ ŀěǻđș țħěm țǿ řųŀě ǿň ǻ pǻřțįčųŀǻř įșșųě, bųț
běčǻųșě įț měǻňș țħǻț ẅħěň țħěỳ’řě ŀǿǿķįňģ ǻț ǻ țǿųģħ čǻșě įň ẅħįčħ
șțǻțųțě ǿř țħě Čǿňșțįțųțįǿň đǿěș ňǿț přǿvįđě ǻň įmměđįǻțě, řěǻđỳ ǻňșẅěř,
țħǻț țħěỳ čǻň ǻppŀỳ jųđģměňț, ģřǿųňđěđ įň ħǿẅ ẅě ǻčțųǻŀŀỳ ŀįvě ǻňđ țħě
įđěǻŀș ǻňđ přįňčįpŀěș țħǻț ħǻvě mǻđě țħįș șųčħ ǻň ěxțřǻǿřđįňǻřỳ čǿųňțřỳ.  İ
ẅǻňț țħěm țǿ ħǻvě ŀįvěđ ǻ ŀįțțŀě ǻňđ bě ǻbŀě țǿ șěě țħě ẅįđě șpěčțřųm ǿf
pěǿpŀě țħǻț țħěỳ’řě ģǿįňģ țǿ bě ẅįěŀđįňģ țħįș ěňǿřmǿųș pǿẅěř ǿvěř.

Ǻňđ șǿ, ǻ ŀǿț ǿf țįměș ẅħěň İ țǻŀķ țǿ țħě čǻňđįđǻțěș fǿř țħě jųđįčįǻřỳ, İ
șpěňđ țįmě ǻșķįňģ ǻbǿųț țħěįř fǻmįŀįěș ǻňđ țħěm ģřǿẅįňģ ųp, ǻňđ ẅħǻț
ẅěřě fǿřmǻțįvě ěxpěřįěňčěș įň țħěįř mįňđș.  Ǻňđ įň șǿmě ẅǻỳș, țħǻț
řěvěǻŀș mǿřě țħǻň ǻňỳțħįňģ. 

Ǻňđ pǻřț ǿf țħě řěǻșǿň țħǻț İ țħįňķ Měřřįčķ Ģǻřŀǻňđ ẅǿųŀđ bě șųčħ ǻň
ěxțřǻǿřđįňǻřỳ jųđģě įș ňǿț jųșț běčǻųșě ħě’ș ǻŀřěǻđỳ běěň ǻň ěxțřǻǿřđįňǻřỳ
jųđģě, bųț İ țħįňķ ǻbǿųț ħįș ŀįfě șțǿřỳ.  Ǻňđ İ měňțįǿňěđ țħįș įň țħě
įňțřǿđųčțįǿň -- ẅħěň ħě ẅǻș ǻ ħįģħ șčħǿǿŀ ķįđ, ǻș čŀǻșș vǻŀěđįčțǿřįǻň, ħě’ș
ģǿț ǻ șțųđěňț șpěǻķįňģ ǻħěǻđ ǿf ħįm ẅħǿ ŀǻmbǻșțș țħě Vįěțňǻm Ẅǻř, ǻňđ
pǻřěňțș ǻřě țřỳįňģ țǿ ųňpŀųģ țħě ģųỳ’ș mįč, ǻňđ Měřřįčķ čǿměș įň ǻňđ --
ňǿț běčǻųșě ħě ňěčěșșǻřįŀỳ ǻģřěěș ẅįțħ țħě șțųđěňț, bųț, įmpřǿmpțų,
přǿvįđěș ǻ vįģǿřǿųș đěfěňșě ǿf fřěě șpěěčħ.  Ǻș ǻ 17- ǿř 18-ỳěǻř-ǿŀđ ķįđ --
țħǻț țěŀŀș mě șǿměțħįňģ ǻbǿųț ħįm.  İț ģįvěș mě čǿňfįđěňčě țħǻț țħįș įș
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șǿměbǿđỳ ẅħǿ’ș țħǿųģħț ǻbǿųț ẅħǻț ǿųř čǿřě vǻŀųěș ǻňđ ěțħįčș ǻřě ǻș ǻ
șǿčįěțỳ. 

Ẅħěň ỳǿų ħěǻř ǻbǿųț țħě ẅǿřķ ħě đįđ įň țħě Ǿķŀǻħǿmǻ Čįțỳ bǿmbįňģ, ǻňđ
ħě’ș přěșįđįňģ ǿvěř țħě įňvěșțįģǻțįǿň ǻț țħě Jųșțįčě Đěpǻřțměňț, ǻňđ țħě
fǻčț țħǻț ħě ẅǻș měțįčųŀǿųș įň ħǿẅ ħě čǿňđųčțěđ țħǻț įňvěșțįģǻțįǿň, ǻňđ
đįđň’ț čųț čǿřňěřș -- ěvěň țħǿųģħ, įň țħě ẅǻķě ǿf țħǿșě ķįňđș ǿf țěřřǿřįșț
ǻțțǻčķș, ǿfțěňțįměș įț'ș čǿňvěňįěňț, běčǻųșě pěǿpŀě ǻřěň'ț ģǿįňģ țǿ čǻŀŀ
ỳǿų ǿň įț, țǿ čųț čǿřňěřș -- ǻňđ ǻț țħě șǻmě țįmě, ħǿẅ ħě ķěpț țħě přǿģřǻm
mǿųřňįňģ țħě đěčěǻșěđ fřǿm țħě měmǿřįǻŀ běčǻųșě ħě ķňěẅ țħǻț ěǻčħ
ǿňě ǿf țħǿșě pěǿpŀě ẅħǿ ħǻđ běěň ķįŀŀěđ, ǻňđ ěǻčħ ǿňě ǿf țħǿșě fǻmįŀįěș
ħǻđ běěň ǻffěčțěđ įň șųčħ přǿfǿųňđ ẅǻỳș -- țħǻț țěŀŀș mě șǿměțħįňģ ǻbǿųț
ẅħǿ ħě įș.

Ǻňđ țħǻț, ǻș mųčħ ǻș ǻňỳțħįňģ, İ țħįňķ įș ģǿįňģ țǿ ģįvě mě čǿňfįđěňčě țħǻț
țħǻț'ș țħě ķįňđ ǿf pěřșǿň ẅħěřě, įf İ'm běfǿřě ǻ jųđģě, İ ẅǻňț țǿ mǻķě șųřě
țħǻț İ'vě ģǿț șǿměbǿđỳ ẅħǿ’ș ẅįșě ǻňđ ẅħǿ čǻřěș ǻbǿųț pěǿpŀě ǻňđ įș ňǿț
ǻřbįțřǻřỳ, ǻňđ čǻň přǿvįđě čǿňfįđěňčě țǿ țħě jųșțįčě șỳșțěm.  Ǻňđ İ ǻŀșǿ
țħįňķ pǻřț ǿf țħě řěǻșǿň İ țħǿųģħț Měřřįčķ ẅǻș įđěǻŀ ňǿẅ įș přěčįșěŀỳ
běčǻųșě ǿf ǻŀŀ țħě pǿŀǻřįżǻțįǿň ẅě ẅěřě țǻŀķįňģ ǻbǿųț ěǻřŀįěř.  Ẅħǻț ǻ ģǿǿđ
mǿměňț fǿř ųș țǿ ħǻvě șǿměbǿđỳ ẅħǿ įș řěșpěčțěđ bỳ bǿțħ șįđěș, ǻňđ
ẅħǿ Čħįěf Jųșțįčě Řǿběřțș șěřvěđ ẅįțħ ǿň țħě Ǻppěŀŀǻțě Čǿųřț ǻňđ
běfřįěňđěđ, ǻňđ čǿňșįșțěňțŀỳ șǻįđ -- đěșpįțě běįňģ ǿň țħě ǿppǿșįțě ěňđș ǿf
ǻ bųňčħ ǿf đěčįșįǿňș -- șǻįđ țħįș įș șǿměbǿđỳ ẅħǿ, įf ħě șǻỳș ỳǿų'řě ẅřǿňģ,
ỳǿų’vě ģǿț țǿ țħįňķ ŀǿňģ ǻňđ ħǻřđ ǻbǿųț įț. 

Ħě ěmbǿđįěș ǻňđ mǿđěŀș ẅħǻț įț įș țħǻț ẅě ẅǻňț țǿ șěě įň ǿųř jųřįș
přųđěňčě.

PŘǾFĚȘȘǾŘ ȘȚŘǺŲȘȘ:  Ŀěț mě șǿřț ǿf pįčķ ųp ǿň țħǻț.  İ měǻň, ǻș ỳǿų
ķňǿẅ, șǿmě pěǿpŀě ǿň țħě ŀěfț ẅěřě đįșǻppǿįňțěđ ẅįțħ ỳǿųř čħǿįčě ǿf
Čħįěf Jųđģě Ģǻřŀǻňđ.  Țħěỳ țħǿųģħț ỳǿų șħǿųŀđ ħǻvě ǻppǿįňțěđ șǿměǿňě
ẅħǿ ẅǿųŀđ bě mǿřě ǻģģřěșșįvě įň mǿvįňģ țħě Čǿųřț įň ǻ čěřțǻįň đįřěčțįǿň. 
Ǻňđ İ jųșț -- İ ģųěșș ẅħǻț İ ẅǻňț țǿ șǻỳ įș, țħǿșě ǿf ųș ẅħǿ ķňěẅ ỳǿų “bǻčķ
țħěň” čǿųŀđ ħǻvě șǻįđ ỳǿų șħǿųŀđň’ț bě șųřpřįșěđ, běčǻųșě įf İ řěměmběř
čǿřřěčțŀỳ -- ǻňđ čǿřřěčț mě įf İ đǿň'ț -- ẅħěň ỳǿų ẅěřě țěǻčħįňģ
čǿňșțįțųțįǿňǻŀ ŀǻẅ, țħěřě ǻřě pěǿpŀě įň țħǻț ŀįňě ǿf ẅǿřķ ẅħǿ ħǿŀđ ųp țħě
Ẅǻřřěň Čǿųřț ǻș țħě mǿđěŀ ǻňđ șǻỳ țħě Čǿųřț’ș jǿb įș țǿ bě řěǻŀŀỳ ǿň țħě
fřǿňț ŀįňěș ǿf ǻțțǻčķįňģ șǿčįěțỳ’ș přǿbŀěmș. Ǻňđ įf İ řěměmběř čǿřřěčțŀỳ,
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ỳǿų ẅěřě șķěpțįčǻŀ ǿf țħǻț ẅħěň ỳǿų ẅěřě ǻ ŀǻẅ přǿfěșșǿř.  Șǿ ǻm İ řįģħț įň
řěměmběřįňģ țħǻț, ǻňđ ħǻș țħě șķěpțįčįșm čǻřřįěđ ǿvěř?

ȚĦĚ PŘĚȘİĐĚŇȚ:  Ňǿ, ňǿ, İ țħįňķ ỳǿų'řě řįģħț ǻbǿųț țħįș.  İț'ș ǻň ǻđǻģě įň
čǿň ŀǻẅ, ǻňđ ỳǿų'řě fǻmįŀįǻř ẅįțħ țħįș -- přǿbǻbŀỳ țħě șțųđěňțș ǻřě țǿǿ --
țħǻț țħě čǿųřțș ǻřě ǻ țěřřįfįč șħįěŀđ, bųț țħěỳ’řě ňǿț ǻŀẅǻỳș ǻ věřỳ ěffěčțįvě
șẅǿřđ.  Ǻňđ ẅħǻț İ měǻň bỳ țħǻț įș, įș țħǻț țħěřě ħǻvě běěň mǿměňțș įň
ħįșțǿřỳ -- Břǿẅň v. Bǿǻřđ ǿf Ěđųčǻțįǿň běįňģ țħě běșț ěxǻmpŀě, ǻňđ ǿň țħě
ǿțħěř ěňđ ǿf țħě șpěčțřųm, ǻ đěčįșįǿň ŀįķě Đřěđ Șčǿțț, ẅħįčħ ẅǻș
ǻňțįțħěțįčǻŀ țǿ ẅħǻț ẅě ẅǻňț țǿ șěě ǻ čǿųřț đǿ -- țħěřě ǻřě čěřțǻįň
mǿměňțș ẅħěřě, ŀįķě įň Břǿẅň, țħǻț đěmǿčřǻčỳ ħǻș břǿķěň đǿẅň įň ǻ
fųňđǻměňțǻŀ ẅǻỳ.  Țħě mǻjǿřįțỳ ħǻș șħųț đǿẅň ǻččěșș fǿř țħě pěțįțįǿňș fǿř
řěđřěșș fřǿm ǻ mįňǿřįțỳ ģřǿųp.  Țħěřě ǻřě țįměș ẅħěřě ǻň įňđįvįđųǻŀ ẅħǿ įș
ěňģǻģįňģ įň, ŀěț’ș șǻỳ, ħįģħŀỳ ųňpǿpųŀǻř șpěěčħ įș ňǿț ģǿįňģ țǿ bě ǻbŀě,
țħřǿųģħ țħě pǿŀįțįčǻŀ přǿčěșș, țǿ ųpħǿŀđ țħě vǻŀųěș țħǻț ẅě, čǿŀŀěčțįvěŀỳ,
ħǻvě đěčįđěđ ǻřě přěțțỳ įmpǿřțǻňț țǿ ųpħǿŀđ.

Ǻňđ șǿ, įň țħǿșě čįřčųmșțǻňčěș, İ ħǻvě ǻ věřỳ přǿģřěșșįvě vįěẅ ǿf ħǿẅ țħě
čǿųřțș șħǿųŀđ ǿpěřǻțě.  Bųț ǻș İ țħįňķ Jųđģě Ģǻřŀǻňđ șǻįđ, běįňģ ǻ fěđěřǻŀ
jųđģě đǿěșň’ț měǻň țħǻț ỳǿų ħǻvě țħįș břǿǻđ ẅřįț țǿ șįmpŀỳ řěmǻķě
șǿčįěțỳ.  İđěǻŀŀỳ, ỳǿų’vě ģǿț ǻ pǿŀįțįčǻŀ přǿčěșș țħǻț đǿěș țħǻț; țħǻț ẅě
ǻřģųě ǻbǿųț įșșųěș, ǻňđ ẅě ěŀěčț řěpřěșěňțǻțįvěș, ǻňđ ẅě ģěț vǿțěș, ǻňđ
ẅě pǻșș bįŀŀș, ǻňđ ẅě ģěț ǻ ňěẅ ǻđmįňįșțřǻțįǿň ǻňđ țħěỳ ǿvěřțųřň șțųff
țħǻț ẅě pǻșșěđ.  Ǻňđ įț'ș řǿųģħ, ǻňđ įț'ș țųmbŀě, ǻňđ įț'ș ňǿț ǻŀẅǻỳș
ěŀěģǻňț, bųț țħǻț'ș țħě čǿňșțįțųțįǿňǻŀ đěșįģň.  Ǻňđ įț ħǻș țħě běňěfįț ǿf
mǻķįňģ șųřě țħǻț șěpǻřǻțįǿň ǿf pǿẅěřș ǻňđ đěčěňțřǻŀįżǻțįǿň ǿf pǿẅěř įň
ǿųř șǿčįěțỳ ķěěpș țħįș ŀųmběřįňģ șħįp mǿvįňģ įň ǻ přěțțỳ ģǿǿđ đįřěčțįǿň.

Ǻňđ șǿ įț'ș běěň řǻřě -- ǻňđ țħįș įș bỳ đěșįģň -- țħǻț țħě Čǿųřț ěňģǻģěș įň
mǻșșįvě șǿčįǻŀ ěňģįňěěřįňģ.  Ňǿẅ, İ čǻřě đěěpŀỳ ǻbǿųț -- țħěřě ǻřě ǻ ẅħǿŀě
řǻňģě ǿf přǿģřěșșįvě čǻųșěș țħǻț İ ẅįŀŀ čǿňțįňųě țǿ fįģħț fǿř ǻș ŀǿňģ ǻș İ
ħǻvě ǻ břěǻțħ.  İ běŀįěvě įň ǻ șǿčįěțỳ țħǻț įș đǿįňģ șǿměțħįňģ ǻbǿųț čŀįmǻțě
čħǻňģě įň ǻň ǻģģřěșșįvě ẅǻỳ.  İ běŀįěvě įň ǻ șǿčįěțỳ įň ẅħįčħ ěvěřỳ čħįŀđ įș
ǻbŀě țǿ ģěț ǻ đěčěňț ěđųčǻțįǿň ǻňđ ǿppǿřțųňįțỳ.  İ běŀįěvě țħǻț ěvěřỳbǿđỳ
șħǿųŀđ ħǻvě ħěǻŀțħ čǻřě įň ǻ șǿčįěțỳ țħǻț'ș ẅěǻŀțħỳ -- įț'ș ňǿț ǻ přįvįŀěģě,
įț'ș ǻ řįģħț.  (Ǻppŀǻųșě.)  İ běŀįěvě țħǻț ǿųř čřįmįňǻŀ jųșțįčě șỳșțěm įș
fŀǻẅěđ įň ǻ ẅħǿŀě řǻňģě ǿf ẅǻỳș.

Ǻ čǿųpŀě ǿf ẅěěķș ǻģǿ, ǿř mǻỳbě įț ẅǻș ŀǻșț ẅěěķ, İ ħǻđ ŀųňčħ ẅįțħ ǻ
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șǻmpŀįňģ ǿf țħě pěǿpŀě țħǻț İ'vě pǻřđǿňěđ fǿř ňǿňvįǿŀěňț đřųģ ǿffěňșěș. 
Ǻňđ İ'vě ģǿț ǻ ẅǿmǻň șįțțįňģ ňěxț țǿ mě ẅħǿ, ǻț ǻ věřỳ ỳǿųňģ ǻģě, įň ħěř
ěǻřŀỳ 20ș, ẅǻș șěňțěňčěđ țǿ ŀįfě įň přįșǿň fǿř ǻ ňǿňvįǿŀěňț đřųģ ǿffěňșě. 
Țħǻț'ș čřǻżỳ.  İț mǻķěș ňǿ șěňșě.  İț ẅǻș ųňjųșț ǻňđ čǿųňțěřpřǿđųčțįvě, ǻňđ
ŀěǻvěș ħųģě șčǻřș ňǿț jųșț įň țħǻț ẅǿmǻň’ș fǻmįŀỳ ǻňđ ħěř čħįŀđřěň, bųț įň
ǿųř șǿčįěțỳ ǻș ǻ ẅħǿŀě.

Șǿ țħěřě ǻřě ǻ ẅħǿŀě bųňčħ ǿf țħįňģș İ'vě đǿňě ǻș Přěșįđěňț ǻňđ İ įňțěňđ țǿ
čǿňțįňųě țǿ đǿ ǻňđ țǿ ǻđvǿčǻțě fǿř.  Țħǿșě ǻřě ňǿț țħįňģș, țħǿųģħ, țħǻț
țỳpįčǻŀŀỳ ǻ Șųpřěmě Čǿųřț jųșțįčě įș įň țħě pǿșįțįǿň țǿ ģěț đǿňě.  Țħěỳ đǿň'ț
ħǻvě țǻxįňģ pǿẅěř.  Țħěỳ đǿň'ț ňěčěșșǻřįŀỳ ħǻvě țħě ěxpěřțįșě țǿ bě
đěșįģňįňģ přǿģřǻmș țǿ ģěț ǻț țħě țħįňģș țħǻț ẅě čǻřě ǻbǿųț.  Ǻňđ șǿ İ đǿ
ħǻvě ǻ mǿđěșțỳ įň țěřmș ǿf mỳ ěxpěčțǻțįǿňș fǿř ẅħǻț țħě Čǿųřț șħǿųŀđ đǿ.

Bųț İ ẅǻňț țħě čǿųřț țǿ đǿ ẅħǻț įț șħǿųŀđ đǿ řěǻŀŀỳ ẅěŀŀ.  İ ẅǻňț ǻ čǿųřț țħǻț
đǿěș běŀįěvě țħǻț ěqųǻŀįțỳ ųňđěř țħě ŀǻẅ įș ěqųǻŀįțỳ ųňđěř țħě ŀǻẅ -- ňǿț
jųșț țħě ẅǿřđș, bųț țħǻț įț įș ǿpěřǻțįǿňǻŀįżěđ, țħǻț įț'ș řěǻŀ.  İ ẅǻňț ǻ čǿųřț
țħǻț įș țřěǻțįňģ ǻ pǿǿř įňđįģěňț čřįmįňǻŀ đěfěňđǻňț țħě șǻmě ǻș ǻ ẅěǻŀțħỳ
čřįmįňǻŀ đěfěňđǻňț, ǻňđ țħǻț jųșțįčě įș bŀįňđ ẅįțħ řěșpěčț țǿ -- șħě ǻģřěěș
ẅįțħ mě.  (Ŀǻųģħțěř.) 

Șǿ mǿđěșțỳ įň țħě șčǿpě ǻňđ țħě ňǻțųřě ǿf ẅħǻț țħě ŀǻẅ įș, bųț đǿįňģ
řěǻŀŀỳ ẅěŀŀ ẅħǻț țħě Čǿųřț įș đěșįģňěđ țǿ đǿ -- țħǻț'ș ẅħǻț İ'm ŀǿǿķįňģ fǿř
įň ǻ jųșțįčě.

PŘǾFĚȘȘǾŘ ȘȚŘǺŲȘȘ:  İ țħįňķ ẅě čǻň ǿpěň įț ųp. 

ȚĦĚ PŘĚȘİĐĚŇȚ:  Ŀěț’ș ǿpěň įț ųp țǿ qųěșțįǿňș.  Țħěřě ỳǿų ģǿ, ǻ ŀįțțŀě
Șǿčřǻțįč měțħǿđ ħěřě.  (Ŀǻųģħțěř.)  Șțǻțě țħě čǻșě! (Ŀǻųģħțěř.)  Ňǿ, İ'm
țěǻșįňģ.  İ'm țěǻșįňģ.  Țħįș ỳǿųňģ ŀǻđỳ řįģħț ħěřě įň țħě ģřěěň -- ỳěș.  Đǿ ẅě
ħǻvě ǻ mįč?  Ŀěț’ș ģįvě țħěm mįčș șǿ ěvěřỳbǿđỳ čǻň ħěǻř ỳǿų.  İňțřǿđųčě
ỳǿųřșěŀf, bỳ țħě ẅǻỳ.

Q    Ħį.

ȚĦĚ PŘĚȘİĐĚŇȚ:  Ħį.

Q    Mỳ ňǻmě įș Ǻměŀįǻ.

ȚĦĚ PŘĚȘİĐĚŇȚ:  Ħěỳ, Ǻměŀįǻ.
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Q    İ ǻčțųǻŀŀỳ ħǻđ țħě ǿppǿřțųňįțỳ țǿ ǻșķ ỳǿų ǻ qųěșțįǿň ẅħěň İ ẅǻș 15
ỳěǻřș ǿŀđ, įň Ňěẅ Ħǻmpșħįřě. 

ȚĦĚ PŘĚȘİĐĚŇȚ:  Ẅǿẅ.  (Ŀǻųģħțěř.) 

Q    Șǿ İ'm řěǻŀŀỳ ħǻppỳ țǿ --

ȚĦĚ PŘĚȘİĐĚŇȚ:  Ǻřě ỳǿų ǻ șțųđěňț ħěřě ňǿẅ?

Q    İ ǻm.

ȚĦĚ PŘĚȘİĐĚŇȚ:  Țħǻț'ș věřỳ čǿǿŀ.  Đįđ İ ǻňșẅěř ỳǿųř qųěșțįǿň țħě ŀǻșț
țįmě?

Q    Ỳǿų đįđ, věřỳ ẅěŀŀ.  (Ŀǻųģħțěř.) 

ȚĦĚ PŘĚȘİĐĚŇȚ:  Țħǻňķ ģǿǿđňěșș.  Ǻŀŀ řįģħț, ẅħǻț đǿ ỳǿų ģǿț?

Q    Șǿ İ'm řěǻŀŀỳ ħǻppỳ țǿ ħěǻř țħǻț ỳǿų șǻįđ ỳǿų ẅěřě ģǿįňģ țǿ čǿňțįňųě țǿ
pųșħ fǿř țħě įșșųěș țħǻț ỳǿų čǻřě ǻbǿųț, běčǻųșě İ, ǿf čǿųřșě, běŀįěvě țħǻț
țħě pųșħ fǿř țħě Șųpřěmě Čǿųřț ňǿmįňǻțįǿň įș įňčřěđįbŀỳ įmpǿřțǻňț.  İ'm
jųșț ǻ ŀįțțŀě čǿňčěřňěđ țħǻț ǿțħěř įșșųěș čǿųŀđ ģěț ŀěfț běħįňđ.  Ǿňě șųčħ
įșșųě, fǿř ěxǻmpŀě, įș čřįmįňǻŀ jųșțįčě řěfǿřm -- șpěčįfįčǻŀŀỳ, țħě přǿbŀěm ǿf
mǻșș įňčǻřčěřǻțįǿň.  Șǿ İ ẅǻș ẅǿňđěřįňģ įf ỳǿų čǿųŀđ șpěǻķ țǿ ẅħǻț mǿřě
ỳǿų’ŀŀ đǿ įň ỳǿųř ŀǻșț 10 mǿňțħș țǿ ǻđđřěșș țħįș įșșųě.

ȚĦĚ PŘĚȘİĐĚŇȚ:  Ģřěǻț.  İț'ș ǻ ģřěǻț qųěșțįǿň.  Ẅě'řě įň țħįș řěǻŀŀỳ
įňțěřěșțįňģ mǿměňț ẅħěřě ģěňěřǻŀŀỳ Čǿňģřěșș įș țħǿřǿųģħŀỳ ųňpřǿđųčțįvě
-- ňǿț, bỳ țħě ẅǻỳ, běčǻųșě ǿf țħě měmběřș ǿf Čǿňģřěșș ẅħǿ ǻřě ħěřě --
(ŀǻųģħțěř) -- ẅħǿ ǻřě ǻŀŀ đǿįňģ ģřěǻț ẅǿřķ -- (ŀǻųģħțěř) -- bųț įň țħě
ǻģģřěģǻțě įț’ș ňǿț đǿįňģ mųčħ. 

Ǿňě ěxčěpțįǿň ħǻș běěň țħįș ģřǿẅįňģ įňțěřěșț, țħįș mǿvěměňț įň čřįmįňǻŀ
jųșțįčě řěfǿřm.  Ǻňđ įț’ș bįpǻřțįșǻň ǻňđ įț’ș șįňčěřě ǿň țħě pǻřț ǿf ǻŀŀ șįđěș
ǿň țħįș.  Ǻňđ įț’ș ǻň įňțěřěșț čǿňvěřģěňčě.  Ỳǿų ħǻvě fįșčǻŀ čǿňșěřvǻțįvěș
ẅħǿ ħǻvě běěň șěěįňģ ħǿẅ ěxpěňșįvě įț įș țǿ įňčǻřčěřǻțě pěǿpŀě ỳěǻř ǻfțěř
ỳěǻř ǻfțěř ỳěǻř, ǻňđ ħǿẅ įț’ș břěǻķįňģ țħě bǻňķ -- pǻřțįčųŀǻřŀỳ ǻț țħě șțǻțě
ŀěvěŀ, ẅħěřě įf ỳǿų țřǻčķ șpěňđįňģ ǿň pųbŀįč ěđųčǻțįǿň ǻňđ șpěňđįňģ ǿň
įňčǻřčěřǻțįǿň ǿvěř țħě ŀǻșț 25, 30 ỳěǻřș, țħěřě įș ǻŀmǿșț ǻ đįřěčț ŀįňě
běțẅěěň mǿřě pěǿpŀě įň jǻįŀ ǻňđ ŀěșș șųppǿřț fǿř pųbŀįč ųňįvěřșįțįěș, fǿř
ěxǻmpŀě.  Șǿ țħěřě’ș ǻ fįșčǻŀ čǿňčěřň.
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Ỳǿų'vě ģǿț ǻ ŀįběřțǻřįǻň șțřǻňđ ǿf čǿňșěřvǻțįvěș ẅħǿ řěǻŀŀỳ běŀįěvě ẅħỳ įș įț
țħě ģǿvěřňměňț’ș bųșįňěșș įf șǿměbǿđỳ įș țǻķįňģ -- șmǿķįňģ pǿț, ŀěț’ș șǻỳ,
ǻňđ ẅħỳ ẅǿųŀđ ẅě ẅǻňț țǿ jǻįŀ țħěm fǿř 20 ỳěǻřș?  Ỳǿų'vě ģǿț ǻ věřỳ
șįňčěřě ěvǻňģěŀįčǻŀ mǿvěměňț țħǻț ǿfțěňțįměș įș įňvǿŀvěđ įň řěěňțřỳ
přǿģřǻmș ǿř přįșǿň mįňįșțřįěș, ǻňđ șǿ ħǻvě ěmbřǻčěđ țħě įđěǻ ǿf ǻ șěčǿňđ
čħǻňčě. 

Ǻňđ șǿ ỳǿų čǿmbįňě țħǻț ẅįțħ ŀǻẅ ěňfǿřčěměňț țħǻț İ țħįňķ ħǻș běģųň țǿ
řěčǿģňįżě țħǻț ǻ ŀǿț ǿf ħǿẅ ẅě ħǻvě přǿșěčųțěđ țħě ẅǻř ǿň đřųģș ħǻș běěň
ųňpřǿđųčțįvě, ǻňđ țħǻț řěčįđįvįșm įș įňěvįțǻbŀě įf pěǿpŀě ǻřě ģěțțįňģ ňǿ
șķįŀŀș.  Țħěỳ'řě įňčǻřčěřǻțěđ fǿř đěčǻđěș, ǻňđ țħěň ẅě'řě jųșț řěŀěǻșįňģ
țħěm ẅįțħ ňǿ pǿșșįbŀě șųppǿřț.  Ǻňđ țħěň țħě ŀǿňģ-șțǻňđįňģ přǿģřěșșįvě
vįěẅ țħǻț ǻ ŀǿț ǿf ǿųř čřįmįňǻŀ jųșțįčě șỳșțěm ħǻș běěň țǻįňțěđ bỳ řǻčįǻŀ
đįșčřįmįňǻțįǿň ǻňđ čŀǻșș bįǻș.  Ǻŀŀ țħǿșě țħįňģș ǻřě čǿňvěřģįňģ.

Ǻňđ șǿ ňǿẅ ẅě'vě ģǿț șǿmě řěǻŀŀỳ įňțěřěșțįňģ čǿǻŀįțįǿňș.  Ỳǿų’vě ģǿț țħě
ǺČĿŲ ǻňđ țħě Ķǿčħ břǿțħěřș ǻģřěěįňģ ǿň țħįș, ẅħįčħ đǿěș ňǿț ħǻppěň
ǿfțěň.  (Ŀǻųģħțěř.)  Đįčķ Đųřbįň ħǻș běěň ǿňě ǿf țħě ķěỳ ŀěǻđěřș įň țħě
Șěňǻțě įň șħǻpįňģ ǻ čřįmįňǻŀ jųșțįčě řěfǿřm bįŀŀ țħǻț ħǻș ǻ řěǻŀ čħǻňčě ǿf
pǻșșǻģě.  Ǻňđ İ țħįňķ įț’ș řěǻŀŀỳ įmpǿřțǻňț țǿ ųňđěřșțǻňđ țħě ňǿmįňǻțįǿň
přǿčěșș ẅįțħ Jųđģě Ģǻřŀǻňđ įș ňǿț ħǿŀđįňģ bǻčķ ǿųř ǻbįŀįțỳ țǿ mǿvě
fǿřẅǻřđ.

İț ẅǿųŀđ bě ǿňě țħįňģ įf Mįțčħ MčČǿňňěŀŀ ẅǻș șǻỳįňģ, mǻň, įț’ș ģǿįňģ țǿ
țǻķě șǿ ŀǿňģ țǿ șčħěđųŀě ǻŀŀ țħě ħěǻřįňģș ǻňđ țħě vǿțěș, ǻňđ ẅě ẅǿň’ț ħǻvě
țįmě běčǻųșě ẅě'řě jųșț șǿ bųșỳ țħǻț ẅě čǻň'ț țħěň đǿ čřįmįňǻŀ jųșțįčě
įňșțěǻđ.  Bųț șįňčě țħěřě ħǻș běěň ǻ șpįķě įň țħě ňųmběř ǿf đǻỳș ǿff įň țħįș
Čǿňģřěșș, ǻňđ, țỳpįčǻŀŀỳ, ǻ jųđįčįǻŀ čǿňfįřmǻțįǿň țǻķěș ŀěșș țħǻň țħřěě
mǿňțħș fřǿm țħě țįmě țħǻț pěřșǿň įș ňǿmįňǻțěđ -- Jųđģě Ǻŀįțǿ, fǿř
ěxǻmpŀě, țǿǿķ 82 đǻỳș -- țħįș įș șǿměțħįňģ țħǻț șħǿųŀđň’ț přěvěňț ųș fřǿm
ģěțțįňģ đǿňě țħě čřįmįňǻŀ jųșțįčě įșșųěș.

İ țħįňķ ẅħǻț’ș běěň țǿųģħěř įș jųșț mǻňǻģįňģ țħě țřǻđįțįǿňǻŀ pǿŀįțįčș ǻřǿųňđ
běįňģ șǿfț ǿň čřįmě věřșųș běįňģ țǿųģħ ǿň čřįmě.  Ǻňđ řįģħț ňǿẅ běčǻųșě
čřįmě řǻțěș -- șǻđŀỳ ěxčěpț fǿř įň čěřțǻįň ňěįģħbǿřħǿǿđș įň Čħįčǻģǿ ǻňđ ǻ
fěẅ ǿțħěř čįțįěș -- ħǻvě běěň ģǿįňģ đǿẅň įň ẅǻỳș țħǻț ǻřě řěmǻřķǻbŀě ǻňđ
ňǿbǿđỳ čǻň fųŀŀỳ ěxpŀǻįň, țħěřě įș ŀěșș přǿfįț įň șǻỳįňģ İ’m ģǿįňģ țǿ bě
țǿųģħ ǿň čřįmě.
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Bųț țħěřě įș ǻŀẅǻỳș ǻ ħěșįțǻňčě ǿň țħě pǻřț ǿf ŀěģįșŀǻțǿřș běčǻųșě věřỳ
řǻřěŀỳ įș ǻ pǿŀįțįčįǻň pųňįșħěđ fǿř ħǻvįňģ běěň țǿǿ țǿųģħ ǿň čřįmě ǻňđ
șěňțěňčįňģ.  Bųț ǿččǻșįǿňǻŀŀỳ, á ŀǻ Ẅįŀŀįě Ħǿřțǿň, țħěỳ fěěŀ țħǻț ǻ vǿțě țħǻț
čǻň bě pěřčěįvěđ ǻș ŀěňįěňț mįģħț čǿmě bǻčķ țǿ bįțě țħěm.

Țħě ģǿǿđ ňěẅș įș țħǻț, șǿ fǻř ǻț ŀěǻșț, pěǿpŀě ħǻvě șțųčķ ẅįțħ įț.  Ǻňđ İ’m
mǿđěșțŀỳ ǿpțįmįșțįč țħǻț ẅě čǻň ģěț șǿměțħįňģ đǿňě țħįș ỳěǻř.  İț ẅǿň’ț
șǿŀvě țħě přǿbŀěm ǿf mǻșș įňčǻřčěřǻțįǿň -- běčǻųșě țħǻț ẅǻș ǻ přǿčěșș
țħǻț țǿǿķ 20, 30 ỳěǻřș țǿ ģěț țǿ ẅħěřě ẅě ǻřě ňǿẅ, ẅħěřě ẅě ǻččǿųňț fǿř 5
pěřčěňț ǿf țħě ẅǿřŀđ’ș pǿpųŀǻțįǿň ǻňđ 25 pěřčěňț ǿf țħě ẅǿřŀđ’ș přįșǿňěřș,
șǿ įț’ș ģǿįňģ țǿ țǻķě șǿmě țįmě țǿ řěvěřșě.  Bųț țħě ŀěģįșŀǻțįǿň țħǻț'ș
pěňđįňģ řįģħț ňǿẅ přǿvįđěș měǻňįňģfųŀ řěđųčțįǿňș įň țħě șțǻňđǻřđș fǿř
șěňțěňčįňģ ǻřǿųňđ ňǿňvįǿŀěňț đřųģ čřįměș.  İț đǿěș șǿmě věřỳ įmpǿřțǻňț
ẅǿřķ įň țěřmș ǿf řěěňțřỳ, đįvěřșįǿň přǿģřǻmș.  İț břěǻķș țħįș pșỳčħǿŀǿģỳ
țħǻț ẅě jųșț ħǻvě țǿ ŀǿčķ pěǿpŀě ųp įň ǿřđěř țǿ ķěěp ǿųřșěŀvěș șǻfě.

Ǿňě ŀǻșț ěŀěměňț țǿ țħįș țħǻț ħǻș běěň įňțěřěșțįňģ įș țħě ǿpįǿįđș čřįșįș țħǻț
șǿmě ǿf ỳǿų mǻỳ ħǻvě řěǻđ ǻbǿųț.  Řįģħț ňǿẅ pǻįňķįŀŀěřș -- ǿvěřđǿșěș ǿf
pěǿpŀě țǻķįňģ pǻįňķįŀŀěřș ķįŀŀș mǿřě pěǿpŀě țħǻň țřǻffįč ǻččįđěňțș.  İț’ș ǻ
řěmǻřķǻbŀě șțǻțįșțįč.  Țħěřě ħǻș běěň țħįș ħųģě șpįķě įň pǻįňķįŀŀěř
ǻđđįčțįǿň, ẅħįčħ įș țħěň ŀěǻđįňģ țǿ ħěřǿįň ǻđđįčțįǿň, běčǻųșě ǿfțěňțįměș
ħěřǿįň įș čħěǻpěř țħǻň pǻįňķįŀŀěřș.  Ǻňđ fǿųř ǿųț ǿf fįvě pěǿpŀě ẅħǿ ģěț
ǻđđįčțěđ țǿ ħěřǿįň șțǻřț țħěįř ǻđđįčțįǿň ẅįțħ ǾxỳČǿňțįň ǿř șǿmě ǿțħěř
pǻįňķįŀŀěř ǻđđįčțįǿň.  Ǻňđ ųňŀįķě čřǻčķ, įț’ș ňǿț jųșț ǻffěčțįňģ įňňěř-čįțỳ
Ǻfřįčǻň Ǻměřįčǻň ǿř Ŀǻțįňǿ čǿmmųňįțįěș.  İț’ș ẅįđěșpřěǻđ.  İț’ș pěřvǻșįvě. 
İț’ș șěěpįňģ įňțǿ řųřǻŀ ǻřěǻș. Ǻňđ įț’ș ǻ țřǻģįč įșșųě țħǻț ẅě ǻřě řěǻŀŀỳ
șpěňđįňģ ǻ ŀǿț ǿf țįmě fǿčųșěđ ǿň.

Bųț ẅħǻț’ș įňțěřěșțįňģ įș, įș țħǻț țħě pǿŀįțįčș ǿf țħįș čħǻňģěș ǻ ŀįțțŀě bįț
ẅħěřě ẅħěň ěŀěčțěđ ǿffįčįǻŀș șěě ķįđș ẅħǿ ǻřě ŀįķě țħěįř ķįđș ģěțțįňģ
ħǿǿķěđ ǻňđ ģǿįňģ țħřǿųģħ țħěșě țěřřįbŀě țħįňģș, țħěřě’ș běěň ǻ ģřěǻțěř
přěđįșpǿșįțįǿň țǿ țħįňķ ǿf țħįș ǻș ǻ pųbŀįč ħěǻŀțħ įșșųě řǻțħěř țħǻň ǻ
čřįmįňǻŀ jųșțįčě ǻňđ įňčǻřčěřǻțįǿň įșșųě.

Ǻňđ țħǻț'ș -- İ’m jųșț běįňģ bŀųňț -- țħǻț'ș țħě țřųțħ.  Bųț įț ǻčțųǻŀŀỳ ħǻș ħǻđ
ǻň įmpǻčț įň țěřmș ǿf ǻň ǿpěňňěșș İ țħįňķ țǿ řě-ěxǻmįňįňģ șǿmě ǿf ǿųř
đřųģ ŀǻẅș.

Ģǿǿđ qųěșțįǿň.  İ’m șųřě ỳǿųř qųěșțįǿň ěįģħț ỳěǻřș ǻģǿ ẅǻș řěǻŀŀỳ ģǿǿđ,
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țǿǿ.  (Ŀǻųģħțěř.)

Ǻŀŀ řįģħț, İ’m ģǿįňģ țǿ ģǿ bǿỳ-ģįřŀ-bǿỳ-ģįřŀ jųșț țǿ mǻķě șųřě țħįș įș fǻįř.  Ẅě
mǿňįțǿř țħěșě țħįňģș.  (Ŀǻųģħțěř.)   Ỳěș, ģěňțŀěmǻň řįģħț ħěřě, įň țħě țįě. 
Ỳǿų.  Ỳěș, ỳǿų ŀǿǿķ șħǻřp.  (Ŀǻųģħțěř.)  Đǿ ỳǿų ẅěǻř ǻ țįě ěvěřỳ đǻỳ țǿ
čŀǻșș?  Țħǻț'ș ģǿǿđ, mǻň.

Q    İ’m Jįmmỳ.  İ’m ǻŀșǿ ǻ 1Ŀ.  İ’vě ňěvěř ǻșķěđ ỳǿų ǻ qųěșțįǿň běfǿřě. 
(Ŀǻųģħțěř.)

ȚĦĚ PŘĚȘİĐĚŇȚ:  Ǿķǻỳ.

Q    Șǿ țħįș mįģħț ňǿț ģǿ věřỳ ẅěŀŀ.  (Ŀǻųģħțěř.)  Bųț İ’vě ẅřįțțěň įț đǿẅň șǿ
ħǿpěfųŀŀỳ İ čǻň řěǻđ įț.  Mř. Přěșįđěňț, ẅě ǻřě čųřřěňțŀỳ įň țħě mįđșț ǿf ǻ
pǿŀǻřįżįňģ, pǿŀįțįčǻŀ ěŀěčțįǿň čỳčŀě đįvįđįňģ bǿțħ mǻjǿř pǻřțįěș ǻŀǿňģ
pǿpųŀįșț ǻňđ ěșțǻbŀįșħměňț fǻųŀț ŀįňěș.  Đǿ ỳǿų ǻňțįčįpǻțě țħįș đįvěřģěňčě
ẅįțħįň țħě Đěmǿčřǻțįč Pǻřțỳ ẅįđěňįňģ țǿ țħě ěxțěňț ẅě șǻẅ ẅįțħ țħě țěǻ
pǻřțỳ’ș ěměřģěňčě ẅįțħįň țħě řǻňķș ǿf țħě Řěpųbŀįčǻň Pǻřțỳ?  Ǻňđ įf ňǿț,
ẅħǻț đǿ ỳǿų ẅǿřřỳ ǻbǿųț fǿř țħě fųțųřě ǿf țħě Đěmǿčřǻțįč Pǻřțỳ?

ȚĦĚ PŘĚȘİĐĚŇȚ:  Șħǿřț ǻňșẅěř įș, ňǿ, İ đǿň'ț.  Țħě čŀěǻvǻģěș įňșįđě țħě
Đěmǿčřǻțįč Pǻřțỳ ǻřě ňǿț čǿmpǻřǻbŀě țǿ ẅħǻț ẅě'řě șěěįňģ įň țħě
Řěpųbŀįčǻň Pǻřțỳ řįģħț ňǿẅ.  Țħě ǻřģųměňț įňșįđě țħě Đěmǿčřǻțįč Pǻřțỳ įș
ǻ ŀįțțŀě bįț mǿřě ǻbǿųț měǻňș, ŀěșș ǻbǿųț ěňđș. 

İf ỳǿų ŀǿǿķ ǻț ǿųř țẅǿ Đěmǿčřǻțįč čǻňđįđǻțěș, țħěỳ běŀįěvě țħǻț ěvěřỳbǿđỳ
șħǿųŀđ ģěț ħěǻŀțħ čǻřě.  Țħěỳ běŀįěvě țħǻț ěvěřỳ čħįŀđ șħǿųŀđ ģěț ǻ ģǿǿđ
ěđųčǻțįǿň.  Țħěỳ běŀįěvě țħǻț čŀįmǻțě čħǻňģě įș řěǻŀ ǻňđ țħǻț ẅě șħǿųŀđ đǿ
șǿměțħįňģ ǻbǿųț įț.  Țħěỳ běŀįěvě įň ěqųǻŀįțỳ fǿř țħě ĿĢBȚ čǿmmųňįțỳ. 
Řįģħț?  İf ỳǿų ģǿ țħřǿųģħ țħě ŀįșț, țħěřě’ș ňǿț ǻ ħųģě đįvěřģěňčě țħěřě.

İ țħįňķ țħǻț įň țħě Đěmǿčřǻțįč Pǻřțỳ, țħěřě įș ǻ pǿpųŀįșț įmpųŀșě țħǻț ģřǿẅș
ǿųț ǿf ẅħǻț İ ǻŀșǿ țħįňķ ħǻș ħǻppěňěđ fǿř fǿŀķș ẅħǿ ǻřě vǿțįňģ įň țħě
Řěpųbŀįčǻň přįmǻřỳ, țħįș fřųșțřǻțįǿň įň țħě ẅǻķě ǿf țħě fįňǻňčįǻŀ čřįșįș ǻňđ
țħě bǿțțǿm fǻŀŀįňģ ǿųț fǿř pěǿpŀě ẅħǿ ŀǿșț țħěįř jǿbș, ǿř ŀǿșț țħěįř ħǿměș,
ǿř ŀǿșț țħěįř pěňșįǿňș; țħǻț țħě ẅǿřŀđ įș mǿvįňģ fǻșț, țħě ģřǿųňđ įș ňǿț fįřm
ųňđěř țħěįř fěěț.  Ǻňđ ěvěň běfǿřě țħǻț čřįșįș, ẅǻģěș ǻňđ įňčǿměș ẅěřě ňǿț
ģǿįňģ ųp ǻț țħě șǻmě pǻčě ǻș přǿđųčțįvįțỳ, čǿřpǿřǻțě přǿfįțș, ǻňđ șǿ fǿřțħ. 
Ǻňđ șǿ țħěřě įș ǻ șěňșě țħě ģǻmě įș řįģģěđ.  Ǻňđ ẅě ħǻvě țǿ mǿřě
fųňđǻměňțǻŀŀỳ čħǻňģě țħǻț ģǻmě, țħǻț șỳșțěm -- ẅħěțħěř įț’ș Ẅǻŀŀ Șțřěěț,
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ǿř ħǿẅ Ẅǻșħįňģțǿň ǿpěřǻțěș, ǿř ẅħǻț ħǻvě ỳǿų.

Șǿmě ǿf țħǻț įmpųŀșě įș ħěǻŀțħỳ.  İ țħįňķ ỳǿų ẅǻňț pěǿpŀě țǿ bě ǻșķįňģ ħǻřđ
qųěșțįǿňș ǻbǿųț įňjųșțįčě ěčǿňǿmįčǻŀŀỳ ǻňđ țħě ẅǻỳ țħǻț įňșįđěřș įň țħě
pǿŀįțįčǻŀ přǿčěșș mǻỳ ňǿț fųŀŀỳ řěpřěșěňț țħě įňțěřěșț ǿf ěvěřỳǿňě.

Țħě đǻňģěř, ẅħěțħěř fǿř Đěmǿčřǻțș ǿř Řěpųbŀįčǻňș, įș įň ǻ čŀǿșěđ-ŀǿǿp
șỳșțěm ẅħěřě ěvěřỳbǿđỳ įș jųșț ŀįșțěňįňģ țǿ țħě pěǿpŀě ẅħǿ ǻģřěě ẅįțħ
țħěm, țħǻț ỳǿų șțǻřț țħįňķįňģ țħě ẅǻỳ țǿ ģěț țǿ ẅħěřě İ ẅǻňț țǿ ģǿ įș țǿ
șįmpŀỳ bě ǻș ųňčǿmpřǿmįșįňģ ǻș pǿșșįbŀě, ǻňđ ħǿŀđ țħě ŀįňě, ǻňđ ňǿț pǻỳ
ǻțțěňțįǿň ǿř ŀįșțěň țǿ ẅħǻț țħě ǿțħěř șįđě ħǻș țǿ șǻỳ.  Ǻňđ țħǻț įș șǿřț ǿf ǻ
țěǻ pǻřțỳ měňțǻŀįțỳ.  Ǻňđ țħǻț ǻňỳbǿđỳ ẅħǿ șųģģěșțș, ẅěŀŀ, țħěřě’ș ǻňǿțħěř
pǿįňț ǿf vįěẅ, ǿř țħěřě’ș ǻ ẅħǿŀě ħǻŀf ǿf țħě čǿųňțřỳ țħǻț čǿmpŀěțěŀỳ
đįșǻģřěěș ẅįțħ ųș țħǻț ẅě ħǻvě țǿ ẅǿřķ ẅįțħ, ẅěŀŀ, țħěň ỳǿų mųșț bě ǻ
șěŀŀǿųț, ǿř ỳǿų mųșț bě čǿřřųpțěđ, ǿř ỳǿų mųșț bě ǿň țħě țǻķě, ǿř ẅħǻț
ħǻvě ỳǿų.

Ǻňđ țħǻț įș ňǿț, İ țħįňķ, ųșěfųŀ.  İț’ș ňǿț șǻỳ țħǻț țħěřě įșň’ț čǿřřųpțįǿň, țħǻț
țħěřě įșň’ț čǿmpřǿmįșě -- pěǿpŀě čǿmpřǿmįșįňģ přįňčįpŀěș fǿř ŀěșș-țħǻň-
ňǿbŀě měǻňș, ěț čěțěřǻ.  Țħǿșě țħįňģș ħǻppěň ǻňđ țħěỳ șħǿųŀđ bě čǻŀŀěđ
ǿųț.

Bųț ǻ ŀǿț ǿf țħě řěǻșǿň ẅħỳ ǻ ŀǿț ǿf Đěmǿčřǻțș ẅħǿ șųppǿřțěđ mě ǻňđ șțįŀŀ
șųppǿřț mě ģǿț fřųșțřǻțěđ įș běčǻųșě ǻ bųňčħ ǿf țħě čǿųňțřỳ đǿěșň'ț ǻģřěě
ẅįțħ mě ǿř țħěm, ǻňđ țħěỳ ħǻvě vǿțěș, țǿǿ, ǻňđ țħěỳ ěŀěčț měmběřș ǿf
Čǿňģřěșș.  Ǻňđ țħǻț'ș ħǿẅ ǿųř đěmǿčřǻčỳ ẅǿřķș.  İț’ș ňǿț ǻ șįțųǻțįǿň, įf
ỳǿų đǿň'ț ģěț ěvěřỳțħįňģ ỳǿų ẅǻňț, įț’ș ǻŀẅǻỳș běčǻųșě țħě pěřșǿň ỳǿų
ěŀěčțěđ șǿŀđ ỳǿų ǿųț.  İț mǻỳ jųșț bě běčǻųșě įň ǿųř șỳșțěm ỳǿų șěňđ ųp
țǻķįňģ ħǻŀf ŀǿǻvěș. 

İ čǿųŀđ ňǿț bě přǿųđěř ǿf țħě Ǻffǿřđǻbŀě Čǻřě Ǻčț, bųț įț ẅǻș ǻ měșșỳ
přǿčěșș.  İț đǿěșň'ț ħǻvě ǻ pųbŀįč ǿpțįǿň.  İț’ș ňǿț șįňģŀě-pǻỳěř.  İf İ ẅěřě
đěșįģňįňģ ǻ șỳșțěm fřǿm șčřǻțčħ, İ ẅǿųŀđ ħǻvě đěșįģňěđ ǻ mǿřě ěŀěģǻňț
șỳșțěm ǻňđ ǻ mǿřě ěffįčįěňț șỳșțěm.  Bųț țħǻț'ș ňǿț ẅħǻț ẅǻș pǿșșįbŀě įň
ǿųř đěmǿčřǻčỳ -- įň țħě șǻmě ẅǻỳ țħǻț Șǿčįǻŀ Șěčųřįțỳ ẅħěň įț fįřșț șțǻřțěđ
ẅǻș ǻ měǻģěřŀỳ přǿģřǻm přǿvįđįňģ běňěfįțș țǿ jųșț ǻ fěẅ pěǿpŀě ǻňđ
ħįșțǿřįčǻŀŀỳ čųț ǿųț fǿř pųřěŀỳ řǻčįșț řěǻșǿňș đǿměșțįč șěřvǻňțș ǿř
șħǻřěčřǿppěřș ǿř ẅħǻț ħǻvě ỳǿų.  Ǻňđ țħěň ǿvěř țįmě ỳǿų ķěpț ǿň
įmpřǿvįňģ įț.  Țħǻț'ș ħǿẅ čħǻňģě ģěňěřǻŀŀỳ ħǻppěňș.
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Ǻňđ İ țħįňķ țħě țħįňģ țħǻț Đěmǿčřǻțș ħǻvě țǿ ģųǻřđ ǻģǻįňșț įș ģǿįňģ įň țħě
đįřěčțįǿň țħǻț țħě Řěpųbŀįčǻňș ǻřě mųčħ fųřțħěř ǻŀǿňģ ǿň, ǻňđ țħǻț įș țħįș
șěňșě ǿf ẅě ǻřě jųșț ģǿįňģ țǿ ģěț ǿųř ẅǻỳ, ǻňđ įf ẅě đǿň'ț, țħěň ẅě'ŀŀ
čǻňňįbǻŀįżě ǿųř ǿẅň ǻňđ țħěň ķįčķ țħěm ǿųț ǻňđ țřỳ ǻģǻįň, ǻňđ ẅě ňǻřřǿẅ
ǿųř vįěẅpǿįňțș mǿřě ǻňđ mǿřě ųňțįŀ fįňǻŀŀỳ ẅě șțǻķě ǿųț pǿșįțįǿňș țħǻț ǻřě
șǿ ěxțřěmě țħǻț țħěỳ ǻŀįěňǻțě țħě břǿǻđ pųbŀįč.

İ đǿň'ț șěě țħǻț běįňģ ẅħěřě țħě Đěmǿčřǻțș ģǿ.  Bųț įț'ș ǻŀẅǻỳș șǿměțħįňģ
țħǻț ẅě ħǻvě țǿ pǻỳ ǻțțěňțįǿň țǿ.

Q    Țħǻňķ ỳǿų șǿ mųčħ fǿř běįňģ ħěřě.  İ'đ ŀįķě țǿ ķňǿẅ ħǿẅ ħǻvě ỳǿųř
vįěẅș ǿň țħě Șųpřěmě Čǿųřț ňǿmįňǻțįǿň přǿčěșș čħǻňģěđ șįňčě ỳǿų
țǻųģħț čǿňșțįțųțįǿňǻŀ ŀǻẅ ħěřě ǻț țħě Ųňįvěřșįțỳ ǿf Čħįčǻģǿ.

ȚĦĚ PŘĚȘİĐĚŇȚ:  Mỳ vįěẅș ǿň ħǿẅ įț șħǿųŀđ ẅǿřķ ħǻșň’ț čħǻňģěđ.  Mỳ
vįěẅș ǿň ħǿẅ įț čųřřěňțŀỳ ẅǿřķș ǿbvįǿųșŀỳ ǻřě ǻ șǿųřčě ǿf fřųșțřǻțįǿň. 
Ŀǿǿķ, jųșț țǿ ķįňđ ǿf ẅřǻp ųp țħįș Șųpřěmě Čǿųřț čǿňvěřșǻțįǿň, İ țħįňķ įț įș
pěřfěčțŀỳ ǻččěpțǻbŀě fǿř Řěpųbŀįčǻňș țǿ đěčįđě țħǻț ěvěň țħǿųģħ Měřřįčķ
Ģǻřŀǻňđ įș ħįģħŀỳ qųǻŀįfįěđ, ěvěň țħǿųģħ ħě’ș įňđįșpųțǻbŀỳ ǻ ģǿǿđ ǻňđ fǻįř
jųđģě, ěvěň țħǿųģħ ħě’ș ģǿțțěň țħě ħįģħěșț řǻțįňģș fřǿm ǻŀŀ țħě bǻř
ǿřģǻňįżǻțįǿňș ǻňđ ǿțħěřș țħǻț ħǻvě ěxǻmįňěđ ħįș řěčǿřđ, țħǻț İ jųșț đǿň'ț
ǻģřěě ẅįțħ ħįm ǿň X, Ỳ, Ż, ǻňđ İ'm ģǿįňģ țǿ vǿțě ǻģǻįňșț ħįm běčǻųșě İ
běŀįěvě įň șǿměțħįňģ đįffěřěňț ǿň įmpǿřțǻňț įșșųěș. 

Ẅħǻț’ș ňǿț ǻččěpțǻbŀě įș ňǿț ģįvįňģ ħįm ǻ vǿțě, ňǿț ģįvįňģ ħįm ǻ ħěǻřįňģ,
ňǿț měěțįňģ ẅįțħ ħįm.  Ẅħǻț’ș ňǿț ǻččěpțǻbŀě, İ běŀįěvě, įș țħě įňčřěǻșįňģ
ųșě ǿf țħě fįŀįbųșțěř fǿř șǿměbǿđỳ ẅħǿ’ș čŀěǻřŀỳ ẅįțħįň țħě mǻįňșțřěǻm, ǿř
țǿ ěșșěňțįǻŀŀỳ șǻỳ țħǻț ẅě ǻřě ģǿįňģ țǿ ňųŀŀįfỳ țħě ǻbįŀįțỳ ǿf ǻ Přěșįđěňț ẅħǿ
įș fřǿm ǻňǿțħěř pǻřțỳ fřǿm mǻķįňģ ǻň ǻppǿįňțměňț.  Ǻňđ ẅě'řě ģǿįňģ țǿ
ẅǻįț țǿ șěě įf mǻỳbě ẅě čǻň ģěț ǻ ģųỳ fřǿm ǿųř pǻřțỳ țǿ mǻķě țħě
ǻppǿįňțměňț.  Țħǻț įș ẅħěřě ỳǿų ħǻvě ǻ přǿčěșș fǿųŀ țħǻț čǿřřǿđěș țħě
ǻbįŀįțỳ ǿf țħě Čǿųřț țǿ fųňčțįǿň ěffěčțįvěŀỳ. 

İf ỳǿų pŀǻỳ ǿųț ħǿẅ mųčħ ǿf ǻ přǿbŀěm țħįș čǿųŀđ ěňđ ųp běįňģ -- įf, įň fǻčț,
Mįțčħ MčČǿňňěŀŀ șțįčķș țǿ ňǿț ģįvįňģ ǻ ħěǻřįňģ ǻňđ ňǿț ģįvįňģ ǻ vǿțě, ǻňđ
ŀěț’ș șǻỳ, fřǿm țħěįř pěřșpěčțįvě, ěvěřỳțħįňģ ẅǿřķș ǿųț ģřěǻț ǻňđ țħěįř
ňǿmįňěě, ẅħǿěvěř țħǻț mįģħț bě, ẅįňș ǻňđ țǻķěș ǿvěř țħě Ẅħįțě Ħǿųșě,
ǻňđ țħěỳ, țħěň, mǻķě ǻň ǻppǿįňțměňț -- țħě ňǿțįǿň țħǻț Đěmǿčřǻțș ẅǿųŀđ
țħěň șǻỳ, ǿħ, ẅěŀŀ, ẅě'ŀŀ jųșț ģǿ ǻŀǿňģ ẅįțħ țħǻț -- (ŀǻųģħțěř) -- țħǻț įș
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įňčǿňčěįvǻbŀě.  Řįģħț?

Șǿ ňǿẅ țħě Đěmǿčřǻțș șǻỳ, ẅěŀŀ, ẅħǻț’ș ģǿǿđ fǿř țħě ģǿǿșě įș ģǿǿđ fǿř țħě
ģǻňđěř, ẅě'ŀŀ ẅǻįț fǿųř mǿřě ỳěǻřș țǿ șěě ħǿẅ țħě ňěxț Přěșįđěňț čǿměș įň,
ǻț ẅħįčħ pǿįňț ẅħǻț’ș mǿșț ŀįķěŀỳ țħěň įș Mįțčħ MčČǿňňěŀŀ ẅįŀŀ țħěň
ěŀįmįňǻțě țħě fįŀįbųșțěř pǿșșįbįŀįțỳ fǿř Șųpřěmě Čǿųřț jųșțįčěș, ǻș įț ẅǻș
ěŀįmįňǻțěđ fǿř țħě ǿțħěř jųđįčįǻŀ ǻppǿįňțměňțș.  Ǻňđ ňǿẅ įț'ș jųșț ǻ
mǻjǿřįțǻřįǻň ěxěřčįșě įňșįđě țħě Șěňǻțě ǿf ẅħǿ čǿňțřǿŀș țħě přěșįđěňčỳ
ǻňđ ẅħǿ čǿňțřǿŀș țħě Șěňǻțě.  Ǻňđ įf đįffěřěňț pǻřțįěș čǿňțřǿŀ țħě Ẅħįțě
Ħǿųșě ǻňđ țħě Șěňǻțě đųřįňģ țħǻț pěřįǿđ ǿf țįmě, ỳǿų'řě ňǿț ģǿįňģ țǿ ģěț
ǻňỳ ǻppǿįňțměňțș đǿňě -- ẅħįčħ įș ǻ đįșǻșțěř fǿř țħě čǿųřțș, ģěňěřǻŀŀỳ. 

Fǿř țẅǿ řěǻșǿňș.  Ǿňě įș, țħěřě’ș ǻ ŀǿț ǿf ẅǿřķ țħǻț ňěěđș țǿ ģěț đǿňě ǻňđ
ỳǿų ňěěđ jųđģěș.  Ǻňđ řįģħț ňǿẅ, țħěřě ǻřě ěměřģěňčỳ șįțųǻțįǿňș įň
đįșțřįčțș ǻčřǿșș țħě čǿųňțřỳ.  Bųț țħě șěčǿňđ țħįňģ țħǻț ħǻppěňș įș pěǿpŀě
ẅįŀŀ, ǻț țħǻț pǿįňț, jųșț běčǿmě mǿřě ǻňđ mǿřě čỳňįčǻŀ ǻbǿųț đěčįșįǿňș
țħǻț ǻřě čǿmįňģ đǿẅň fřǿm țħě Čǿųřț.  Țħěỳ’řě ǻŀřěǻđỳ čỳňįčǻŀ běčǻųșě șǿ
mųčħ ǿf șǿ mǻňỳ ǿpįňįǿňș jųșț ěňđ ųp běįňģ șțřǻįģħț 5-4, ǻňđ įț șțǻřțș
fěěŀįňģ ŀįķě țħįș įș jųșț ǻ pǻřțįșǻň ǻŀįģňměňț.  Bųț įț ģěțș mųčħ ẅǿřșě ųňđěř
țħěșě čįřčųmșțǻňčěș.  Pěǿpŀě țħěň jųșț vįěẅ țħě čǿųřțș ǻș ǻň ěxțěňșįǿň ǿf
ǿųř pǿŀįțįčǻŀ pǻřțįěș -- pǿŀǻřįżěđ pǿŀįțįčǻŀ pǻřțįěș. 

Ǻňđ įf čǿňfįđěňčě įň țħě čǿųřțș čǿňșįșțěňțŀỳ břěǻķș đǿẅň, țħěň ỳǿų șțǻřț
șěěįňģ ǿųř ǻțțįțųđěș ǻbǿųț đěmǿčřǻčỳ ģěňěřǻŀŀỳ șțǻřțįňģ țǿ břěǻķ đǿẅň, ǻ
ŀěģįțįmǻčỳ břěǻķįňģ đǿẅň įň ẅǻỳș țħǻț ǻřě věřỳ đǻňģěřǿųș. 

İț'ș ǻ ģěňțŀěmǻň’ș țųřň.  Řįģħț ħěřě įň țħě fřǿňț.  İ ǻm įmpřěșșěđ bỳ țħě ẅǻỳ
ỳǿų ģųỳș đįđ ǻŀŀ ģěț đřěșșěđ ųp.  (Ŀǻųģħțěř.)  Ẅǻș țħěřě ǻ měmǿ șěňț ǿųț? 
Đįđ țħě Đěǻň șǻỳ, ỳǿų ģųỳș, ẅě ẅǻňț ỳǿų țǿ ǻŀŀ -- běčǻųșě ỳǿų ǻřěň'ț ģǿįňģ
țǿ čŀǻșș ŀįķě țħįș.  (Ŀǻųģħțěř.)  İ ķňǿẅ.  İ řěměmběř.  (Ŀǻųģħțěř.) 

Q    Ħěŀŀǿ, Mř. Přěșįđěňț.  Țħǻňķ ỳǿų věřỳ mųčħ fǿř běįňģ ħěřě ẅįțħ ųș
țǿđǻỳ.  İ'm ǻ 2Ŀ ħěřě ǻț țħě ŀǻẅ șčħǿǿŀ.  Mỳ qųěșțįǿň fǿř ỳǿų įș, ẅħǻț șǿřțș
ǿf čǿňșțįțųțįǿňǻŀ qųěșțįǿňș ẅěřě ǻț țħě fǿřěfřǿňț ǿf ỳǿųř mįňđ ẅħěň
đěčįđįňģ ẅħǿ ỳǿųř ňǿmįňěě șħǿųŀđ bě?  Ǻňđ ẅħǻț șǿřțș ǿf čǿňșțįțųțįǿňǻŀ
qųěșțįǿňș đǿ ỳǿų țħįňķ Ǻměřįčǻňș șħǿųŀđ bě ǻșķįňģ țħěmșěŀvěș ẅħěň
ǻșșěșșįňģ ỳǿųř șěŀěčțįǿň ǻňđ țħįňķįňģ ǻbǿųț țħě 2016 přěșįđěňțįǻŀ
ěŀěčțįǿň?

ȚĦĚ PŘĚȘİĐĚŇȚ:  Ẅěŀŀ, İ ẅįŀŀ țěŀŀ ỳǿų, ǻș İ șǻįđ běfǿřě, İ'm věřỳ čǻřěfųŀ ňǿț
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țǿ đěŀvě țǿǿ șpěčįfįčǻŀŀỳ įňțǿ ǻ čǻňđįđǻțě’ș pǿșįțįǿň ǿň ŀįvě įșșųěș.  Ỳǿų'řě ǻ
ẅěŀŀ-įňfǿřměđ 2Ŀ, ỳǿų ķňǿẅ țħě įșșųěș țħǻț pěǿpŀě đěbǻțě.  Țħěřě’ș ǻ
șțǻňđǻřđ șěț ǿf șǿčįǻŀ įșșųěș țħǻț ħǻvě běěň řǿįŀįňģ șǿčįěțỳ ǻňđ țħě čǿųřțș
fǿř ǻ ŀǿňģ țįmě -- ẅħěțħěř įț'ș ĿĢBȚ řįģħțș, ǿř ǻbǿřțįǿň, ǿř čįvįŀ řįģħțș. 

Ẅħǻț’ș įňțěřěșțįňģ įș țħěřě ǻřě ǻ șěț ǿf ňěẅ įșșųěș țħǻț ǻřě ģǿįňģ țǿ bě
čǿmįňģ ųp țħǻț, fǿř ỳǿųř ģěňěřǻțįǿň, İ țħįňķ ǻřě ģǿįňģ țǿ bě įňčřěǻșįňģŀỳ
șǻŀįěňț.  Ǿňě ģřěǻț ěxǻmpŀě įș țħįș ẅħǿŀě đěbǻțě ǻřǿųňđ ěňčřỳpțįǿň, ẅħįčħ
İ țħįňķ įș jųșț țħě țįp ǿf țħě įčěběřģ ǿf ẅħǻț ẅě'řě ģǿįňģ țǿ ħǻvě țǿ fįģųřě
ǿųț.  İň ǻ șǿčįěțỳ įň ẅħįčħ șǿ mųčħ ǿf ỳǿųř ŀįfě įș đįģįțįżěđ, pěǿpŀě ħǻvě ǻ
ẅħǿŀě ňěẅ șěț ǿf přįvǻčỳ ěxpěčțǻțįǿňș țħǻț ǻřě ųňđěřșțǻňđǻbŀě.  Țħěỳ ǻŀșǿ
ěxpěčț, țħǿųģħ, țħǻț șįňčě țħěįř ŀįvěș ǻřě ǻŀŀ đįģįțįżěđ, țħǻț țħě đįģįțǻŀ ẅǿřŀđ
įș șǻfě, ẅħįčħ čřěǻțěș ǻ čǿňțřǻđįčțǿřỳ đěmǻňđ ǿň ģǿvěřňměňț -- přǿțěčț
mě fřǿm ħǻčķěřș, přǿțěčț mě fřǿm țěřřǿřįșțș, přǿțěčț mě fřǿm ěț čěțěřǻ, ěț
čěțěřǻ, ěț čěțěřǻ, bųț İ đǿň'ț ẅǻňț ỳǿų țǿ ķňǿẅ ǻňỳ ǿf ỳǿųř [șįč] bųșįňěșș
ǻňđ İ đǿň'ț ěvěň ẅǻňț ỳǿų țǿ ħǻvě țħě ǻbįŀįțỳ țǿ įňvěșțįģǻțě șǿmě ǿf țħǻț
bųșįňěșș ẅħěň įț ħǻppěňș běčǻųșě țħěřě’ș břǿǻđěř įmpŀįčǻțįǿňș ǻňđ ẅě'řě
ẅǿřřįěđ ǻbǿųț Bįģ Břǿțħěř.  Ǻňđ șǿ țħěřě’ș ģǿįňģ țǿ bě ǻ ẅħǿŀě șěřįěș ǿf
įșșųěș ǻřǿųňđ țħǻț țħǻț İ țħįňķ ẅįŀŀ bě čǿmįňģ ųp.

İ țħįňķ țħěřě ǻřě ǻ řǻňģě ǿf ěčǿňǿmįč įșșųěș țħǻț đǻțě bǻčķ věřỳ fǻř, țǿ țħě
ěǻřŀįěșț đǻỳș ǿf țħě Čǿųřț ǻňđ ẅěřě přǿmįňěňț đųřįňģ țħě Ģřěǻț
Đěpřěșșįǿň ǻňđ FĐŘ’ș ěřǻ țħǻț ħǻvě ģǿňě įňțǿ ǻběỳǻňčě -- pěǿpŀě đǿň'ț
pǻỳ ǻțțěňțįǿň țǿ țħěm ǻș mųčħ įň țěřmș ǿf mǿňǿpǿŀỳ čǿňčěňțřǻțįǿň, ǿř
ǻňțįțřųșț įșșųěș, ěț čěțěřǻ -- bųț İ țħįňķ įň țħįș čųřřěňț ěňvįřǿňměňț ǻřě
ģǿįňģ țǿ bě čǿmįňģ mǿřě přǿmįňěňț ǿvěř țįmě.

Ǻňđ țħěň, pǿŀįțįčǻŀ pǻřțįčįpǻțįǿň įșșųěș ǻňđ vǿțįňģ įșșųěș İ țħįňķ, ǻňđ
mǿňěỳ įň pǿŀįțįčș įșșųěș -- țħǻț'ș ǻ ẅħǿŀě șěřįěș ǿf įșșųěș țħǻț İ đǿ běŀįěvě
ǻřě ǻň įmpǿřțǻňț řǿŀě fǿř țħě Čǿųřț țǿ pŀǻỳ.  Běčǻųșě įf ẅě'řě ňǿț
ěffěčțįvěŀỳ șěțțįňģ țħě řųŀěș ǿf țħě pǿŀįțįčǻŀ přǿčěșș, įf țħǻț įș đěŀěģįțįmįżěđ,
țħěň ẅħǻțěvěř ǿųțčǿměș ǻřě ģěňěřǻțěđ ǻřě șųbjěčț țǿ jųșț ěňđŀěșș
čǿňțěňțįǿň. 

Ǻňđ țħįș įș șěpǻřǻțě fřǿm țħě jųđįčįǻřỳ.  Țħįș įș ỳǿųř Přěșįđěňț
ěđįțǿřįǻŀįżįňģ.  (Ŀǻųģħțěř.)  Ẅě řěǻŀŀỳ ǻřě țħě ǿňŀỳ ǻđvǻňčěđ đěmǿčřǻčỳ ǿň
Ěǻřțħ țħǻț șỳșțěmǻțįčǻŀŀỳ ǻňđ pųřpǿșěŀỳ mǻķěș įț řěǻŀŀỳ ħǻřđ fǿř pěǿpŀě țǿ
vǿțě.  Ǻňđ ẅě șǿřț ǿf țǻķě įț fǿř ģřǻňțěđ.  İ měǻň, ẅě șǿřț ǿf jųșț ǻșșųmě,
ỳěǻħ, țħǻț'ș İ ģųěșș ħǿẅ įț įș.  Țħěřě’ș ňǿ ǿțħěř čǿųňțřỳ ǿň Ěǻřțħ țħǻț đǿěș
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țħǻț.  Ǻňđ țħěřě’ș ǻ ŀěģǻčỳ țǿ țħǻț țħǻț ģřǿẅș đįřěčțŀỳ ǿųț ǿf ǻ ħįșțǿřỳ įň
ẅħįčħ fįřșț přǿpěřțỳ měň, țħěň ẅħįțě měň, țħěň ẅħįțě fǿŀķș đįđň’ț ẅǻňț
ẅǿměň, mįňǿřįțįěș țǿ pǻřțįčįpǻțě įň țħě pǿŀįțįčǻŀ přǿčěșș ǻňđ bě ǻbŀě țǿ
ěmpǿẅěř țħěmșěŀvěș įň țħǻț fǻșħįǿň.

Ňǿẅ, țħǻț'ș țħě ħįșțǿřỳ.  Ẅě șħǿųŀđ bě ǻ șǿčįěțỳ įň ẅħįčħ, ǻț țħįș pǿįňț, ẅě
șǻįđ, ỳěǻħ, țħǻț ħįșțǿřỳ ẅǻșň’ț șǿ ģǿǿđ, țħǻț'ș ňǿț ẅħǿ ẅě ǻřě, ǻňđ țħěřě
ẅǻș ǻ Čįvįŀ Ẅǻř fǿųģħț ǻbǿųț ǻŀŀ țħįș șțųff, ǻňđ ẅě pǻșșěđ ǻ ẅħǿŀě șěřįěș ǿf
ŀǻẅș ŀįķě țħě Vǿțįňģ Řįģħțș Ǻčț, ǻňđ ǻț țħįș pǿįňț ẅě șħǿųŀđ bě ǻț țħě pǿįňț
ẅħěřě ẅě șǻỳ, ỳǿų ķňǿẅ ẅħǻț, ẅě ẅǻňț ěvěřỳbǿđỳ țǿ vǿțě běčǻųșě țħǻț'ș
țħě ěșșěňčě ǿf ǿųř đěmǿčřǻčỳ.  Bųț ẅě ħǻvě ňǿț jųșț fěđěřǻŀ ŀǻẅș, bųț
șțǻțě ŀǻẅș, țħǻț ųňǻbǻșħěđŀỳ đįșčǿųřǻģě pěǿpŀě fřǿm vǿțįňģ -- ẅħįčħ įș
ẅħỳ ẅě ħǻvě șǿmě ǿf țħě ŀǿẅěșț vǿțįňģ řǻțěș ǿf ǻňỳ ǻđvǻňčěđ đěmǿčřǻčỳ
įň țħě ẅǿřŀđ. 

Ǻňđ țħǻț'ș ǻ přǿbŀěm.  Țħǻț'ș ňǿț șǿměțħįňģ țħǻț -- İ'm șǻỳįňģ țħǻț țǿ
Čǿňģřěșș, ǻș ẅěŀŀ ǻș țǿ țħě přěșįđěňčỳ, ǻș ẅěŀŀ ǻș țǿ ģǿvěřňǿřș, ǻș ẅěŀŀ ǻș
șțǻțě ŀěģįșŀǻțǿřș, ǻș ẅěŀŀ ǻș țǿ čǿųřțș. Țħǻț čǻň'ț bě řįģħț!  Țħěřě’ș ňǿ
jųșțįfįčǻțįǿň fǿř țħǻț!  Ỳǿų čǻň'ț đěfěňđ įț! 

Ǻňđ İ'vě ǻŀẅǻỳș șǻįđ -- ǻňđ țħįș ģǿěș bǻčķ țǿ țħě ỳǿųňģ mǻň’ș qųěșțįǿň
ěǻřŀįěř ǻbǿųț pǿŀįțįčǻŀ pǿŀǻřįżǻțįǿň -- mǻỳbě țħě șįňģŀě bįģģěșț čħǻňģě țħǻț
ẅě čǿųŀđ mǻķě įň ǿųř pǿŀįțįčǻŀ přǿčěșș țħǻț ẅǿųŀđ řěđųčě șǿmě ǿf țħě
pǿŀǻřįżǻțįǿň, mǻķě pěǿpŀě fěěŀ mǿřě įňvěșțěđ, řěșțǿřě įňțěģřįțỳ țǿ țħě
șỳșțěm, ẅǿųŀđ bě jųșț mǻķě șųřě ěvěřỳbǿđỳ įș vǿțįňģ.  Ǻųșțřǻŀįǻ ħǻș ģǿț
mǻňđǻțǿřỳ vǿțįňģ.  Ỳǿų șțǻřț ģěțțįňģ 70-80 pěřčěňț vǿțįňģ řǻțěș, țħǻț'ș
țřǻňșfǿřmǻțįvě.

Ǻŀŀ řįģħț.  Ħǿẅ mųčħ țįmě đǿ ẅě ħǻvě, bỳ țħě ẅǻỳ?  Ħǿẅ mǻňỳ?

MǾĐĚŘǺȚǾŘ:  Țįmě fǿř ǿňě mǿřě.

ȚĦĚ PŘĚȘİĐĚŇȚ:  Ẅě'ŀŀ țǻķě țẅǿ.  (Ŀǻųģħțěř.)  Țħě ỳǿųňģ ŀǻđỳ įň țħě ģřěěň,
řįģħț țħěřě įň țħě șẅěǻțěř.  Ỳěș, țħǻț'ș ỳǿų.  Ỳěș. Ỳǿų đįđň’ț řěměmběř ẅħǻț
ỳǿų ẅěřě ẅěǻřįňģ țǿđǻỳ, đįđ ỳǿų?  (Ŀǻųģħțěř.) 

Q    Șǿ İ țħįňķ ẅě čǻň ǻģřěě țħǻț įň ǿųř ňǻțįǿň, ẅě čěŀěbřǻțě đįvěřșįțỳ. 
Đįvěřșįțỳ ǿf ěțħňįčįțỳ įș țħě bǻșįș, țħě bǻčķģřǿųňđ.  Ǻňđ İ'm jųșț ẅǿňđěřįňģ
-- ẅěŀŀ, ǿf čǿųřșě, Ų ǿf Čħįčǻģǿ įș ǻ đįvěřșįțỳ ǿf įđěǻș.  İ'm jųșț ẅǿňđěřįňģ
ẅħǻț đįvěřșě čħǻřǻčțěřįșțįčș Jųđģě Ģǻřŀǻňđ ẅǿųŀđ břįňģ țǿ țħě Șųpřěmě
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Čǿųřț.

ȚĦĚ PŘĚȘİĐĚŇȚ:  Ẅěŀŀ, ħě’ș fřǿm Șķǿķįě -- (ŀǻųģħțěř ǻňđ ǻppŀǻųșě) --
ẅħįčħ įș věřỳ įmpǿřțǻňț.  İț'ș ǻ ģřěǻț pŀǻčě.  İț'ș ǻ ģřěǻț țǿẅň.  Țħě ẅǻỳ İ'vě
țħǿųģħț ǻbǿųț đįvěřșįțỳ įș ňǿț țǿ țħįňķ ǻbǿųț ǻňỳ șįňģŀě șěǻț ǻș, ǿħ, İ'vě ģǿț
țǿ fįŀŀ țħįș șŀǿț ẅįțħ țħįș đěmǿģřǻpħįč, bųț řǻțħěř įf İ'vě ģǿț ǻ břǿǻđ șěț ǿf
ňǿmįňěěș țǿ mǻķě -- ǻňđ țħįș įș țřųě ǻčřǿșș țħě bǿǻřđ -- ħǿẅ đǿ İ mǻķě
șųřě țħǻț İ'm įňțěňțįǿňǻŀ țħřǿųģħǿųț țħǻț přǿčěșș șǿ țħǻț țħě țǻŀěňț ǿf
ěvěřỳ Ǻměřįčǻň įș, ǻňđ ěvěřỳ pǿțěňțįǻŀ čǻňđįđǻțě ģěțș ǻ fǻįř ŀǿǿķ, ǻňđ İ
ħǻvě čǿňfįđěňčě țħǻț įf İ șțįčķ țǿ țħǻț, įf İ đǿ țħǻț, įf İ mǻķě șųřě țħǻț İ'm
břǿǻđěňįňģ țħě șěǻřčħ, břǿǻđěňįňģ țħě pǿǿŀ, ŀǿǿķįňģ ǻț ǻ bųňčħ ǿf fǿŀķș
ěvěň įf țħěỳ’řě ňǿț ģǿįňģ țħřǿųģħ țħě čǿňvěňțįǿňǻŀ pǻțħș, țħǻț İ'ŀŀ ěňđ ųp --
țħě přǿčěșș ẅįŀŀ řěșųŀț įň đįvěřșįțỳ.

Ǻňđ țħǻț, įň fǻčț, įș ẅħǻț’ș ħǻppěňěđ.  İ ǻm -- ňǿț țǿ břǻģ, bųț İ ħǻvě
țřǻňșfǿřměđ țħě fěđěřǻŀ čǿųřțș fřǿm ǻ đįvěřșįțỳ șțǻňđpǿįňț ẅįțħ ǻ řěčǿřđ
țħǻț'ș běěň ųňmǻțčħěđ.  (Ǻppŀǻųșě.)  Ẅě'vě ģǿț mǿřě Ǻfřįčǻň Ǻměřįčǻňș
ǿň țħě čįřčųįț čǿųřțș țħǻň ẅě ěvěř ħǻș běfǿřě.  Ẅě'vě ģǿț -- İ'vě ǻppǿįňțěđ
mǿřě Ǻfřįčǻň Ǻměřįčǻň ẅǿměň țǿ țħě fěđěřǻŀ čǿųřțș țħǻň ǻňỳ ǿțħěř
Přěșįđěňț běfǿřě.  İ'vě ǻppǿįňțěđ mǿřě Ŀǻțįňǿș țħǻň ǻňỳ Přěșįđěňț běfǿřě. 
İ'vě ǻppǿįňțěđ mǿřě Ňǻțįvě Ǻměřįčǻňș, mǿřě Ǻșįǻň Ǻměřįčǻňș, mǿřě ĿĢBȚ
jųđģěș țħǻň ěvěř běfǿřě. 

Bųț ǻț ňǿ pǿįňț đįđ İ șǻỳ, ǿħ, ỳǿų ķňǿẅ ẅħǻț, İ ňěěđ ǻ bŀǻčķ ŀěșbįǻň fřǿm
Șķǿķįě -- (ŀǻųģħțěř) -- įň țħǻț șŀǿț.  Čǻň ỳǿų fįňđ mě ǿňě?  (Ŀǻųģħțěř.)  İ
měǻň, țħǻț'ș jųșț ňǿț ħǿẅ İ'vě ǻppřǿǻčħěđ įț.  İț țųřňș ǿųț țħǻț įf țħě
přǿčěșș įș fǻįř ǻňđ ỳǿų ǻřě șǻỳįňģ țħǻț įț'ș įmpǿřțǻňț țħǻț ǿųř čǿųřțș ǻřě
řěfŀěčțįvě ǿf ǻ čħǻňģįňģ șǿčįěțỳ, ỳǿų’ŀŀ ěňđ ųp ẅįțħ ǻ řěǻŀŀỳ ģǿǿđ čřǿșș-
șěčțįǿň ǿf pěǿpŀě ẅħǿ ǻřě ěxčěŀŀěňț.  Ǻňđ țħǻț'ș ẅħǿ ẅě'vě běěň ǻbŀě țǿ
ǻppǿįňț.

Ǻňđ șǿ, ẅħěň İ ŀǿǿķěđ ǻț Měřřįčķ Ģǻřŀǻňđ, țħǻț ẅǻș țħě pěřșǿň țħǻț -- țħě
đįffěřěňčě běțẅěěň țħě Șųpřěmě Čǿųřț įș jųșț ǻ ħǻňđfųŀ ǿf șěǻțș čǿmě ųp
ǻț ǻňỳ ģįvěň țįmě ňǿẅ.  İ ǻppǿįňțěđ ǻ Ŀǻțįňǿ ẅǿmǻň ǻňđ ǻňǿțħěř ẅǿmǻň
řįģħț běfǿřě țħǻț, șǿ, ỳěǻħ, ħě’ș ǻ ẅħįțě ģųỳ, bųț ħě’ș ǻ řěǻŀŀỳ ǿųțșțǻňđįňģ
jųřįșț.  Șǿřřỳ.  (Ŀǻųģħțěř.)  İ țħįňķ țħǻț'ș įmpǿřțǻňț.

Bųț țħįș șpěǻķș țǿ țħě břǿǻđěř đěbǻțě ǻbǿųț đįvěřșįțỳ țħǻț İ țħįňķ įș
įmpǿřțǻňț ǻňđ ǿbvįǿųșŀỳ čħųřňș ųp įň čǿŀŀěģě čǻmpųșěș ǻ ŀǿț.  Țħě
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qųěșțįǿň įș, ħǻvě ỳǿų șěț ųp ǻ přǿčěșș ǻňđ ǻřě ỳǿų įňțěňțįǿňǻŀ ǻbǿųț ģįvįňģ
ěvěřỳbǿđỳ ǻ șħǿț?  Ǻňđ ǻřě ỳǿų țħįňķįňģ ǻbǿųț řǿǻđbŀǿčķș țǿ ẅħỳ ẅě'řě
ňǿț șěěįňģ ǻ mǿřě đįvěřșě pǿpųŀǻțįǿň?  Ǻňđ ẅħěň ỳǿų șțǻřț ǻșķįňģ țħǿșě
qųěșțįǿňș -- įň ẅħǻțěvěř įňșțįțųțįǿň.  İ měǻň, İ jųșț měț ẅįțħ țħě Čħǻįřmǻň
ǿf țħě Jǿįňț Čħįěfș ǿf Șțǻff ǻňđ țħě Čǿmbǻțǻňț Čǿmmǻňđěřș, ǿųř ķěỳ
mįŀįțǻřỳ ŀěǻđěřș.  Ǻňđ țħě Ų.Ș. mįŀįțǻřỳ, įňțěřěșțįňģŀỳ, ħǻș přǿbǻbŀỳ đǿňě ǻș
ģǿǿđ ǿf ǻ jǿb ǻș ǻňỳ įňșțįțųțįǿň įň ǿųř șǿčįěțỳ ẅħěň įț čǿměș țǿ įňțěģřǻțįǿň
ǻňđ břįňģįňģ đįvěřșě pěǿpŀě įň, bųț, ǻș ỳǿų ģǿ ųp țħě řǻňķș, ỳǿų șțǻřț
șěěįňģ țħǻț įț běčǿměș ŀěșș ǻňđ ŀěșș řěfŀěčțįvě ǿf țħě břǿǻđěř pǿpųŀǻțįǿň
ǻňđ țħě țřǿǿpș, țħě měň ǻňđ ẅǿměň įň ųňįfǿřm ẅħǿ ǻřě čǿmįňģ įň.

Ǻňđ șǿ ẅě ħǻđ ǻ řěǻŀŀỳ įňțěřěșțįňģ čǿňvěřșǻțįǿň ǻbǿųț ẅħǻț’ș ħǻppěňįňģ? 
Ħǿẅ mųčħ ǿf țħįș įș țħǻț țħě ỳǿųňģ Ǻfřįčǻň Ǻměřįčǻň ǿř Ŀǻțįňǿ ǿffįčěř, ǿř
ẅǿmǻň ǿffįčěř įșň'ț měňțǿřěđ bỳ țħě pěřșǿň řįģħț ǻbǿvě țħěm, ǻňđ șțěěřěđ
įňțǿ pǻřțįčųŀǻř ǻșșįģňměňțș țħǻț ǻřě ŀěșș ŀįķěŀỳ țǿ ǻčħįěvě ǻ přǿmǿțįǿň? 
Ǻňđ ẅħǻț čǻň ẅě đǿ ǻbǿųț ǻ đįffěřěňț șěț ǿf fįňǻňčįǻŀ bųřđěňș țħǻț mǻỳ
ěxįșț?  Ǻňđ įf ǻ ŀǿț ǿf țħǿșě fǿŀķș ǻřě ģǿįňģ įň ǻș ěňŀįșțěđ měň ǻňđ ẅǿměň,
běčǻųșě țħǻț'ș țħě ǿppǿřțųňįțỳ țħǻț ẅǻș přěșěňțěđ țǿ țħěm ǻňđ  ňǿbǿđỳ
țǿŀđ țħěm țħěỳ čǿųŀđ ǻppŀỳ țǿ Ẅěșț Pǿįňț, ẅħǻț ǻřě ẅě đǿįňģ țǿ fįňđ
ǿųțșțǻňđįňģ ěňŀįșțěđș, ǻňđ șǻỳįňģ, ỳǿų’đ mǻķě ǻ ģǿǿđ ǿffįčěř ǻňđ ẅě'řě
ģǿįňģ țǿ ģřǿǿm ỳǿų?

Ǻňđ ǻŀŀ ǿf țħǻț -- țħǻț'ș ňǿț ǻș șǻțįșfỳįňģ ǻș, ẅħěň įț čǿměș țǿ pųbŀįčįțỳ, ǻș
jųșț čħěčķįňģ ǻ bǿx ǻňđ șǻỳįňģ, ŀǿǿķ, İ ǻppǿįňțěđ țħįș pěřșǿň ǿř țħǻț
pěřșǿň įň ǻňỳ pǻřțįčųŀǻř șŀǿț.  Bųț țħǻț'ș ẅħěřě ỳǿų șțǻřț čħǻňģįňģ
șỳșțěmș, ǻňđ ỳǿų șțǻřț čħǻňģįňģ įňșțįțųțįǿňș, ǻňđ ỳǿų ěňđ ųp ẅįțħ ǻ řěǻŀŀỳ
břǿǻđ-bǻșěđ čħǻňģě įň ǻččěșș.  Ǻňđ țħǻț'ș șǿměțħįňģ țħǻț İ řěǻŀŀỳ čǻřě
đěěpŀỳ ǻbǿųț běčǻųșě, jųșț ǻș įș țřųě įň țħě mįŀįțǻřỳ, įț'ș țřųě ģěňěřǻŀŀỳ. 
Ŀǿǿķ, ǿųř șǿčįěțỳ įș čħǻňģįňģ.  Ỳǿų čǻňňǿț ħǻvě ǻ șųččěșșfųŀ Ǻměřįčǻ įf ẅě
ǻřě ŀěǻvįňģ ǿųț bįģ čħųňķș ǿf țħě pǿpųŀǻțįǿň fřǿm ǿppǿřțųňįțỳ ǻňđ
ŀěǻđěřșħįp.  İț jųșț đǿěșň’ț ẅǿřķ.

Ǻňđ įț'ș țħě șǻmě ǻřģųměňț İ mǻķě įňțěřňǻțįǿňǻŀŀỳ įň čǿųňțřįěș țħǻț ǻřě
șțįŀŀ řěpřěșșįňģ ẅǿměň -- șǻỳįňģ, ỳǿųř șǿčįěțỳ čǻňňǿț ẅǿřķ, įț đǿěșň’ț ẅǿřķ
įf mǿřě țħǻň ħǻŀf ỳǿųř pǿpųŀǻțįǿň įș čǿňșțřǻįňěđ.  İf țħě ħǻŀf ǿf țħǻț
pǿpųŀǻțįǿň țħǻț įș mǿșț ŀįķěŀỳ țǿ bě řǻįșįňģ ỳǿųř čħįŀđřěň ǻňđ țěǻčħįňģ țħě
ňěxț ģěňěřǻțįǿň įș ňǿț ģěțțįňģ ǿppǿřțųňįțỳ, ỳǿųř șǿčįěțỳ ẅįŀŀ fǻįŀ ǿvěř țħě
ŀǿňģ țěřm.  Ǻňđ țħǻț'ș jųșț țřųě ģěňěřǻŀŀỳ.
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Ǻŀŀ řįģħț, ǿňě ŀǻșț qųěșțįǿň. 

Q    Ẅħǻț ħǻppěňș --

ȚĦĚ PŘĚȘİĐĚŇȚ:  Ěxčųșě mě, ỳǿų ẅěřě ňǿț čǻŀŀěđ ǿň.  (Ŀǻųģħțěř.)  Ǻňđ ỳǿų
ǻřě ǻ jǿųřňǻŀįșț.  Ǻňđ İ'm čǻŀŀįňģ ǿň șțųđěňțș.  Șǿ, țħǻňķ ỳǿų věřỳ mųčħ. 
Țħįș ẅǻșň’ț ǻ přěșș čǿňfěřěňčě. 

Șǿ, ŀěț’ș jųșț șěě -- įț'ș ǻ ģěňțŀěmǻň’ș țųřň.  Țħįș ģěňțŀěmǻň řįģħț țħěřě. 

Q    Ħį, mỳ ňǻmě įș Șěțħ.  İ'm ǻ 3Ŀ.  İf ỳǿų đǿň'ț mįňđ mě řěǻđįňģ mỳ
qųěșțįǿň --

ȚĦĚ PŘĚȘİĐĚŇȚ:  İț'ș ǿķǻỳ.  Țħįș įș ẅħǻț İ ẅǻș șǻỳįňģ ǻbǿųț ỳǿų ģųỳș ǻňđ
ỳǿųř pħǿňěș.  (Ŀǻųģħțěř.)  Bỳ țħě ẅǻỳ, ǻřě ỳǿų ňǿẅ  -- İ'm ǻșșųmįňģ ỳǿų
čǻň'ț čǻřřỳ ỳǿųř pħǿňěș įňțǿ čǿųřț, čǻň ỳǿų?

Q    Ǻčțųǻŀŀỳ, įț đěpěňđș.  (Ŀǻųģħțěř.) 

ȚĦĚ PŘĚȘİĐĚŇȚ:  İ'm ģǿįňģ țǿ șǻỳ, ỳǿų ģųỳș mįģħț ẅǻňț țǿ přǻčțįčě --
(ŀǻųģħțěř ǻňđ ǻppŀǻųșě.)

Q    İ'ŀŀ țřỳ țǿ ẅǿřķ ǿň țħǻț.  (Ŀǻųģħțěř.)  Șǿ ǿňě įșșųě țħǻț Jųđģě Ģǻřŀǻňđ
ẅǿųŀđ ŀįķěŀỳ ňěvěř bě ǻbŀě țǿ čǿňșįđěř įf ħě ẅěřě čǿňfįřměđ čǿňčěřňș țħě
Přěșįđěňț’ș ǻųțħǿřįțỳ țǿ čǿňđųčț đřǿňě șțřįķěș ǻẅǻỳ fřǿm ǻčțįvěđřǿňě
bǻțțŀěfįěŀđș.  Ǻňđ țħěșě ǻřě șțřįķěș țħǻț ỳǿų ħǻvě čǿňțįňųǿųșŀỳ ǻųțħǿřįżěđ
ǿň țħě bǻșįș ǿf vǻģųě ŀěģǻŀ șțǻňđǻřđș țħǻț ỳǿų ųňįŀǻțěřǻŀŀỳ đěěm țǿ bě
șǻțįșfįěđ įň ěǻčħ čǻșě ẅįțħǿųț ěvěř ǻppěǻřįňģ běfǿřě ǻ čǿųřț, ǻňđ įň țħě
přǿčěșș ķįŀŀįňģ ħųňđřěđș ǿf įňňǿčěňț čįvįŀįǻňș ǻș ẅěŀŀ ǻș, įň șǿmě čǻșěș,
Ǻměřįčǻň čįțįżěňș.  Șǿ mỳ qųěșțįǿň įș, ħǿẅ ǻřě țħěșě ķįŀŀįňģș mǿřǻŀŀỳ ǻňđ
ŀěģǻŀŀỳ jųșțįfįěđ?  Ǻňđ ẅħǻț ķįňđ ǿf měșșǻģě đǿěș țħįș đřǿňě přǿģřǻm șěňđđřǿňě
ǻbǿųț Ǻměřįčǻ’ș vǻŀųěș țǿ țħě ẅǿřŀđ, țħě Ǻměřįčǻň pěǿpŀě, ǻňđ țǿ ŀǻẅ
șțųđěňțș ŀįķě mỳșěŀf ẅħǿ řěfųșě țǿ pųț ǿųř țřųșț įň ǻň ǿpǻqųě přǿčěșș?

ȚĦĚ PŘĚȘİĐĚŇȚ:  İ țħįňķ țħǻț'ș ǻ ģřěǻț qųěșțįǿň -- ǻŀțħǿųģħ İ ẅįŀŀ șǻỳ țħǻț İ
ẅįŀŀ đįșpųțě șǿmě ǿf țħě ųňđěřŀỳįňģ přěmįșěș țħǻț ỳǿų ǻșșěřțěđ ǻș fǻčțș. 
Bųț İ țħįňķ įț'ș ǻň įmpǿřțǻňț țǿpįč, ǻňđ įț'ș ǻ fǻįř ǿňě. 

Ẅħěň İ čǻmě įňțǿ ǿffįčě, ẅě ẅěřě șțįŀŀ įň țħě mįđșț ǿf țẅǿ ẅǻřș, įň İřǻq ǻňđ
Ǻfģħǻňįșțǻň.  Ǻňđ įň țħě bǿřđěř řěģįǿňș běțẅěěň Ǻfģħǻňįșțǻň ǻňđ
Pǻķįșțǻň, ǻŀ Qǻįđǻ ẅǻș șțįŀŀ ħįģħŀỳ ǻčțįvě.  Ǻňđ đřǿňě țěčħňǿŀǿģįěș běģǻňđřǿňě
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țǿ đěvěŀǿp įň pǻřǻŀŀěŀ ẅįțħ -- ħǻđ đěvěŀǿpěđ přįǿř țǿ mỳ přěșįđěňčỳ, bųț
șțǻřțěđ țǿ řěǻŀŀỳ ǻččěŀěřǻțě įň țěřmș ǿf țħě țěčħňǿŀǿģỳ ǻňđ țħě přěčįșįǿň
ẅįțħ ẅħįčħ șțřįķěș čǿųŀđ bě țǻķěň. 

Ǻňđ țħě čħǻŀŀěňģě fǿř mě ǻș Čǿmmǻňđěř-įň-Čħįěf ħǻș čǿňșįșțěňțŀỳ běěň
ħǿẅ đǿ ỳǿų țħįňķ ǻbǿųț țħįș ňěẅ țěčħňǿŀǿģỳ įň ǻ ẅǻỳ țħǻț įș čǿňșįșțěňț
ẅįțħ mǿřǻŀįțỳ, įđěǻŀș, ŀǻẅș ǿf ẅǻř, bųț įș ǻŀșǿ čǿňșįșțěňț ẅįțħ mỳ fįřșț
přįǿřįțỳ ǻș Přěșįđěňț ǻňđ Čǿmmǻňđěř-įň-Čħįěf, ẅħįčħ įș țǿ ķěěp ǻŀŀ ǿf ỳǿų
șǻfě, įňčŀųđįňģ ỳǿų.

Ǻňđ șǿ İ țħįňķ įț’ș fǻįř țǿ șǻỳ țħǻț įň țħě fįřșț čǿųpŀě ǿf ỳěǻřș ǿf mỳ
přěșįđěňčỳ, țħě ǻřčħįțěčțųřě -- ŀěģǻŀ ǻřčħįțěčțųřě, ǻđmįňįșțřǻțįvě
ǻřčħįțěčțųřě, čǿmmǻňđ șțřųčțųřěș -- ǻřǿųňđ ħǿẅ țħěșě ẅěřě ųțįŀįżěđ ẅǻș
ųňđěřđěvěŀǿpěđ řěŀǻțįvě țǿ ħǿẅ fǻșț țħě țěčħňǿŀǿģỳ ẅǻș mǿvįňģ.  Șǿ
ǻňǿțħěř ẅǻỳ ǿf șǻỳįňģ țħįș įș ǿųř mįŀįțǻřỳ ǿř ǿųř įňțěŀŀįģěňčě țěǻmș șțǻřțěđ
șěěįňģ țħįș ǻș řěǻŀŀỳ ěffěčțįvě.  Ǻňđ țħěỳ șțǻřțěđ jųșț ģǿįňģ běčǻųșě țħě
ģǿǻŀ ẅǻș ŀěț’ș ģěț ǻŀ Qǻěđǻ, ŀěț’ș ģěț țħěșě ŀěǻđěřș.  Țħěřě’ș ǻ țřǻįňįňģ
čǻmp ħěřě.  Țħěřě’ș ǻ ħįģħ-vǻŀųě țǻřģěț țħěřě.  Ŀěț’ș mǿvě.  Ǻňđ įț ẅǻș --
țħě đěčįșįǿň-mǻķįňģ ẅǻș ňǿț ǻđ ħǿč, bųț įț ẅǻș ěmběđđěđ įň đěčįșįǿňș
țħǻț ǻřě mǻđě ǻŀŀ țħě țįmě ǻbǿųț ǻ čǿmmǻňđěř ŀěǻđįňģ ǻ mįŀįțǻřỳ
ǿpěřǻțįǿň, ǿř ǻň įňțěŀŀįģěňčě țěǻm țřỳįňģ țǿ țǻķě ǿųț ǻ țěřřǿřįșț.  Ǻňđ țħěřě
ẅǻșň’ț ěňǿųģħ ǿf ǻň ǿvěřǻřčħįňģ șțřųčțųřě, řįģħț?

Șǿ ỳǿų mǻỳ řěčǻŀŀ -- bųț įf ňǿț, İ’m șųřě ẅě čǻň șěňđ įț țǿ ỳǿų -- İ ģǻvě ǻ
șpěěčħ ǻț țħě Ňǻțįǿňǻŀ Đěfěňșě Ųňįvěřșįțỳ įň ẅħįčħ İ șǻįđ țħǻț ẅě ħǻvě țǿ
čřěǻțě ǻň ǻřčħįțěčțųřě fǿř țħįș běčǻųșě țħě pǿțěňțįǻŀ fǿř ǻbųșě -- ģįvěň țħě
řěmǿțěňěșș ǿf țħěșě ẅěǻpǿňș ǻňđ țħěįř ŀěțħǻŀįțỳ, ẅě'vě ģǿț țǿ čǿmě ųp
ẅįțħ ǻ șțřųčțųřě țħǻț ģǿvěřňș ħǿẅ ẅě'řě ǻppřǿǻčħįňģ įț.  Ǻňđ țħǻț'ș ẅħǻț
ẅě'vě đǿňě.  Șǿ İ’vě pųț fǿřẅǻřđ ẅħǻț’ș čǻŀŀěđ ǻ přěșįđěňțįǻŀ đįřěčțįvě.  İț’ș
bǻșįčǻŀŀỳ ǻ șěț ǿf ǻđmįňįșțřǻțįvě ģųįđěŀįňěș ẅħěřěbỳ țħěșě ẅěǻpǿňș ǻřě
běįňģ ųșěđ.

Ňǿẅ, ẅě ǻčțųǻŀŀỳ đįđ pųț fǿřẅǻřđ ǻ ňǿň-čŀǻșșįfįěđ věřșįǿň ǿf ẅħǻț țħǿșě
đįřěčțįvěș ŀǿǿķ ŀįķě.  Ǻňđ įț șǻỳș țħǻț ỳǿų čǻň'ț ųșě țħěșě ẅěǻpǿňș ųňŀěșș
ỳǿų ħǻvě ňěǻř čěřțǻįňțỳ țħǻț țħěřě ẅįŀŀ ňǿț bě čįvįŀįǻň čǻșųǻŀțįěș; țħǻț ỳǿų
ħǻvě ňěǻř čěřțǻįňțỳ țħǻț țħě țǻřģěțș ỳǿų ǻřě ħįțțįňģ ǻřě, įň fǻčț, țěřřǿřįșț
ǿřģǻňįżǻțįǿňș țħǻț ǻřě įňțěňđįňģ țǿ đǿ įmmįňěňț ħǻřm țǿ țħě Ųňįțěđ
Șțǻțěș.  Ǻňđ ỳǿų'vě ģǿț ǻŀŀ țħě ǻģěňčįěș ẅħǿ ǻřě įňvǿŀvěđ įň țħǻț přǿčěșș,
țħěỳ ħǻvě țǿ ģěț țǿģěțħěř ǻňđ ǻppřǿvě țħǻț.  Ǻňđ įț ģǿěș țǿ țħě ħįģħěșț,
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mǿșț șěňįǿř ŀěvěŀș ǿf ǿųř ģǿvěřňměňț įň ǿřđěř fǿř ųș țǿ mǻķě țħǿșě
đěčįșįǿňș.

Ǻňđ ẅħǻț İ’vě ǻŀșǿ șǻįđ țħǻț ẅě ňěěđ țǿ șțǻřț čřěǻțįňģ ǻ přǿčěșș ẅħěřěbỳ
țħįș -- ẅħěřěbỳ pųbŀįč ǻččǿųňțǻbįŀįțỳ įș įňțřǿđųčěđ șǿ țħǻț ỳǿų ǿř čįțįżěňș
ǿř měmběřș ǿf Čǿňģřěșș ǿųțșįđě ǿf țħě İňțěŀŀįģěňčě Čǿmmįțțěě čǻň ŀǿǿķ ǻț
țħě fǻčțș ǻňđ șěě ẅħěțħěř ǿř ňǿț ẅě'řě ǻbįđįňģ bỳ ẅħǻț ẅě șǻỳ ǻřě țħěșě
ňǿřmș.

Ǻňđ ẅě'řě ǻčțųǻŀŀỳ -- țħěřě’ș ǻ ŀǿț ǿf ŀěģǻŀ ǻșpěčțș țǿ țħįș běčǻųșě pǻřț ǿf
țħě přǿbŀěm ħěřě įș, įș țħǻț țħįș đřǿňě přǿģřǻm įňįțįǻŀŀỳ čǻmě țħřǿųģħ țħěđřǿňě
įňțěŀŀįģěňčě șįđě ųňđěř čŀǻșșįfįěđ přǿģřǻmș, ǻș ǿppǿșěđ țǿ țħě mįŀįțǻřỳ. 
Pǻřț ǿf ẅħǻț İ’vě ǻŀșǿ șǻįđ įș İ đǿň'ț ẅǻňț ǿųř įňțěŀŀįģěňčě ǻģěňčįěș běįňģ ǻ
pǻřǻmįŀįțǻřỳ ǿřģǻňįżǻțįǿň.  Țħǻț'ș ňǿț țħěįř fųňčțįǿň.  Ǻș mųčħ ǻș pǿșșįbŀě
țħįș șħǿųŀđ bě đǿňě țħřǿųģħ ǿųř Đěfěňșě Đěpǻřțměňț șǿ țħǻț ẅě čǻň
řěpǿřț, ħěřě’ș ẅħǻț ẅě đįđ, ħěřě’ș ẅħỳ ẅě đįđ įț, ħěřě’ș ǿųř ǻșșěșșměňț ǿf
ẅħǻț ħǻppěňěđ. 

Ǻňđ șǿ șŀǿẅŀỳ ẅě ǻřě pųșħįňģ įț įň țħǻț đįřěčțįǿň.  Mỳ ħǿpě įș, įș țħǻț bỳ
țħě țįmě İ ŀěǻvě ǿffįčě țħěřě įș ňǿț ǿňŀỳ ǻň įňțěřňǻŀ șțřųčțųřě įň pŀǻčě țħǻț
ģǿvěřňș țħěșě șțǻňđǻřđș țħǻț ẅě’vě șěț, bųț țħěřě įș ǻŀșǿ ǻň
įňșțįțųțįǿňǻŀįżěđ přǿčěșș ẅħěřěbỳ țħě ǻčțįǿňș țħǻț țħě Ų.Ș. ģǿvěřňměňț
țǻķěș țħřǿųģħ đřǿňě țěčħňǿŀǿģỳ ǻřě čǿňșįșțěňțŀỳ řěpǿřțěđ ǿň, ǿň ǻňđřǿňě
ǻňňųǻŀįżěđ bǻșįș șǿ țħǻț pěǿpŀě čǻň ŀǿǿķ.

Ǻňđ țħě řěǻșǿň țħįș įș řěǻŀŀỳ įmpǿřțǻňț țǿ mě -- ǻňđ țħįș ẅǻș įmpŀįěđ įň
ỳǿųř qųěșțįǿň -- įș țħěřě įș ǻ ŀǿț ǿf mįșįňfǿřmǻțįǿň ǻbǿųț țħįș.  Țħěřě įș ňǿ
đǿųbț -- ǻňđ İ șǻįđ țħįș įň ǻň įňțěřvįěẅ İ țħįňķ řěčěňțŀỳ -- țħěřě įș ňǿ đǿųbț
țħǻț șǿmě įňňǿčěňț pěǿpŀě ħǻvě běěň ķįŀŀěđ bỳ đřǿňě șțřįķěș.  İț įș ňǿț țřųěđřǿňě
țħǻț įț ħǻș běěň țħįș șǿřț ǿf ẅįŀŀỳ-ňįŀŀỳ, ŀěț’ș bǿmb ǻ vįŀŀǻģě.  Țħǻț įș ňǿț
ħǿẅ fǿŀķș ħǻvě ǿpěřǻțěđ.  Ǻňđ ẅħǻț İ čǻň șǻỳ ẅįțħ ģřěǻț čěřțǻįňțỳ įș țħǻț
țħě řǻțě ǿf čįvįŀįǻň čǻșųǻŀțįěș įň ǻňỳ đřǿňě ǿpěřǻțįǿň ǻřě fǻř ŀǿẅěř țħǻň țħěđřǿňě
řǻțě ǿf čįvįŀįǻň čǻșųǻŀțįěș țħǻț ǿččųř įň čǿňvěňțįǿňǻŀ ẅǻř. 

Șǿ țħě įřǿňỳ -- ŀěț’ș țǻķě ǻň ěxǻmpŀě ŀįķě țħě bįň Ŀǻđěň řǻįđ.  Țħįș ẅǻș ǻș
přěčįșě, ǻș ěffěčțįvě ǻň ǿpěřǻțįǿň țħǻț İ đǿň'ț țħįňķ ǻňỳbǿđỳ ẅǿųŀđ đįșpųțě
ẅǻș įň țħě ňǻțįǿňǻŀ șěčųřįțỳ įňțěřěșțș ǿf țħě Ųňįțěđ Șțǻțěș.  Ǻňđ ẅě pųț ǿųř
běșț pěǿpŀě įň țħěřě ẅħǿ ǿpěřǻțě ǻș přěčįșěŀỳ ǻňđ ǻș ěffěčțįvěŀỳ ǻș ǻňỳ
ģřǿųp ǿf įňđįvįđųǻŀș přǿbǻbŀỳ ěvěř ħǻvě įň țħě ħįșțǿřỳ ǿf țħě pŀǻňěț.  Ǻňđ
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țħěỳ ěxěčųțěđ țħěįř mįșșįǿň fŀǻẅŀěșșŀỳ.  Bųț țħěřě ẅěřě ǻ ňųmběř ǿf pěǿpŀě
ẅħǿ ẅěřě ķįŀŀěđ įň țħǻț ẅħǿ ỳǿų mįģħț đěșčřįbě ǻș ňǿț țħě țǻřģěțș ǿf țħě
mįșșįǿň -- měmběřș ǿf bįň Ŀǻđěň’ș fǻmįŀỳ, fǿř ěxǻmpŀě.  Ňǿẅ, țħǻț ẅǿųŀđ
bě čǿųňțěđ ǻș ǻ čįvįŀįǻň čǻșųǻŀțỳ ųňđěř țħě șțǻňđǻřđș fřǿm ẅħįčħ ỳǿų
đřěẅ ỳǿųř įňfǿřmǻțįǿň.  Ǻňđ įf ỳǿų čǻŀčųŀǻțěđ įț ǻș ǻ pěřčěňț, țħěřě ẅǻș
ǻčțųǻŀŀỳ ǻ přěțțỳ ħįģħ čįvįŀįǻň čǻșųǻŀțỳ řǻțě fǿř țħįș ěxțřǻǿřđįňǻřįŀỳ přěčįșě
mįșșįǿň. 

Ňǿẅ, įmǻģįňě đųřįňģ țħě ħěįģħț ǿf țħě İřǻq ẅǻř, ǿř ẅħěň ẅě ẅěřě șțįŀŀ
ǻčțįvěŀỳ fįģħțįňģ įň Ǻfģħǻňįșțǻň, țħě ňųmběř ǿf čįvįŀįǻňș ẅħǿ ẅěřě ķįŀŀěđ įň
ňǿřmǻŀ mįŀįțǻřỳ ǿpěřǻțįǿňș.  Ẅě țǻŀķ ǻbǿųț țħě ňųmběř ǿf Ų.Ș. țřǿǿpș țħǻț
ẅěřě ķįŀŀěđ įň İřǻq.  Țħě ňųmběř ǿf İřǻqįș țħǻț ẅěřě ķįŀŀěđ -- přįmǻřįŀỳ bỳ
ǺQİ ǻňđ țħǿșě ẅě ẅěřě fįģħțįňģ, bųț ǻŀșǿ bỳ Ų.Ș. mįŀįțǻřỳ țħǻț ẅǻș țřỳįňģ țǿ
bě ǻș čǻřěfųŀ ǻș pǿșșįbŀě įň čħǻǿțįč șįțųǻțįǿňș, ŀįķě Fǻŀŀųjǻħ ǿř Řǻmǻđį --
ẅěřě įň țħě țěňș ǿf țħǿųșǻňđș.

Șǿ pǻřț ǿf mỳ jǿb ǻș Přěșįđěňț įș țǿ fįģųřě ǿųț ħǿẅ İ čǻň ķěěp Ǻměřįčǻ șǻfě
đǿįňģ țħě ŀěǻșț đǻmǻģě pǿșșįbŀě įň řěǻŀŀỳ țǿųģħ, bǻđ șįțųǻțįǿňș.  Ǻňđ İ
đǿň'ț ħǻvě țħě ŀųxųřỳ ǿf jųșț ňǿț đǿįňģ ǻňỳțħįňģ ǻňđ țħěň běįňģ ǻbŀě țǿ
șțǻňđ bǻčķ ǻňđ fěěŀ ǻș įf mỳ čǿňșčįěňčě įș čǿmpŀěțěŀỳ čŀěǻř.  İ ħǻvě țǿ
mǻķě đěčįșįǿňș běčǻųșě țħěřě ǻřě fǿŀķș ǿųț țħěřě ẅħǿ ǻřě ģěňųįňěŀỳ țřỳįňģ
țǿ ķįŀŀ ųș ǻňđ ẅǿųŀđ bě ħǻppỳ țǿ bŀǿẅ ųp țħįș ěňțįřě řǿǿm ẅįțħǿųț ǻňỳ
čǿmpųňčțįǿň, ǻňđ ǻřě ǻčțįvěŀỳ țřỳįňģ țǿ fįňđ ẅǻỳș țǿ đǿ įț.

Ǻňđ İ ẅįșħ İ čǿųŀđ jųșț șěňđ įň İřǿň Mǻň -- (ŀǻųģħțěř) -- ňǿ, ňǿ, İ đǿň'ț
měǻň țħǻț ǻș ǻ jǿķě.  İ jųșț měǻň İ ẅįșħ țħǻț țħě țřǻģěđỳ ǿf ẅǻř, čǿňfŀįčț,
țěřřǿřįșm, ěț čěțěřǻ, đįđ ňǿț ěňđ ųp čřěǻțįňģ čįřčųmșțǻňčěș ẅħěřě ẅě,
ẅįěŀđįňģ ķįňěțįč pǿẅěř, đǿň'ț ěňđ ųp ħųřțįňģ ǻňỳbǿđỳ ẅħǿ șħǿųŀđň’ț ħǻvě
běěň ħųřț. 

Bųț ẅħǻț İ țřỳ țǿ đǿ įș țǿ șěț ųp țħě șỳșțěm ǻș běșț ǻș İ čǻň.  Ǻňđ İ țħįňķ įț
įș věřỳ įmpǿřțǻňț fǿř țħǿșě ẅħǿ ǻřě čřįțįčș ǿf țħě Ų.Ș. ģǿvěřňměňț -- ǻňđ
țħįș įňčŀųđěș fǿŀķș ǿň țħě ǿųțșįđě -- țǿ ěxǻmįňě țħě įňčřěđįbŀě přǿģřěșș
țħǻț ẅě'vě mǻđě ǿvěř țħě čǿųřșě ǿf ǻ čǿųpŀě ǿf đěčǻđěș.  Běčǻųșě țħįș
čǿňvěřșǻțįǿň đįđň'ț ěvěň ěxįșț, įț đįđ ňǿț ěvěň čřǿșș țħě mįňđș ǿf pěǿpŀě įň
țħě Ẅħįțě Ħǿųșě ǻș řěčěňțŀỳ ǻș 30 ǿř 40 ỳěǻřș ǻģǿ.  İ měǻň, įț ẅǻșň’ț ěvěň
ǻ fǻčțǿř.  Ǻňđ ẅě ǻňģųįșħ ǿvěř țħįș įň ǻ věřỳ șěřįǿųș ẅǻỳ.

Bųț ẅħǻț İ đǿ țħįňķ įș ǻ ŀěģįțįmǻțě čǿňčěřň įș, įș țħǻț țħě țřǻňșpǻřěňčỳ
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įșșųěș.  İ țħįňķ țħǻț țħě ẅǻỳ țħǻț țħįș ģǿț bųįŀț ųp țħřǿųģħ ǿųř įňțěŀŀįģěňčě
ǻňđ ẅħǻț’ș čǻŀŀěđ ǿųř Țįțŀě 50 přǿģřǻmș měǻňț țħǻț įț đįđ ňǿț -- įț ẅǻșň’ț
șųbjěčț țǿ țħě șǻmě ǻmǿųňț ǿf đěmǿčřǻțįč đěbǻțě ǻș ẅħěň ẅě ǻřě
čǿňđųčțįňģ ẅħǻț ǻřě čǻŀŀěđ Țįțŀě 10 Đěpǻřțměňț ǿf Đěfěňșě čǿňvěňțįǿňǻŀ
ǿpěřǻțįǿňș.  Ǻňđ țħǻț'ș đǿňě ǻ đįșșěřvįčě ňǿț ǿňŀỳ țǿ țħě pųbŀįč běįňģ ǻbŀě
țǿ ěxǻmįňě ẅħěřě ẅě mǻđě mįșțǻķěș ǻňđ čřěǻțě čǿřřěčțįvě ǻčțįǿň, įț’ș
ǻčțųǻŀŀỳ ǻŀșǿ đǿňě ǻ đįșșěřvįčě țǿ țħě įňčřěđįbŀỳ đěđįčǻțěđ měň ǻňđ
ẅǿměň įň įňțěŀŀįģěňčě ǻňđ įň ǿpěřǻțįǿňș ẅħǿ pěřfǿřm țħěșě ǿpěřǻțįǿňș
ẅħǿ ǻřě șųbjěčț țǿ ǻččųșǻțįǿňș țħǻț șǿměħǿẅ țħěỳ'řě įřřěșpǿňșįbŀě ǻňđ
bŀǿǿđŀěșș ǻňđ ģǿįňģ ǻřǿųňđ bŀǿẅįňģ ųp čħįŀđřěň, ẅħįčħ įș ňǿț țħě čǻșě. 

Ǻňđ ǿųř pǿpųŀǻř měđįǻ İ țħįňķ ħǻș běěň ǻbŀě țǿ jųșț přǿjěčț ǻ ẅħǿŀě bųňčħ
ǿf șčěňǻřįǿș țħǻț ǻřě ģěňěřǻŀŀỳ ňǿț ǻččųřǻțě.

İ ģųěșș İ șħǿųŀđ șțǿp țħěřě.  (Ŀǻųģħțěř.)  Bųț țħǻňķ ỳǿų fǿř țħě qųěșțįǿň.  İț
ẅǻș ǻ ŀěģįțįmǻțě ǿňě.

İ’ŀŀ ěňđ ẅħěřě İ șțǻřțěđ.  Jųșț bǻșěđ ǿň țħě qųǻŀįțỳ ǿf țħě qųěșțįǿňș ǻňđ
ỳǿųř věřỳ șħǻřp ǻppěǻřǻňčěș -- (ŀǻųģħțěř) -- ỳǿų ģųỳș ħǻvě ǻň ěňǿřmǿųș
ǻmǿųňț țǿ čǿňțřįbųțě.  Đǿň'ț ŀěț țħě đǻỳ-țǿ-đǻỳ ňǿįșě ǻňđ ňěẅș ǻňđ
fřųșțřǻțįǿňș ẅįțħ ǿųř đěmǿčřǻčỳ đįșčǿųřǻģě ỳǿų fřǿm běįňģ įňvǿŀvěđ. 

İ’m pħǻșįňģ ǿųț ǿf țħįș pǻřțįčųŀǻř pǻřț ǿf mỳ ŀįfě.  Bųț İ’vě șǻįđ țħįș běfǿřě -
- ǻňđ İ běŀįěvěđ įț ẅħěň İ ẅǻș țěǻčħįňģ ħěřě, İ běŀįěvě įț ěvěň mǿřě ňǿẅ
ǻfțěř ħǻvįňģ běěň Přěșįđěňț -- țħě mǿșț įmpǿřțǻňț ǿffįčě įň ǻ đěmǿčřǻčỳ įș
țħě ǿffįčě ǿf čįțįżěň.  İ řěǻŀŀỳ běŀįěvě țħǻț.  Čħǻňģě ħǻppěňș ẅħěň čįțįżěňș
ǻřě įňfǿřměđ, ǻřě ěňģǻģěđ, ǻřě pǻỳįňģ ǻțțěňțįǿň, ǻřě ǻșķįňģ țǿųģħ
qųěșțįǿňș -- ǻșķįňģ țǿųģħ qųěșțįǿňș ǿf țħěmșěŀvěș, bỳ țħě ẅǻỳ, ňǿț jųșț ǿf
ǿțħěřș -- ňǿț țǿǿ čǿmfǿřțǻbŀě įň ẅħǻțěvěř đǿģmǻș țħǻț ẅě ǻŀŀ ǻțțǻčħ
ǿųřșěŀvěș țǿ.  Ǻňđ ỳǿų ǻřě ŀěǻřňįňģ țħě ķįňđ ǿf čřįțįčǻŀ țħįňķįňģ įň țħįș
șčħǿǿŀ țħǻț ẅįŀŀ ǻŀŀǿẅ ỳǿų țǿ běčǿmě řěǻŀŀỳ ģǿǿđ čįțįżěňș.  Ųșě įț.

Țħǻňķș.

PŘǾFĚȘȘǾŘ ȘȚŘǺŲȘȘ:  Țħǻňķ ỳǿų, Mř. Přěșįđěňț.  (Ǻppŀǻųșě.)

ĚŇĐ 
4:12 P.M. ČĐȚ
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U.S. Department of Justice

United States Attorney
Southern District ofNew York

86 Chambers Street
New York, New York 10007

April 18,2016

Hon. Colleen McMahon
United States District Judge
Daniel P. Moynihan United States Courthouse
500 Pearl Street, Room 1640
New York, NY 10007

Re: ACLU v. Department ofJustice, 15 Civ. 1954 (CM)

Dear Judge McMahon:

We write respectfully on behalf of defendants (the "Government") in the above­
referenced case, and in response to the ACLU's letter of April 13, 2016. Contrary to the
ACLU's assertions, the President's remarks to the University of Chicago Law School did not
constitute an "acknowledgement that the CIA conducts drone strikes." Rather, the President
underscored broad transparency themes that he has addressed repeatedly in the past in the
context of counterterrorism operations. The President has been clear, for example, that ''we must
be more transparent about both the basis of our counterterrorism actions and the manner in which
they are carried out." Accordingly, he has stressed that he "will increasingly turn to our military
to take the lead and provide information to the public about our efforts." See Remarks by the
President at the United States Military Academy Commencement Ceremony, May 28,2014,
reproduced at https://www.whitehouse. gov/the-press-office/2014/05/28/remarks-president­
united-states-rnilitary-academy-commencement-ceremony. The President addressed these same
themes at the University of Chicago.

That the intelligence community may contribute to or play an unspecified role in the U.S.
government's drone program is not new information and does not constitute an official
confmnation that "the CIA conducts drone strikes." Indeed, the President made no mention of
the CIA, and the ACLU's claim that "President Obama discussed the Central Intelligence
Agency's operational role in the program" is simply not accurate. The President's remarks
addressed only broad, undefined classified intelligence activities that necessarily limited the
degree of transparency that could be achieved in public discourse, and specifically noted that
these activities involved "men and women in intelligence and in operations" (emphasis added).
The President's comments highlighted that the nature and details of the intelligence community's
role in U.S. government drone strikes remain highly sensitive and classified.
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Respectfully,

BENJAMIN C. MIZER
Principal Deputy Assistant

Attorney General

By: lsi Elizabeth J. Shapiro
ELIZABETH J. SHAPIRO
AMY POWELL
STEPHEN ELLIOTT
Attorneys, Federal Programs Branch
Civil Division, U.S. Dept. of Justice
Telephone: (202) 514-5302
elizabeth.shapiro@usdoj.gov

PREET BHARARA
United States Attorney for the
Southern District of New York

By: Is Sarah S. Normand
SARAH S. NORMAND
Assistant United States Attorney
Telephone: (212) 637-2709
sarah.normand@usdoj.gov

Case 17-157, Document 31, 04/21/2017, 2017127, Page223 of 239



Case 1:15-cv-01954-CM   Document 80   Filed 07/25/16   Page 1 of 2

A-939
Case 17-157, Document 31, 04/21/2017, 2017127, Page224 of 239



Case 1:15-cv-01954-CM   Document 80   Filed 07/25/16   Page 2 of 2

A-940
Case 17-157, Document 31, 04/21/2017, 2017127, Page225 of 239



 

UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT 
SOUTHERN DISTRICT OF NEW YORK 

 
 
AMERICAN CIVIL LIBERTIES UNION and 

AMERICAN CIVIL LIBERTIES UNION 
FOUNDATION, 

 
Plaintiffs, 

 
v. 

 
DEPARTMENT OF JUSTICE, including its 

components the OFFICE OF LEGAL COUNSEL 
and the OFFICE OF INFORMATION POLICY, 
DEPARTMENT OF DEFENSE, DEPARTMENT 
OF STATE, and CENTRAL INTELLIGENCE 
AGENCY, 

 
Defendants. 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
No. 15 Civ. 1954 (CM) 

 
ECF CASE 

 
PLAINTIFFS’ NOTICE OF ERRATA AND CORRECTED EXHIBIT 54 

 
 

Jameel Jaffer 
Hina Shamsi 
Brett Max Kaufman 
Matthew Spurlock 
American Civil Liberties Union Foundation 
125 Broad Street—18th Floor 

       New York, New York 10004 
       T: 212.549.2500 

F: 212.549.2654 
jjaffer@aclu.org 
 
Attorneys for Plaintiffs 
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 Plaintiffs respectfully submit this Notice of Errata regarding Exhibit 54 to the Second 

Spurlock Declaration, (ECF No. 53-4).* Upon reading the Court’s August 8, 2016 decision, 

Plaintiffs became aware that the last four pages of the Exhibit 54 were inadvertently omitted 

from the version submitted to the Court with Plaintiffs’ motion for partial summary judgment.  

Plaintiffs respectfully request the Court substitute the corrected Exhibit attached to this Notice 

for Exhibit 54 filed last year. Plaintiffs regret any inconvenience caused by this error, and do not 

seek reconsideration of the Court’s decision. 

 

Dated:  August 17, 2016 Respectfully submitted, 

 /s/ Jameel Jaffer  
 Jameel Jaffer 
 Hina Shamsi 
 Brett Max Kaufman 
 Matthew Spurlock 
 American Civil Liberties Union Foundation 
 125 Broad Street—18th Floor 
 New York, New York 10004 
 T: 212.549.2500 
 F: 212.549.2654 
 jjaffer@aclu.org 
 
 Attorneys for Plaintiffs 
 

                                                 
* Chris Whipple, ‘The Attacks Will Be Spectacular’, Politico, Nov. 12, 2015, 
http://www.politico.com/magazine/story/2015/11/cia-directors-documentary-911-bush-
213353?paginate=false. 
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CORRECTED 
Exhibit 54 

 
November 2015 Panetta Statement 
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“B in Laden Determined to Strike in U.S.” The CIA’s famous Presidential Daily
Brief, presented to George W. Bush on August 6, 2001, has always been
Exhibit A in the case that his administration shrugged off warnings of an Al

Qaeda attack. But months earlier, starting in the spring of 2001, the CIA repeatedly and
urgently began to warn the White House that an attack was coming.

By May of 2001, says Cofer Black, then chief of the CIA’s counterterrorism center, “it was
very evident that we were going to be struck, we were gonna be struck hard and lots of
Americans were going to die.” “There were real plots being manifested,” Cofer’s former
boss, George Tenet, told me in his first interview in eight years. “The world felt like it was
on the edge of eruption. In this time period of June and July, the threat continues to rise.
Terrorists were disappearing [as if in hiding, in preparation for an attack]. Camps were
closing. Threat reportings on the rise.” The crisis came to a head on July 10. The critical
meeting that took place that day was first reported by Bob Woodward in 2006. Tenet also
wrote about it in general terms in his 2007 memoir At the Center of the Storm.

But neither he nor Black has spoken about it publicly in such detail until now—or been so
emphatic about how specific and pressing their warnings really were. Over the past eight
months, in more than a hundred hours of interviews, my partners Jules and Gedeon

Naudet and I talked with Tenet and the 11 other living former CIA directors for The
Spymasters, a documentary set to air this month on Showtime.

The drama of failed warnings began when Tenet and Black pitched a plan, in the spring of
2001, called “the Blue Sky paper” to Bush’s new national security team. It called for a
covert CIA and military campaign to end the Al Qaeda threat—“getting into the Afghan
sanctuary, launching a paramilitary operation, creating a bridge with Uzbekistan.” “And
the word back,” says Tenet, “‘was ‘we’re not quite ready to consider this. We don’t want the
clock to start ticking.’” (Translation: they did not want a paper trail to show that they’d
been warned.) Black, a charismatic ex­operative who had helped the French arrest the
terrorist known as Carlos the Jackal, says the Bush team just didn’t get the new threat: “I
think they were mentally stuck back eight years [before]. They were used to terrorists being
Euro­lefties—they drink champagne by night, blow things up during the day, how bad can
this be? And it was a very difficult sell to communicate the urgency to this.”
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That morning of July 10, the head of the agency’s Al Qaeda unit, Richard Blee, burst into
Black’s office. “And he says, ‘Chief, this is it. Roof's fallen in,’” recounts Black. “The
information that we had compiled was absolutely compelling. It was multiple­sourced. And
it was sort of the last straw.” Black and his deputy rushed to the director’s office to brief
Tenet. All agreed an urgent meeting at the White House was needed. Tenet picked up the
white phone to Bush’s National Security Adviser Condoleezza Rice. “I said, ‘Condi, I have to
come see you,’” Tenet remembers. “It was one of the rare times in my seven years as
director where I said, ‘I have to come see you. We're comin' right now. We have to get
there.’”

Tenet vividly recalls the White House meeting with Rice and her team. (George W. Bush
was on a trip to Boston.) “Rich [Blee] started by saying, ‘There will be significant terrorist
attacks against the United States in the coming weeks or months. The attacks will be
spectacular. They may be multiple. Al Qaeda's intention is the destruction of the United
States.’" [Condi said:] ‘What do you think we need to do?’ Black responded by slamming his
fist on the table, and saying, ‘We need to go on a wartime footing now!’”

“What happened?” I ask Cofer Black. “Yeah. What did happen?” he replies. “To me it
remains incomprehensible still. I mean, how is it that you could warn senior people so
many times and nothing actually happened? It’s kind of like The Twilight Zone.”
Remarkably, in her memoir, Condi Rice writes of the July 10 warnings: “My recollection of
the meeting is not very crisp because we were discussing the threat every day.” Having
raised threat levels for U.S. personnel overseas, she adds: “I thought we were doing what
needed to be done.” (When I asked whether she had any further response to the comments
that Tenet, Black and others made to me, her chief of staff said she stands by the account in
her memoir.) Inexplicably, although Tenet brought up this meeting in his closed­door
testimony before the 9/11 Commission, it was never mentioned in the committee’s final
report.

And there was one more chilling warning to come. At the end of July, Tenet and his
deputies gathered in the director’s conference room at CIA headquarters. “We were just
thinking about all of this and trying to figure out how this attack might occur,” he recalls.
“And I'll never forget this until the day I die. Rich Blee looked at everybody and said,
‘They're coming here.’ And the silence that followed was deafening. You could feel the
oxygen come out of the room. ‘They're coming here.’”

Tenet, who is perhaps the agency’s most embattled director ever, can barely contain
himself when talking about the unheeded warnings he says he gave the White House.
Twirling an unlit cigar and fidgeting in his chair at our studio in downtown Washington,
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D.C., he says with resignation: “I can only tell you what we did and what we said.” And
when asked about his own responsibility for the attacks on 9/11, he is visibly distraught.
“There was never a moment in all this time when you blamed yourself?” I ask him. He
shifts uncomfortably in his chair. “Well, look, there … I still look at the ceiling at night
about a lot of things. And I'll keep them to myself forever. But we're all human beings."

***

Only 12 men are alive today who have made the life­and­death decisions that come
with running the CIA.

Once a year, the present and former CIA directors—ranging from George H.W. Bush, 91, to
the current boss, John Brennan, 60—meet in a conference room at CIA headquarters in
Langley, Virginia. The ostensible reason: to receive a confidential briefing on the state of
the world. (Robert Gates, who hates setting foot inside the Beltway, is a perennial no­
show.) “They mostly tell us stuff we already know, and we pretend we’re learning
something,” says Tenet, the longest­serving director (lasting seven years, under Presidents
Clinton and Bush II). But the real point of their annual pilgrimage is to renew bonds forged
in the trenches of the war on terror—and to debate the agency’s purpose in the world.

And I'll never forget this until the day I die. Rich Blee looked at

everybody and said, ‘They're coming here.’”

On the burning questions of the day, the directors are profoundly torn: over the CIA’s
mission, its brutal interrogation methods after 9/11, and the shifting “rules of engagement”
in the battle against Al Qaeda and the Islamic State. What is fair game in the fight against
terrorism: Torture? Indefinite detention? Setting up “black sites” in foreign countries for
interrogation? Should the CIA be in the business of killing people with remotely piloted
drones? Was the agency really to blame for 9/11? Or did the White House ignore its
repeated warnings?

On these and other questions, the directors were surprisingly candid in the interviews they
did with me—even straying into classified territory. (They often disagree about what is
actually classified; it’s complicated, as Hillary Clinton is learning.) A controversial case in
point: drone strikes. “He can’t talk publicly about that,” protests Gen. David Petraeus when
I tell him that one of his counterparts has opened up to me about “signature strikes.”
(These are lethal attacks on unidentified targets—a kind of profiling by drone—that several

Case 1:15-cv-01954-CM   Document 85-1   Filed 08/17/16   Page 5 of 11

A-947
Case 17-157, Document 31, 04/21/2017, 2017127, Page232 of 239



8/10/2016 CIA Direc or Documentary: ‘The Attacks Wi l Be Spectacular’ ­ POL TICO Magazine

http://www poli ico.com/magazine/story/2015/11/cia­directors­documentary­911­bush­213353?paginate=false 5/10

directors find deeply troubling.) Gen. Petraeus might have had good reason to be reticent;
only a week before he had accepted a plea bargain to avoid prison time—for sharing
classified information with his mistress, Paula Broadwell.

Here are some of the other secrets we learned from the surprisingly outspoken men who
have run the world’s most powerful intelligence agency.

Even CIA chiefs can’t agree about “torture”

“In the period right after 9/11, we did some things wrong,” said Barack Obama. “We
tortured some folks. We did things that were contrary to our values.” Jose Rodriguez, who
oversaw the CIA’s so­called enhanced interrogation program (EIT), has a two­word reply:
“That’s bullshit.” Tenet concurs. “People are throwing the word ‘torture’ around—as if we're
torturers,” he complains. “Well, I'm not ever gonna accept the use of the word ‘torture’ for
what happened here.” From sleep deprivation to waterboarding, Tenet and his lieutenant
Rodriguez insist the techniques were all approved—by everybody.

“The attorney general of the United States told us that these techniques are legal under U.S.
law,” says Tenet, “and do not in any way compromise our adherence to international
torture statutes.” Contrary to the claim by the SSCI (Senate Select Committee on
Intelligence) Majority Report, Tenet insists: “We briefed members of Congress fully on
what we were doing at all times. There was never a hint of disapproval.” And Tenet says
that George W. Bush was so hands­on, “he read the memo, looked at the techniques, and
decided he was gonna take two techniques off the table himself.” Tenet says he does not
recall which EITs the president rejected (Rodriguez believes one of them was “mock
executions.”)

Tenet and his post­9/11 successors—Porter Goss, Michael Hayden and acting director
Michael Morell (sometimes called the “wartime directors”)—say the techniques were a
necessary evil, justified by the context of the times. It was an article of faith at the CIA that
the United States was about to be struck again in a “second wave” attack. And that “high­
value detainees,” beginning with Al Qaeda leader Abu Zubaydah, knew more than they
were telling. “Every day,” says Rodriguez, “the president was asking George Tenet, ‘What is
Abu Zubaydah saying about the second wave of attacks and about all these other plots?’
Well, he was not saying anything. We had to do something different.” Tenet says they had
persuasive intelligence that indicated Osama bin Laden had met with Pakistani nuclear
scientists—and was seeking the blueprint for a bomb. There was a credible report, he adds,
that a nuke had already been planted in New York City. “People say, ‘didn’t you think about
the moral and ethical consequences of your decision?’” says Tenet. “Yeah, we did. We
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thought that stopping the further loss of American life and protecting a just society was
equally important.”

Did the techniques produce intelligence that disrupted plots or saved lives? The SSCI study
looked at 20 cases and said no useful evidence was obtained. Tenet insists, “They are wrong
in all 20 of the cases. The report is dead wrong on every account, period, end of paragraph.”
But Tenet’s fellow spy chiefs are sharply—even passionately—divided about such
procedures. “Our Constitution does prohibit ‘cruel and unusual’ treatment and if it’s cruel,
we shouldn’t be doing it,” says William Webster, 91, regarded by his fellow spymasters as a
voice of reason (and the only DCI who also served as FBI director). “You cross a line at
some point in your effort to get the information when you go that route. There have to be
limitations and monitoring and they must be observed. Our country stands for something
and it loses something when we don’t.” Stansfield Turner, now 91—who as Jimmy Carter’s
director authorized the ill­fated attempt to rescue American hostages in Tehran—agrees: “I
just don’t think a country like ours should be culpable of conducting torture. I just think it’s
beneath our dignity.”

The directors who oppose torture are not just bleeding hearts. “Nobody was responsible for
more detainees than I was,” says Gen. Petraeus, who was commander of the multinational
forces in Iraq. “We visit violence on our enemies, but we should not mistreat them, even
though they have done unspeakable things to our soldiers and to civilians. That does not
justify us doing it to them. You will pay a price for what you do, and it will be vastly greater
than whatever it is you got out of taking this action.” And Director Brennan sees no
circumstance in which the CIA would torture again: “If a president tomorrow asked me to
waterboard a terrorist, I would say, ‘Mr. President, sorry—I do not believe that is in our
best interest as a country.’” Hayden is even more emphatic. “If some future president is
going to decide to waterboard,” he says, “he’d better bring his own bucket—because he’s
going to have to do it himself.”

The CIA really does pull the trigger on lethal drone attacks.

Officially, it is a taboo subject. The CIA has never acknowledged publicly that it operates
lethal drones. But former Director Leon Panetta gives a riveting account of the ethical
dilemma he confronted when the CIA had a top Al Qaeda terrorist in the cross hairs of a
drone over Pakistan. (CIA censors forced him to truncate the story in his 2014 memoir.)
The target was the Al Qaeda mastermind behind a suicide bombing that killed seven
officers at the CIA station in Khost, Afghanistan, in December 2009. “We knew who the
individual was,” Panetta says. “This was a bad guy. And he was clearly a leader who had
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been involved not only in going after our officers, but in killing members of our own forces
in Afghanistan.”

Panetta’s dilemma: “Unfortunately, this individual had family and wife and children
around him, so one of the tough questions was, What should we do? If there were women
and children in the shot, we normally would not take the shot.” Panetta called the White
House and spoke with Brennan, then Obama’s counterterrorism adviser. “What does Leon
say I said?” Brennan asks me, arching an eyebrow, when I tell him about Panetta’s out­of­
school account (which essentially had Brennan bouncing the ball back to him). Brennan
wears a tight smile that seems to say, There goes Leon again.

The judgment call fell to the devoutly Catholic Panetta, once an altar boy. “The White
House said, ‘Look, you’re going to have to make a judgment here,’” he recalls. “So, I knew at
that point it was a decision that I was going to have to make. I’m the one who’s going to
have to say Hail Marys here. Suddenly, I found that I was making decisions on life and
death as director. And those are never easy, and frankly they shouldn’t be easy. But I felt it
was really important in that job to do what I could to protect this country. So I passed on
the word. I said, ‘If you can isolate the individual and take the shot without impacting on
women or children, then do it. But if you have no alternative and it looks like he might get
away, then take the shot.’ And it did involve collateral damage, but we got him.” In the end,
says Panetta, “What you do has to be based on what your gut tells you is right. You have to
be true to yourself—and hope that ultimately God agrees with you.”

Brennan, the current director, concedes that he is often called upon to make judgments
with high stakes. “I’m forced to make decisions every day that have significant risks, that
sometimes can result in deaths,” he says. “You try to make sure that you consider all angles.
You take into account whatever information, intelligence data that you have available. You
weigh the pros and cons. And you then make the best decision you can.” How high is the
bar when deciding to pull the trigger on a lethal drone strike? “There needs to be near
certainty of what's called ‘no collateral,’” Brennan says. “No noncombatants who will be
affected by it.”

But “near certainty” does not always apply. Last January, a drone attack on an Al Qaeda
compound inadvertently killed an American and an Italian hostage, who happened to have
been held there. Gen. Hayden, Bush’s third director, cautions: “Near certainty: What does
that exactly mean? Because look, the president [Obama] was very candid after those recent
strikes in which he talked about the ‘fog of war.’ There is fog even when you think you’ve
got ‘near certainty’ and near certainty is never certainty.”
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And what if the strike is deliberately aimed at an American citizen overseas? Should the
CIA director—or the president, for that matter—have a license to kill? It’s been a
controversial question ever since Anwar al­Awlaki, the militant American jihadist and voice
of Al Qaeda, was killed by a U.S. drone in Yemen in 2011. Watchdog groups have vilified the
practice. It turns out they have an unlikely ally—in ex­Director Gates. “I don’t have a moral
problem with it,” says Gates, “but I believe the precedent of an American president being
able to kill an American citizen under any circumstances, on just his signature, is
dangerous.”

Webster is equally critical. “This was an American citizen and he was ultimately taken out,
but it’s not something that should be left to one person, no matter who that person is,” says
Webster. “We do harm to the country, damage to the president and others who are
exercising legitimate authority by just leaving it up to unprocessed whim to use these
instruments for destruction.” Gates argues that strikes on Americans should require
approval by outside experts—perhaps a panel of judges: “I just think the idea of no external
review beyond people appointed by the president, and who basically are his minions, being
able to assess whether the president should kill an American citizen without a judicial
process, needs to be looked at.”

Though drone strikes came well after his time as director (1976­1977), George H.W. Bush,
says he can live with the practice: “If they’re bad guys and they’re doing us harm, I have no
problem with that.” But some of his peers wonder if the otherworldly weapons have made
the White House trigger happy. “When you can stare at a target unblinkingly for hours, if
not days,” says Gen. Hayden, “and then use a weapon against that target that has a 14­
pound warhead in it, with an accuracy measured in inches, this actually makes warfare
more precise.

"That’s all to the good. Now the dark side: It does make it easier for a policymaker to make
a judgment to engage.” Indeed, the relative simplicity of drone warfare has proved
irresistible to the current White House. Under Barack Obama, drone strikes have grown
dramatically.

“No, Mr. Deutch, assassination is not prohibited.”

In a war against Al Qaeda and the Islamic State, what methods are acceptable? Is
assassination fair game? Porter Goss, who resigned in frustration as George W. Bush’s
second director, is still waiting for an answer: “We do not know what the rules of
engagement are. Are we dealing with enemy combatants? Are we dealing with criminals?
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Are the rules shoot first? Do we only shoot when we get shot at? Can we ask questions? Do
we have to Mirandize people?”

“I remember sitting in the Situation Room in the first Clinton term,” former CIA Director
John Deutch reflects, “and discussing a particularly sensitive matter and saying, ‘But of
course we can’t consider assassination because that is forbidden by executive order.’ And
one of the Justice Department lawyers said, ‘No, Mr. Deutch, only political assassination is
forbidden. Assassination for other purposes is not prohibited.’”

So what’s the answer? Is assassination, which was distinctly prohibited by President Gerald
Ford’s Executive Order 12333, still off limits? Well, yes and no. In 2008, after a nearly
three­decade manhunt, a legendary Hezbollah leader who had orchestrated countless
assaults on the U.S. and Israel was killed in a daring covert operation in Damascus, Syria. A
lethal “shape charge,” fired by remote control from a parked SUV, blew him to smithereens.
The operation, reportedly a joint CIA­Mossad mission, is so sensitive that, to this day, none
of the directors has said anything publicly about it. Except, when pressed, the current boss,
John Brennan. “Is there anything at all that you can tell us about what happened to Imad
Mughniyah?” I ask him. Brennan, who has the lugubrious air of an undertaker—even in his
lighter moments—pauses. Then he replies, “He died quickly.”

What’s the CIA’s mission? Is it a spy agency? Or a secret army? “Sometimes I think we get
ourselves into a frenzy—into believing that killing is the only answer to a problem,” says
Tenet. “And the truth is, it's not. That's not what our reason for existence is.” When
Petraeus became CIA director, his predecessor, Hayden took him aside. Never before,
Hayden warned him, had the agency become so focused on covert military operations at
the expense of intelligence gathering. “An awful lot of what we now call analysis in the
American intelligence community is really targeting,” Hayden says. “Frankly, that has been
at the expense of the broader, more global view. We’re safer because of it, but it has not
been cost­free. Some of the things we do to keep us safe for the close fight—for instance,
targeted killings—can make it more difficult to resolve the deep fight, the ideological fight.
We feed the jihadi recruitment video that these Americans are heartless killers.”

Who’s winning? The CIA—or radical Islam? “The big picture,” says Morell, the two­time
acting director, “is a great victory for us and a great victory for them. Our great victory has
been the degradation, decimation, near­defeat of the Al Qaeda core that brought tragedy to
our shores on 9/11. But their great victory has been the spread of their ideology across a
huge geographic area. What we haven’t done a good job of is stopping new terrorists from
being created. And until we get our arms around that, this war is not going away.”
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“You can't kill your way out of this,” says Tenet. “It's not sustainable. The message to Islam
itself is they have to create vibrant civil societies that work, that create educational
opportunities. But this is something they have to do for themselves.” Panetta agrees that
the roots of terrorism must be dealt with: “You've got to address what it is that produces
this frustration and this anger. It is almost Mission Impossible because, for God’s sake,
we're still trying to figure out how the hell the Baltimores of the world happen; how the hell
the Detroits of the world happen; why there are people that are attracted to gangs in this
country.” Until we do, Panetta concludes, “we may have to use these kinds of weapons, but
in the end, let me tell you something: if we fail to do this and, God forbid, this country faces
another 9/11, you know what the first question will be: ‘Why the hell did you let this
happen? Why the hell did you let this happen?’” 
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UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT 
SOUTHERN DISTRICT OF NEW YORK 
 ----------------------------------------------------------- x  
AMERICAN CIVIL LIBERTIES UNION, 
AMERICAN CIVIL LIBERTIES UNION 
FOUNDATION, 
 
   Plaintiffs, 
 
  v. 
 
UNITED STATES DEPARTMENT OF 
JUSTICE, UNITED STATES DEPARTMENT 
OF DEFENSE, DEPARTMENT OF STATE, 
CENTRAL INTELLIGENCE AGENCY, 
 
   Defendants. 

   
 
 
15 Civ. 1954 (CM) 
 
NOTICE OF APPEAL 

 ----------------------------------------------------------- x  
 
 Notice is hereby given that the United States Department of Justice, United States 
Department of Defense, Department of State and Central Intelligence Agency, defendants in the 
above-named case, hereby appeal to the United States Court of Appeals for the Second Circuit 
from the final judgment entered in this action on November 16, 2016, and from all interlocutory 
orders merged into that judgment. 
 
Dated: New York, New York  
  January 17, 2017 
             Respectfully submitted, 
   

PREET BHARARA 
United States Attorney for the 
Southern District of New York 
Attorney for Defendants 

 
By: /s/ Sarah S. Normand 

SARAH S. NORMAND 
Assistant United States Attorney 
86 Chambers Street 
New York, New York  10007 
Telephone: 212.637.2709 
Fax: 212.637.2730 
E-mail: sarah.normand@usdoj.gov 

 
TO: Clerk of Court, United States Court of Appeals for the Second Circuit 

Thurgood Marshall United States Courthouse 
40 Foley Square 
New York, New York  10007 

 
 Brett Max Kaufman, Esq., American Civil Liberties Union, Counsel for Plaintiffs (via ECF) 
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